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Decision Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Corporate Services Manager

Date:

Wednesday, 23 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:
Appendix B:

Meeting date:

Wednesday, 30 September 2015

Subject:

Sensitive Expenditure Policy Review

1416383
1319212
1319213

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT the revised Sensitive Expenditure Policy for Elected Members and the revised Sensitive
Expenditure Policy for Staff be adopted.

Purpose
To inform Council to enable it to decide whether to adopt the revised Sensitive Expenditure
Policies as recommended by the Audit and Risk Committee.
The matter or suggested decision does not involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable.

Background
There were outstanding items on the Audit NZ Management Letter for the year ended 30 June
2014 indicating that these policies required changes to comply with guidelines from the Office of
the Auditor General.
The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the policies at its February meeting and recommended
that they be submitted to Council for adoption.
Staff have realised that the policies have not been submitted to Council and therefore have not yet
been adopted.

Issues and options
The attached policies (appendiices A and B) have been revised to provide more clarity around the
requirements for spending on sensitive items as recommended by the Office of the Auditor
General.
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Previously there was some commonality in the policies for staff and Elected Members
and this duplication has been removed. The changes to these policies have been reviewed by
Audit NZ and they believe that their concerns have been addressed.

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision does not trigger the Significance and Engagement Policy Assessment Tool and
therefore is not considered significant under the Significance and Engagement Policy 2014.

Recommendation
Council should make its decision on which option to choose based on that option being the most
cost effective, and good quality option for the Hauraki District (s10 of the Local Government Act
2002).
It is recommended that Council adopt these revised policies.

Duncan Peddie
CORPORATE SERVICES MANAGER
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APPENDIX A

jkj

SENSITIVE
EXPENDITURE POLICY
FOR ELECTED MEMBERS
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OBJECTIVE
Hauraki District Council will be mindful of its responsibilities in having good controls in place
and ensuring its elected members make good judgement in terms of sensitive expenditure.

PURPOSE
•

Clear guidelines are provided for elected members who are responsible for spending
public money so that such spending withstands public scrutiny.

•

Decisions to commit to, and make payments for goods and services are subject to
proper authorisation and controls.

DEFINITIONS
“Elected Member” means all elected members of the Hauraki District Council including the
Mayor and members of Council.
“Sensitive Expenditure” is any expenditure by the Council that provides, has the potential to
provide, or has the perceived potential to provide a private benefit to an individual that is
additional to the business benefit to the Council of the expenditure. It also includes
expenditure by the Council that could be considered unusual given the Council’s purposes
and/or functions.

PROCEDURES
The most fundamental fact applicable to all expenditure by the Council is that the money used
is public funds. It is not the property of elected members or employees of Council to do with
as they please. Consequently, expenditure should:
•
•

Be consistent with the standards of probity and financial prudence that are expected
of a public entity; and
Be able to withstand elected members’ and public scrutiny.

The above standards apply the principles to ensure that expenditure decisions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Have a justifiable business purpose;
Preserve impartiality;
Are made with integrity;
Are moderate and conservative, having regard to the circumstances;
Are made transparently; and
Are appropriate in all respects.

Approval
Approval of sensitive expenditure must be:
1. Given only when the person approving the expenditure is satisfied that a justified
business purpose and other principles have been adequately met;
2. Given before the expenditure is incurred wherever practical;
3. Made only when budgetary provisions and delegated authority exist; and
2
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4. Given by the person senior to the person who will benefit or who might be perceived
to benefit from the sensitive expenditure wherever possible (the “one-up” principle).
5. All expenditure claimed by elected members must be in accordance with the
Remuneration Authority approved expenses rules current at the time the expenditure
is incurred.
Approval of expenditure claims for elected members must be approved as detailed below:
Expenditure by Councillors:

Approved by His worship the Mayor

Expenditure by His Worship the Mayor:

Approved by the Deputy Mayor and one of the
Ward Chairs

Claims
Claims relating to sensitive expenditure need to:
1. Clearly state the business purpose of the expenditure. In instances where the
business purpose is not clear from the supplier documentation supporting the claim, a
written statement of the purpose should be included as part of the claim;
2. Be accompanied by adequate original (not photocopied) supporting documentation
such as tax invoices or other validating documentation (credit card statements do not
constitute adequate documentation for reimbursement);
3. Document the date, amount, description, and purpose of minor expenditure when
receipts are unavailable (e.g. from vending machines); and
4. Be submitted promptly after the expenditure is incurred.

Guiding Principles for Sensitive Expenditure
The guide-lines attached as Schedule A are to be used in the determination of sensitive
expenditure. These guidelines are based on the Good Practice Guide ‘Controlling Sensitive
Expenditure: Guidelines for Public Entities’ produced by the Controller and Auditor-General in
2007. Note that where figures are quoted, these are GST inclusive amounts.

Discretion
The Council must recommend any change, modification or deviation from these guidelines to
the Remuneration Authority for approval.

Date Adopted:
Last Modified:
Approved By:
Doc #
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25 March 2015
February 2015
Council Resolution 25 March 2015
1319212 (supersedes 742484 v4)
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Schedule A

SENSITIVE EXPENDITURE GUIDE-LINES
FOR ELECTED MEMBERS
ELECTED MEMBERS’ EXPENSES AND ALLOWANCES
It is expected that members of the Hauraki District Council may, from time to time, incur expenses
associated with their responsibility as members of the Council. Subject to the general principles outlined in
this policy and guide-lines, no Councillor should be out of pocket in the course of performing their duty.
Actual and reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the following will entitle the member to be
reimbursed subject to these sensitive expenditure guide-lines:




Attendance at properly constituted meetings of the Council;
Attendance at conferences, courses, seminars and similar events as authorised by the Council;
Attendance at other meetings, events and functions when attending as an authorised representative
of the Council.

The Council, or alternatively the Mayor (or in his/her absence the Deputy Mayor), is authorised to approve
attendance for elected members at conferences, courses, seminars and training programmes within
approved budgets and in accordance with the representatives’ approved terms of reference.
The Deputy Chief Executive is responsible for certifying reimbursement claims for elected members before
they are authorised.

CREDIT CARDS
Using credit cards is not a type of sensitive expenditure but is a common method for payment for such
expenditure. Guidelines have been formulated to minimise some of the perceived risks associated with
them.
Eligibility
No elected members are eligible for use of a Council credit card.

TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION EXPENDITURE
Elected members may need to incur travel and accommodation costs while conducting Council’s business
around New Zealand or overseas. Travel and accommodation expenditure should be economical and
efficient, having regard to purpose, distance, time, urgency, personal health, security, and safety
considerations.
Travel, like any other good or service, must be purchased in line with the Purchase of Goods Policy which
outlines delegations for the purchase of goods by Authorised Purchasing Officers, conditions on
expenditure and purchasing procedures.
All requests for reimbursement of expenses must be made using the Expense Claim Form (with receipts
attached) within one month following travel.

AIR TRAVEL

1
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All travel is to be booked through an Authorised Purchasing Officer (for elected members this is the
Executive Assistant or the Executive Officer Planning and Environmental). Every attempt should be made to
take advantage of cheaper fares by booking as far in advance as possible.
All domestic air travel must be purchased using the Hauraki District Council Corporate Travelcard to provide
for centralised invoicing and better control over travel expenses. When booking, Authorised Purchasing
Officers must state the name of the Council and the name of the cost centre (i.e. councillors where the
travel is for a councillor, or staff where the travel is for a staff member). The Travelcard is held by the
Executive Assistant should any elected member require the Travelcard number for booking purposes.
Lowest available fares are to be booked for travel within New Zealand provided they are within reasonable
travel hours. It is Council policy not to purchase insurance for domestic travel.
All international travel must have prior Council approval and must be purchased in accordance with the
Purchase of Goods Policy. International travel of up to 5 hours’ duration is to be booked at the lowest fare
available provided they are within reasonable travel times. International travel over 5 hours will be booked at
the discretion of the Chief Executive and, if the travel is for the Chief Executive, at the discretion of the
Council. All international travel will be at economy class or equivalent unless specifically approved
otherwise (and rationale clearly documented) by the Chief Executive. Stopovers for long distance flights will
be at the discretion of the Chief Executive and, where prior approval is given, Council will pay for associated
relevant and moderate costs. It is Council policy to purchase insurance for international travel.
Approved suppliers for air travel are:
Air New Zealand Travelcentre
Internet Online Bookings:
www.airnewzealand.co.nz
Telephone Bookings: Freephone 0800 737
000

Local travel agents within the Hauraki
district:
United Travel (Waihi)
Paeroa United Travel

Council acknowledges that individuals travelling on Council business may accrue airpoints if they are
airpoints members. Accruing of airpoints by the individual does not affect the cost of travel to Council. The
future use of those airpoints is at the discretion of the elected member who accumulated them.
Elected members wishing to extend their stay or modify travel plans to include some holiday or sightseeing
time may do so at the discretion of the Chief Executive. Any added travel costs as a result of the modified
travel plans will be met by the elected member.

MEALS AND ACCOMMODATION
Meals: Where meals are not provided as part of the travel or function package, then actual and reasonable
costs will be reimbursed through the usual expense reimbursement process. Elected members required to
be away overnight may claim reimbursement for breakfast, lunch and/or dinner providing expenses are
reasonable and authorisation is approved by Council or given by the Chief Executive. Separate meal
expenses may not be claimed if a meal is provided as part of a package already paid for by the Council.
Council will not pay for meals for accompanying partners. No meal expenses may be claimed where they
are served within private accommodation – however accommodation allowances may be claimed (see
‘Accommodation’ below).
Refreshments: It is acceptable for elected members to have one glass of beer or wine with a meal that is
reimbursed. Other alcohol purchases will not be reimbursed except at the discretion of the Chief Executive.
Reimbursement of mini-bar expenses is prohibited.
Accommodation: If the elected member is required to be away overnight, accommodation costs will be
reimbursed providing they are reasonable and have the prior approval of the Council or Chief Executive.
Where accommodation can be booked at the venue of the conference, course, function or event, this
should be done to maximise special deals. In other circumstances, a hotel or motel offering suitable facilities
at a reasonable price should be booked close to the venue. Where an elected member chooses to stay in
private accommodation when travelling on Council business they may claim $100 for each night they are
required to be away.
2
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MOTOR VEHICLES
(1)

Where an elected member is required to use their own vehicle for travel on Council business, Council will
pay a travel allowance to Councillors for the distance travelled on the day that exceeds the threshold
distance, with the threshold distance being the shorter of the distance (return) from the member’s residence
.
and the nearest office of the Council, by the most direct route or 30 kilometres
(1)

Travel on Council business for the purposes of this policy is deemed to be:
• Civic functions, meetings and/or ceremonial functions of other organisations where the elected
member is a representative and/or respective portfolio holder, and attendance and
reimbursement of costs are in accordance with the representatives’ approved terms of
reference; or
• Conferences, courses, seminars and training programmes where the elected members’
attendance has been approved by the Council or requested by the Chief Executive; or
• Attendance at Council-initiated public meetings or site visits associated with the Hearings
Committee meetings / hearings; or
• Mileage incurred by elected members investigating incidents of complaint referred to them by
residents and where that complaint has been registered on Council’s ‘Service Request’
database.

Reimbursement of mileage incurred in travelling to and from formally convened Council, Committee and
Sub-committee meetings is made automatically in accordance with meeting attendance records and so no
separate claim for reimbursement is necessary for these meetings.
This will be on the basis of full reimbursement up to the Remuneration Authority approved maximum vehicle
mileage allowance. The maximum amount of the vehicle mileage allowance will be $0.77 per kilometre up
to 3,548kms per year, and $0.37 per kilometre for travel in excess of 3,548kms per year.
Travel Time Allowance: A travel time allowance be paid to a Councillor for each day that the Councillor is
travelling on local authority business and the travel time exceeds 1 hour. The allowance is payable, in
relation to each day for which the Councillor qualifies at no more than $15.00 per hour (up to a maximum of
8 hours).
Rental Cars: If a rental car is required, it must be economical and the size must be relevant to the
requirements (number of people, distance to be travelled). Private use of a rental car is not permitted unless
authorised by the Chief Executive or Council – the elected member will be expected to reimburse the
Council for any additional costs for such private use.
Taxis: Taxi fares will be reimbursed providing these are necessary and cost-effective in terms of other
options. Where taxis are necessary, they should be shared with other elected members or course / event
attendees where possible. Use of taxis is typically acceptable for travel between the airport and hotel and
hotel to conference, course or event venue.
Other Expenses: Other necessary expenses including car park fees will be reimbursed subject to usual
documentation requirements. Any fines (parking, traffic offences etc) incurred while using a Council vehicle
or rental car are to be paid by the driver, not the Council.

OTHER INCIDENTAL TRAVEL COSTS
Telephone Calls: Where an elected member is required to be away from home over night on Council
business, they will be reimbursed for one toll call of up to 15 minutes per day to contact home. Where an
elected member has a Council mobile phone, this should be used in preference to the hotel phone which is
likely to incur additional connection charges.
Tipping: Council will not meet the costs of tipping by elected members while they are on Council business
in New Zealand. The Council will meet the costs of tipping during international travel only in places where
tipping is local practice at rates published in reputable travel publications.
Spouse Travel: As a general principle, the travel costs of accompanying spouses, partners or other family
members are not paid by the Council. In the rare circumstance that involvement of a spouse directly
3
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contributes to a clear business purpose, the cost or partial cost of travel may be authorised at the discretion
of the Chief Executive or Council.
The travel cost of the Mayor’s spouse to official functions and events, where they have been invited to
attend with the Mayor, will be met by Council. The annual Local Government New Zealand Conference and
AGM is deemed to be an official Council event.

ENTERTAINMENT AND HOSPITALITY
Council expenditure on entertainment and hospitality may be required from time to time for the purposes of:
•
•
•
•

Building relationships
Representing the organisation
Reciprocation of hospitality
Recognising significant business achievement

Entertainment and hospitality covers a range of items from the provision of tea, coffee and biscuits, to
catering such as meals and alcohol. It also includes non-catering related items such as Council-funded
entry to a sporting or cultural event.
Expenditure on entertainment and hospitality must be moderate and appropriate for the circumstances, and
must be subject to the usual purchase of goods processes and purchasing officer delegated authority limits,
budgets etc.

COMMUNICATION ALLOWANCE
If Council determines that particular communications equipment and services are required by members to
perform their functions and Councillors choose, or are required to use their own equipment or services then
the following allowance applies:
Councillors will be paid a communication allowance of $29.81 a fortnight which equates to $775.00 per
annum. This allowance covers the following:
(a) for the use of a personal computer, $110:
(b) for the use of a personal electronic tablet, $110:
(c) for the use of a personal printer (with or without a scanner), $30:
(d) for use of a personal mobile phone, $45:
(e) for a personal Internet connection (with or without a telephone connection)$185:
(f) for use of personal phone and/or mobile phone for Council related Toll/text charges, $295, and
If Council provides any of the above items, then the dollar value of the item is deducted from the annual
communication allowance.

GOODS AND SERVICES EXPENDITURE
SALE OF SURPLUS ASSETS TO ELECTED MEMBERS
From time to time the Council will dispose of assets that have become obsolete, worn out, or surplus to
requirements.
Assets identified as surplus – including furniture and fittings, computers, plant and other equipment - may
be sold internally to elected members and/or employees, or externally through other avenues by tender or
other fair process as determined and authorised by the relevant Department Manager. The sale of assets
identified as surplus over the value of $1,000 must be approved by the Chief Executive.
In all instances, the asset must be valued and every endeavour must be made to recognise the value so
that maximum income can be derived for the Council. Where offered internally to elected members and/or
4
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employees, all elected members and/or employees will be given the opportunity to tender for the surplus
items. The normal rules of a tender will apply and surplus assets will be sold to the highest bidder.
Surplus Vehicles: Surplus vehicles are to be traded in or sold at auction, whichever is likely to generate
the most revenue. Elected members and employees are welcome to bid for Council vehicles at auction but
the private sale of vehicles to elected members or employees is prohibited unless authorised by Council.

LOYALTY REWARD SCHEME BENEFITS
Loyalty reward schemes are those where benefits accumulate for a customer who continues to use a
particular supplier for the purchase of goods or services. Or there may be schemes where free prizes or
rewards are given for the purchase of particular products.
Elected members making procurement decisions are not permitted to personally receive any loyalty rewards
as a result of those decisions. Where loyalty rewards are given to an elected member, the reward becomes
the property of the Council and is to be used by the Council for business-related purposes. If the item is
surplus to Council requirements, the Chief Executive will determine the appropriate way to dispose of the
reward for the benefit of the Council. The exception to this are airpoint schemes. Airpoints accrue to the
traveller and are not able to be transferred to the Council. Airpoints are rarely accumulated as part of
Council travel and therefore may remain with the elected member.

PRIVATE USE OF COUNCIL ASSETS
Any physical item owned, leased or borrowed by the Council is considered an asset, e.g. photocopiers,
telephones, cellphones, internet access, stationery etc. Limited private use for personal purposes may be
permitted in some circumstances. The supply of reasonable amounts of paper, letterhead, envelopes and
printer and facsimile consumables for Council-related purposes is provided for elected members. No use is
permitted for electioneering purposes. Only the Mayor is eligible for the supply of a cellphone and laptop
computer for Council-related purposes – ownership is retained by the Council and private outgoing calls are
to be refunded to the Council.

PRIVATE USE OF COUNCIL SUPPLIERS
From time to time elected members may qualify for discount-priced goods through a Council supplier that
they would not otherwise be able to access. The Council expects that the availability of such privileges will
not impact on an elected member’s decision in respect of their choice of suppliers. Private use of suppliers
must not be taken into account when choosing suppliers.
When purchasing goods for private use through a Council supplier elected members must pay the full
amount at the time of purchase.
The selection of the suppliers must be in the best interests of the Council at all times. Refer to the Purchase
of Goods Policy.
The private use of Council fuel cards is prohibited.

STAFF SUPPORT AND WELFARE EXPENDITURE
The Council provides for staff support and welfare in a range of ways in an effort to benefit both the Council
and the elected member. The following guidelines apply in respect of elected member support and welfare
expenditure:

Clothing and Grooming
The Council subsidises a corporate uniform and provides health and safety clothing and equipment. This is
on the basis of one set jacket, a polo shirt, and a cap per triennium subject to a signed request from the
elected member. Any uniform items in addition to this will be supplied in accordance with Council’s staff
uniform policy.
5
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Care of Dependants
The Council does not meet the costs for the care of elected members’ dependants.

Sponsorship of Elected Members
The Council provides for the sponsorship of elected members and/or employees taking part in sporting or
cultural events. Refer to the Organisational Belonging Policy.

OTHER TYPES OF EXPENDITURE
Corporate Boxes
The Council prohibits expenditure on corporate boxes.

Donations
Donations are not typically allowed. Any requests for a Council donation must be authorised by the Chief
Executive.

Koha
Koha is a gift, a token, or a contribution given on appropriate occasions. All koha are to be authorised by
the Chief Executive or Department Manager.

Communications Technology
Communications technology such as cell-phones, telephones, e-mail, and access to the internet are widely
used in the workplace. While some level of personal use of this technology may be unavoidable, excessive
use incurs costs that are a diversion of public money from the business purposes of the Council. Such costs
include lost productivity and the direct cost of the technology.
Refer to the Electronic Communications Policy.

Gifts
Receiving Gifts; from time to time elected members will receive a gift from a supplier or client.
Elected members may retain the gift if it is:
•
•

Inexpensive (i.e. the value is assessed to be less than $100); and
Received infrequently (i.e. annually or more)

Where a gift is valued at over $100 or where a gift is regularly given by a supplier or client, the elected
member must declare the gift to the Chief Executive who will determine whether it is acceptable for the
elected member to retain, or whether it should be returned or sold for the benefit of the Council.
Elected members are prohibited from receiving gifts for favours or inferred preferences to suppliers or
clients.

6

Sensitive Expenditure Guidelines

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 72

APPENDIX B

SENSITIVE EXPENDITURE
POLICY
FOR STAFF
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OBJECTIVE
Hauraki District Council will be mindful of its responsibilities in having good controls in place
and ensuring its employees make good judgement in terms of sensitive expenditure.

PURPOSE
•

Clear guidelines are provided for employees who are responsible for spending public
money so that such spending withstands public scrutiny.

•

Decisions to commit to, and make payments for goods and services are subject to
proper authorisation and controls.

DEFINITIONS
“Sensitive Expenditure” is any expenditure by the Council that provides, has the potential to
provide, or has the perceived potential to provide a private benefit to an individual employee
that is additional to the business benefit to the Council of the expenditure. It also includes
expenditure by the Council that could be considered unusual given the Council’s purposes
and/or functions.

PROCEDURES
The most fundamental fact applicable to all expenditure by the Council is that the money used
is public funds. It is not the property of employees to do with as they please. Consequently,
expenditure should:
•
•

Be consistent with the standards of probity and financial prudence that are expected
of a public entity; and
Be able to withstand elected members’ and public scrutiny.

The above standards apply the principles to ensure that expenditure decisions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Have a justifiable business purpose;
Preserve impartiality;
Are made with integrity;
Are moderate and conservative, having regard to the circumstances;
Are made transparently; and
Are appropriate in all respects.

Approval
Approval of sensitive expenditure must be:
1. Given only when the person approving the expenditure is satisfied that a justified
business purpose and other principles have been adequately met;
2. Given before the expenditure is incurred wherever practical;
3. Made only when budgetary provisions and delegated authority exist; and
4. Given by the person senior to the person who will benefit or who might be perceived
to benefit from the sensitive expenditure wherever possible (the “one-up” principle).

1
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Claims
Claims relating to sensitive expenditure need to:
1. Clearly state the business purpose of the expenditure. In instances where the
business purpose is not clear from the supplier documentation supporting the claim, a
written statement of the purpose should be included as part of the claim;
2. Be accompanied by adequate original (not photocopied) supporting documentation
such as tax invoices or other validating documentation (credit card statements do not
constitute adequate documentation for reimbursement);
3. Document the date, amount, description, and purpose of minor expenditure when
receipts are unavailable (e.g. from vending machines); and
4. Be submitted promptly after the expenditure is incurred.

Purchasing Process
Refer to the Procurement Policy for specific guidelines on the process for purchasing,
approvals, monitoring and reporting which all Council expenditure – including sensitive
expenditure – is governed by.
Refer to the Delegations Manual for limits of authority for specific positions.

Guiding Principles for Sensitive Expenditure
The guide-lines attached as Schedule A are to be used in the determination of sensitive
expenditure. These guidelines are based on the Good Practice Guide ‘Controlling Sensitive
Expenditure: Guidelines for Public Entities’ produced by the Controller and Auditor-General in
2007. Note that where figures are quoted, these are GST inclusive amounts.
Additional guidance can be found in the Council reference guide – Sensitive Expenditure:
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ’s)
Discretion
The Chief Executive has sole discretion to change, modify, or approve a deviation from these
guidelines should he deem it necessary and justified.
For further information or clarification on any matters, refer to the website of the Controller
and Auditor-General (www.oag.govt.nz)

Date Adopted:
Last Modified:
Approved By:
Doc #
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25 March 2015
February 2015
Council Resolution 25 March 2015
1319213 v2 (superseded 729775)
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Schedule A

SENSITIVE EXPENDITURE GUIDE-LINES
FOR STAFF
CREDIT CARDS
Using credit cards is not a type of sensitive expenditure but is a common method for payment for such
expenditure. The following guidelines have been formulated to minimise some of the perceived risks
associated with them.
Eligibility
Council credit cards are available for use by the Chief Executive and Department Managers as approved
in the Council Delegations Manual. Use of these credit cards by other authorised purchasing officers must
have prior approval of the Chief Executive or Department Manager responsible.
Card Issue
The Finance Manager is responsible for authorising card issue, managing the acquisition of cards, and
monitoring and reporting on their use.
Cancelling Cards
The Finance Manager is responsible for cancelling and destroying cards no longer required or not in use,
whether this be expired cards, revoked cards, or cards held by employees who are leaving etc.
Credit Limits
Credit limits are set at $10,000 for the Chief Executive and $5,000 for Department Managers or such
limits as may be set from time to time within the Procurement Policy.
Internet Purchases
Credit card payments over the internet need to reflect good security practice, i.e. purchases are only to be
made from established reputable companies known to the Council and which also have adequate
security. The card holder needs to keep a copy of any online order forms completed when purchasing,
and purchasing by credit card over the internet needs to be consistent with the Council’s normal
purchasing controls.
Prohibited Activities
HDC credit cards should not be used for private expenditure or credit unless:
•
•
o

The card was genuinely used in error and that error was addressed as soon as it was identified
The personal expenditure is in conjunction with an authorised Council activity, eg.
o Attendance at a conference and partners (personal or private expense) are in attendance,
Attendance at a conference or similar by a Council officer and portions of expenditure
associated with a meal or other activity are deemed to be personaland separate settlement of
personal and Council expenditure at the time is impractical, inefficient or more appropriately
handled as soon as practically possible after the event.

Cash advances are not permitted.
Monitoring and Reporting
Credit card purchases will be monitored and reported in the same way as other purchases. Refer to the
Council’s Procurement Policy.
Unauthorised use will be dealt with through the disciplinary procedure. Also refer to the Fraud Policy.

1
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TRAVEL AND ACCOMMODATION EXPENDITURE
Employees may need to incur travel and accommodation costs while conducting Council’s business
around New Zealand or overseas. Travel and accommodation expenditure should be economical and
efficient, having regard to purpose, distance, time, urgency, personal health, security, and safety
considerations.
Travel, like any other good or service, must be purchased in line with the Procurement Policy which
outlines delegations for the purchase of goods by Authorised Purchasing Officers, conditions on
expenditure and purchasing procedures.
An employee may stay away for a weekend before or after travelling on Council business as long as any
additional costs are met by the employee. Annual leave must be applied for if the employee wishes to stay
away on a normal working day.
All requests for reimbursement of expenses must be made using the Expense Claim Form (with receipts
attached) within one month following travel. Where funds for approved expenses to be incurred are
required in advance of the travel, this can be direct debited into the employee’s bank account. Any refund
and receipts for expenditure is to be returned to Corporate Services at the end of the travel.

Air Travel
All Authorised Purchasing Officers can book travel for themselves or their employees within the guidelines below. Every attempt should be made to take advantage of cheaper fares by booking as far in
advance as possible.
All domestic air travel must be purchased using the Hauraki District Council Corporate Travelcard to
provide for centralised invoicing and better control over travel expenses. When booking, employees must
state the name of the Council and the name of the cost centre (i.e. staff where the travel is for a
staffmember, or councillors where the travel is for a councillor). The Travelcard is held by the Executive
Assistant should any employee require the Travelcard number for booking purposes. Lowest available
fares are to be booked for travel within New Zealand provided they are within reasonable travel hours. It is
Council policy not to purchase insurance for domestic travel.
All international travel must have prior written approval and must be purchased in accordance with the
Procurement Policy which allows for competitive quotes to be sought. International travel of up to 5 hours’
duration is to be booked at the lowest fare available provided they are within reasonable travel times.
International travel over 5 hours will be booked at the discretion of the Chief Executive and, if the travel is
for the Chief Executive, at the discretion of the Council. All international travel will be at economy class or
equivalent unless specifically approved otherwise (and rationale clearly documented) by the Chief
Executive. Stopovers for long distance flights will be at the discretion of the Chief Executive and, where
prior approval is given, Council will pay for associated relevant and moderate costs. It is Council policy to
purchase insurance for international travel.
Approved suppliers for air travel are:
Air New Zealand Travelcentre
Internet Online Bookings: www.airnewzealand.co.nz
Telephone Bookings: Freephone 0800 737 000
Council acknowledges that individuals travelling on Council business may accrue airpoints if they are
airpoints members. Accruing of airpoints by the individual does not affect the cost of travel to Council. The
future use of those airpoints is at the discretion of the employee who accumulated them.
Employees wishing to extend their stay or modify travel plans to include some holiday or sightseeing time
may do so at the discretion of the Chief Executive. Any added travel costs as a result of the modified
travel plans will be met by the employee and an annual leave component will be calculated.
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Meals and Accommodation
Meals: Where meals are not provided as part of the travel or training package, then actual and
reasonable costs will be reimbursed through the usual expense reimbursement process. Employees
required to be away overnight may claim reimbursement for breakfast, lunch and/or dinner providing
expenses are reasonable and authorisation is given by the Supervisor. Separate meal expenses may not
be claimed if a meal is provided as part of a package already paid for by the Council. Council will not pay
for meals for accompanying partners. No meal expenses may be claimed where they are served within
private accommodation – however accommodation allowances may be claimed (see ‘Accommodation’
below).
Refreshments: It is acceptable for staff to have one glass of beer or wine with a meal that is reimbursed.
Other alcohol purchases will not be reimbursed except at the discretion of the Chief Executive or
Department Manager. Reimbursement of mini-bar expenses is prohibited.
Accommodation: If the employee is required to be away overnight, accommodation costs will be
reimbursed providing they are reasonable and have the prior approval of the Supervisor. Where
accommodation can be booked at the venue of the conference, course or event, this should be done to
maximise special deals. In other circumstances, a hotel or motel offering suitable facilities at a reasonable
price should be booked close to the venue. Where an employee chooses to stay in private
accommodation when travelling on Council business they may claim $100 for each night they are required
to be away.

Motor Vehicles
A Council vehicle will normally be supplied, but if the employee opts to use their own vehicle because it is
more practical and cost-effective, and has permission from the Department Manager, the mileage claim
rates will apply for use of a private motor vehicle for Council business. Return travel from the Council
office or employee’s home (whichever is the starting point) to the destination will be reimbursed. Where
travel is overnight, it may be preferable for the employee to take their own vehicle, but this is to be
discussed with the respective manager prior to travel.
Rental Cars: If a rental car is required, it must be economical and the size must be relevant to the
requirements (number of people, distance to be travelled). Private use of a rental car is not permitted
unless authorised by the Chief Executive or Department Manager – the employee will be expected to
reimburse the Council for any additional costs for such private use.
Taxis: Taxi fares will be reimbursed providing these are necessary and cost-effective in terms of other
options. Where taxis are necessary, they should be shared with other employees or course / event
attendees where possible. Use of taxis is typically acceptable for travel between the airport and hotel and
hotel to conference, course or event venue.
Other Expenses: Other necessary expenses including car park fees will be reimbursed subject to usual
documentation requirements. Any fines (parking, traffic offences etc) incurred while using a Council
vehicle or rental car are to be paid by the driver, not the Council.

Other Incidental Travel Costs
E-mail / Internet Access: Approval is given for all business-related access.
Telephone Calls: Where an employee is required to be away from home over night on Council business,
they will be reimbursed for one toll call of up to 15 minutes per day to contact home. Where an employee
has a Council mobile phone, this should be used in preference to the hotel phone which is likely to incur
additional connection charges.
Tipping: Council will not meet the costs of tipping by employees while they are on Council business in
New Zealand. The Council will meet the costs of tipping during international travel only in places where
tipping is local practice at rates published in reputable travel publications.
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Spouse Travel: As a general principle, the travel costs of accompanying spouses, partners or other
family members are not paid by the Council. In the rare circumstance that involvement of a spouse
directly contributes to a clear business purpose, the cost or partial cost of travel may be authorised at the
discretion of the Chief Executive or, in the case of the Chief Executive, by the Mayor.

Reporting on Travel Expenditure
A report is to be presented to the Management Team for the 6 months ending June and December each
year detailing the staff member who travelled, reason for travel, costs involved, and who approved the
travel. Any exceptions to this policy will be noted with action taken.

ENTERTAINMENT AND HOSPITALITY
Council expenditure on entertainment and hospitality may be required from time to time for the purposes
of:
•
•
•
•

Building relationships
Representing the organisation
Reciprocation of hospitality
Recognising significant business achievement

Entertainment and hospitality covers a range of items from the provision of tea, coffee and biscuits, to
catering such as meals and alcohol. It also includes non-catering related items such as Council-funded
entry to a sporting or cultural event.
Expenditure on entertainment and hospitality must be moderate and appropriate for the circumstances,
and must be subject to the usual procurement processes and purchasing officer delegated authority limits,
budgets etc.
The Organisational Belonging Policy has guidelines for this type of expenditure.

Specific events
The Social Club will organise a Christmas Function each year that will be paid for out of the Human
Resources budget.
In additional, Departments may organise and provide departmental team building activities from time to
time in support of fostering organisational belonging. Such activities may include but are not
limited to team Christmas lunches, team training, catered team meetings etc. Provision for such
activities or events must be made by the Department Manager using a transparent approach
during the annual budget process. Expenditure on these activities must be pre-approved by
Department Managers with guidance given on appropriate limits for alcohol consumption.
Evidence of pre-approval should be attached to the Expense Reimbursement Claim.

GOODS AND SERVICES EXPENDITURE
Sale of Surplus Assets to Employees
From time to time the Council will dispose of assets that have become obsolete, worn out, or surplus to
requirements.
Assets identified as surplus – including furniture and fittings, computers, plant and other equipment - may
be sold internally to employees or externally through other avenues by tender or other fair process as
determined and authorised by the relevant Department Manager. The sale of assets identified as surplus
over the value of $1,000 must be approved by the Chief Executive.
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In all instances, the asset must be valued and every endeavour must be made to recognise the value so
that maximum income can be derived for the Council. Where offered internally to employees, all
employees will be given the opportunity to tender for the surplus items. The normal rules of a tender will
apply and surplus assets will be sold to the highest bidder.
Surplus Vehicles: Surplus vehicles are to be traded in or sold at auction, whichever is likely to generate
the most revenue. Employees are welcome to bid for Council vehicles at auction but the private sale of
vehicles to employees is prohibited unless authorised by Council.

Loyalty Reward Scheme Benefits
Loyalty reward schemes are those where benefits accumulate for a customer who continues to use a
particular supplier for the purchase of goods or services. Or there may be schemes where free prizes or
rewards are given for the purchase of particular products.
Employees making procurement decisions are not permitted to personally receive any loyalty rewards as
a result of those decisions. Where loyalty rewards are given to an employee, the reward becomes the
property of the Council and is to be used by the Council for business-related purposes. If the item is
surplus to Council requirements, the Chief Executive will determine the appropriate way to dispose of the
reward for the benefit of the Council. The exception to this are airpoint schemes. Airpoints accrue to the
traveller and are not able to be transferred to the Council. Airpoints are rarely accumulated as part of
Council travel and therefore may remain with the staff member.

Private Use of Council Assets
Any physical item owned, leased or borrowed by the Council is considered an asset, e.g. photocopiers,
telephones, cellphones, internet access, stationery etc. Limited private use for personal purposes may be
permitted in some circumstances. Refer to the Hauraki District Council Employee Resource Handbook for
guidelines on the private use of Council assets.

Council Use of Private Assets
Sometimes it may be logical and cost-effective for the Council to reimburse an employee for the use of
private assets such as private cell-phones, private motor vehicles, private computers, private tools.
While this is not common practice at Hauraki District Council, an arrangement may be authorised by the
Chief Executive subject to a justified business purpose. All such arrangements will be recorded in writing
and will be subject to the usual financial controls – employees are prohibited from approving or
administering payments to themselves for the Council’s use of their private assets.
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Private Use of Council Suppliers
From time to time employees may qualify for discount-priced goods through a Council supplier that they
would not otherwise be able to access. The Council expects that the availability of such privileges will not
impact on an employee’s decision in respect of their choice of suppliers. Private use of suppliers must not
be taken into account when choosing suppliers. When purchasing goods for private use through a Council
supplier, employees must pay the full amount at the time of purchase.
The selection of the suppliers must be in the best interests of the Council at all times. Refer to the
Procurement Policy.
The private use of Council fuel cards is prohibited.

STAFF SUPPORT AND WELFARE EXPENDITURE
The Council provides for staff support and welfare in a range of ways in an effort to benefit both the
Council and the employee. The following guidelines apply in respect of staff support and welfare
expenditure:

Clothing and Grooming
The Council subsidises a staff uniform and provides health and safety clothing and equipment. Refer to
the Council Uniform Policy.

Care of Dependants
The Council does not meet the costs for the care of employees’ dependants.

Social Club Activities
Hauraki District Council has an operative Social Club which organises events from time to time. The
Council makes a monetary contribution to the Social Club on an annual basis. Refer to the Organisational
Belonging Policy.

Farewells and Retirements
Any expenditure on farewells and retirements is to be pre-approved by the Chief Executive or Department
Manager, and is to be moderate and conservative. It typically follows that:
•

•

Retirement functions are arranged at the discretion of the Chief Executive, with the level of
Council contribution dependant on the number of years’ service completed by the employee. A
gift may be purchased by the Council, again dependant on the number of years the employee has
worked for the Council.
Farewell functions for employees are generally arranged by the employee leaving with assistance
from their workmates or the Department Manager / Supervisor. Functions are typically funded by
the employee leaving.

Sponsorship of Employees
The Council provides for the sponsorship of employees taking part in sporting or cultural events. Refer to
the Organisational Belonging Policy.
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OTHER TYPES OF EXPENDITURE
Corporate Boxes
The Council prohibits expenditure on corporate boxes.

Donations
Donations are not typically allowed. Any requests for a Council donation must be authorised by the Chief
Executive.

Koha
Koha is a gift, a token, or a contribution given on appropriate occasions. All koha are to be authorised by
the Chief Executive or Department Manager.

Communications Technology
Communications technology such as cell-phones, telephones, e-mail, and access to the internet are
widely used in the workplace. While some level of personal use of this technology may be unavoidable,
excessive use incurs costs that are a diversion of public money from the business purposes of the
Council. Such costs include lost productivity and the direct cost of the technology.
Refer to the Electronic Communications Policy.

Gifts
Purchasing Gifts: Gifts may be given, or received, as a token of recognition. Gifts given by Council are
typically limited to:
•

•

Long Service awards – long service is recognised with the presentation of a gold watch on the
completion of 20 years’ service with the Council. The watch will be presented by the Chief
Executive at the applicable end-of-year function for the employee.
It is customary to give gifts to visiting international groups, particularly those from sister cities or
countries/regions with a strong alliance with Hauraki District. Such gifts will be authorised by the
Chief Executive or Mayor.

When purchasing a gift, the Authorised Purchasing Officer must consider what is an appropriate in terms
of the value and nature of gift for the occasion.
Receiving Gifts: From time to time employees will receive a gift from a supplier or client.
Employees may retain the gift if it is:
•
•

Inexpensive (i.e. the value is assessed to be less than $100); and
Received infrequently (i.e. annually or more)

Employees are prohibited from receiving gifts for favours or inferred preferences to suppliers or clients,
i.e. the receipt of gifts should not, under any circumstances, be seen as a reward or inducement that could
place the employee under an obligation to a third party.
Where a gift is valued at over $100 or where a gift is regularly given by a supplier or client, the employee
must declare the gift to the Chief Executive who will determine whether it is acceptable for the employee
to retain, or whether it should be returned or sold for the benefit of the Council. Gifts or this nature are to
be documented in the gifts register maintained by the Chief Executive’s Executive Assistant.
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The Chief Executive may look to the Auditor-General Sensitive Expenditure Guidelines on the website of
the Office of the Auditor General for guidance on this matter. A part of the extract is replicated below to
assist the Chief Executive with decisionmaking in this regard:
www.oag.govt.nz
http://www.oag.govt.nz/2007/sensitive-expenditure/part8.htm
Home › 2007 publications › Controlling sensitive expenditure: Guidelines for public entities › Part 8: Other
types of expenditure

Gifts
Issues and principles
The major risks with gifts include that:
•
•
•

the value or nature of a gift is inappropriate or excessive to the occasion or the
reason for it being given;
the gift is given in explicit or implicit expectation of favour in return; and
the gift is given in substitution for legitimate payment or remuneration.

The principles of a justified business purpose, moderate and conservative expenditure, and
acting with integrity and preserving impartiality are particularly relevant.

Guidance
We recognise that receiving a gift is not strictly an issue of sensitive expenditure. This is
because it does not involve expenditure on the part of the organisation or individual receiving
a gift. Receiving a gift is nevertheless a sensitive issue, and one that entities need to manage
carefully. It is especially important that receiving a gift does not alter an entity’s or individual’s
decision-making, as this could be perceived as acting without impartiality or integrity.
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Decision Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Property Manager – Dennis Lees

Date:

Tuesday, 22 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:
Appendix B
Appendix C:

1416002
1415986
1416424
1416369 page 7

Meeting date:

Wednesday, 30 September 2015

Subject:

Request to close and purchase a Paper Road

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT Council gives consent for the road stopping process to continue under Section 116 of the
Public Works Act 1981 of the Area A on the attached plan (Appendix A), and
THAT once the process has been completed the land will be amalgamated with the adjoining
property Lot 2 DP 421429, owned by Tony Garnet Stevens, and
THAT Tony G Stevens pay all costs associated with the road stopping.

Purpose
To obtain Council consent to stop a strip of road, under section 116 of the Public Works Act 1981
for the area identified on the attached map as area A of approximately 2420 sq m2 which will be
confirmed once the survey plan is completed.
This road can be stopped under the Public Works Act as various criteria’s for a road to be stopped
under the Act are met:
•
•

The road to be stopped is not used by the public as it has physically been an integral part of
the Owners adjoining property.
The Owners are the only adjoining owner on both sides of the road to be stopped.

The matter or suggested decision does not involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable.

Background
Council has been approached by Mr Tony Stevens to purchase a portion of paper road which runs
along the Eastern boundary of his property, between his farm and the neighbouring property which
is a family property of which Mr Stevens is a shareholder. A portion of Stanley St has already been
closed and purchased by Mr Stevens.
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The paper road to be stopped is off Fleet St in Waihi. The attached GIS plan (Appendix B) shows
the location of the road.

Issues and options
The request has been considered by Council’s Roading Manager and the area is not required for
the roading network. If Council is in agreement to the road stopping the Minister of Land
Information must give his consent for the process to continue. The information required by the
Minister to make his decision is shown in attached Appendix C.
If consent is given by the Minister and the applicant wishes to continue with the process, the
applicant will need to lodge an approved survey plan with Council. Once this has been received
Council will obtain a valuation of the land and Mr Stevens will be required to pay the value of the
land plus the costs of the road stoppage.

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision does not trigger the Significance and Engagement Policy Assessment Tool and
therefore is not considered significant under the Significance and Engagement Policy 2014.

Budget Implications
There is no cost to Council as Mr Stevens pay for the land as per the valuation and will meet all
the costs associated with the road stopping which include the legal expenses, survey costs and
land purchase price.

Recommendation
Staff recommend that Council consent to continue with the road stopping process under Section
116 of the Public Works Act 1981.

Dennis Lees
Property Manager
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Property Manager

Date:

Wednesday, 2 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A

Meeting date:

30/09/2015

Subject:

Deed of Lease between HDC and D & A Orchard &
HTT 2002 Limited

1408379
1415999

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT The Council makes its decision on which option to choose based on that option being the
most cost effective, and good quality for the Hauraki District based on the requirements of s10 of
the Local Government Act 2002, and
THAT Council approves the Deed of Lease between Dennis and Anita Karen Orchard and the
HTT 2002 Limited and the Hauraki District Council.

Purpose
The Council is leading the development of a cycling and walking trail (the Hauraki Rail Trail’) from
Waikino to Waihi as part of the National Cycleway’s programme.
As part of the development of the trail two leases are required to be put in place between Dennis
and Anita Orchard and HTT 2002 Limited (Trust) and the Hauraki District Council. The two leases
are part of one document.
The matter or suggested decision does involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable.

Background
There have been various steps taken and documents signed in the lead up to the lease
agreement:
1. A Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU’) which was signed 26/8/13 by both parties was
drawn up to define roles, responsibilities and protocols for a positive future relationship
between the parties; and to promote and develop that relationship in a way that will enable
all parties to meet their obligations and achieve their desired individual and joint outcomes.
There are a couple of conditions under the MOU that triggered the need for a lease
agreement between the two parties and they are listed below:
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(3.1.4.) Council will enter into a separate formal lease agreement with Orchard for the use of the
land for the Hauraki Rail Trail cycleway development areas upon Orchard land.
(3.2.1) Orchard will administer and manage adjacent HDC leased or License to Occupy land [or
similar legal instrument] in a manner that is consistent with the legislation and purpose for
which that land is held. This includes any Council land parcels or paper road reserve areas
utilised by Orchard under lease, license to occupy or similar approval mechanisms.
2. As part of the step to the lease agreement a report was presented to the 15 May 2013
Council meeting to formalize the purchasing and stopping of land that is required for the
trail and this step needed to be taken before a lease agreement could be put in place.
The area concerned is the closing of McKinney Road and the purchase of LINZ land under
the Public Works Act. The resolution is as follows:

THAT based on the requirements of s10 of the Local Government Act 2002 the Council
approves the following as being the most cost effective and good quality for Hauraki
District.
1. Council approves the purchase of the Land Information New Zealand land
described as Pt17 Ohinemuri (Parcel ID 4407011), Pt 17 Ohinemuri (Parcel ID
4273987) and Pt 17 Ohinemuri (Parcel ID 4407015) for the 2012 combined
valuation rate of $40,000 with an additional $10,500 for LINZ disposal costs, and
2. Council gives effect to the process to stop 2 unformed sections of McKinney Road
and the subsequent transfer of ownership to the adjacent landowners should the
stopping be successful. HDC is to cover the expected costs of $8,500.
Part 2 of the resolution did not occur because of opposition from the Public.
3.

Deed of Lease

As deed of lease has been drawn up between Dennis Ralph Orchard, Anita Karen Orchard and
HTT 2002 Limited and the main points to consider are:
Lease of the Trust’s Land to HDC – Schedule B
In consideration of the terms of this deed the Trust grants to HDC a lease to use and develop the
Trust’s Land for a walkway/cycleway.
The lease is for thirty three years from the date of the lease.
HDC shall indemnify the Trust against all claims, expensed, damages or liabilities suffered by the
Trust as a direct result of any claims made by members of the public arising from their use of the
Trust’s Land provided that this indemnity will not apply to any Claims arising directly or indirectly,
from any breach by the Trust of its obligations under this lease.
Lease of the Reserve Land to Orchard – Schedule D
In consideration of the terms of this deed and pursuant to its powers under s61 of the Reserves Act
1977 HDC grants to the Trust a lease to use the Reserve Land for farming purposes.
The lease is for thirty three years from the date of the lease.
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The Trust will pay all rates, water and power charges and other outgoings(all including GST)
payable in respect of the Reserve Land and apportioned as appropriate.
The Trust will take out and maintain a public liability policy in the joint names of the Trust and HDC
for $2,000,000 with a company approved by HDC.
Effect of termination of either lease
If the Trust’s lease to HDC is terminated, the HDC lease to the Trust is automatically terminated on
the same date.
If the HDC’s lease to the Trust is terminated, the Trust’s lease to HDC is automatically terminated
on the same date.
Issues
The Council’s Delegation Manual allows for the Chief Executive to delegate to the Community
Services Manager to approve renewals of existing leases but not to approve new leases as per
below.
Leases and licences
1.

To approve the renewal of any lease, licence to occupy or tenancy (other than
pensioner housing tenancy) or to vary the terms and conditions of any lease, licence
to occupy or tenancy, in respect of:
• All properties, where a prospective tenant fits the criteria determined by
Council.

2.

To terminate any lease, licence to occupy or tenancy in respect of all property
excluding pensioner housing where non-compliance with the terms of the licence or
lease exist.

3.

Authority to act under an Order of the Tenancy Tribunal.

4.

To approve the allocation of tenancies for pensioner flats with any issues outside
policy being referred to the Pensioner Flats Allocation Sub-committee.

Sub-Delegation
• Community Services Manager
As such the matter needs to be put before Council who has the delegated authority to approve a
new Deed of Lease.

New deliverable
The Local Government Act 2002 now requires that all local government deliverables (whether it be
an activity, service, project, programme, grant or involve any other form of expenditure) must align
to the specific purpose of local government as outlined in Section 10 of the Local Government Act.
The matter or suggested decision involves a new activity. It is considered, by definition of the
Council, to provide:
•

local public service

Page 3 of 4

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 92

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision is considered not significant under HDC’s Significance and Engagement Policy.
The level of engagement considered appropriate for this matter, at this point in time, is to inform
Council and respective stakeholders.

Budget Implications
There are no budget implications.

Conclusion
That staff recommend that Council approves the Deed of Lease between Dennis Ralph and Anita
Karen Orchard and the HTT 2002 Limited and the Hauraki District Council.

Dennis Lees
Property Manager
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APPENDIX A

DEED OF LEASE
bet ween
DENNIS
R ALPH
ORCH ARD ,
ANI T A
K AREN
ORCH AR D
and
HTT
2002
LIMITED
("Trust")
and
H AUR AK I DI STRICT COUNCIL
("HDC")
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Deed Of Lease
Date:

2015

Parties
1.

DENNIS RALPH ORCHARD, ANITA KAREN ORCHARD and HTT 2002 LIMITED
as trustees of the Orchard Holdings Trust ("Trust")

2.

HAURAKI DISTRICT COUNCIL ("HDC")

Background
A.

The Trust owns the Trust’s Land.

B.

HDC owns and is the administering authority for the Reserve Land.

C.

The Trust has agreed to grant HDC a lease to construct, operate and maintain a
walkway/cycleway on the Trust’s Land on the terms set out in this deed.

C.

In return, HDC has agreed to grant the Trust a lease to use the Reserve Land for
farming purposes on the terms set out in this deed.

Deed
1.

Definitions and interpretation
Definitions

1.1

In this Deed unless the context otherwise requires:
"Deed"

means this deed and includes all attached schedules and plans;

“Reserve Land”

means the land described in title identifier 667827 outlined in black
on the plan attached as Schedule C.

"Trust’s Land"

means areas “A” and “B” on the land described in title identifiers
331020 and 449950 outlined in red on the plans attached as
Schedule A;

Interpretation
1.2

In this Deed:
(a)

a reference to a person includes any other entity or association
recognised by law and the reverse;

(b)

words referring to the singular include the plural and the reverse;

(c)

any reference to any of the parties includes that party's executors,
administrators or permitted assigns, or if a company, its successors or
permitted assigns or both;

(d)

everything expressed or implied in this deed which involves more than
one person binds and benefits those people jointly and severally;
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(e)

clause headings are for reference purposes only;

(f)

a reference to a statute includes:
(i)

all regulations under that statute;

(ii)

all amendments to that statute; and

(iii)

any statute substituting for it which incorporates any of its
provisions.

2.

Lease of the Trust’s Land to HDC

2.1

In consideration of the terms of this deed the Trust grants to HDC a lease to use and
develop the Trust’s Land.

2.2

The lease is granted on the terms set out in Schedule B.

2.3

The lease will commence on the date of this Deed and end on the earlier of
(a)

The agreement of the parties;

(b)

Termination pursuant to the lease terms in schedule B or this Deed;

(c)

Termination of the lease from HDC to the Trust granted pursuant to clause 3 of
this Deed; or

(d)

Thirty three years from the date of this Deed.

2.4

If the Trust permits HDC to remain in occupation of the Trust’s Land after the end of
the term specified in clause 2.3, such occupation will be a periodic tenancy only,
terminable by 20 working days’ written notice on the same terms and conditions (so
far as applicable to a periodic tenancy) as are contained or implied in this Deed.

2.5

On termination of the lease pursuant to clause 2.3, if HDC as tenant has carried out
any physical work on the Trust’s Land before the termination date, HDC shall, if
required by the Trust, restore the surface of the Trust’s Land disturbed by HDC’s work
as closely as possible to the condition it was in immediately before the date of this
Deed, at its sole cost provided that if the Hauraki Rail Trail is still operating, the Trust
and HDC shall use their best endeavours to negotiate an alternative route for the Trail
to ensure its continued use.

3.

Lease of the Reserve Land

3.1

The Reserve Land is a local purpose reserve subject to the Reserves Act 1977 and
HDC is the administering authority for the Reserve Land.

3.2

In consideration of the terms of this deed and pursuant to its powers under s61 of the
Reserves Act 1977 HDC grants to the Trust a lease to use the Reserve Land on the
terms set out in Schedule D.

3.3

This lease will commence on the date of this Deed and end on the earlier of
(a)

The agreement of the parties;

(b)

Termination pursuant to the lease terms in schedule D or this Deed;
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(c)

Termination of the lease from the Trust to HDC granted pursuant to clause 2 of
this Deed; or

(d)

Thirty three years from the date of this Deed.

3.4

If HDC permits the Trust to remain in occupation of the Reserve Land after the end of
the term specified in clause 3.3, such occupation will be a periodic tenancy only
terminable by 20 working days’ written notice on the same terms and conditions (so
far as applicable to a periodic tenancy) as are contained or implied in this Deed.

3.5

On termination of the lease pursuant to clause 3.3, if the Trust as tenant has carried
out any physical work on the Reserve Land before the termination date, the Trust
shall either:
(a)

restore the Reserve Land as closely as possible to the condition it was in
immediately before the date of this Deed, at its sole cost; or

(b)

restore the Reserve Land to be grassed or seeded flat pasture;

as directed by HDC and to a reasonable standard acceptable to HDC.

4.

Effect of termination of either lease

4.1

For the avoidance of doubt:

5.

(a)

If the Trust’s lease to HDC pursuant to clause 2 is validly terminated, HDC’s
lease to the Trust pursuant to clause 3 shall automatically terminate on the
same date.

(b)

If HDC’s lease to the Trust pursuant to clause 3 is validly terminated, the Trust’s
lease to HDC pursuant to clause 2 shall automatically terminate on the same
termination date.

Transfer of rights and obligations by the parties
Disposal by the Trust

5.1

The Trust will notify any party acquiring or intending to acquire an interest in any part
of the Trust’s Land (including any potential mortgagee) of the terms and conditions of
this Deed.
Disposal by HDC

5.2

HDC will notify any party acquiring or intending to acquire an interest in any part of
the Reserve Land (including any potential mortgagee) of the terms and conditions of
this Deed.
Deed of covenant

5.3

Neither party will assign this Deed or transfer or in any way dispose of the whole or
any part of its estate or interest in its land (including granting any mortgage or other
encumbrance) except with the prior written consent of the other party, which will not
be withheld where the party acquiring the estate or interest enters into a deed of
covenant (prepared by HDC's solicitors at HDC's expense) where that party
undertakes and agrees:
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(a)

that it will be bound by and comply with the terms of this Deed; and

(b)

that it will not assign or transfer or in any way dispose of the whole or any part
of its estate or interest in the relevant land without first obtaining a like deed of
covenant from any party acquiring the estate or interest.

6.

Confidentiality

6.1

This Deed is strictly confidential to the parties and accordingly no party will disclose or
permit to be disclosed any terms of this Deed without the prior written consent of the
other party. The following disclosures shall not be a breach of this clause:

7.

(a)

Disclosure made to professional advisors in relation to advice or opinions
required pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Deed where the
confidentiality of the Deed is made binding on the advisor.

(b)

Disclosures made to prospective purchasers or mortgagees or chargeholders of
the relevant land and to either party’s financiers and bankers where such
information is required to be disclosed to enable finance to be obtained or to
comply with any existing contract but then only on the basis such persons
acknowledge and agree to confidentiality in like terms of this clause.

(c)

Disclosures made to any mortgagees or chargeholders whose consent is
required pursuant to this Deed, but then only on the basis such persons
acknowledge and agree to confidentiality in like terms of this clause.

Miscellaneous
Severability

7.1

In the event that any part of this Deed becomes void, invalid or unenforceable at any
time, that will not affect the validity of the rest of this Deed.
Entire agreement

7.2

This Deed constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and no earlier
representation, warranty or agreement in relation to any matter dealt with in this Deed
has any force or effect from the date of this Deed.
Disputes

7.3

If a dispute arises out of or in connection with this Deed (including, for the avoidance
of doubt, the lease terms in the schedules), or the breach, termination, validity or
subject matter of it, the parties agree to endeavour to settle the dispute by mediation
administered by LEADR (Leading Edge Alternative Dispute Resolvers) before
commencing legal proceedings. The mediator will be the person agreed by the
parties.
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Costs
7.4

Each party shall pay its own legal costs relating to this Deed.
Limitation of Liability

7.5

Notwithstanding any other provision in this deed, HDC acknowledges that HTT 2002
Limited (the “Trustee”) is not entering into this deed in its personal capacity but as a
trustee of the Orchard Holdings Trust (the “Trust”). The Trustee’s liability to HDC is
not an unlimited personal liability but is limited to the actual amount recoverable from
the assets of the Trust from time to time and which are available to meet the
Trustee’s liability under the Trustee’s right of indemnity from the Trust provided that if
the Trustee’s right of indemnity has been lost due to any deliberate breach of trust,
deliberate default, dishonesty or fraud (but not negligence) by the Trustee (“default”),
the Trustee shall be personally liable to HDC but only to the extent of the loss caused
by such default.

8.

Termination for roading purposes

8.1

If any public roading authority (being any local or central government entity with
authority to undertake roading work for public benefit):
(a)

constructs any road that crosses any area of the Hauraki Rail Trail immediately
adjacent to the Trust’s Land (or adjacent to any other land owned by the Trust
adjacent to the Waikino to Waihi section of the Hauraki Rail Trail); but

(b)

does not provide a suitable stock underpass beneath the new public road or its
related construction works for the Trust to maintain cow movements on its land
adjacent to the Hauraki Rail Trail; then

either party may terminate this Deed by giving two months’ notice to the other.

Signed by the parties before the Schedules
Signed for and on behalf of HAURAKI
DISTRICT COUNCIL by
_________________________________
its duly authorised officer in the presence
of:

Signature of witness
Name of witness
Occupation
Address
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Signed by DENNIS RALPH ORCHARD in
the presence of:

DENNIS RALPH ORCHARD

Signature of witness
Name of witness
Occupation
Address

Signed by ANITA KAREN ORCHARD in
the presence of:

ANITA KAREN ORCHARD

Signature of witness
Name of witness
Occupation
Address

Signed by HTT 2002 LIMITED by:

Director’s signature

Director’s signature

Director’s full name

Director’s full name
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Schedule A – The Trust’s Land

Area ‘A’ Description: Rake Line Cutting Area

The walkway / cycleway will cross into Orchard land parcel Lot 1 DPS86514 at the northern
end of the Rake Line cutting immediately northeast of the three river side parcel areas Parts
Ohinemuri No.17 Block.

Diagram 1 : Approximate Easement Area ‘A’
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Area ‘B’ Description: Water Race Area Crossing and High Route

The walkway / cycleway will cross into Orchard land at the eastern end of the former Water
Race cutting on Section 1 SO Plan 12007, and travel up an existing farmer access cutting to
a paddock area above the steep river bank area onto the parcel Section 23 Block XV
Ohinemuri SD. The trail will then travel North North East adjacent to the top of bank area
within the Orchard Parcel land for a distance of some 70m where it drops back down a
proposed cut to fill ramp area about the existing boundary alignment to the riverside area
again. Enough room must be left on the river side of the High route trail in areas where there
is a steep drop off, to allow fencing [a 5 plain wire type fence] to be installed by council to
prevent walkers / cyclists being too close to top of bank areas above steepish drop off areas.

Diagram 2 : Approximate Easement Area ‘B’
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9.

Schedule B – Lease Terms for the Trust’s Land

9.1

The Lease will commence on the date of this deed.

9.2

HDC and its agents, invitees, contractors and employees shall have the full, free, and
unrestricted right, liberty and privilege at any time whether by day or by night to:
(a)

establish a cycleway with a surface suitable for walkers and cyclists with related
facilities (including, without limitation, signage, and rubbish bins) (“Cycleway”)
on the Trust’s Land, to repair and maintain any Cycleway established on the
Trust’s Land, and (if necessary for any of those purposes) to alter the state of
the Trust’s Land provided that HDC shall not construct any facilities on the
Trust’s Land (other than signage) without first obtaining the Trust’s consent to
the location of those facilities (which the Trust shall not unreasonably withhold);
and

(b)

enter and remain, for a reasonable time, on the Trust’s Land and the adjoining
land of the Trust with or without vehicles, plant, equipment, and implements for
the purposes of:
(i)

inspecting, maintaining, repairing and/or replacing the Cycleway and any
buildings, equipment and/or fittings forming part of the Cycleway; or

(ii)

providing medical or other assistance to members of the public using the
Cycleway; or

(iii)

carrying out any of its other obligations under this Lease.

9.3

HDC shall have the exclusive right to occupy and use the Trust’s Land and may allow
any member of the public to have the full, free and unrestricted right, liberty and
privilege to go, pass and re-pass over and along the land over which the Trust’s Land
at any time, whether by day or by night, on foot, bicycle, unicycle, wheelchair or any
other form of human powered transportation.

9.4

HDC may dig up the Trust’s Land for all or any of the purposes referred to in this
lease and if necessary may deposit soil, aggregate, and/or any other material upon
the Trust’s land adjoining the Trust’s Land provided always that all work shall be
carried out expeditiously and on completion the surface of any land adjacent to the
Trust’s Land that is affected will immediately be restored as nearly as possible to its
former state and condition at the sole cost and expense of HDC.

9.5

In exercise of the rights granted to HDC under this deed HDC will not unduly interfere
with any other lawful use by the Trust of any land adjacent to the Trust’s Land.

9.6

The Trust will not do nor suffer nor permit to be done any act, matter, or thing
whereby HDC’s rights hereunder may be interfered with or affected and in particular
(but not so as to restrict the generality of this clause) the Trust will not:
(a)

construct, erect, or place nor suffer nor permit to be constructed, erected, or
placed on the Trust’s Land or any land adjacent to the Trust’s Land any building
or structure; or
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(b)

create or allow any thing or activity on the Trust’s Land or land adjacent to the
Trust’s Land that is or could be a hazard to the HDC or any user of the
Cycleway; or

(c)

use the land adjacent to the Trust’s Land in any way which causes or is likely to
cause damage to the Cycleway; or

(d)

do anything to obstruct users of the Cycleway (whether by parking vehicles,
depositing materials, or placing any other impediment on the Cycleway).

HDC shall:
(a)

Indemnify the Trust against all claims, expenses, damages or liabilities
(“Claims”) suffered by the Trust as a direct result of any Claims made by
members of the public arising from their use of the Trust’s Land provided that
this indemnity will not apply to any Claims arising, directly or indirectly, from any
breach by the Trust of its obligations under this lease;

(b)

Regularly remove rubbish from the Trust’s Land; and

(c)

Include in any signs erected on or near the Trust’s Land notification that the
land outside the Trust’s Land is private property and that any use of that land
without the Trust’s consent is prohibited.

9.8

For the avoidance of doubt, unless specifically provided for in this lease or with the
consent of the Trust, this lease does not give HDC or any other person the right to go,
pass, re-pass, occupy or use in any other way, the Trust’s land outside the Trust’s
Land.

9.9

HDC is responsible for arranging the repair and maintenance of the Trust’s Land, and
for the associated costs, so as to keep the Cycleway in good order and to prevent it
from becoming a danger or nuisance but if HDC and the Trust share the use of the
Trust’s Land, each of them is responsible equally for the repair and maintenance of
the Trust’s Land, and for the associated costs

9.10

The party responsible for maintenance under this lease must meet any associated
requirements of the relevant local authority.

9.11

The Trust or HDC must promptly carry out at that party's sole cost any repair and
maintenance of the Trust’s Land that is attributable solely to an act or omission by
that party (or that party’s agents, contractors, employees, invitees, licensees or
tenants) provided that if the repair and maintenance of the Trust’s Land is only partly
attributable to an act or omission by the Trust or HDC, that party must pay the portion
of the costs of the repair and maintenance that is attributable to that act or omission
and the balance of those costs shall be payable in accordance with clause 10.

9.12

HDC must ensure that:
(a)

as little damage or disturbance as possible is caused to the Trust’s Land or to
the Trust;

(b)

all work on the Trust’s Land is performed in a proper and workmanlike manner;
and

(c)

all such work is completed promptly.
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If the Trust or the HDC does not meet the obligations implied or specified in this
lease:
(a)

the party not in default may serve on the defaulting party written notice requiring
the defaulting party to meet a specific obligation and stating that, after the
expiration of 7 working days from service of the notice of default, the other party
may meet the obligation;

(b)

if, at the expiry of the 7-working-day period, the party in default has not met the
obligation, the other party may:
(i)

meet the obligation; and

(ii)

for that purpose, enter the Trust’s Land;

(c)

the party in default is liable to pay the other party the cost of preparing and
serving the default notice and the costs incurred in meeting the obligation; and

(d)

the other party may recover from the party in default, as a liquidated debt, any
money payable under this clause.

Either party may immediately terminate this lease by written notice to the other if:
(a)

the other is in default under this Deed, the default is material and either the
default cannot be remedied or it is not remedied within 14 days of the other
receiving written notice specifying the default; or

(b)

if the other is unable to pay its debts as they fall due.

If this lease is terminated:
(a)

The Trust may immediately re-enter the Trust’s Land.

(b)

The Trust will not be liable for any loss resulting from the Trust’s re-entry on to
the Trust’s Land.

(c)

HDC will not be entitled to compensation for any improvements made to the
Trust’s Land.

(d)

The termination of this lease will only terminate clause 2 of this Deed between
the parties and all other provisions of the Deed shall continue to apply.
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Schedule C – Reserve Land
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10.

Schedule D – Lease terms for the Reserve Land

10.1

The lease will commence on the date of this deed.

10.2

The Trust will pay all rates, water and power charges and other outgoings (all
including GST) payable in respect of the Reserve Land and apportioned as
appropriate.

10.3

The Trust must not:

10.4

(a)

use the Land for any purpose other than grazing livestock;

(b)

dispose of or encumber the Trust’s interest in this lease or part with possession
of all or any part of the Reserve Land;

(c)

break up or crop any part of the Reserve Land nor cut down any trees or bush
without the prior consent of HDC;

(d)

erect any buildings on the Reserve Land;

(e)

let any livestock wander away from the Reserve Land or cause any nuisance to
HDC or any owner occupier of any other property or any users of the adjacent
cycleway (the Hauraki Rail Trail).

The Trust must:
(a)

use and manage the Reserve Land in a good and husbandlike manner and in
accordance with good farming practice;

(b)

keep the Reserve Land free from rabbits, gorse, broom and other pests defined
in the Biosecurity Act 1993 and its amendments;

(c)

keep all fences, gates, drains and other improvements on the Reserve Land in
the same order, condition and repair as they are at the commencement of this
lease;

(d)

preserve all shelter trees.

(e)

fertilise the Land as required by HDC, acting reasonably;

10.5

HDC will allow the Trust to quietly hold and enjoy the Reserve Land throughout the
term of this lease if the Trust is not in default under the terms of this Deed.

10.6

The Trust will take out and maintain a public liability policy in the joint names of the
Trust and HDC for $2,000,000 with a company approved by HDC.

10.7

Either party may immediately terminate this Lease by written notice to the other if:
(a)

the other is in default under this Deed, the default is material and either the
default cannot be remedied or it is not remedied within 14 days of the other
receiving written notice specifying the default; or

(b)

if the other is unable to pay its debts as they fall due.

10.8

Termination of this Lease will be without prejudice to the rights of either party arising
before termination.

10.9

If this Lease is terminated:
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(a)

The Trust must immediately remove all of the Trust’s livestock from the Reserve
Land.

(b)

HDC may immediately re-enter the Reserve Land.

(c)

HDC will not be liable for any loss resulting from HDC’s re-entry on to the
Reserve Land.

(d)

The Trust will not be entitled to compensation for any improvements made to
the Reserve Land.

(e)

The termination of this lease will only terminate clause 3 of this Deed between
the parties and all other provisions of the Deed shall continue to apply.

10.10 The Trust must comply with all relevant laws and lawful requirements in relation to:
(a)

the Trust’s occupation of the Reserve Land; and

(b)

all livestock depasturing on the Reserve Land.

10.11 HDC and persons authorised by HDC may enter on the Reserve Land to inspect its
condition or exercise HDC’s rights under this schedule at any reasonable time.
10.12 HDC may remedy any default by the Trust at the Trust’s expense. Nothing in this
clause affects any other legal or equitable rights of HDC.
10.13 All terms and conditions implied in leases by law will apply to this lease except to the
extent that they are inconsistent with the terms and conditions of this lease.
10.14 The two public access gates on the Reserve Land must remain in place, as installed
at the date of this Deed and the Trust acknowledges and agrees that:
(a)

the gates may only be locked with the consent of HDC;

(b)

the gates may be used to provide public access to the river riparian margin that
lies between the Reserve Land and the edge of the adjacent river;

(c)

HDC may repair or replace the gates at any time during the lease term.
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Community Development Officer

Date:

8 September 2015

File reference:

Document:

Meeting date:

30 September 2015

Subject:

2015 Citizens and Young Achievers Award

1410196

Recommendation
THAT the report be received, and
THAT the selection of recipients by the special working party for the 2015 Citizens & Young
Achievers Awards be approved.

Purpose
This report will apprise Council of the awards event due 14 October 2015 and the decision of the
special (assessment) working party.

Background
Nominations for the 2015 Citizens and Young Achievers Awards closed with a total of 17 (including
one couple) and 13 respectively assessed by the working parties earlier this month.
The guidelines set by Council for the two Citizens Award categories were as follows: a maximum of
ten (10) awards per year with a maximum of four for “Outstanding Service to the Community”
However, for the 2015 Award programme the limitation was increased to eleven (11). For the
Young Achievers Award the maximum set is 15.
Outcome
The special (Citizens Award) working party comprising of the Mayor and the three Ward Chairs
(Cr. Leonard, Cr. Bubb and Cr. Shepherd) selected nine (including one couple) of the nominees for
Service to the Community and two for Outstanding Service to the Community.
The special (Young Achievers) working party comprising of the Mayor, Cr. Harris, Cr. Milner and
Cr. McLean received nine nominations from the education sector and four from individual
organisations within the district – all will receive an award.
The event will be held in the Paeroa War Memorial Hall on Wednesday 14 October 2015 starting at
7:00pm.

John McIver
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT OFFICER
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Manager Engineering Services and Roading Manager

Date:

Monday, 17 August 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:

Meeting date:

26/08/2015

Subject:

Licence to Occupy Road Reserve for Motor home Park
Over Property

1402417
1389476

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT a Licence to Occupy be formulated by the Property Manager in consultation with the
applicant. For the occupation of the portion of Pukekereru Rd and East Coast Rd as shown in
appendix A. The finalised Licence to Occupy will be resubmitted to Council for resolution, and
THAT the Council makes its decision on which option to choose based on that option being the
most cost effective, and good quality for Hauraki District based on the requirements of s10 of the
Local Government Act 2002.

Purpose
Murray and Margaret Remnant have applied to operate a motorhome parkover property at 25
Pukekereru Lane, Kaiaua.
Background
Parking Spaces No. 2-9 would be located on their land (an application for resource consent is
currently being processed for this).However Parking Space No. 1 and the driveway to all the other
parking spaces (Ref Appendix A below) would be located on the legal road adjacent to East Coast
Road and Pukekereru Lane.

Issues and options
When the resource consent application was submitted, it included an application for approval
under the Consolidated Bylaw relating to the areas of legal road occupied and used as a drive
(Fred No. 1335371). In discussion with staff it was concluded that an approval under the
consolidated bylaw would not be the most appropriate mechanism. Instead, a Licence to Occupy
the land is preferable because it allows Council to set the conditions of the agreement. The
conditions would generally include items such as a fee for the occupation. The type of use can
influence the fee structure. The Licence can also include Maintenance, Statutory Compliance ,
Indemnity and the process by which the Council would reoccupy the land.
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Conclusion
It is recommended that approval be given for a Licence to Occupy be formulated by the Property
Manager in consultation with the applicant. The final version of the Licence will be submitted to
Council for resolution.

G Thomsen
Roading Manager
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Report
To:

Mayor & Councillors

From:

Russell Bierre – Manager Regulatory Services

Date:

28th August 2015

File reference:

1383322

Meeting date:

30 September 2015

Subject:

Section 10A Report to the Department of Internal Affairs
- Dog Control – 20142015

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT pursuant to section 10A of the Dog Control Act 1996, the Hauraki District Council report on
Dog Control Policy and Practices for 2014/2015 be adopted and forwarded to the Department of
Internal Affairs.

Purpose
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider adopting the annual section 10A Dog Control
report to the Department of Internal Affairs on 2014/15 year.
Background
Section 10A of the 2003 amendment to the Dog Control Act 1996 requires Council to report to
Central Government on its Dog Control Policy and Practices for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June
2015. Once Council has adopted the report, public notice must be given of the report and a copy
sent to the Secretary for Local Government.
Council has responsibilities for dog registration and animal control and aims to promote public
safety, responsible dog ownership and the welfare of dogs.
It has a statutory requirement to be involved in the Animal Control activity with a particular
emphasis on:
• dog registration systems and implementation,
• education of dog owners and the public,
• development and review of animal control bylaws and policies,
• public safety,
• enforcement of dog control issues to minimise danger, distress or nuisance from dogs,
• the provision and maintenance of pounds,
• impounding of wandering dogs, and
• prosecution of offenders.
The Dog Control Act 1996 is the legislation governing the control of dogs in the District. In order to
enforce this Act the Council has a Dog Control Policy, as well as the Public Safety section of the
Consolidated Bylaw, which in part pertains to restrictions imposed on dog owners.
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Issues
The Dog Control Act 1996 provides for the impounding of dogs and the prosecution of their owners
(when necessary).At present the Council contracts out its Animal Control responsibilities except for
administration and billing. The current contract for Animal Control includes the control of dogs and
the warden duties required to implement the Consolidated Bylaw with respect to Whiritoa Beach.
The private company employs two (2) full time animal control officers. The contractor provides a 24
hour, 7 day a week service.
Animal Control issues such as wandering dogs are notified to the Council offices and these are
then dealt with by the contractor and Council staff as necessary. The Council currently operates a
dog pound in Paeroa.
Levels of Service
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service

Method of
measurement

Baseline

Targets 2012 - 2022

Council will ensure compliance with the Dog Control legislation and consolidated bylaw to
provide public safety.
Measure:
All known dogs in the District are
registered annually.

Registration
records

100%
(2014/15)

100% of known dogs are
registered.

Measure:
Dog attack complaints are
responded to within two hours.

Contractor’s
monthly report

100%
(2014/15)

100% of complaints responded
to within two hours.

Dog and stock owners are aware of their rights and responsibilities.
Measure:
Education articles regarding dog
and stock ownership are published
in public news media quarterly.

HDC news
database

4 articles
per year.
(2014/15)

4 articles published per year.

The targets for the 2014/2015 period were met.
Relationship with the SPCA
Council contractors continued their good working relationship with the SPCA and in particular with
the Thames branch which re homes abandoned dogs suitable for fostering to new owners.
Property Visits
Over the last year 175 rural and 174 urban properties were inspected to locate any unregistered
dogs.
Attacks
When an attack occurs on a person or animal, the incident can be extremely distressing for all
parties. Over the last year there have been 22 cases of attacks on people up 1 from last
year.
Lost & Roaming Dogs
Roaming dogs are again a district wide issue, which can frighten, intimidate or annoy others, in
addition to attacking other animals and people. The number of complaints has remained static this
period and this is in part due to an increase in the number of urban street patrols.
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Barking Dogs
Barking dogs can create a significant nuisance, but it is pleasing to note a decrease in the number
of complaints from the previous year.
Prosecutions
There were no formal prosecutions for the 2014/2015 period.
Infringements
The number of infringement notices issued showed a slight increase.
Statistics 2014/15
Number of registered dogs
Number of probationary owners
Number of disqualified owners
Number of dogs classified as dangerous under Section 31
§
s.31 1(a) due to owner conviction
§
s.31 1(b) due to sworn evidence
§
s.31 1(c) due to owner admittance
Number of dogs classified as menacing under Section 33A
§
§

s.33A 1(b)(i) observed or reported behavior
s.33A 1(b)(ii) characteristics associated with breed

Number of dogs classified as menacing under Section 33C

4383 (4310)
9 (9)
15 (12)
0 (0)
15 (12)
0 (0)
38 (30)
38 (30)
0 (0)
116 (86)

Number of infringement notices issued – for failing to register a
dog.

237 (181)

Number of dog related complaints
§
Aggressive or rushing at fence
§
Barking dogs
§
Dog bites on people
§
Dog bites on animals
§
Bylaw breach (e.g.: dog fouling in public)
§
Miscellaneous (e.g.: unregistered, or other
general complaints)
§
Wandering dogs
§
Dogs worrying other animals
Number of prosecutions (Infringements)

633 (634)
53 (61)
154 (185)
22 (21)
39 (26)
7 (2)
73 (64)
283 (275)
2 (0)
162 (149)

( ) – are the figures for the previous year of 2013/14

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision is considered not significant because it does not meet any of the thresholds of
Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy.

Budget Implications
There are no budget implications as a result of this decision.
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Conclusion
This report provides an opportunity for the Council to review the section 10A Dog Control report to
the Department of Internal Affairs for the 2014/15 year.

Russell Bierre
Manager Regulatory Services
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Decision Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Policy Analyst

Date:

Tuesday, 22 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
1415908
Appendix A: Proposed 2011 Dog Control Policy and Bylaw
Review Timetable

Meeting date:

Wednesday, 30 September 2015

Subject:

Proposed Review of the 2011 Dog Control Policy and
Dog Control Bylaw

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT the review of the 2011 Dog Control Policy and Dog Control Bylaw commence in October
2015, and
THAT a Working Party is formed to work with staff on the review of the 2011 Dog Control Policy
and Dog Control Bylaw consisting of Deputy Mayor Bruce Gordon, Councillor Paul Milner,
Councillor Pam Keall and Chaired by His Worship the Mayor, and
THAT the review timetable attached as Appendix A is approved.

Purpose
This report provides background information about the 2011 Dog Control Policy. The report seeks
the approval of Council to undertake a review of the Policy and Bylaw commencing in October this
year. The review would be undertaken by Council staff and a Councillor Working Party.
The matter or suggested decision does not involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable.

Background
Dog Control Act 1996
Pursuant to section 10 of the Dog Control Act 1996 (the Act) Council must adopt a policy in respect
to dogs in its District. There is no legislative timeframe outlined in the Act for the review of a dog
control policy but Council had scheduled the review for the end of 2014. Due to the workload of the
Strategic Planning Team during the development of the 2015-25 Long Term Plan the review was
deferred until 2015.
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In June this year the Mayor and strategic planning staff discussed the forward work programme for
policy and the Mayor agreed that a desk-top review be undertaken of the current Dog Control
Policy. A high level summary of the desk-top review is outlined below.
Because the Dog Control Bylaw and Policy must be aligned (as per the Act) the desk-top review
also incorporated clause 6 ‘Dog Control’ and Schedule 7 and 8 of Part 3: Public Safety of the
Consolidated Bylaw. The Dog Control Bylaw must be reviewed every ten years and is due for
review by 1 July 2017, unless reviewed earlier.
Previous reviews of the 2011 Dog Control Policy
Council first adopted a Policy on dogs in 2004. The Policy was then reviewed in 2007, and
amended in 2011 and 2013. The 2011 amendment incorporated the Kaiaua area into the Policy
and also focused on the identification of prohibited and controlled areas for dogs in Whiritoa. The
Policy was amended in 2013 to align it with the changes made to the Dog Control Bylaw which
prohibits dogs on certain rural sections of the Hauraki Rail Trail.
Sub-regional and Regional Collaboration
Staff have met with their counterparts from Matamata-Piako (MPDC) and Thames-Coromandel
District Council (TCDC) to discuss the potential alignment of future policy and bylaw reviews,
including the Dog Control Bylaw and Dog Control Policy. Both MPDC and TCDC are interested in
sharing information and using a similar policy format to better align the policies and bylaws across
the three Districts. If appropriate this policy work could then be used by the regional policy and
bylaw working group to help inform the reviews of other Waikato Councils dog control policies.
Summary of the desk-top review of Council’s 2011 Dog Control Policy
After undertaking a desk-top review of the 2011 Dog Control Policy Council staff have identified the
need to undertake a review of the Policy based on the following reasons:
1. To better align the Policy and Bylaw with the requirements of the Dog Control Act 1996 –
this work would be undertaken at the staff level in conjunction with the Department of
Conservation.
2. There are 4 - 5 policy elements that Council may wish to investigate further because they
have not been reviewed since the 2007 review – this work would be undertaken by the
Working Party which would make recommendations to Council prior to the adoption of a
draft policy and bylaw.
3. There is an opportunity to work in a collaborative manner with MPDC and TCDC.

Issues and options
Option One: Status Quo
Even though Council scheduled a review of the 2011 Dog Control Policy for 2014, the Policy is not
legally required to be reviewed until the Bylaw is due for review in early 2017. Council could
therefore choose to review the Policy in late 2016.
This option is not recommended by staff because there will be a substantial number of other
bylaws that will need to undergo a ten year review in 2016/2017 in conjunction with the regional
bylaw review workstream. There is also an opportunity to work collaboratively at a sub-regional
level if Council undertakes the review this year which could then feed into the work being
undertaken by the regional policy and bylaw working group.
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Option Two: Commence a review of the Dog Control Policy and Bylaw
A review of the Policy and Bylaw could be undertaken this year with the aim of publically consulting
on a draft Policy and Bylaw in March/April 2016 and holding a Hearing in May 2016. A proposed
timetable is outlined in Appendix A.
This option is recommended by staff because there is currently an opportunity to work
collaboratively at a sub-regional level to better align the Policy and Bylaw with neighbouring
Councils. A desk-top review undertaken by Council staff also established that the Policy and Bylaw
need to be better aligned with the legislation and there are some policy elements that have not
been reviewed since 2007. Staff would work closely with the Councillor Working Party to
investigate any policy elements that the Working Party wishes to consider in more detail.

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision does not trigger the Significance and Engagement Policy Assessment Tool and
therefore is not considered significant under the Significance and Engagement Policy 2014.
Once Council adopts a draft Policy and Bylaw the Special Consultative Procedure would need to
be undertaken as per legislation.

Budget Implications
There will be costs involved with public consultation. These costs are already accounted for as part
of the strategic planning budget.

Recommendation
Council should make its decision on which option to choose based on that option being the most
cost effective, and good quality option for the Hauraki District (s10 of the Local Government Act
2002).
Staff recommend that a review of the 2011 Dog Control Policy and Dog Control Bylaw is started
this year as outlined in option two above. The proposed timetable is attached as Appendix A.

Charan Mischewski
POLICY ANALYST
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Appendix A: Proposed Timetable for Dog Control Policy and Bylaw Review
Proposed time frames for review of Councils Dog Control Bylaw and 2011 Dog Control Policy
Action
Comments
Date
Report to Council on proposed
review of Dog Control Policy and
the Bylaw
Meet with Working Party
establish scope of the review.

to

Follow-up report/s to be written as
result of Working Party meeting.

Report to Council outlining
rationale for undertaking a review of
Councils Dog Control Bylaw.

Discuss Draft Policy and Draft
Bylaw with Councillor Working
Party
Draft Statement of Proposal for
community consultation.
Council’s to adopt draft Policy and
Bylaw and Statement of Proposals

Staff recommend that a review is commenced in
October 2015. The Mayor has recommended
that the Policy review is undertaken in
consultation with a Councillor Working Party.
Issues and Options Paper to be drafted for this
initial Working Party meeting.
The scope of this work would be dependent on
the discussion had with the Working Party. Any
pre-consultation would need to be undertaken at
this point in time.
Note: Council must have regard to the elements
outlined in section 10(4) of the Dog Control Act
1996 when reviewing the Policy.*
Before commencing the process for making (or
reviewing) a bylaw Council must determine
whether a bylaw is the most appropriate way of
addressing the perceived problem (s 155(1)).
Report to address following questions:
Is there a problem with the current bylaw?
Why do we need to review and amend the
Bylaw?
Councillor Working Party to provide feedback on
Draft Bylaw and Policy and staff to amend
documents accordingly.

Special

Consultative

30

Early October
October-December
2015

Council meeting
November 2015

25

January/February

Late February
Before making the bylaw Council must
determine whether the proposed bylaw is the
most appropriate form of bylaw (s 155(2)(a)).
Alternative adoption date 23 March 2016 if
Annual Plan is not being consulted on.

30 day
Procedure

Council meeting
September 2015

Policy - Section 10(8) Dog Control Act 1996.
Bylaw - Section 156 or section 83 of the LGA.

Council meeting for
adoption of Draft Policy
and Bylaw 9 March
2016
(with
Annual
Plan)
Friday 18 March –
Monday 18 April 2016

Alternative dates Friday 1 April – Monday 2 May.
Hearing

25 May 2016

Adoption

22 June 2016

Public notification

1 July 2016

*Section 10(4) states: In adopting a policy under this section (s.10 Dog Control Act 1996), the territorial authority must
have regard to—
(a) the need to minimise danger, distress, and nuisance to the community generally; and
(b) the need to avoid the inherent danger in allowing dogs to have uncontrolled access to public places that
are frequented by children, whether or not the children are accompanied by adults; and
(c) the importance of enabling, to the extent that is practicable, the public (including families) to use streets
and public amenities without fear of attack or intimidation by dogs; and
(d) the exercise and recreational needs of dogs and their owners.
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Report
To:

Mayor and Council

From:

Policy Analyst

Date:

Tuesday, 15 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:

Meeting date:

Wednesday, 30 September 2015

Subject:

Remotely piloted aircraft systems and new Civil
Aviation Authority Rules.

1398684_v3
CAA Rule

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT Council allow the use of remotely piloted aircraft systems over specified types of Councilowned land provided compliance with identified criteria is met; and
THAT staff develop interim guidelines for the Council to use as a method of addressing requests
to fly remotely piloted aircraft over Council land; and
THAT the Mayor and Ward Chairs form a working party with delegation to approve the draft
guidelines and draft application forms.

Purpose
The Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) of New Zealand has recently updated its rules with regards to
the flying of remotely piloted aircraft systems (RPAS) (known by other names such as remotely
piloted aircraft, unmanned aerial vehicle and drones). Council has been affected by these changes
as the rules now require owners of RPAS to obtain consent from landowners before flying above
them, as well as any people they may fly above.
Staff are seeking Council’s guidance on how they wish to respond to requests from
owners/operators wishing to fly RPAS above Council property in the future.

Background
On 1 August 2015 new rules applying to the use of RPAS were implemented by the CAA. The CAA
advises that these new rules have been developed due to the significant growth in the
development and use of RPAS, and the safety risks that these aircraft can pose.
The new rules separate RPAS use into two broad categories:
•

Non-certified operations, which are covered by Part 101; and

Page 1 of 5

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

•

Page 121

Certified operations, which require an operating certificate issues by the CAA governed by
Part 102.

The rules do not make a distinction between the uses of RPAS for commercial or recreational
purposes.
Rule 101 places restrictions around the use of RPAS. As long as operators stay within these
defined parameters, they do not need to get any further authorisation or certifications from the
CAA. It is written in a way that provides obvious triggers for operators to know when they are
undertaking an operation that poses hazards to other airspace users/or the public, and should
therefore seek certification from the CAA under rule 102. Any operator wanting to operate outside
of rule 101 must apply to the CAA to become a certified operator under Part 102.
Rule 101.207(a) covers general operations outside of danger areas (such as airports).Amongst
other things it requires the user to avoid operating over persons who have not given consent, and
property where the landowner has not given consent. This rule applies unless the RPAS is being
operated under the authority of an approved organisation whose airspace was used prior to 1
August 2015. (e.g. an approved Model Flying NZ model flying area).
Operators of RPAS are responsible for making themselves aware of the CAA rules that affect them
and the CAA has produced a checklist to ensure compliance with this. As the Council owns an
RPAS (drone) itself, staff will be required to ensure compliance with these rules when using the
drone.

Issues and options
Safety
Being a landowner, and predominantly a landowner of multiple parks and reserves, the Council
has and will be approached from time to time with regards to consent for flying RPAS. To this end
staff are bringing the new rules to the attention of the Council.
The rules have been developed to address safety issues due to increased numbers of RPAS
operators. They have also been designed to facilitate a transfer of knowledge of the risks in a given
location between the property owner or people on the ground and the operator involved. As safety
is the key factor in this rule staff are mindful of Council’s responsibility of care to its community.
The key risk identified by the CAA is the RPAS falling out of the sky.
The CAA rules assume that if an operator does not have, or cannot obtain permission from those
whom they are flying over or the property owner, or if getting this permission is likely to be too
onerous, then it is likely they are conducting an operation that could be hazardous to others. The
operator should therefore be going to the CAA for certification under Part 102 (certification requires
more rigorous safety management), although even under Part 102 a certificate, consent may still
be required.
When not in use for an event or sporting meeting, parks and reserves generally only have a
handful of people on them, and therefore a lower risk to safety. It is therefore recommended that
the Council allows operators of RPAS to fly over parks and reserves if meeting certain criteria
(criteria to be developed). With regards to roading and the Council’s property it is suggested that
there is a higher risk to safety, it is therefore proposed that criteria be drafted taking this into
consideration and possibly prohibiting flight above these areas.
Enforcement
The Council is not required to administer any of the CAA rules (which are extensive) or deal with
non compliance of any other issues regarding the flight of RPAS. The Council’s only responsibility
at this stage is to decide whether or not they will allow the use of RPAS over Council-owned land.
Page 2 of 5
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The CAA can prosecute or issue infringement notices for breaches of these rules, although are
initially going to be taking an educational approach. If the Council receives complaints about RPAS
use they can refer them to the CAA for follow-up. If a situation requires immediate action however
(i.e. posing an imminent threat to people) the CAA recommends that police should be involved.
Liability
The CAA has emphasised through correspondence with the Council that providing consent does
not mean that local authorities assume any responsibility for an unmanned aircraft operation. The
consent provision simply facilitates awareness of the operation proposed and allows the landowner
to advise the operator of any known hazards. In the event of an accident occurring in a public
space, the CAA advises that Council will carry no liability for the actions of the operator.
Current situation
To date one application has been received for consent to fly over Council land, and two information
requests on Council’s position on the rules have been made. It is anticipated that there will not be a
high number of requests but this may change in the future as access and affordability to these
aircraft becomes easier. Staff therefore recommend a policy approach to this with the development
of some criteria to enable an appropriate response to future requests.
Local Government New Zealand (LGNZ) has just informed Council that they are drafting some
standard policy rules around the use of RPAS. Whilst drafting these rules LGNZ are advising
Councils to hold fire on adopting their own policies in an attempt to have a consistent approach
throughout the country.
Staff are therefore recommending interim measures of approval on a case by case basis with
some interim guidelines. These would provide staff with a standard approach whilst waiting for the
proposed standard policy template. If a national template is not eventuated then at a regional
approach would be preferable to offer some consistency to users.

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision is considered not to be significant as it does not trigger any of the thresholds of the
significance and engagement policy.
Its impact however would be of interest to a number of flying enthusiasts/RPAS users and
therefore some engagement is recommended at the drafting stage of any policy or guidelines
written. Once suitable criteria have been adopted, the provision of information to interested parties
would likely consist of an update on the Council’s website and an email to the CAA and Airshare.
Model Aeroplane Clubs would be a stakeholder also.

Budget Implications
A small budget implication would arise if Council chose to require applications for all requests for
consent to fly RPAS. This cost however would be minimal. It is not suggested that Council recover
this cost at this stage, but that the application be made as simple and effective as possible so as
not to hinder the approval process.

Conclusion
Staff recommend that the Council allows the flying of RPAS over identified Council-owned land
upon application and as an interim measure, with criteria imposed.
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Staff recommend that whilst waiting for a national standard or regional approach to be drafted on
the flight of RPAS over Council property, that interim guidelines be formulated in order to provide a
position on the matter to the people who have an interest in Hauraki.
In order to make informed recommendations on these guidelines staff are proposing setting up an
‘on-line’ working party of Councillors to get feedback. Staff are recommending that the Mayor and
Ward Chairs be appointed to the on-line working party which will require feedback on draft
guidelines via email, and that they be delegated authority to approve the guidelines once they are
confident with them.
Katy Hurd
POLICY ANALYST
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Appendix A
101.207 Airspace
(a) A person operating a remotely piloted aircraft must—
(1) Unless operating in a danger area under Part 71, avoid operating
–
(i) in airspace above persons who have not given consent for the aircraft to operate in that
airspace; and
(ii) above property unless prior consent has been obtained from any persons occupying that
property or the property owner; and
(2) maintain observation of the surrounding airspace in which the aircraft is operating for other
aircraft; and
(3) not operate the aircraft at any height above 400 feet above ground level except in accordance
with paragraph (c).
(b) Nothing in paragraph (a) requires a person to obtain consent from any person if operating.
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Strategic Policy Planner

Date:

Monday, 13 July 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:
Proposal

Meeting date:

30/09/2015

Subject:

2016 Annual Satisfaction Survey –
resource consent quarterly reporting

1401048
1411410 – Key Research Quarterly Reporting

building and

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT the Council retain the status quo for the 2016 Annual Satisfaction Survey and Resource
and Building Consent surveys (i.e. conduct an annual survey);
Or
THAT the Council undertake building and resource consent surveys quarterly and request staff
to further explore this option, noting that this will also likely result in a departure from the
Council’s Procurement Policy.

Purpose
In May 2015 the Strategic Planning team presented the timetable for the 2015 Annual Satisfaction
Survey to the Council. In this report staff signalled the option of more regular surveying and
reporting for the 2016 year, and the Council resolved that Strategic Planning should report back
with the costs and benefits of quarterly reporting for the building and resource consent surveys
only.
The matter or suggested decision does not involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable. Note: if Council adopts the status quo, there is no new
expenditure involved. However, if Council does not adopt this approach, additional expenditure
would be required.

Background
Key Research currently conducts the following surveys in June/July each year on the Council’s
behalf, with the exception of the election year when the Triennial Survey is undertaken as well as
the annual satisfaction, building and resource consent surveys:
•

Satisfaction Survey (400 people)

Page 1 of 3

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

•
•

Page 126

Building Consent Survey (80 people)
Resource Consent Survey (60 people)

During discussions with Key Research regarding the 2015 survey, the company suggested a
change to the approach for the building and resource consent survey frequency in future years.
Key Research suggested that instead of waiting until the end of the year to survey applicants, that
staff send through completed applicant lists every month, and that they survey the following month
and provide quarterly reports of the results to the Council.

Issues and options
For the frequency of surveying and reporting of building and resource consent surveys, staff are
presenting two options for the Council to consider; the status quo, or changing the frequency to
quarterly. The following options are regarding whether Council wishes to consider the increased
frequency of surveying and reporting for building and resource consents only.
Option one – Status Quo (recommended option)
For this option, the annual survey timing would be retained and staff would begin to prepare the
arrangements for the 2016 surveys in March 2016, which would include going to tender for the
provision of all survey services, as recommended in the Council’s Procurement Policy.
The current cost of undertaking the annual, building and resource consent surveys with Key
Research is $21,400 (excl. GST) annually. Every three years, that cost becomes $31,070 (excl.
GST) for the triennial survey. (Note that these were the costs of the last surveys undertaken and
prices may change in the future). The next Triennial Survey is scheduled to take place in 2016.
The Council’s Procurement Policy notes purchases of $5,001 - $50,000 are deemed to be
negotiable purchases. This means the purchasing officer has the ability to negotiate and/or invite
quotes from at least three suppliers. It is expected that this negotiation will lead to the most cost
effective option.
As the consent applications involve projects over a period of time staff would not expect applicants
to forget their consenting experience over the past year. Increasing the surveys to quarterly only
generates more administration for Council officers. If there is an issue of great importance to the
applicant, staff would be made aware of this well before any survey is undertaken. Staff see very
little benefit in changing from this current option.
Option two: Quarterly surveying and reporting
This option is suggested by Key Research, and involves the Council continuing to undertake the
resident satisfaction survey annually, however the building and resource consent surveys would be
undertaken every quarter, and reporting would be done to Council staff, and accordingly the
Council, on a quarterly basis. The purpose of doing this more often was to ensure that the user
experience is fresh in the applicants’ minds – improving accuracy of the results. Key Research had
also suggested increasing the sample size for the building and resource consent surveys as part of
this amended approach. The pros and cons for this approach are outlined below:
Pros
Quarterly surveying would mean that applicants are
surveyed nearer the timing of their experience with
Council, and their views would be fresh in their mind. The
survey company believes this may encourage better
results.
Having the results reported to Council on a more regular
Page 2 of 3

Cons:
There would be more frequent work required of Council
staff to collate the applicant lists on a more regular basis.

Providing quarterly reports to Council would come at a
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basis allows Council staff the opportunity to make
operational changes, if required, to help improve the
results for the end of the year.
The results from each quarter would be provided in an
interactive Excel dashboard offering the ability to review
data for a single or multiple periods. In addition, a
management style report will be provided annually
detailing improvement opportunities and priority actions.
An increased sample size would improve the margin of
error for these surveys.
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total increased cost of $1180 plus additional staff time to
prepare reports and interpret results for the Council.
Agreeing to more regular surveying and reporting of
building and resource consents does somewhat commit
Council to using Key Research at least for the 2016 year,
which may not be the most economical option and
deviates from the Procurement Policy.
Staff do not agree that this is a practicable option as the
total number of consent applicants cannot be known until
the end of the year. A larger sample size increases the
cost of surveying.

If the Council was to choose Option Two, this would require a deviation from the Procurement
Policy which would need a separate resolution from the Council. It is recommended that for the
most cost effective option, three quotes are obtained.

Budget Implications
As mentioned above, if the Council opts for the status quo, this would involve staff obtaining quotes
for the provision of surveys for the 2016 period as per the Procurement Policy. This would ensure
the most cost-effective provider is employed.
The cost of having the surveys reported quarterly by Key Research will be at an additional annual
cost of $600 for the resource consent survey and an additional cost of $580 for the building
consent survey. These costs in addition to the annual survey would bring the annual estimated
cost to $22,580, compared with $21,400 in the 2014/15 year.
The amount in the Hauraki Long Term Plan allocated for the 2015/16 surveys is $24,000.

Conclusion
The Council is asked to consider the proposal to increase the frequency of the building and
resource consent surveys, whether it would like more regular reporting for these surveys, or
whether it would like retain the status quo which would include obtaining three quotes from survey
providers for the 2016 year.

Sarah Holmes
Strategic Policy Planner
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A proposal to provide
quarterly monitoring
of service delivery for
building and resource
consents

Hauraki District Council
Resource and Building Consents Survey

Research Proposal | May 2015
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Summary of offer
Background

Objectives

Methodology

Output

Investment

Introduction:
The Hauraki District Council has traditionally undertaken an annual survey of those who have made application
for either a building or resource consent in order to measure service quality relative to targets and previous
performance. For future studies, it is proposed to move to continuous surveying with more regular reporting

The objectives of the survey are:
• Measure satisfaction with service delivery in relation to the processing of resource and building consent
applications
• Assess changes in performance and monitor progress towards Annual Plan and Long Term Plan objectives
• Provide insights into opportunities for the Hauraki District Council to improve its service and how these should
be prioritised
The methodology recommended involves:
A telephone survey with consent applicants being interviewed the month following the completion of their
application. The aim is to achieve 15 interviews with resource consent applicants each quarter and with about 40
who have applied for a building consent
The output would include:
The results from each quarter will be provided in an interactive Excel dashboard offering the ability to review data
for a single or multiple periods. In addition, a management style report will be provided annually detailing
improvement opportunities and priority actions
Investment (excluding GST)
• $3,100 plus gst per annum for n=60 resource consent interviews with quarterly reporting
• $3,650 plus gst per annum for n=80 building consent interviews with quarterly reporting
• $4,900 plus gst per annum for n=150 building consent interviews with quarterly reporting
Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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The Hauraki District Council has service objectives relating the processing of building and
resource consents and therefore needs to monitor performance relative to these targets
How satisfied are applicants with the processing of their building and resource consent applications and
what opportunity is there to improve Council’s performance?

How satisfied are applicants with the
processing of their consents?
•

•

•

How satisfied are applicants in
relation to the service received with
the processing of the building and
resource consent applications?
What aspects of the service are
applicants most happy with and what
are the sources of dissatisfaction?
What changes have occurred in the
Council’s performance over time?

What influences perception of
performance?
•

•

•

What communications do
applicants have with Council and
how is this influencing their
perceptions
What other aspects of the
Council’s consent management
process have the most impact on
overall perceptions?
How does Council perform on
these important aspects of its
service?

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.

What actions should the Council
consider in order to improve
perceptions?
•

•

•

What services would consent
applicants most value the council
improving?
What groups within the population
have different needs that require
focus?
What actions should the Council
consider in relation to these and
how should they potentially be
prioritised?
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Research Methodology

Research Proposal | May 2015
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We propose reviewing the questionnaire so its structure is more closely aligned with the
elements of the application experience
Structure
High-level Process

Efficiency

Communication

Rationale
Customers don’t want their interaction to take longer
than necessary but need to feel it is thorough

Customers need to understand the information
presented to them

Overall satisfaction
with interaction
Outcomes

Customers want the reason for the interaction to be
resolved

Price and fees

Customers are prepared to pay what they consider to
be a fair price for what they receive

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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We will work with the Hauraki District Council to identify appropriate sub-driver questions to
include within the questionnaire
Structure
High-level Process

Sub-drivers
Effort to lodge the application

Efficiency

Time to process the application
Ease of contacting people who can assist
Clarity of the process

Communication

Staff being friendly and helpful
Staff understanding of your application

Overall satisfaction
with interaction

Being given accurate information

Outcomes

Following up and doing what they promised
The result achieved from the outcome being reasonable

Fees being transparent

Price and fees

Fees being fair and reasonable

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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Bringing the analysis together, it will be possible to develop strategies for managing consent
application experience
Establishing Priorities
Focus on improving
performance on attributes
within this quadrant

Strategies focus on
maintaining current
performance

High
Priority opportunities
since these attributes
strongly influence
perceptions but
performance is low

Strategy is to maintain
the current status

Impact

Low priorities but these
need to be monitored

Monitor these attributes for
changes in the level of impact

Opportunities since
performance is high
but the benefit is not
widely appreciated

Improving recognition of
areas where performance is
already high has potential to
improve perceptions

Low

Low

Performance

High

Example
Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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We propose telephone interviewing since it achieves a high response rate with a short
questionnaire (5-6 min) and is relatively efficient
Methodology
Action

Hauranki provides contact lists

Resource consent surveys by telephone

Building consent surveys by telephone

Detail

Contact lists provided for consent
applications closed off in the prior
month. Lists to be de-duped to
remove those surveyed in the prior
12 month period.

Approximately 80-100 consents are
processed annually. We will aim to achieve
n=60 interviews. The expected margin of
error with a population of N=80 and
sample of n=60 is +/-6.4%.

Approximately 350 applications are
lodged annually. We will aim to achieve
n=150 interviews. The expected margin
of error with a population of N=350
and sample of n=150 is +/-6.1%.

Rationale

Since people will be contacted soon
after their application has been
processed they are likely to be
more engaged to participate in the
survey and their recall will be more
accurate leading to more reliable
responses.

Since the population is small it is possible
to achieve interviews with most of the
applicants thereby providing highly robust
results. A short telephone interviews (5-6
minutes) has proven to be a highly
efficient mechanism for completing
interviews and achieves a high response
rate .

A sample of n=150 provides a
statistically robust result. Since we will
be interviewing a short time after
completion of the application process
and using telephone, we anticipate a
high response rate with a short
questionnaire (5-6 minutes).

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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Moving to a quarterly reporting cycle will involve a small increase to account for additional time
managing the sample and reporting
Investment(1)

Resource
consents

The proposal is to complete n=15 interviews each quarter based
on recently completed consent applications.

$3,100

Building
consents

Two options are provided:
Option A: n=20 interviews each quarter (n=80 per annum)

$3,650

Option B: n= 35-40 interviews per quarter (n=150 per annum)

per annum plus gst

per annum plus gst

$4,900
per annum plus gst

Notes
1: Invoices will be payable in quarterly instalments following delivery of each quarterly dashboard
2: The actual number of interviews achievable may vary depending on the number of consent applications processed
Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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We will provide a quarterly dashboard report plus an annual report
Reporting
Quarterly
dashboard

The Excel based dashboard will be tailored to the questionnaire and can include customised
filters to enable the Hauraki District Council to review the data for different segments. Data
will be shown for rolled periods. An example dashboard has been provided

Annual
report

Results will be summarised into an annual report to be provided in either PowerPoint or MS
Word. The report will be highly illustrative and be focussed on results achieved relative to
targets and actions that will help Council to improve performance

Illustrative
dashboard

Data examined using predefined filters

Navigation to additional
reports

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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Key Research is a full service research agency that uses its combined commercial, consultancy
and market research experience to solve our clients’ market facing problems
About Us

Full service
consultancy

Key Research is a Tauranga based, full service, international market research agency with a high level of expertise in added
value market research and consultancy. We use our combined commercial, consultancy and market research experience to
compete against traditional market research companies

Experienced
and qualified

Our consultants have experience in business, research and statistics and are therefore in a unique position to determine the
research design, methodologies and analytical techniques that will directly address a specific issue or need. Our combinatio n
of business knowledge and experience, and expertise with research and statistics means that our clients can have complete
confidence that our bespoke solutions will directly address their information needs for business decision making

Solving
market facing
problems

We pride ourselves on our ability to solve our clients’ market facing problems by focussing on pragmatic, actionable solutions
and our ability to present complex findings with clarity, and in a manner that is easily interpreted by those with little or no
research experience

Proven track
record

Our combination of skills and total commitment to professionalism, and quality has seen us work with many high profile
clients both in New Zealand and overseas including 2degrees, Altum, Ballance Agri-Nuritients, AMP Capital, AgITO, Pfizer, Rio
Tinto (Western Australia), Synergy (Western Australia) and numerous regional councils and territorial authorities in New
Zealand and Australia

Build solid
relationships

We value excellent working relationships and strive to provide an outstanding service to facilitate this. Our service is
encapsulated with our attention to detail, careful listening, prompt replies, proactivity in forecasting performance and
identifying any potential issues, a determinedness to deliver and ownership of and pride in our work. In short, we work hard
to make our clients’ work easier

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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We have robust processes in place for managing projects so they are delivered in full, on time
and completed to the highest possible quality standards
Project Management

Project
management

Every project is fully planned and appropriately resourced. Progress is monitored and reported in a formal weekly
operations meeting where each project is reviewed and as necessary, additional resource allocated. As part of a large
group, we have resource in Australia that is also able to assist should the need arise

Relationship

Maintaining positive working relationships with our clients is an important part of our culture. We will a regular ‘work
in progress report’ during the project and will maintain contact as necessary via telephone and email. We operate a
‘no surprises’ approach and ensure that the Hauraki District Council is fully informed at every step of the project

Staff skills
and
expertise

Our staff are all trained and highly skilled for their respective roles from call centre personnel to our professional staff
who hold relevant qualifications in business, marketing, mathematics and statistics. All staff receive feedback on their
personal and comparative performance at the end of each project

Control
checks

We have developed robust processes for managing each phase of our projects from the initial design, questionnaire
development, testing, data collection, preliminary examination of the data, analysis and reporting. Each step is
designed specifically to maintain the quality of the data and to minimise the opportunity for errors

Industry
standards

As members of the Research Association of New Zealand (formally the Market Research Society of New Zealand) we
are very aware of our responsibilities as market researchers to protect the privacy of respondents and enhance the
reputation of our clients

Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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We are a highly successful research consultancy that has proven experience creating insights,
information and pragmatic solutions for many high profile clients
Our clients include…
Australian and
New Zealand
Local Government

Utilities

Agriculture and
Horticulture

Tertiary
Education

Other

Key Research has expertise and experience across many major sectors:
• We have extensive experience working with regional councils and territorial authorities
• Experience extends to both central government and government organisations
• We have a long history of conducting research within the electricity sector
• We have completed work for numerous high profile clients within New Zealand, many of which represent ongoing market monitoring
Copyright © 2015 Key Research. Confidential and proprietary.
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Head Office
Telephone:

+ 64 7 575 6900

Address:

Level 1, 247 Cameron Road
PO Box 13297
Tauranga 3141

Website:

www.keyresearch.co.nz

Key Staff
Sam Marshall | Director of Business Development
Telephone: +64 7 547 4907
Mobile:
+64 21 245 5502
Email:
sam@keyresearch.co.nz
Project lead:
David Mustard | Senior Research Consultant
Telephone: +64 7 547 7044
Mobile:
+64 27 4741 798
Email:
davidm@keyresearch.co.nz
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Strategic Policy Planner

Date:

8 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
1409954
Appendix A: 1409958 (2015 Hauraki
Satisfaction Survey Results Report)

Meeting date:

30 September 2015

Subject:

2015 Satisfaction Survey Results Report

District

Annual

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received; and
THAT staff report back with proposed actions to address non-achievement in the attached
survey results; and
THAT the Annual Satisfaction Survey results be communicated to staff and the public; and
THAT the Annual Satisfaction Survey results for each relevant activity be included in the 2014/15
Annual Report.

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to present the Council with the final 2015 Annual Satisfaction Survey
results.

Background
The Annual Satisfaction Survey has been undertaken since 2012. Prior to this, the survey was
undertaken triennially. As part of the development of the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan the
decision was made to alter the frequency of the satisfaction survey from triennial to annual to
inform each Annual Report on current satisfaction levels and trends; and then, every three years,
also ask the additional triennial questions requested to inform the incoming Council of the state of
the District and identify key issues for its consideration.
As was the case in previous years, specific building and resource consent applicant lists were
provided to Key Research to ensure only users of those services were surveyed. The
questionnaire also sought responses from users for the other 14 Council services. 400 residents
were surveyed for the triennial survey, 98 applicants were interviewed for the building consent
survey and 39 for the resource consent survey.
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Issues and options
The results of the 2015 Hauraki District Annual Satisfaction Survey are attached as Appendix A.
An overview of the survey results by activity is provided below.
The overview below includes a column for the 2014/15 target and a column showing if the result
achieved that target or did not achieve that target. These results are to be included in the 2014/15
Annual Report in the non financial performance target (NFPT) results.
It is intended that the 2015 survey results will be made available on the Council website,
communicated via Facebook, a memo will be sent to staff and an article about the survey and
some highlights of the results will be published in the HDC News page in October.

% of satisfied residents

Wastewater
Sports Fields
and Reserves
Swimming Pools

The quality of the
wastewater services
provided by the Council
The services and facilities
provided at the district's
parks and reserves
The operation of Council
swimming pools in the
District

2012

2013

2014

2015

Target
14/15

14/15
Result

% change
2014/15

97%

98%

94%

95%

95%



1%



91%

94%

90%

95%

>90%



5%



94%

87%

87%

94%

>90%



7%



Libraries

The library services in the
District

93%

96%

96%

91%

>90%



-5%



Solid Waste

The kerbside collection
services provided by
Council

87%

86%

87%

84%

90%



-3%



Water Supply

The water quality from
HDC's water networks

76%

79%

81%

76%

85%



-5%



63%

71%

76%

76%

70%



-

-

73%

76%

72%

72%

75%



-

-

61%

78%

79%

72%

70%



-7%



Resource
Management
Democracy
Building
Services

Service received from the
HDC’s Resource Consents
Department
Confidence in the Council’s
decision making by elected
members
Service received from the
HDC’s Building Consents
Department

Storm water

The storm water services
provided by the Council

74%

83%

74%

72%

80%



-2%

Roading

The quality of the roads ,
excluding state highways

72%

72%

72%

71%

>70%



-1%

Land Drainage

The land drainage services
in your area

73%

70%

76%

71%

75%



-5%

Water Supply

The value for money of
water supplied to you by the
Council

-

69%

63%

67%

60%



4%



Policy
Development

Understanding the Council’s
decision making processes

59%

60%

62%

60%

70%



-2%







Note: The percentage satisfied refers to the percentage who rated 4-6 on a 6-point satisfaction scale and the
calculation excludes don’t know responses
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The measures that were not achieved in 2014/15 are:
• Water quality
• Solid waste kerbside collection
• Confidence in Council’s decision-making
• Stormwater services
• Land drainage services
• Understanding of decision-making processes
In the areas where the performance targets have not been achieved, it is recommended that the
management team work with staff to analyse the reasons for dissatisfaction and report back with
proposed actions to address the issues arising from these results.

Conclusion
The 2015 Annual Satisfaction Survey Results are presented to the Council for consideration and
approval for public release.

Sarah Holmes
Strategic Policy Planner
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Appendix A

ANNUAL RESIDENTS SURVEY 2015
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Introduction, Methodology and Objectives
Introduction
The Hauraki District Council is responsible for the planning and provision of community services and
facilities in the Paeroa, Plains and Waihi wards that make up the Hauraki District.
The Hauraki District Council commissioned Key Research to conduct the Annual Residents Survey in 2015.
The purpose of this survey is to measure satisfaction with core services as outlined in the 2012-22 Hauraki
Long Term Plan (LTP) and to compare results with the 2013 Triennial Residents Survey and the 2012 and
2014 Annual Residents Survey.

Research objectives
To assess satisfaction with services and facilities provided by Hauraki District Council and, in particular,
assess levels of satisfaction as perceived by users of the services and facilities.
To compare satisfaction with the levels recorded in the 2014, 2013 and 2012 surveys.

Methodology
The 2015 Annual Residents Survey consisted of 400 interviews with residents in the Hauraki District. Quotas
were enforced by age and gender. To account for slight variances in the quotas achieved, the sample has
been weighted by interlocking age and gender, population proportions by ward and by ethnicity. This
ensures that specific demographic groups are proportionately represented according to population
estimates (2013 Census). Sample sizes shown are based on the unweighted count.
To ensure a proportionately representative sample of the Hauraki District’s population, quotas were
enforced by ward. Subsequent to weighting the data, the sample consisted of 131 responses from
residents in the Plains Ward, 119 responses from residents in the Paeroa Ward and 150 responses
from residents in the Waihi Ward.
Quotas were also enforced according to area (urban or rural).
The overall results (n=400) have a margin of error of +/- 4.9% at the 95% confidence level.
Interviewing took place between 4th and 15th June 2015.
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The 2015 Annual Residents Survey also consisted of 90 interviews with Building Consent applicants and 56
interviews with Resource Consent applicants.
Hauraki District Council supplied databases of contacts for the past year from which respondents were
randomly selected for interview.
The following steps were taken to ensure objectivity, validity and reliability of the study:
The questionnaire was designed by executives from Key Research in partnership with the Hauraki District
Council;
Respondents for telephone interviews were selected from the Hauraki District using a random telephone
number generation service;
All interviews were conducted by trained and experienced Key Research interviewers.

Analysis
The questions where respondents rated their level of satisfaction were analysed at a total sample level.
Results also include analysis of the following sub-groups:


Ward (Plains, Paeroa, Waihi);



Age (18-29, 30-39, 40-49, 50-59, 60+);



Gender (Male, Female);



Ethnicity (Maori, Non-Maori) – for satisfaction ratings only;



Location (Urban, Rural).

Where satisfaction is reported, the percentage refers to the total number of respondents who rated the
question as either somewhat satisfied (4), satisfied (5) or very satisfied (6). Where dissatisfaction is
reported, the percentage refers to the total number of respondents who scored the question as either
somewhat dissatisfied (3), dissatisfied (2) or very dissatisfied (1). Those providing don’t know responses
have been excluded.
Percentages reported have been rounded to the nearest whole number and may not always equal 100%.
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Executive Summary




Areas where the Council has performed most strongly in terms of resident satisfaction were to do with
amenities such as
o

The parks and reserves

o

Public swimming pools

o

Libraries, and

o

The quality of the wastewater services provided

In terms of resident satisfaction, the Council did not perform as strongly for services such as:
o

The quality of the roads (excluding state highways)

o

The storm water services provided, and

o

land drainage services



Value for money of water supplied by the Council was the area of lowest satisfaction for Hauraki
District residents. This dissatisfaction was mainly driven by price perceptions; residents believe the cost
of water is expensive.



Not all Hauraki residents were satisfied they understood the Council’s decision making process or had
confidence in the decision making process, indicating an opportunity to have community members
more informed, thus more confident in this area.



Dissatisfaction with storm water and land drainage services was mostly related to flooding issues;
resident’s property or house being flooded as well as roads being flooded.



The Council’s amenities that residents don’t appear to use or visit frequently are public swimming pools
with only a quarter of residents having used in the past 12 months. There was also relatively low usage
of the district libraries with only half of the residents having used.



In terms of residents being prepared, to some degree, for emergencies (had an emergency kit to last
the household three days), less than half the Hauraki residents stated they had such a kit.

Executive Summary (cont’d)
Dashboard 1 - Trends in Satisfaction for Services Provided
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% of satisfied residents
2012

2013

2014

2015

% change
2014/15

The services and facilities
provided at the district's
parks and reserves
The quality of the
wastewater services
provided by the Council
The operation of Council
swimming pools in the
District

91%

94%

90%

95%

5%

97%

98%

94%

95%

1%

94%

87%

87%

94%

7%

The library services in the
District

93%

96%

96%

91%

-5%

Solid Waste

The kerbside collection
services provided by Council

87%

86%

87%

84%

-3%

Water Supply

The water quality from HDC's
water networks

76%

79%

81%

76%

-5%

Resource Management

Service received from the
HDC’s Resource Consents
Department

63%

71%

76%

76%

-

Storm water

The storm water services
provided by the Council

74%

83%

74%

72%

-2%

73%

76%

72%

72%

-

61%

78%

79%

72%

-7

The quality of the roads ,
excluding state highways

72%

72%

72%

71%

-1%

Land Drainage

The land drainage services in
your area

73%

70%

76%

71%

-5%

Water Supply

The value for money of
water supplied to you by the
Council

-

69%

63%

67%

4%

Understanding the Council’s
decision making processes

59%

60%

62%

60%

-2%

Sports Fields and
Reserves
Wastewater

Swimming Pools
Libraries

Democracy

Building Services
Roading

Policy Development

Confidence in the Council’s
decision making by elected
members
Service received from the
HDC’s Building Consents
Department

Note: The percentage satisfied refers to the percentage who rated 4-6 on a 6-point satisfaction scale and the
calculation excludes don’t know responses

Main Findings
Understanding the Council’s decision making process


Six in ten residents (60%) were satisfied with understanding the Council’s decision making processes.
This was consistent with previous years.
o

There was little difference in satisfaction results across the three wards - Waihi (58%), Plains
(61%) and Paeroa (62%).
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o

Rural respondents (57%) were a little less likely to be satisfied with understanding the Council’s
decision making process than urban respondents (63%).

o

Older residents (60+ years expressed the highest levels of satisfaction (73%) while those aged
40 to 49 years appeared the least satisfied (48%).

o

Non-Maori residents were slightly more likely than Maori residents to indicate satisfaction with
understanding the Council’s decision making processes (61% vs 55%).

o

The main reason for dissatisfaction with understanding the Council’s decision making processes
related to not listening to the public or keeping the public informed (35%).

Results for understanding the Council’s decision making processes
Mean
3.7

Mean
3.6
71
%

Mean
3.9

Mean
3.8
63%

60%

61%

Q5a. I would like you to tell me how satisfied, or dissatisfied, you are with some aspects of Council decision making on a scale of 1 to 6, where 1 is
VERY DISSATISFIED and 6 is VERY SATISFIED. How satisfied are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes?

Confidence in Council’s decision making by elected members


Just over seven in ten (72%) residents expressed satisfaction regarding confidence in the Council’s
decision making by elected members, similar to the 2014 survey.
o

Residents from the Waihi Ward appeared less confident (66%) while those from the Plains
Ward were more confident (77%).

o

Non-Maori residents indicated higher levels of satisfaction than Maori residents (73% vs 60%).
However, satisfaction among Maori residents was 6 points higher than for the 2014 survey (54%).

o

The main reason for dissatisfaction (similar to 2014) related to the Council not listening to, or
keeping the public informed (35%).

The level of confidence in Council’s decision making by elected members
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73%

76%

73%

72%

Q5b. I would like you to tell me how satisfied, or dissatisfied, you are with some aspects of Council decision making on a scale of 1 to 6, where 1 is
VERY DISSATISFIED and 6 is VERY SATISFIED. How satisfied are you with Confidence in the Council’s decision making by elected members?
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Roading


There was little change in satisfaction results for the quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding
state highways (2015 – 71% vs 72% for the previous three years).
o

o

Significantly more residents from the Paeroa Ward were satisfied with the quality of roads
(80%) than residents from Plains Ward (59%) where satisfaction has decreased 10 points since
2014.
Rural respondents were less likely to be satisfied (63%) than Urban respondents (77%).

Results for satisfaction with roads in the district

Q6.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state highways?



The main reason given for dissatisfaction with the quality of roads was to do with the condition of the
roads and standard of maintenance being inadequate (50%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with roads in the district

They are full of potholes / rough

29%

61%

They need repairs / maintenance

50%

They are in poor condition
Contractors doing unsatisfactory jobs
They are wasting money on bad repairs

7%

The repairs are too slow

6%

There are too many trucks

5%

Need footpaths, footpaths need attention

4%

Don’t know

3%

Other

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)

Water supply
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The majority (86%) of residents were connected to Council water supply. Just over three quarters (76%)
of these residents were satisfied with the water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks (down
marginally from 81% in 2015).
o

Highest satisfaction with water quality was from Waihi residents (89%) while lowest
satisfaction was given by Paeroa residents (70%).

o

There was significantly higher satisfaction from urban residents (81%) compared to rural
residents (68%).

Results for the satisfaction with the water quality from district water networks

Q8.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the water quality from Hauraki District Council’s water networks?



The main reason stated for dissatisfaction was to do with the taste of the water (61%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with water quality

Taste

23%

61%

Colour/cloudy

26%

Too many chemicals/flouride/chlorine
Needs boiiling
Sediment

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)



11%
8%
4%

Smell

3%

Breaks in supply

1%

Other

32%

Approximately two thirds (67%) of residents on Council water supply were satisfied that water supplied
by the Council represents value for money which was similar to the 2014 survey (63%).
o

Highest satisfaction was from Paeroa residents (72%), while lowest satisfaction was from Waihi
residents (62%), although satisfaction amongst Waihi residents was up 10 points on the 2014
survey results.
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Satisfaction among residents from the Plains Ward decreased 10 points (form 74% in 2014 to
64% in 2015)/
Satisfaction for urban respondents has increased 10 points since 2014 (up to 72%).

Results for satisfaction with the value for money of the water supplied by the Council

Q9.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the value for money of water supplied to you by the Council?



The key reason given for dissatisfaction was to do with pricing – being expensive (43%). There were also
a number of other reasons provided that also included price or cost in some way.

Reasons for dissatisfaction with the value for money of the water supplied by the Council

It is expensive

30%

43%

The quality of water does not justify the price

19%

I do not think we should pay for water

11%

The cost continues to increase
Issue with meter reading/cost of the meter
It should be included with our rates

9%
5%
2%

Other

27%

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)

Wastewater


Almost two thirds (65%) of residents were connected to the Council’s piped sewerage system.



The majority (95%) of these residents were satisfied with the quality of the wastewater services
provided by the Council, similar to the high levels of satisfaction seen for the previous three years.

Results for satisfaction with the quality of the wastewater services provided by the Council
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Q11.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the quality of the wastewater services provided by the Council?



The primary reasons for dissatisfaction related to issues of a more general nature (21%) and overflow
and backwash (15%). Note: based on small sample size.

Reasons for dissatisfaction with the quality of the wastewater services provided

General problems

5%

36%

Overflow/backwash

25%

Environmentally poor

7%

Smells

7%

Tooexpensive

7%

Unreliable

7%

Other

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)

Don'tknow

51%
21%

Storm water


Levels of satisfaction with storm water services were similar to 2014 (72% vs 74%), however there has
been a trend down in satisfaction since 2013 (83%).
o
o
o

Paeroa and Waihi residents were much less likely to be satisfied with storm water services
(64% and 69% respectively) than residents from the Plains (90%).
Satisfaction from Paeroa residents has decreased 20 points since 2014.
Satisfaction has also declined among Maori residents (down from 88% in 2014 to 63%). In
comparison, 73% of Non-Maori residents expressed satisfaction.
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Satisfaction with storm water services provided by the Council

Q12.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the storm water services provided by the Council?



The main reasons provided for dissatisfaction were to do with flooding issues – either on road surfaces
(33%), their property/house (37%) and drains not being adequately maintained (34%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with the storm water services provided by the Council

28%

Drains are not maintained

34%

The road floods

33%

Drains don't cope

23%

Myproperty has beenflooded

21%

Open drains are unsightly

13%

No drains

12%

Water flows throughmy property
My house has beenflooded
Open drains are unsafe

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)

Other

10%
6%
1%
43%

Land drainage


Satisfaction for land drainage services amongst rural residents has decreased a little since 2014 (down
from 76% to 71%).

Results for satisfaction with land drainage services in the district
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Q13.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the land drainage services in your area?



For residents who were dissatisfied with land drainage services in their area, the main reasons were to
do with drains not being maintained (35%), flooding issues – water flows through property/property
flooded (28%) and drains not coping with water (18%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with drainage services in the district

Drains are not maintained

29%

35%

Drains don't cope

18%

Water flows through my property

15%

My property has been flooded

13%

Open drains are unsafe

11%

The road floods

10%

No drains
Open drains are unsightly

10%
9%

Other

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)

Don't know

33%
10%

Solid waste


Around two thirds (67%) of residents used the Council kerbside collection service.



The majority (84%) of these residents claimed satisfaction with the service, down slightly from 87% in
2014.
o

Highest levels of satisfaction were evident from the Plains residents (90%), followed by Waihi
residents (84%) and Paeroa residents (81%).

o

Rural residents appeared more satisfied with this service (92%) than urban residents (82%), as
did Non-Maori residents (86%) vs Maori residents (69%).
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Results for satisfaction with kerbside collection service

Q15.How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the kerbside collection service provided by Council?



The main reasons for dissatisfaction related to the service not being frequent enough (26%),
contractors leaving the area messy (25%) and the service being too expensive (20%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with the kerbside collection service

Not frequent enough

26%

Contractors leave area messy/leave split bags

25%

15%

Too expensive

20%

Restrictive to what they collect

17%

Inconvenient times

12%
46%

Other

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)

Libraries


Almost half (49%) the residents in the Hauraki District have visited a district library within the past 12
months. The lowest visitation was from Ngatea residents (24%).

Proportion of residents who have visited a district library in the past 12 months

42%

41%

42% 44% 40%

34% 34%

32%

49%

20%

25% 24%

14%
2% 2% 1% 3%

% of who have visited
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the library in the past
12 months

Paeroa

W aihi
2012

2013

Ngatea
2014

Other
2015
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Q16. In the past 12 months have you visited a library in the Hauraki District?
Q17. Which Hauraki District library branch do you mainly visit?



Despite a decline since 2013/14 (down from 96% to 91%), satisfaction with the library services
remained high.

Results for satisfaction with the library services in the district

Q18. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the library services in the District?

Satisfaction with individual town library services

Q17. Which Hauraki District library branch do you mainly visit? x Q18. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the library services in the District?



It would appear that the decline in satisfaction was driven by decreased satisfaction from visitors to the
Paeroa Library (satisfaction down from 96% in the 2014 to 85% in 2015). However, it should be noted
the proportion of residents that were dissatisfied was not high (9%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with individual town library services
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The main reason for dissatisfaction with Paeroa services related the service needing to be upgraded
(32%), while for Waihi and Ngatea it related to the book collection not being considered particularly
good (42% and 100% respectively).



Note – very small sample sizes for all library results below - results are indicative only.

Q18a. Why is that? (reason for dissatisfaction rating)

Swimming pools
Number of residents who have visited a Hauraki District Council public swimming pool

57%

60%
50%

41%

40%

43%

40%

26%

43%

39%

34%
27%

30%

24%
16% 17% 16%

20%
10%
0%
Ngatea

% of residents who
have visited a pool in
the past 12 months

Paeroa
2012

2013

2014

W aihi
2015

Q19. In the past 12 months have you visited a Hauraki District Council public swimming pool? This includes visiting a swimming pool to swim or to
watch others swim?
Q20. Which public swimming pool do you mainly visit?



Approximately a quarter (26%) of Hauraki District residents had visited a public swimming pool in the
past 12 months. Waihi residents were the least likely to have visited a pool (16%).

Results for satisfaction with the operation of Council swimming pools in the district
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Q21. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the operation of Council swimming pools in the District?



Satisfaction with the operation of Council swimming pools was high (94%) amongst residents who had
visited a pool. This result is back in line with the similarly high result evident for 2012.

Satisfaction with operation of individual town swimming pools

Q20. Which public swimming pool do you mainly visit? x Q21. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the the operation of Council swimming
pools in the District?



There was a higher level of satisfaction in 2015 from visitors who had visited the Paeroa Pool (up nine
points to 92%) and the Waihi Pool (up from 60% in 2014 to 87% in 2015. All residents who mainly used
the Ngatea pool were satisfied with the operation of that pool

Reasons for dissatisfaction with town swimming pools



For the small number of residents who expressed dissatisfaction with town swimming pools, the main
reasons given were that the pool needs updating (32% for Paeroa, 75% for Waihi) or that an indoor
pool is needed (31% for Paeroa).
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Q21a. Why is that? (reason for dissatisfaction rating)

Sports fields and reserves
Number of residents who have visited a sports field, park or reserve in the past 12 months

57%

60%
50%

41%

40%

43%

40%

76%

43%

39%

34%
27%

30%

24%
16% 17% 16%

20%
10%
0%

% of residents who
have visited a sports
field/reserve in the
past 12 months

Ngatea

Paeroa
2012

2013

2014

W aihi
2015

Q22. In the past 12 months have you visited a sports field, park or reserve in the Hauraki District?



Just over three quarters (76%) of Hauraki District residents had visited a sports field, park or reserve in
the past 12 months.

Results for satisfaction with district parks and reserves
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Q22. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks and Reserves?



For residents that had visited, satisfaction with the services and facilities provided at the district’s
sports fields, parks and reserves was high (95%); slightly up on the 2014 result of 90%.
o

Almost universal satisfaction from the Plains Ward residents (99%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with sports fields, parks and reserves

4%

Not well ma intained (unclean/need to be
mow n)

47%

The fa cilities need upg rading

They are too rough

Other

18%

5%

66%

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)



Of the small number of residents who did state they were dissatisfied with the district’s sports fields,
parks and reserves, the primary reason given was to do with them not being adequately maintained
(e.g. not clean, lawns not mown) (47%).

Civil defence
Proportion with an emergency household kit sufficient for three days

2015
2014
Page
23 of 70

44%
41%

2013

44%

2012

44%
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A little over four in ten (44%) residents claimed they had an emergency preparedness kit ready to last
their household for three days. This result was in line with previous results from 2012 to 2014.

Building services
Results for satisfaction with Building Consents service

Q5. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the service you received from the Hauraki district Council’s Building Consents Department during the
building consenting process?



Resident satisfaction with the service received from the Building Consents Department was moderate
(72%) and down on the previous two year’s results (79% in 2014 and 78% in 2013).
o

Highest satisfaction was from Waihi residents (81%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with Building Consents service

Delay receiving consent

27%

Red tape/bureaucratic issues
Excessive charges
Given the run around
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48%
44%

Asked to provide info they already had
Could follow up more promptly
Should let me know about delays

36%
28%
24%
20%
20%
16%
12%
12%
8%
4%
4%

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 167

Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)



There were a number of issues relating to resident dissatisfaction with the service from the Building
Consents Department, however the top two issues raised were to do with red tape (54%) and a lack of
communication (46%).

Resource management
Results for satisfaction with Resource Consents service

Q5. How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with the service you received from the Hauraki district Council’s Resource Consents Department during
the resource consenting process?



Satisfaction with the service received from the Resource Consents Department was moderate (76%)
and remained in line with the results for 2014 (76%).
o

Lowest satisfaction was evident from Waihi residents (64%).

Reasons for dissatisfaction with Resource Consents service

Red tape/bureaucratic issues

23%

54%
46%

Needed someone who understood my issues

38%
38%

Could follow up more promptly

31%
31%

Should let me know about delays

23%
15%
15%
15%
15%

No clear or practical advice offered
Asked to provide info they already had
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Dissatisfied
(% 1 – 3)



Similar to Building Consents (and noting the relatively small sample size), there were a number of issues
relating to resident dissatisfaction with the service from the Resource Consents Department. The two
most raised issues were to do with red tape (54%) and a lack of communication (46%).

Emergency preparedness kit by subgroups

Yes have
emergency kit
Ward
Paeroa

38%

Waihi

45%

Plains

51%

Age group
18-29

10%

30-39

59%

40-49

55%

50-59

44%

60+

48%

Gender
Male

49%

Female

40%

Ethnicity
Maori

28%

Non-Maori

46%



Plains residents indicated higher likelihood to have an emergency kit (51%) than residents from the
other two wards.



Residents aged 18-29 were least likely to have a kit (based on relatively small sample size). This lack of
being prepared may in part be that they were still living at home with their parents and so not
responsible for this kit.



Of note also was the lower proportion of Maori residents who had an emergency kit (28%) compared to
Non-Maori residents (46%).
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Annual Performance Satisfaction Measures
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Satisfaction with Hauraki District Council Decision Making
Table 1: Q5A How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes? Total sample

2015
n=400
2014
n=400
2013
n=400
2012
n=419

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

8%

6%

23%

28%

19%

9%

8%

60%

3.8

5%

7%

20%

25%

20%

8%

14%

62%

3.9

6%

13%

19%

32%

19%

4%

7%

60%

3.6

6%

8%

21%

27%

16%

7%

15%

59%

3.7

Table 2: Q5A How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes? –
By ward

Plains
n=131
Waihi
n=150
Paeroa
n=119

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

6%

4%

27%

30%

22%

5%

6%

61%

3.8

7%

7%

22%

24%

17%

9%

14%

58%

3.8

10%

6%

20%

28%

18%

12%

6%

62%

3.8

Table 3: Q5A How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes? –
By area

Urban
n=235
Rural
n=165

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

9%

4%

22%

23%

22%

13%

7%

63%

3.9

7%

8%

24%

34%

15%

3%

9%

57%

3.6
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Table 4: Q5A How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes? –
By age

18 to 29
n=23
30 to39
n=39
40 to 49
n=70
50 to 59
n=77
60 or
older
n=191

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

14%

7%

11%

24%

11%

23%

11%

64%

3.9

9%

7%

29%

23%

23%

2%

7%

52%

3.6

6%

6%

37%

32%

11%

1%

7%

48%

3.4

8%

9%

29%

36%

6%

4%

8%

50%

3.4

6%

3%

16%

24%

32%

11%

7%

73%

4.2

Table 5: Q5A How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes? –
By gender

Male
n=144
Female
n=256

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

12%

5%

17%

30%

21%

10%

5%

64%

3.8

4%

6%

28%

25%

17%

8%

10%

57%

3.8

Table 6: Q5A How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Understanding the Council’s decision making processes? –
By ethnicity

Maori
n=25
NonMaori
n=375

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

14%

12%

14%

22%

18%

8%

12%

55%

3.5

7%

5%

24%

28%

19%

9%

7%

61%

3.8

Table 7: Q5Aa Reasons for dissatisfaction
They don't inform the public enough / listen to the public

35%

I don't understand / agree with the decision making process

24%

The rates keep going up / I am not happy with the rates / I don't know
what the rates are being spent on

4%

1

They don't stand up to the mining company / They forget about Waihi

3%

Other

24%

I don't know / I don't know enough about it

28%

149 respondents,
multiple
responses
allowed
Table 8: Q5B How satisfied, orBase:
dissatisfied,
are you with
Confidence
in the
Council’s decision making by elected
members? - Total sample
Very
Dissatisfied
(1)
1

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Added this year due to relatively high percentage of residents mentioning it
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Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA

Mean
Score Max
6
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(4-6)

2015
n=400
2014
n=400
2013
n=400
2012
n=419

3%

5%

19%

33%

27%

8%

6%

72%

4.0

3%

7%

15%

27%

30%

9%

11%

72%

4.1

3%

7%

13%

34%

29%

6%

9%

76%

4.1

4%

6%

12%

31%

25%

6%

16%

73%

4.0

Table 9: Q5B How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Confidence in the Council’s decision making by elected
members? – By ward

Plains
n=131
Waihi
n=150
Paeroa
n=119

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

4%

17%

34%

29%

9%

5%

77%

4.2

6%

3%

22%

34%

17%

9%

9%

66%

3.9

3%

7%

18%

30%

31%

5%

6%

70%

4.0

Table 10: Q5B How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Confidence in the Council’s decision making by elected
members? – By area

Urban
n=235
Rural
n=165

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

5%

19%

30%

28%

9%

5%

70%

4.0

1%

4%

19%

37%

26%

6%

8%

74%

4.1
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Table 11: Q5B How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Confidence in the Council’s decision making by elected
members? – By age

18 to 29
n=23
30 to 39
n=39
40 to 49
n=70
50 to 59
n=77
60 or
older
n=191

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

2%

9%

12%

45%

14%

6%

13%

74%

3.9

4%

2%

30%

34%

24%

2%

3%

63%

3.8

2%

2%

29%

31%

26%

6%

3%

65%

4.0

3%

8%

25%

35%

21%

4%

3%

62%

3.8

4%

3%

10%

27%

36%

12%

8%

82%

4.4

Table 12: Q5B How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Confidence in the Council’s decision making by elected
members? – By gender

Male
n=144
Female
n=256

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

8%

16%

29%

30%

6%

6%

69%

4.0

2%

2%

21%

36%

24%

9%

7%

74%

4.1

Table 13: Q5B How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with Confidence in the Council’s decision making by elected
members? – By ethnicity

Maori
n=25
NonMaori
n=375

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

3%

16%

13%

34%

12%

2%

19%

60%

3.5

3%

3%

19%

32%

28%

8%

5%

73%

4.1

Table 14: Q5Ba Reasons for dissatisfaction
They don't inform the public enough / listen to
the public
Some decisions are good and some are bad

25%

They don't stand up to the mining company /
2
They forget about Waihi

4%

Other

36%

I don't know / I don't know enough about it

20%

Base: 105 respondents, multiple responses allowed

2

Added this year due to relatively high percentage of respondents mentioning it
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Satisfaction with Specific Council Services
Roading
Table 15: Q6 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state
highways? - Total sample
Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

8%

15%

31%

33%

7%

1%

71%

4.0

4%

9%

15%

34%

31%

7%

-

72%

4.0

3%

10%

15%

33%

33%

6%

1%

72%

4.0

4%

7%

17%

27%

36%

9%

1%

72%

4.1

2015
n=400
2014
n=400
2013
n=400
2012
n=419

Table 16: Q6 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state
highways? – By ward

Plains
n=131
Waihi
n=150
Paeroa
n=119

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max 6

6%

13%

22%

30%

25%

5%

-

59%

3.7

4%

9%

13%

33%

33%

6%

2%

73%

4.0

5%

4%

11%

30%

41%

9%

1%

80%

4.2

Table 17: Q6 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state
highways? – By area

Urban
n=235
Rural
n=165

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

6%

11%

35%

35%

6%

1%

77%

4.1

5%

11%

21%

25%

30%

7%

1%

63%

3.9

Table 18: Q6 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state
highways? – By gender

Male
n=144
Female
n=256

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

6%

9%

16%

26%

35%

6%

1%

69%

4.0

4%

8%

15%

35%

31%

7%

1%

73%

4.0

Table 19: Q6 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state
highways? – By age
Very
Dissatisfied
(1)
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Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA

Mean
Score Max
6

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 175

(4-6)

18 to 29
n=23
30 to 39
n=39
40 to 49
n=70
50 to 59
n=77
60 or
older
n=191

9%

15%

12%

30%

30%

3%

-

64%

3.7

6%

8%

14%

29%

31%

13%

-

72%

4.1

9%

10%

14%

38%

25%

4%

1%

67%

3.7

5%

9%

21%

26%

38%

1%

-

65%

3.9

2%

4%

15%

31%

37%

10%

1%

78%

4.3

Table 20: Q6 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the roads in Hauraki District, excluding state
highways? – By ethnicity

Maori
n=25
NonMaori
n=375

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

20%

-

6%

34%

38%

-

3%

74%

3.7

3%

9%

16%

30%

33%

7%

1%

71%

4.0

Table 21: Q6a Reasons for dissatisfaction
They are full of potholes / rough / uneven

61%

They need repairs / maintenance

50%

They are in poor condition

35%

The contractors do not do a satisfactory job / are continually doing repairs

11%

They are wasting money on bad repairs

7%

The repairs are too slow

6%

There are too many trucks/heavy vehicles using the roads

5%

Need footpaths, Footpath needs attention

4%

Other

20%

Don't know
Base: 112 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Water Supply
Table 22: Q7 Where does your household get its drinking water from? - Total sample
Council
Private bore /
River /
supply
well
Rain water
stream
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
2015
86%
4%
6%
2%
n=400
2014
n=400
2013
n=400
2012
n=419

Other
(5)

DK
(6)

1%

2%

83%

3%

8%

3%

2%

1%

87%

5%

6%

2%

1%

1%

85%

5%

7%

2%

1%

1%

Table 23: Q8 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks?
- Respondents on Council Supply

2015
n=338
2014
n=331
2013
n=340
2012
n=354

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

9%

10%

15%

39%

21%

1%

76%

4.4

4%

3%

13%

24%

27%

29%

1%

81%

4.6

3%

5%

12%

22%

37%

20%

-

79%

4.5

6%

7%

11%

19%

36%

20%

<1%

76%

4.4

Table 24: Q8 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks?
– By ward

Plains
n=112
Waihi
n=116
Paeroa
n=110

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

11%

10%

20%

37%

18%

-

75%

4.3

2%

4%

5%

10%

44%

34%

-

89%

4.9

5%

11%

13%

13%

38%

16%

3%

70%

4.2

Table 25: Q8 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks?
– By area

Urban
n=225
Rural
n=113

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

9%

7%

13%

42%

24%

2%

81%

4.5

5%

11%

16%

17%

34%

17%

-

68%

4.1
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Table 26: Q8 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks?
– By age

18 to 29
n=17
30 to 39
n=34
40 to 49
n=63
50 to 59
n=66
60 or
older
n=158

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

15%

-

15%

4%

29%

26%

11%

66%

4.2

2%

15%

20%

7%

38%

16%

-

62%

4.1

1%

11%

10%

20%

35%

22%

-

77%

4.4

5%

16%

9%

17%

42%

10%

-

70%

4.1

2%

6%

5%

17%

43%

26%

-

87%

4.7

Table 27: Q8 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks?
– By gender

Male
n=121
Female
n=217

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

9%

8%

14%

41%

21%

3%

77%

4.4

4%

9%

12%

16%

37%

22%

-

75%

4.4

Table 28: Q8 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The water quality from Hauraki District Council’s networks?
– By ethnicity

Maori
n=24
NonMaori
n=314

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

14%

12%

28%

12%

23%

11%

-

46%

3.5

3%

9%

8%

15%

41%

22%

2%

79%

4.5

Table 29: Q8a Reasons for dissatisfaction
Taste
Colour / cloudy

26%

Too many chemicals / fluoride / chlorine

11%

Needs boiling / filtering

8%

Sediment

4%

Smell

3%

Breaks in supply

1%

Other
Base:
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Table 30: Q9 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The value for money of water supplied to you by the
Council? - Respondents on Council Supply

2015
n=338
2014
n=331
2013
n=340

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

3%

9%

18%

28%

25%

9%

7%

67%

4.0

5%

12%

17%

21%

26%

10%

10%

63%

3.9

5%

7%

15%

24%

30%

7%

12%

69%

4.0

Table 31: Q9 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The value for money of water supplied to you by the
Council? – By ward

Plains
n=112
Waihi
n=116
Paeroa
n=110

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

3%

15%

15%

23%

27%

10%

7%

64%

3.9

6%

8%

19%

23%

22%

11%

11%

62%

3.9

2%

5%

20%

35%

27%

7%

4%

72%

4.0

Table 32: Q9 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The value for money of water supplied to you by the
Council? – By area

Urban
n=225
Rural
n=113

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

6%

17%

27%

30%

10%

6%

72%

4.1

3%

16%

20%

31%

18%

6%

7%

59%

3.7

Table 33: Q9 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The value for money of water supplied to you by the
Council? – By age
Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

18 to 29
21%
49%
4%
6%
20%
73%
n=17
30 to 39
2%
9%
24%
24%
26%
13%
2%
63%
n=34
40 to 49
5%
12%
22%
25%
29%
4%
3%
59%
n=63
50 to 59
4%
23%
22%
23%
25%
1%
2%
50%
n=66
60 or
older
3%
4%
11%
27%
32%
16%
7%
80%
n=158
Table 34: Q9 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The value for money of water supplied to you by the
Council? – By gender
Very
Dissatisfied
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Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied

Somewhat
Satisfied

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.

Mean
Score Max
6

3.9
4.0
3.7
3.5
4.4

Mean
Score Max
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(1)

Male
n=121
Female
n=217

(3)

(4)

(6)

DK/NA
(4-6)

6

3%

12%

19%

28%

26%

8%

4%

65%

3.9

4%

7%

17%

29%

25%

9%

9%

69%

4.0

Table 35: Q9 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The value for money of water supplied to you by the
Council? – By ethnicity

Maori
n=24
NonMaori
n=314

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

16%

17%

46%

8%

8%

3%

64%

3.7

4%

9%

18%

26%

28%

9%

7%

67%

4.0

Table 36: Q9a Reasons for dissatisfaction
It is expensive
The quality of water does not justify the price

18%

I do not think we should pay for water

10%

The cost continues to increase

9%

I have an issue with the meter reading / the cost
of the meter

5%

It should be included with our rates

2%

Other

25%

Don’t know

2%

Base: 104 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Wastewater
Table 37: Q10 How does your household dispose of its sewerage? - Total sample
Council piped
Septic tank / soakage
Other
sewerage system (1)
fields (2)
(4)
2015
n=400
2014
n=400
2013
n=400
2012
n=419

DK
(3)

65%

35%

-

-

59%

38%

2%

1%

60%

39%

1%

-

59%

39%

1%

1%

Table 38: Q11 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the wastewater services provided by the
Council? - Respondents on Council Piped Sewerage System

2015
n=255
2014
n=233
2013
n=236
2012
n=245

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

-

4%

14%

38%

38%

6%

95%

5.1

-

1%

4%

17%

35%

38%

4%

94%

5.1

-

-

2%

15%

45%

32%

5%

98%

5.1

1%

-

2%

14%

44%

36%

4%

97%

5.1

Table 39: Q11 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the wastewater services provided by the
Council? – By ward

Plains
n=61
Waihi
n=102
Paeroa
n=92

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

1%

3%

10%

31%

49%

4%

94%

5.2

-

-

6%

12%

36%

42%

4%

94%

5.2

1%

-

2%

16%

43%

29%

9%

96%

5.1

Table 40: Q11 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the wastewater services provided by the
Council? – By area

Urban
n=223
Rural
n=32

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

-

4%

12%

38%

39%

7%

95%

5.2

-

-

3%

24%

38%

32%

3%

96%

5.0
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Table 41: Q11 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the wastewater services provided by the
Council? – By age

18 to 29
n=18
30 to 39
n=18
40 to 49
n=39
50 to 59
n=39
60 or
older
n=141

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

-

15%

30%

39%

15%

100%

5.3

-

-

10%

9%

35%

37%

9%

89%

5.1

2%

-

-

13%

39%

45%

1%

98%

5.2

-

-

3%

22%

48%

26%

1%

97%

5.0

1%

1%

5%

11%

38%

38%

6%

93%

5.1

Table 42: Q11 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the wastewater services provided by the
Council? – By gender

Male
n=90
Female
n=165

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

3%

11%

38%

40%

7%

96%

5.2

1%

1%

4%

16%

38%

35%

6%

94%

5.1

Table 43: Q11 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The quality of the wastewater services provided by the
Council? – By ethnicity

Maori
n=23
NonMaori
n=232

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

3%

20%

29%

33%

14%

96%

5.1

1%

-

4%

13%

39%

38%

5%

95%

5.2

Table 44: Q11a Reasons for dissatisfaction
General problems

21%

Overflow / backwash

15%

Environmentally poor

4%

Too expensive

4%

Unreliable

4%

Smells

4%

Other

30%

Don’t know
Base: 19 residents, multiple responses allowed

Storm water

Page 39 of 70

12%

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 182

Table 45: Q12 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The storm water services provided by the Council? - Urban
Respondents

2015
n=235
2014
n=225
2013
n=231
2012
n=244

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

6%

9%

13%

21%

33%

17%

2%

72%

4.2

5%

8%

13%

24%

34%

13%

3%

74%

4.2

4%

2%

9%

17%

44%

20%

4%

83%

4.6

7%

7%

10%

20%

29%

23%

4%

75%

4.3

Table 46: Q12 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The storm water services provided by the Council? – By
ward

Plains
n=51
Waihi
n=99
Paeroa
n=85

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

2%

2%

3%

29%

34%

30%

-

94%

4.8

8%

9%

13%

19%

32%

16%

4%

69%

4.1

6%

12%

17%

19%

33%

12%

1%

64%

4.0

Table 47: Q12 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The storm water services provided by the Council? – By age

18 to 29
n=12
30 to 39
n=18
40 to 49
n=37
50 to 59
n=34
60 or
older
n=134

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

25%

19%

37%

19%

-

75%

4.5

11%

14%

15%

14%

29%

17%

-

60%

3.9

11%

12%

13%

23%

32%

10%

-

65%

3.8

12%

22%

15%

13%

31%

3%

5%

49%

3.4

2%

6%

8%

25%

34%

23%

2%

84%

4.6
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Table 48: Q12 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The storm water services provided by the Council? – By
gender

Male
n=83
Female
n=152

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

10%

13%

16%

35%

18%

3%

71%

4.2

7%

7%

13%

26%

31%

16%

1%

73%

4.2

Table 49: Q12 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The storm water services provided by the Council? – By
ethnicity

Maori
n=17
NonMaori
n=218

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

4%

29%

16%

30%

17%

-

63%

4.2

6%

10%

11%

22%

33%

17%

2%

73%

4.2

Table 50: Q12a Reasons for dissatisfaction
Drains are not maintained
The road floods

33%

Drains don't cope

23%

My property has been flooded

21%

Open drains are unsightly

13%

No drains

12%

Water flows through my property

10%

My house has been flooded

6%

Open drains are unsafe

2%

Other

41%

Don’t know

2%

Base: 62 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Land Drainage
Table 51: Q13 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The land drainage services in your area? - Rural
Respondents

2015
n=114
2014
n=175
2013
n=169
2012
n=175

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

6%

9%

14%

26%

28%

15%

3%

71%

4.1

3%

10%

10%

17%

36%

16%

8%

76%

4.3

7%

8%

14%

15%

36%

14%

5%

70%

4.2

8%

7%

10%

29%

28%

10%

9%

73%

4.0

Table 52: Q13 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The land drainage services in your area? – By ward

Plains
n=80
Waihi
n=0
Paeroa
n=34

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

14%

10%

22%

32%

16%

2%

72%

4.1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8%

-

20%

32%

20%

14%

4%

70%

4.0

Table 53: Q13 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The land drainage services in your area? – By age

18 to 29
n=10
30 to 39
n=16
40 to 49
n=25
50 to 59
n=30
60 or
older
n=33

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

25%

46%

7%

22%

-

75%

4.3

5%

-

5%

21%

25%

29%

15%

88%

4.7

4%

31%

7%

19%

39%

-

-

59%

3.6

10%

12%

22%

17%

32%

7%

-

56%

3.7

7%

-

6%

28%

33%

24%

2%

86%

4.5
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Table 54: Q13 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The land drainage services in your area? – By gender

Male
n=38
Female
n=76

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

7%

10%

10%

28%

28%

14%

3%

72%

4.0

5%

8%

16%

24%

28%

17%

2%

70%

4.2

Table 55: Q13 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The land drainage services in your area? – By ethnicity

Maori
n=6
NonMaori
n=108

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

0%

14%

18%

45%

16%

8%

-

68%

3.9

6%

8%

13%

24%

29%

16%

3%

71%

4.1

Table 56: Q13a Reasons for dissatisfaction
Drains are not maintained
Drains don't cope

18%

Water flows through my property

15%

My property has been flooded

13%

Open drains are unsafe

11%

The road floods

10%

No drains

10%

Open drains are unsightly

9%

Other

33%

Don’t know

10%

Base: 32 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Solid Waste
Table 57: Q14 Do you use Council’s kerbside refuse collection service?
Yes
2015
67%
n=400
2014
66%
n=400
2013
67%
n=400
2012
65%
n=419

No
33%
34%
33%
35%

Table 58: Q15 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The kerbside collection service provided by Council? Respondents who use Council’s kerbside refuse collection service

2015
n=277
2014
n=262
2013
n=267
2012
n=268

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

2%

9%

12%

34%

38%

1%

84%

4.9

1%

5%

8%

11%

38%

38%

1%

87%

4.9

2%

5%

7%

13%

45%

27%

-

86%

4.8

3%

3%

7%

15%

31%

41%

-

87%

5.0

Table 59: Q15 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The kerbside collection service provided by Council? – By
ward

Plains
n=73
Waihi
n=113
Paeroa
n=91

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

-

8%

8%

39%

42%

1%

90%

5.1

2%

3%

11%

13%

39%

30%

2%

84%

4.8

7%

3%

9%

14%

27%

41%

-

81%

4.7

Table 60: Q15 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The kerbside collection service provided by Council? – By
area

Urban
n=222
Rural
n=55

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

3%

10%

9%

34%

39%

-

82%

4.8

1%

-

7%

20%

34%

35%

3%

92%

5.0
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Table 61: Q15 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The kerbside collection service provided by Council? – By
age

18 to 29
n=13
30 to 39
n=21
40 to 49
n=45
50 to 59
n=43
60 or
older
n=155

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

16%

-

-

21%

33%

30%

-

84%

4.4

-

7%

20%

12%

20%

41%

-

73%

4.7

4%

1%

14%

14%

40%

24%

2%

80%

4.6

4%

9%

6%

18%

31%

33%

-

82%

4.6

2%

-

8%

6%

35%

47%

1%

90%

5.2

Table 62: Q15 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The kerbside collection service provided by Council? – By
gender

Male
n=103
Female
n=174

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

2%

9%

12%

34%

38%

1%

82%

4.8

5%

4%

9%

8%

34%

39%

1%

87%

4.9

Table 63: Q15 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The kerbside collection service provided by Council? – By
ethnicity

Maori
n=20
NonMaori
n=257

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

21%

-

10%

22%

36%

11%

-

69%

3.9

2%

2%

9%

11%

33%

41%

1%

86%

5.0
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Table 64: Q15a Reasons for dissatisfaction
Not frequent enough

23%

Contractors leave the area messy/leave split bags

22%

Too expensive

18%

Unreliable pick-up times

3

17%

Restrictive to what they collect

15%

Inconvenient times
3
42 for
respondents,
We shouldn’tBase:
have to pay
bags
allowed
Other

11%
multiple

responses
8%

Base: 42 residents, multiple responses allowed

3

Added this year due to relatively high percentage of respondents mentioning it
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Libraries
Table 65: Q16 In the past 12 months have you visited a library in the Hauraki District?
Yes
No
2015
49%
51%
n=400
2014
41%
59%
n=400
2013
44%
56%
n=400
2012
52%
48%
n=419
Table 66: Q17 Which Hauraki District library branch do you mainly visit? - Library Users

2015
n=213
2014
n=173
2013
n=197
2012
n=210

Paeroa
(1)

Waihi
(2)

Ngatea
(3)

Other
(4)

Don’t
know
(5)

41%

32%

24%

3%

-

34%

40%

25%

1%

1%

34%

44%

20%

2%

1%

42%

42%

14%

2%

-

Table 67: Q18 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The library services in the District? - Library users

2015
n=213
2014
n=173
2013
n=197
2012
n=210

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

1%

8%

9%

34%

47%

1%

91%

5.2

-

1%

3%

12%

36%

47%

2%

96%

5.3

-

-

4%

11%

35%

49%

-

96%

5.3

1%

-

6%

13%

30%

50%

1%

93%

5.2
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Table 68: Q18 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The library services in the District? - By library

Paeroa
Library
n=68
Waihi
Library
n=91
Ngatea
Library
n=48

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

-

2%

13%

13%

31%

39%

1%

-

-

8%

2%

33%

56%

1%

92%

5.4

-

-

2%

11%

37%

50%

-

98%

5.4

Table 69: Q18a Reasons for dissatisfaction
It needs upgrading

27%

The book collection is not great

23%

Other

70%

Base: 14 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Swimming Pools
Table 70: Q19 In the past 12 months have you visited a Hauraki District Council public swimming pool? This
includes visiting a swimming pool to swim or to watch others swim.
Yes
No
2015
26%
74%
n=400
2014
22%
78%
n=400
2013
23%
77%
n=400
2012
23%
77%
n=419
Table 71: Q20 Which public swimming pool do you mainly visit? - Swimming Pool Users
Paeroa (1)
Waihi (2)
Ngatea (3)
Don’t know (5)
2015
39%
16%
43%
2%
n=92
2014
43%
17%
40%
n=83
2013
27%
16%
57%
n=91
2012
34%
24%
41%
1%
n=87
able 72: Q21 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The operation of Council swimming pools in the District? - Swimming Pool Users

2015
n=92
2014
n=83
2013
n=91
2012
n=87

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

2%

1%

3%

4%

47%

43%

1%

94%

5.2

-

2%

10%

7%

41%

38%

1%

87%

5.0

-

2%

11%

5%

45%

37%

-

87%

5.0

1%

1%

4%

13%

45%

36%

-

94%

5.1

able 73: Q21 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The operation of Council swimming pools in the District? - By Swimming Pool

Paeroa
Pool users
n=27
Waihi
Pool users
n=20
Ngatea
Pools
users
n=43

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

2%

-

5%

5%

58%

30%

-

92%

5.1

4%

6%

3%

6%

35%

45%

-

87%

5.0

-

-

-

2%

40%

56%

2%

100%

5.6

Table 74: Q21a Reasons for dissatisfaction
It needs updating
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Need an indoor pool
Other
Base: 7 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Sports Fields, Parks and Reserves
Table 75: Q22 In the past 12 months have you visited a sports field, park or reserve in the Hauraki District?
Yes
No
2015
71%
29%
n=400
2014
75%
25%
n=400
2013
78%
22%
n=400
2012
76%
24%
n=419
Table 76: Q23 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks
and Reserves? - Total sample

2015
n=400
2014
n=400
2013
n=400
2012
n=304
(Park
users
only)

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

1%

3%

21%

44%

25%

6%

95%

4.9

-

2%

7%

15%

40%

27%

9%

90%

4.9

-

1%

3%

14%

34%

25%

22%

94%

5.0

1%

3%

6%

18%

40%

32%

-

91%

4.9

Table 77: Q23 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks
and Reserves? – By ward

Plains
n=131
Waihi
n=150
Paeroa
n=119

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

1%

12%

44%

36%

7%

99%

5.2

1%

2%

5%

22%

44%

19%

8%

92%

4.8

-

1%

4%

27%

45%

19%

5%

95%

4.8

Table 78: Q23 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks
and Reserves? – By area

Urban
n=235
Rural
n=165

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

1%

2%

21%

45%

24%

6%

97%

4.9

-

-

5%

20%

43%

25%

6%

94%

4.9
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Table 79: Q23 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks
and Reserves? – By age

18 to 29
n=23
30 to 39
n=39
40 to 49
n=70
50 to 59
n=77
60 or
older
n=191

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

3%

20%

45%

32%

-

97%

5.1

-

-

5%

21%

38%

28%

9%

95%

5.0

-

1%

5%

19%

50%

24%

-

94%

4.9

1%

1%

3%

33%

41%

15%

6%

94%

4.6

-

-

3%

15%

45%

26%

11%

97%

5.0

Table 80: Q23 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks
and Reserves? – By gender

Male
n=144
Female
n=256

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

1%

1%

2%

23%

49%

19%

5%

97%

4.9

-

-

5%

18%

40%

29%

7%

94%

5.0

Table 81: Q23 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The services and facilities provided at the District’s Parks
and Reserves? – By ethnicity

Maori
n=25
NonMaori
n=375

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl.
DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

-

-

5%

28%

44%

23%

-

95%

4.9

-

1%

3%

20%

44%

25%

7%

95%

4.9

Table 82: Q23a Reasons for dissatisfaction
They are not well maintained (unclean/need to be
mown)
The facilities need upgrading
They are too rough
Other
Don’t know
Base: 21 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Table 83: Q24 In the event of a civil defence emergency, do you currently have an emergency preparedness kit
ready to last your household for three days? - Total sample
Yes
No
Don’t know
(1)
(2)
(3)
2015
44%
55%
1%
n=400
2014
41%
58%
2%
n=400
2013
44%
56%
1%
n=400
2012
44%
55%
1%
n=419

Table 84: Q24 In the event of a civil defence emergency, do you currently have an emergency preparedness kit
ready to last your household for three days? – By ward
Yes
No
Don’t know
(1)
(2)
(3)
Plains
51%
49%
n=131
Waihi
45%
52%
2%
n=150
Paeroa
38%
62%
n=119
Table 85: Q24 In the event of a civil defence emergency, do you currently have an emergency preparedness kit
ready to last your household for three days? – By area
Yes
No
Don’t know
(1)
(2)
(3)
Urban
42%
58%
n=235
Rural
48%
51%
1%
n=165
Table 86: Q24 In the event of a civil defence emergency, do you currently have an emergency preparedness kit
ready to last your household for three days? – By age
Yes
No
Don’t know
(1)
(2)
(3)
18 to 29
10%
90%
n=23
30 to 39
59%
41%
n=39
40 to 49
55%
45%
n=70
50 to 59
44%
54%
1%
n=77
60 or older
48%
51%
1%
n=191
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Table 87: Q24 In the event of a civil defence emergency, do you currently have an emergency preparedness kit
ready to last your household for three days? – By gender
Yes
No
Don’t know
(1)
(2)
(3)
Male
49%
49%
1%
n=144
Female
40%
60%
n=256
Table 88: Q24 In the event of a civil defence emergency, do you currently have an emergency preparedness kit
ready to last your household for three days? – By ethnicity
Yes
No
Don’t know
(1)
(2)
(3)
Maori
28%
72%
n=375
Non-Maori
46%
53%
1%
n=25
Table 89: Q25 What is in your emergency / civil defence kit?
Food
Water

84%

Torch

67%

First aid kit / medicine

62%

BBQ / Cooking apparatus

44%

Batteries

41%

Radio

41%

Matches / lighter

39%

Blankets / sleeping bag

31%

Clothes

21%

Pet food / supplies

15%

Tent / shelter

14%

Face and dust masks

4%

Other

19%

Base: 194 respondents, multiple responses allowed
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Building Services
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Building Services
Key Findings:


Four in five respondents (81%) sought building consent for only one project during the last year.



Almost nine in ten respondents (88%) sought their most recent building consent for a project on their
own property.



Nearly seven in ten respondents (68%) are applying for themselves and one in five (18%) are applying
as a professional on behalf of someone else.



Satisfaction amongst respondents regarding the service they received from the Hauraki District
Council’s Building Consent Department during the building consenting process dropped in 2015 (72%
satisfied) compared with the 2014 study (79% satisfied) but remains above levels recorded in 2012
(61% satisfied).
o

Applicants for properties in the Waihi Ward (81%) are more likely than those in the Paeroa
Ward (73%) and Plains Ward (61%) to be satisfied with the service they received from the Hauraki
District Council’s Building Consent Department during the building consenting process.

o

Respondents who applied for a project on their own property are more likely to be satisfied
with the service they received from the Hauraki District Council’s Building Consent Department
during the building consenting process (73%) than respondents who applied for a project on
someone else’s property (64%).



Of the 25 respondents who are dissatisfied, the main reasons for dissatisfaction are Delay in receiving
consent (48%) and The process took too long (44%).



Of the 63 respondents who are satisfied, the main reasons for satisfaction are The process was prompt
and smooth (59%) and The staff were friendly and helpful (51%).
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Table 90: Q2 Approximately how many different projects have you sought building consent for during the last year?
One
Two to Five
More than Five
(1)
(2)
(3)
2015
81%
17%
2%
n=90
2014
72%
21%
6%
n=98
2013
69%
21%
10%
n=80
2012
81%
19%
n=80
Table 91: Q2a Thinking now about your most recent application. Was it for a ...
Project
Information
Building Consent
Memorandum
(1)
(2)
2015
100%
n=90
2014
100%
n=98
2013
100%
n=80
2012
99%
1%
n=80
Table 92: Q2b Thinking now about your most recent application. Was it for a project...
On someone
On your property
else’s property
(1)
(2)
2015
88%
12%
n=90
2014
80%
20%
n=98
2013
73%
28%
n=80
2012
95%
5%
n=80

Table 93: Q2c Were you applying...
As a professional,
such as a builder,
building contractor,
surveyor, architect
or engineer, on
Page 57 of 70

On behalf of
someone else, but
not as a
professional
(2)

For yourself
(3)

I did not make the
application / a
professional or
someone else
applied on my

Other
(5)
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behalf of someone
else
(1)

2015
n=90
2014
n=98
2013
n=80
2012
n=80

behalf
(4)

18%

6%

68%

6%

22%

5%

72%

-

23%

6%

68%

4%

10%

-

85%

5%

Table 94: Q3 In your most recent application, what township or settlement was the property in or closest to?
2015
n=90
Plains
Kaiaua

11%

Kaihere

2%

Kerepehi

4%

Ngatea

20%

Patetonga

1%

Turua

4%

Waihi
Waihi

21%

Waikino

4%

Waitakaruru

3%

Whiritoa

6%

Paeroa
Paeroa
Other
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Table 95: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District Council’s
Building Consents Department during the building consenting process? – Total sample

2015
n=90
2014
n=98
2013
n=80
2012
n=80

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max 6

4%

9%

14%

9%

36%

26%

2%

72%

4.4

8%

2%

11%

17%

35%

26%

1%

79%

4.7

3%

9%

11%

18%

29%

31%

-

78%

4.6

11%

13%

14%

11%

30%

18%

3%

61%

3.9

Table 96: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District Council’s
Building Consents Department during the building consenting process? – By gender

Male
n=70
Female
n=20

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

6%

11%

14%

9%

34%

24%

1%

68%

4.3

-

-

15%

10%

40%

30%

5%

84%

4.9

Table 97: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District Council’s
Building Consents Department during the building consenting process? – By ward

Plains
n=39
Waihi
n=31
Paeroa
n=16

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

5%

8%

26%

10%

18%

31%

3%

61%

4.2

3%

13%

3%

13%

52%

16%

-

81%

4.5

6%

6%

13%

-

38%

31%

6%

73%

4.6

Table 98: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District Council’s
Building Consents Department during the building consenting process? – By area

Urban
n=38
Rural
n=52

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

3%

11%

13%

11%

32%

29%

3%

73%

4.5

6%

8%

15%

8%

38%

23%

2%

71%

4.4

Table 99: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District Council’s
Building Consents Department during the building consenting process? – By application
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Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

4%

9%

14%

9%

34%

28%

3%

73%

4.5

9%

9%

18%

9%

45%

9%

%

64%

4.0

Table 100: Q6 Reasons for satisfaction (4-6)
The process was prompt and smooth

59%

The staff were friendly and helpful

51%

The staff were efficient

41%

The staff were professional

32%

The speed in processing your application

21%

The quality of the overall process

16%

The accuracy of information given to you by Council staff

10%

The information they provided about the application process

6%

The staff were positive

3%

The ease of ‘getting to the right person’

2%

The ease of using the application forms

2%

The effectiveness of the consent conditions

2%

Other

16%

Base: 63 residents, multiple responses allowed

Table 101: Q6 Reasons for dissatisfaction (1-3)
Delay in receiving consent

48%

The process took too long

44%

Red tape / bureaucratic issues

36%

There could be a clearer explanation of the building regulations and district plan

28%
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requirements
Excessive charges

24%

They could liaise more with me

20%

Given the run-around by the department / Council

20%

No one offered clear or practical advice

16%

Asked to provide something they already had

12%

Lack of communication

12%

They could follow up more promptly

8%

I needed someone who understood my issues

4%

Should let me know about any delays

4%

Because it was rejected

4%

Other

36%
Base: 25 residents, multiple responses allowed
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Resource Management
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Resource Management
Key Findings:


Respondents who sought resource consent for only one project during the last year (43%) are only just
above those who sought more than five (41%).



More respondents sought their most recent resource consent for a project on someone else’s property
(59%) compared to their own property (41%).



Four in ten (39%) respondents were applying for themselves with just over half (52%) applying as a
professional on behalf of someone else.



Three quarters (76%) of respondents’ applications were processed as a non-notified application.



Satisfaction amongst respondents has remained consistent in 2015 (76%) compared to 2014 in regard
to the service they received from the Hauraki District Council’s Resource Consent Department during
the resource consent process.
o

All applicants (100%) for properties in the Paeroa Ward were satisfied with the service they
received from the Hauraki District Council’s Resource Consent Department during the resource
consent process. This compared to 80% for the Plains Ward and 64% for Waihi Ward.

o

Rural property applicants (79%) were more likely than Urban property applicants (74%) to be
satisfied with the service they received from the Hauraki District Council’s Resource Consent
Department during the resource consenting process.



Of the 13 respondents who were dissatisfied, the main reasons for dissatisfaction were Red tape /
bureaucratic issues (54%) and Lack of communication (46%).



Of the 42 respondents who were satisfied, the main reasons for satisfaction was that The staff were
friendly and helpful (48%) and The process was prompt and smooth (36%).

Table 102: Q2 Approximately how many different projects have you sought resource consent for during the last
year?
One
(1)
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Two to Five
(2)

More than Five
(3)

Not sure
(4)
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2015
n=56
2014
n=39
2013
n=31
2012
n=57

43%

14%

41%

2%

64%

21%

5%

10%

58%

23%

19%

-

60%

25%

14%

2%

Table 103: Q2a Thinking now about your most recent application. Was it for a project...
On your property
(1)

On someone else’s
property
(2)

41%

59%

77%

23%

55%

45%

56%

44%

2015
n=56
2014
n=39
2013
n=31
2012
n=57
Table 104: Q2b Were you applying...

2015
n=56
2014
n=39
2013
n=31
2012
n=57

As a
professional,
such as a
builder, building
contractor,
surveyor,
architect or
engineer, on
behalf of
someone else
(1)

For yourself
(4)

I did not make
the application /
a professional or
someone else
applied on my
behalf
(5)

Other
(6)

5%

39%

-

4%

-

5%

80%

-

-

36%

3%

16%

45%

-

-

40%

-

-

56%

2%

2%

As a developer
or property
manager
(2)

On behalf of
someone else,
but not as a
professional
(3)

52%

-

15%

Table 105: Q2c And was this application processed as a...

2015
n=56
2014
n=39
2013
Page 64 of 70

Notified
application (1)

Non-notified
application (2)

Limited notified
application (3)

Other
(5)

Don’t know
(4)

4%

76%

2%

-

18%

31%

33%

5%

-

31%

23%

58%

-

-

19%
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n=31
2012
n=57

12%

60%

2%

9%

18%

Table 106: Q3 In your most recent application, what township or settlement was the property in or closest to?
2015
n=90
Plains
Kaiaua

9%

Kerepehi

4%

Ngatea

7%

Patetonga

2%

Turua

5%

Waihi
Waihi

37%

Waikino

2%

Waitakaruru

4%

Whiritoa

9%

Paeroa
Paeroa

14%

Other

7%

Table 107: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District
Council’s Resource Consents Department during the resource consenting process? – Total sample

2015
n=56
2014
n=39
2013
n=31
2012
n=57

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max 6

9%

9%

5%

21%

36%

18%

2%

76%

4.2

5%

3%

15%

15%

36%

23%

3%

76%

4.5

10%

6%

13%

10%

45%

16%

-

71%

4.2

5%

9%

23%

12%

33%

18%

-

63%

4.1

Table 108: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District
Council’s Resource Consents Department during the resource consenting process? – By gender

Male
n=43
Female
n=13

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

12%

9%

5%

21%

37%

14%

2%

74%

4.1

-

8%

8%

23%

31%

31%

-

85%

4.7

Table 109: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District
Council’s Resource Consents Department during the resource consenting process? – By ward
Very
Dissatisfied
(1)
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Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6
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7%

13%

-

20%

33%

27%

-

80%

4.4

14%

10%

10%

17%

24%

21%

3%

64%

3.9

-

-

-

25%

75%

-

-

100%

4.8

Table 110: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District
Council’s Resource Consents Department during the resource consenting process? – By area

Urban
n=27
Rural
n=29

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

11%

7%

7%

19%

37%

19%

-

74%

4.2

7%

10%

3%

24%

34%

17%

3%

79%

4.3

Table 111: Q5 How satisfied, or dissatisfied, are you with The service you received from the Hauraki District
Council’s Resource Consents Department during the resource consenting process? – By application

On your
property
n=23
On
someone
else’s
property
n=33

Very
Dissatisfied
(1)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Somewhat
Dissatisfied
(3)

Somewhat
Satisfied
(4)

Satisfied
(5)

Very
Satisfied
(6)

DK
/NA

% Satisfied,
excl. DK/NA
(4-6)

Mean
Score Max
6

13%

13%

4%

26%

26%

17%

-

70%

3.9

6%

6%

6%

18%

42%

18%

3%

81%

4.4

Table 112: Q6 Reasons for satisfaction (4-6)
The staff were friendly and helpful

48%

The process was prompt and smooth

36%

The staff were efficient

24%

The effectiveness of the consent conditions

17%

The speed in processing your application

17%

The staff were professional

17%

I liked the people

10%

The accuracy of information given to you by Council staff

7%

The information they provided about the application process

7%

The quality of the overall process

7%

The ease of ‘getting to the right person’

5%

The ease of using the application forms

2%

Other

12%
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Base: 42 residents, multiple responses allowed
Table 113: Q6 Reasons for dissatisfaction (1-3)
Red tape / bureaucratic issues

54%

Lack of communication

46%

I needed someone who understood my issues

38%

The process took too long

38%

They could follow up more promptly

31%

They could liaise more with me

31%

Should let me know about any delays

23%

Charged extra without notification

15%

No one offered clear or practical advice

15%

Excessive charges

15%

Asked to provide something they already had

15%

The information provided was inaccurate

8%

Delay in receiving consent

8%

Other

31%
Base: 13 respondents, multiple responses allowed
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Demographics
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Table 114: Gender
Weighted
% of respondents

Actual
% of respondents

n=

Male

48%

36%

144

Female

52%

64%

256

Total

100%

100%

n=

400

400

400

Weighted
% of respondents

Actual
% of respondents

n=

18 to 29

14%

6%

23

30 to 39

11%

10%

39

40 to 49

18%

18%

70

50 to 59

19%

19%

77

60 or older

38%

48%

191

Total

100%

100%

400

400

400

Weighted
% of respondents

Actual
% of respondents

n=

Plains

34%

33%

131

Waihi

26%

38%

150

Paeroa

40%

30%

119

Total

100%

101%

400

400

Table 115: Age

n=

Table 116: Ward

n=
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Table 117: Area
Weighted
% of respondents

Actual
% of respondents

n=

Urban

57%

59%

235

Rural

43%

41%

165

Total

100%

100%

400

400

400

Weighted
% of respondents

Actual
% of respondents

n=

Maori

9%

6%

25

Pacific Islander

1%

1%

3

Asian

1%

1%

2

European / NZ
Pakeha

80%

83%

331

Kiwi / New
Zealander

8%

9%

34

Other

1%

1%

5

Total

100%

101%

400

400

n=

Table 118: Ethnicity

n=
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Policy Analyst

Date:

Tuesday, 15 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:
Appendix B:

Meeting date:

30/09/2015

Subject:

Recommendation to revoke the
Councils Consultation Policy 2012

1407596
827720
Local Government Act 2002 s76AA
Hauraki

District

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received, and
THAT Council revokes its current Hauraki District Council Consultation Policy 2012; and
THAT Council informs the community of this revocation by way of an article in the Hauraki
Herald.

Purpose
In line with the ‘Regional Policy and Bylaw Consolidation Work Stream’ staff have been reviewing
Councils current polices and bylaws. One part of this process has required Council to identify its
policies and determine if there are any that could be revoked. Whilst Council is in a unique position
regionally in that it does not have a particularly high number of Community Policies, the
Consultation Policy has been identified as a possible candidate for revocation.
The matter or suggested decision does not involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable.

Background
Councils Consultation Policy (See Appendix A) was adopted in 2012 prior to Local Government Act
2002 Amendment Act 2014. The purpose of the policy was to “ensure a consistent approach to
consultation across the Hauraki District Council and compliance with the consultation requirements
of the Local Government Act, 2002 and other relevant Acts”. The policy provided a framework for
consultation to assist in guiding Councils decision-making.
Since the adoption of this policy however the LGA Amendment Act 2014 required Councils to
adopt a Significance and Engagement Policy. Section 76AA (see Appendix B) of the Act states that
the purpose of the Policy is to:
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(a) to enable the local authority and its communities to identify the degree of significance
attached to particular issues, proposals, assets, decisions, and activities; and
(b) to provide clarity about how and when communities can expect to be engaged in
decisions about different issues, assets, or other matters; and
(c) to inform the local authority from the beginning of a decision-making process about –
(i) the extent of any public engagement that is expected before a particular decision
is made; and
(ii) the form or type of engagement required.
Council adopted its Significance and Engagement Policy in 2014 using a Local Authority Shared
Services (LASS) template as a collaborative project across the region to ensure a standardised
application of the legislation. The engagement tool contained in this policy has since been applied
to Councils decision-making processes and forms a standard section in Council reports. It provides
a consistent assessment for both significant decisions, and the consultation and engagement
needs of council decision-making.

Issues and options
Councils previous Significance Policy (revoked in 2014) did not contain the comprehensive
engagement tools that the more recent Significance and Engagement Policy 2014 now has.
Therefore it was necessary to maintain and implement a separate Consultation Policy in order to
allow residents to understand the communication techniques and requirements that Council had.
Since the adoption of the current Significance and Engagement Policy staff are now of the opinion
that the engagement provisions of the policy are more fit for purpose than the provisions contained
within the Consultation Policy 2012. The Significance and Engagement Policy includes a useful
tool for the establishment of best practise when it comes to the level of engagement (consultation)
required and staff consider that this is in fact enhances Councils position on consultation for the
community.
Whilst there is no prescriptive legislation for the contents of a Consultation Policy section 40 1(h) of
the Local Government Act 2002 does require Council to have some form of Consultation Policy
included into its Local Governance Statement. Staff believe that these requirements are
adequately address within the Significance and Engagement Policy and that the now out of date
Consultation Policy is in fact surplus to requirements.

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision does not trigger the Significance and Engagement Policy Assessment Tool and
therefore is not considered significant under the Significance and Engagement Policy 2014.
The level of engagement considered appropriate for this matter, is to inform (i.e. one-way
communication disseminating information) the community of Councils decision by way of an article
on the HDC news page in the Hauraki Herald.

Budget Implications
There is no effect on budget contained within this decision.
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Recommendation
Council staff believe that the Consultation Policy 2012 is a duplicate of requirements based on the
adoption of the Significance and Engagement Policy in 2014. Staff consider that the legislation to
require the Significance and Engagement Policy to include Councils methods of engagement has
superseded any need for a separate Consultation Policy and therefore recommend revoking it.

Katy Hurd
Policy Analyst
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Appendix A

Hauraki District Council
Consultation Policy 2012
PURPOSE:
The purpose of this policy is to ensure a consistent approach to consultation across the
Hauraki District Council and compliance with the consultation requirements of the Local
Government Act, 2002 and other relevant Acts.
This policy provides a framework for consultation which will assist in guiding Council
decision-making. While this policy outlines best practice and key principles to be considered
when consulting, the Council will at times, wish to engage with the community in ways that
do not require the formal process outlined in this policy.
Note: This policy does not cover the specific consultation and submission
processes that are required under the Resource Management Act, 1991.

POLICY:
2.1

The Council will encourage people who may be affected by, or have an interest in, a
matter to present their views to the Council.

2.2

The Council will provide people who may be affected by, or have an interest in, a
matter with relevant information about that matter including the purpose of the
consultation and the scope of the decisions to be taken following consideration of
the views presented to the decision-maker.

2.3

The Council will always consider submissions and the consultation process as a
whole with an open mind.
The Council will also consider other factors including expert advice, the cost and
benefits of each available option, potential effects on social, economic,
environmental and cultural wellbeing and the extent to which the Community
Outcomes can be achieved in an integrated and efficient manner.

2.4

When making a decision, the Council must give consideration to the views and
preferences of people who have presented their views on the matter.

2.5

When the Council makes a decision on a matter it will inform the people involved in
the consultation process and provide them with the reasoning that lead to the
decision being made.

2.6

The Council will make relevant information available to Maori and provide
opportunity for Maori to contribute to decision-making. The Council will also
consider, and where appropriate implement, ways to foster the development of
Maori capacity to contribute to its decision-making processes.

2.7

The Council will work with other organisations during consultation as necessary. It
will share information in a free and open manner unless there is a valid reason for
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the Council to withhold information, for example due to commercial sensitivity or
privacy reasons.
2.8

The Council will undertake the Special Consultative Procedure when making
decisions regarding a matter, as outlined in section 83 of the Local Government Act,
2002, when required.
If the Special Consultative Procedure is not necessary then the Council will decide
the most appropriate form/s of consultation to undertake to ensure it understands
the views and preferences of potentially affected or interested people.

2.9

When project consultants are involved in the consultation process of a matter it
should be clear to all participants that the consultation is being conducted on behalf
of the Council.
When consultants do undertake consultation on behalf of the Council then the
Councils best practice should be followed.

2.10

The Council will comply with consultation requirements outlined in legislation, other
than the Local Government Act, 2002, when that legislation requires a different
consultation or it is making a decision on a matter that is relevant to that legislation.
For example when the Council adopts and/or reviews its Dog Control Policy it must
comply with the consultation process set out by the Dog Control Act, 1996.

DEFINITIONS:
Consultation
Consultation is the genuine exchange of information, points of view and options for decisions
between affected and interested people and decision-makers before a decision has been
made. It does not mean that the decision will be delegated to those involved in the
consultation process, but rather that the decision, when made, is likely to be improved by the
community’s involvement.
For the purpose of this Policy Hauraki District Council has adopted the following definition of
consultation; “Consultation is the dialogue that precedes decision-making”.
Decision-maker
For the purposes of this Policy the Council is the decision-maker and the word Council refers
to any decision-maker within Council including the Council, a committee, a sub-committee or
an officer with delegated authority.
Special Consultative Procedure
This is a procedure that the Council is required to undertake in certain decision-making
circumstances (as defined by the Local Government Act, 2002 section 83).
Statement of Proposal
This is a document produced by the Council that provides the basis for consultation with the
community under the Special Consultative Procedure and sets out the Council’s proposal
with respect to the matter that is being consulted on.
A Statement of Proposal should contain a summary of the major matters of the decision that
is being consulted on and should be distributed as well as widely across the community as
practicable.

RELEVANT LEGISLATION:
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Local Government Act, 2002.
Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act, 1987.

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS:
5.1

In accordance with section 40(1)(h) of the Local Government Act, 2002, the Hauraki
District Council must make its Consultation Policy publicly available after the threeyearly general elections.

5.2

In accordance with section 82(1)(a-f) of the Local Government Act, 2002 the Council
must follow the principles identified when undertaking any decision or other matter.
These principles include:
• encouraging people to present their views according to their preferences and
needs,
• ensuring that people have reasonable access to relevant information about a
matter and that the purpose of the consultation and scope of the decisions to
be taken are clear,
• considering people’s views and comments with an open mind,
• deciding if and how the proposal should be changed or developed further,
• respond to people involved in the process and reporting the final decision
and the reasons for it.

5.3

In accordance with sections 81 and 82(2) of the Local Government Act, 2002 the
Council must establish and maintain processes to provide opportunities for Maori to
contribute to decision-making processes. The Council must also ensure that Maori
are provided with all the relevant information on the matter being consulted on and
the Council must develop Maori capacity to contribute to decision-making
processes.

5.4

Section 83 of the Local Government Act, 2002 outlines what the Council must do
when a decision must be made using the Special Consultative Procedure. As part of
the Special Consultative Procedure the Council must develop a Statement of
Proposal for the matter that is being consulted on and make the Statement of
Proposal available for public submission for no less than 1 month.

INCONSISTENT DECISIONS
6.1

If a decision made by Council is significantly inconsistent with a policy or plan
already adopted by the Council, it will explain the inconsistency, the reasons for it
and how the policy or plan might be modified to accommodate the decision in
accordance with section 80 (1)(a)-(c) of the Local Government Act, 2002.

6.2

The Council will consider the views and preferences of people likely to be affected
by or have an interest in a decision.
Where the bulk of public submissions are contrary to the Council’s decision, the
Council will pay special attention to explaining to interested and affected parties the
reasons for its decision.

COUNCIL DISCRETION:
7.1
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The Council has discretion over the following matters regarding the consultation
process;
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7.1.1

The Council has discretion over whether or not to undertake consultation if
the issue is not of a nature or significance that requires consultation in
accordance with section 82 (4)(c) of the Local Government Act, 2002.

7.1.2

The Council has some discretion based on the likely costs and benefits of
the consultation process under section 82 (4)(e) of the Local Government
Act, 2002.
For example if the cost of consultation outweighs the likely benefits (such as
social, economic, environmental and cultural benefits) the Council may make
a decision without undertaking public consultation.

7.1.3

If the Council is called upon to make a significant decision quickly (perhaps
in an emergency situation) and the likely cost of delay outweighs the benefits
of consultation, it may make a decision without undertaking the usual public
consultation in accordance with section 82 (4)(e) of the Local Government
Act, 2002.

7.1.4

If the views and preferences of the affected or interested parties are already
known to a reasonable degree, a new consultation process is not required
under section 82 (4)(b) of the Local Government Act, 2002.

7.1.5

In accordance with Part 1 of the Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act, 1987 the Council may withhold certain information from the
public such as, if the information is considered to be commercially sensitive.

RELATED HDC POLICIES/STRATEGIES OR GUIDELINES:
Hauraki District Council Significance Policy 2009.
Hauraki District Council Decision-making matrix

AUDIENCE:
The Consultation Policy is designed to ensure that the Council, staff, contractors working on behalf
of Council and the public have the necessary consultation framework in place that defines the best
practice approaches and procedures that are to be used in assessing the extent to which
consultation should be undertaken.

DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL:
Title:
Hauraki District Council Consultation Policy
Sponsor:
Approved By:
Policy Analyst
Council
Adopted:
Review Date: Version:
File Ref:
2004
2012
1
258117
2012
2017
2
827720
Property of Hauraki District Council
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76AA Significance and engagement policy
(1) Every local authority must adopt a policy setting out—
(a) that local authority's general approach to determining the significance of proposals
and decisions in relation to issues, assets, and other matters; and
(b) any criteria, or procedures that are to be used by the local authority in assessing
the extent to which issues, proposals, assets, decisions, or activities are significant or
may have significant consequences; and
(c) how the local authority will respond to community preferences about engagement
on decisions relating to specific issues, assets, or other matters, including the form of
consultation that may be desirable; and
(d) how the local authority will engage with communities on other matters.
(2) The purpose of the policy is—
(a) to enable the local authority and its communities to identify the degree of
significance attached to particular issues, proposals, assets, decisions, and activities;
and
(b) to provide clarity about how and when communities can expect to be engaged in
decisions about different issues, assets, or other matters; and
(c) to inform the local authority from the beginning of a decision-making process
about—
(i) the extent of any public engagement that is expected before a particular
decision is made; and
(ii) the form or type of engagement required.
(3) The policy adopted under subsection (1) must list the assets considered by the local
authority to be strategic assets.
(4) A policy adopted under subsection (1) may be amended from time to time.
(5) When adopting or amending a policy under this section, the local authority must consult in
accordance with section 82 unless it considers on reasonable grounds that it has sufficient
information about community interests and preferences to enable the purpose of the policy to
be achieved.
(6) To avoid doubt, section 80 applies when a local authority deviates from this policy.
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Chief Executive

Date:

14 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:

Meeting date:

30 September 2015

Subject:

Chief Executives Monthly Report – September 2015

1411996
1409284

Recommendation:

THAT the report be received.

1.0

Staff

The only movement on the situations vacant front is the recruitment for pool lifeguards. Ten
of the lifeguards from last year have been recruited again, and there has been huge interest
in filling the remaining spaces with a high calibre and high number of applicants. It is
anticipated the recruitment process will be completed by mid-October.
2.0

Restoration of the Name Pukorokoro (1409254)

The Mayor has received a letter from the Office of Hon Christopher Finlayson advising the
name change from Miranda to Pukorokoro/Miranda has been supported. The letter is
attached for your information as Appendix A.
3.0

Waikato Mayoral Forum Councillor Briefing

The Waikato Mayoral Forum will be holding a briefing for Councillors in the Waikato region
on the afternoon of the 16 November 2015. Members should note this date in their
calendars. Further details on the meeting including venue will be provided closer to the time.

L D Cavers
Chief Executive

1411996

1
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Information Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Corporate Services Manager

Date:

Monday, 21 September 2015

File reference:

Document:

Meeting date:

Wednesday, 30 September 2015

Subject:

Council Finance Report for the period to 31 August 2015

1414370

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received.

Summary
This report is presenting the results of Council’s direct activities for the two months to 31 August
2015.
Summary balance sheet information pertaining to Council’s debtor and borrowing positions is also
included.

Background
One of Council’s priorities has been for appropriate and timely finance information to be provided
to Council, relevant sub-committees and key stakeholders within the organisation.
To this end a process has commenced which will see the development of targeted reports to the
relevant audiences and within a fixed monthly timetable.
Progress will be incremental and reporting will follow familiar patterns initially.
However, as an example, the production of this report is earlier in the financial year than previously
experienced and Finance is using different methods to collate this information which should lead to
efficiencies in the short to medium term.
The ultimate objective is for Council (and relevant committees) to receive high level reports which
aid decision making and for detailed information to be presented along with the operational activity
reports currently submitted by managers without financial information.
Concurrent with this work is the development of robust capital reporting. It is anticipated that it will
take three to six months for all of these developments to become a reality.
Page 1 of 4
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Activities
Below is a summary table of Council’s financial position for direct activity areas:
Summary for the 2 months ending 31/08/2015
YTD
($ 000's)

BTD
($ 000's)

% of YTD
Budget

YTD Variance
($ 000's)

Expenditure
Regulatory

489

496

98.6%

7

Community Services

764

815

93.7%

51

Community Development

363

364

99.7%

1

Leadership

386

405

95.3%

19

Networks
Total Cost of Service

2984

3002

99.4%

18

$4986

$5082

98.1%

96

(436)

(360)

121.2%

76

(85)

(90)

93.8%

(6)

Less Revenue
Regulatory
Community Services
Community Development

(2)

0

0.0%

2

Leadership

(0)

0

0.0%

0

Networks

(362)

(369)

98.0%

(7)

Total Revenue

($885)

($819)

108.0%

65

NET COST OF SERVICE

$4101

$4263

96.2%

$161

As can be seen from the above, the net cost of activities is $161,000 lower than budget for the two
months ending 31 August 2015.
This is due to only 98.1% of expected year to date budget being spent, and income being 108% of
the year to date target.
The main areas to note are:
1. The Regulatory area continues to over achieve against income targets as per last year due
to the activity in both LIMS and Consenting. However, it is apparent that activity levels are
beginning to decrease compared to last year and so it is unknown how sustainable this
increase will be over the whole financial year.
2. Due to the later than anticipated go live and commissioning of the upgraded water
treatment plants in Paeroa and Waihi there is a significant under spend to this period in the
Water Treatment activity.
3. Roading pavement maintenance activity was ahead of schedule to the end of August which
has resulted in a $96k over spend against budget – this is expected to come back in line in
September as much of the work undertaken in August was originally scheduled for
September 2015.
4. It should also be noted that the business unit cross charging process has recently recommenced for the 2015/16 year and therefore there may be some understatement of
expenditure in some areas. This would mainly affect Community Services and Networks
(particularly Water Reticulation). To compensate for this, adjustments have been where
necessary to anticipate the activity levels that should have been charged.

Page 2 of 4
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Activity Areas Expenditure vs Budget $'000s
3500
3000
2500
2000
Actuals

1500

Budget
1000
500
0
Regulatory

Community
Services

Community
Development

Leadership

Networks

Balance Sheet Commentary
Following are some Key Financial Indicators as at 31 August 2015:
Available Funds
Bank
Available Unused Facilities
Total

June

August

$0.5m
$7.0m
$7.5m

$0.3m
$4.5m
$4.8m

$34.0m
$0.0m
$34.0m

$34.0m
$2.5m
$36.5m

Borrowing
Current Debt
LGFA
BNZ
Total
Debt forecast in Long Term Plan at 30 June 2016

$46.5m

Gross debt has increased by $2.5m since 30 June 2015 due to the use of our short term borrowing
facilities to cover cash flow requirements as we are between rates instalment periods.
At this point, we are forecasting that any new LGFA borrowing will not be required before 31
October 2015, which is the end of the first rates instalment period.
An application has been submitted to the Ministry of Health regarding the subsidy funding that may
be available for the recent water treatment plant upgrades at Paeroa and Waihi. An invoice for
$3.5m has been included in the submission. As we are not certain when or how much of this will
be forthcoming, this amount has been excluded from both our cashflow forecasts and budget
reporting at this stage.
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Debtors

Current
Arrears outstanding from prior years
Total Outstanding

Water Rates $'000s
Aug-15
Jun-15
522
362
743
240
1265

602

Rates $'000s
Aug-15
Jun-15
720
828
755
828

1,475

Water rates debtors have increased due to the latest water billing round in July 2015.
Rates debtor balances have decreased as more payments have been received for the final
instalment of 2014/2015.
2015/16 rates have not yet been struck and therefore there is not a current rates balance owing at
this time.

Duncan Peddie
CORPORATE SERVICES MANAGER
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Manager Planning & Environmental Services

Date:

18 September 2015

File reference:

Document 1407100

Meeting date:

30 September 2015

Subject:

Planning and Environmental Services Monthly
Report – August 2015

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received.

INTRODUCTION
This month has seen preparations for rate rebates interviews to commence again and there will be
a change to Council’s After Hours Service provider. The Rugby World Cup Licensing restrictions
are outlined and there is feedback from the Ministry of Health on Council’s input in the Local
Approved Products Policy implementation. There is also an update on the accuracy of location of
Correnso drives and stopes confirmed by an independant assessment.
CUSTOMER SERVICES TEAM
We have started the new financial year with call volumes 4% above the equivalent period for last
year, two months in a row.
In August we were offered 3630 calls, of which 3409 were managed, and 221 abandoned. The
service Level was 81.35% (target >80%) and the abandonment rate was 6% with an average speed
of answer was 13 seconds.
Building continues to be some 24% of our call volume. Planning enquiries make up 10%, water 4%,
rates 7% and animal control 5% with the balance of calls spread across the whole range of Council
activity.
We intend to commence Rate Rebate Application interviews from the 14th September. This is a
period of intense customer interaction for the team, with some 1000 x 15 minutes face to face
interviews to complete. Brochures are being sent to all schools in the area in sufficient quantity to
be sent home with school newsletters, there will be articles in the Herald, Waihi Leader and Kaiaua
Compass and letters will be sent inviting applications to all successful applicants last year. The
maximum rebate this financial year is $610.00 – which provides significant rates relief for low
income property owners.
Our After Hours Service Provider will change from Answers Ltd to Palmerston North City Council
effective from Monday 21st September at 5pm. Council is in the position of having to provide
24 hour services in many areas of its operation due to the number of essential infrastructural,
community and regulatory services provided.
1
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For many years Council has used Answers Contact Centres (formerly Answer Services Ltd) for the
provision of its After Hours Services. After a review of this service delivery it is believed that
Palmerston North City Council will provide an improved service, being a “Local Government service
for Local Government”, and represents a cost saving to Council which also provides better capacity
in the event of a Civil Defence emergency. Palmerston North City Council currently has 26 other
Councils they provide afterhours services for. Please provide feedback to the Customer Service
Manager if you have any issues or concerns regarding the afterhours transition.

DEVELOPMENT

31 August 2015
Consents Issued

2014/15

2015/16

Year to date

Building Consents

79

51

65%

Subdivisions
Land Use
Designations
Objections
Certificates of Compliance
Variations
Outline Plans
Right of Ways

2
16
1
1
2
22

6
17
1
4
1
1
30

300%
106%
-%
100%
-%
400%
50%
100%
136%

LIMs

80

128

166%

The above table indicates development figures for Building and Resource Consents issued for the
start of this financial year with Building Consent numbers down from this time last year but LIM
applications are at a 37% increase.
REGULATORY SERVICES TEAM
PLANNING IMPLEMENTATION
Processing
For the last month all the resource consent applications were processed within the statutory
timeframe of 20 working days.
Seachange Update
On 22 June 2015, Sea Change – Tai Timu Tai Pari – the project to create a Marine Spatial Plan for
the Hauraki Gulf/Tikapa Moana – announced an extension to the timeframe for producing the final
plan. The extension will help to ensure the final Marine Spatial Plan can more fully inform how the
Hauraki Gulf is shared, used and stewarded for future generations.
It was reported that “The work required to create the Marine Spatial Plan for the Hauraki
Gulf/Tikapa Moana is complex and wide-ranging. It has placed significant demands on all those
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participating and as the deadline for delivery approached, it became clear that more time was
required to ensure successful completion of the plan.”
The decision to extend the project timeframe was taken following discussions between
representatives of all project partners and the 14-member Stakeholder Working Group.
Over the last 18 months we’ve had huge successes in bringing a wide range of people together, to
discuss the Gulf’s challenges and to explore options and possible solutions for its future.”
Those 18 months of hard work will now inform the final stage – completing the Hauraki Gulf/Tikapa
Moana Marine Spatial Plan.
Talisman Judicial Review
Protect Karangahake Inc. as plaintiff had filed a claim in January in the High Court against New
Talisman Gold Mines Ltd as first defendant and this Council as second defendant stating the
notification decision for this resource consent application was invalid and unlawful.
After Council had lodged its Statement of Defence we were advised on the 10 June by our legal
counsel that Protect Karangahake Inc has withdrawn their Judicial Review. The High Court
confirmed this the following day.
The Council legal costs to that point came to around $91,000.00 which does not include the
planning consultant or staff time. If the proceedings had of been continued onto a hearing it was
estimated Council would have an incurred at least another $40,000.00 in further legal costs.
BUILDING TEAM
Processing
Council granted 21 Building Consent applications with seven new dwellings in the month of August
and all applications were processed within the statutory timeframe.
Online Consenting
In conjunction with our neighbouring Councils and as part of the Waikato Building Cluster group we
are looking at providing an online consenting for our Building Consents.
Our Goals are:
1. Speed up consent process.
2. Improve level of service to customers.
3. Reduce paper, time spent on checking and double handling.
4. Improve process for multiple departments.
5. Benefit mapping, implement online lodgement of applications.
6. Automate the application, processing, inspection, filling and delivery of building consent
information.
We hope to have our processing forms aligned with the other Councils in our region. We are not
only looking at the Building Consenting lodgement of applications but also the processing and
inspections of building consents will be recorded electronically and this will form part of HDC
e services. Once we have a system in place this will be trialled with a few of our customers to
address any issues that may arise before we proceed any further.
We are hoping to have this service rolled out in stages over the next twelve months.
GENERAL
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Alcohol trading rules during the 2015 Rugby World Cup
Temporary changes to New Zealand’s alcohol licensing are now in effect.
Under the Sale and Supply of Alcohol (Rugby World Cup 2015 Extended Trading Hours)
Amendment Act 2015, eligible licensed premises can open outside of their usual licensing hours to
televise live 2015 Rugby World Cup games.
There are three key points about the temporary law change:
1. The Amendment Act doesn't allow all licensed premises to open for after-hours games. Offlicences cannot extend their opening hours, and neither can any on or club licensed premises
that have had their licence suspended or the conditions of their licence varied in the past 12
months as a result of enforcement action under section 280 of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol
Act 2012.
2. Eligible premises can extend their hours only if the main reason for opening is to allow
customers to watch Rugby World Cup live games (for example, games cannot just be playing
in the background while customers watch live music).
3.

Licensees who can open for games outside their normal operating hours must take certain
steps and meet certain conditions. For example, they must:


Give local Police and their district licensing committee written notice at least 7 days in
advance of each game they intend to televise



In that notice, provide details about how they'll keep down noise levels



When screening games, follow specific rules about noise management, when they can
open, when they must close and when they can sell alcohol, as well as other provisions in
the Amendment Act.

To date we have no notifications of licensed premises in our District intending to extend their
licensing hours for this event.
DLC Hearing
Recently the District Licensing Committee met to deliberate on an objection to the New World Waihi
Off Liquor Licence by the Medical Officer of Health whose objection to the application was
concerned with single alcohol area in the store. At the time of writing this report the Decision had
not been released.
Bay of Plenty/Coromandel Shellfish Toxin update
The Paralytic Shellfish Poisoning (PSP) toxin warning along the Bay of Plenty and Coromandel
Coast has been extended. The warning now extends from Pukehina Beach (Maketu) to the mouth
of the Otahu River at the southern end of Whangamata Beach. The northern area covered by this
warning had only recently been reduced; however ongoing shellfish toxin monitoring has led to this
new extension back to the Otahu River.
The Medical Officer of Health advises against gathering or eating shellfish from the Otahu River,
along the Bay of Plenty coast to Rogers Road, Pukehina. The warning includes Tauranga Harbour,
Maketu and Waihi estuaries, Matakana and Motiti Islands, and all other islands along this coastline.
The health warning applies to all bi-valve shellfish including mussels, pipi, tuatua, cockles, oysters,
scallops as well as catseyes and kina (sea urchin). Shellfish in the affected area should not be
taken or consumed. Paua, crayfish and crabs can still be taken but as always, the gut should be
removed before cooking.
Consumption of shellfish affected by the paralytic shellfish toxin can cause numbness and tingling
around the mouth, face or extremities; difficulty swallowing or breathing; dizziness; double vision;
and in severe cases, paralysis and respiratory failure. These symptoms usually occur within 12
hours of a person consuming affected shellfish. Anyone suffering illness after eating shellfish
should seek medical attention.
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Dog Control
With last day to register your dog for this registration year at the end of July and the penalty fee in
place for late registrations, unregistered dog owners are now facing infringement fines for not
registering their dogs.
Recently in Paeora two dogs were impounded after they were roaming free around the L & P bottle
becoming a nuisance to the public in that area.
STRATEGIC PLANNING
The Waikato Plan
The Deputy Mayor and Council’s Policy Analyst attended the bi-monthly Waikato Plan Joint
Committee meeting held on Monday 14 September. At this meeting the joint committee agreed to
the three priority areas, as summarised below, proceeding in accordance with the proposed project
plans.
1. Aligned Planning
This project focuses on achieving greater RMA regulatory efficiency from a business friendly
perspective. Some initial ideas include; fast tracking of minor consents (10 days), integrated
regional and district section 42A reporting, shared District plan monitoring across the Waikato, the
possibility of integrated consenting, common District Plan standards, a ‘one stop shop’ for large
consents in the Waikato and setting up a cross-council working group to collaborate on planning
alignment initiatives.
2.

Population Change

The three potential areas of focus under this priority area include;
• Examining areas in which Waikato Councils are challenged by service delivery funding in
areas of population decline and key Government service retention/development.
• Establishing a Waikato Plan Advisory Forum to facilitate a discussion on the way in which
the Waikato Plan could work with the Social Sector Trials framework to develop innovative
solutions with a focus on aging populations and rural decline.
• Consider establishing a Waikato/Bay of Plenty Office of central government departments,
based on a similar model to the Auckland Policy Office.
3.

Hamilton as the Waikato Centre for innovation, employment and services with a mutually
beneficial economic relationship with the region’s rural areas.

The three potential areas of focus include:
• Maintaining or directing key services to Hamilton that will benefit the entire region
• Investigate key transport priorities for the region that will contribute to Hamilton’s (and the
region’s) economic success.
• In the longer term determine a set of principles and assumptions for business growth in the
region leading to the development of a regional settlement pattern.

Response from the Ministry of Health to Council’s feedback on Local Approved Products
processes
In July this year the Ministry of Health sought feedback on the proposed process for determining
retail licence applicant compliance with Local Approved Product Policies (LAPPs). The
Psychoactive Substances Regulatory Authority (the Authority) has circulated a general response to
all feedback received which is summarised below.
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The Authority will ask the Council to process LAPP compliance for a retail application – If
the response is ‘no’ then the Council must state whether it is because the proposed
premises is not in the designated area or is too close to a sensitive site, or because it is too
close to another potential retail premise which applied first.
The Authority will rank retail licence applications in the order they were received where
there are multiple applications.
The specific detail of the application process between the Authority and Councils is yet to be
finalised, but the Authority stated it will email a designated contact at the Council during the
application process and at the end of the process let them know whether a retail licence is
granted or not.

This process is in line with staff and Council feedback which stated that ‘staff agree with the
proposal that territorial authorities should not deal directly with applicants, but liaise with the
Ministry of Health about retail applications in the Hauraki District. This process would not be labour
intensive; therefore staff agree that there is no need to recover costs for determining compliance
with Council’s Local Approved Products (Legal Highs) Policy’.
The authority also noted the following in response to various Council feedback:
• Under section 18 of the Psychoactive Substances Act the Authority may when granting a
licence impose any other conditions on the licence it thinks fit.
• Any recommendation by Council to the Authority on applying a relevant condition to a retail
licence would have to be for a specific licence application and relate to the purpose of the
Act which is to protect the health of, and minimise harm to, individuals who use
psychoactive substances.
This is in line with the comments that Council made in its feedback to the Ministry that ‘Council
understands it cannot recommend a blanket condition on all retail licences but finds it encouraging
that the Ministry has indicated that Council will be entitled to make a recommendation to the
Authority about a condition to be applied to a specific retail licence on a case by case basis. The
Hauraki District Council believes it is important that each retail application is considered on a case
by case basis and if appropriate the Ministry should have the ability to apply additional conditions to
a licence such as maximum trading hours’.
The Ministry also noted the following:
• District Health Board public health units will undertake compliance visits to educate retailers
and staff about their responsibilities under the Act and a draft Retail policy for the sale of
approved psychoactive products is available for distribution to retailers.
• No applications for a product approval or licence to manufacture have been received by the
Psychoactive Substances Regulatory Authority to date.
• If Council has any concerns regarding a retail licence that it contacts the Authority.

Delegations Manual
Staff have been working on the review and update of Councils Delegations Manual. The initial
phase required lawyers to update all legislation; having received this update staff will be ensuring
that the delegations are correct and attributed to the correct staff. Council will likely receive a draft
Manual at its October meeting for consideration.

Current relevant National/Regional consultations open for submissions
•

None

NEWMONT WAIHI GOLD
Sale of Waihi Gold Company to OceanaGold
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At the time of preparing this report the approval of the Overseas Investment Office (OIO) for this
sale had not been given and we are unaware of the OIO timetable for approval. Once OIO approval
has been given for the sale there will be a number of legal matters to be finalised between the
Companies before the sale is completed. Once the sale is completed we will receive formal
notification by way of a “Completion Notice”.
When OIO approval to the sale is given, OceanaGold will be presenting to the Councils (HDC and
WRC) its bonds for the Rehabilitation of the mine sites and for the Capitalisation sum for the
funding of the Martha Trust. This process was reported on in detail to Council at its meeting of 29
July, 2015.
When the Councils receive these bonds from OceanaGold they will also still hold the Newmont
Letters of Credit for these items as well. At that point we will need to give each Company an
undertaking that if the Council’s call on the sureties they hold they will only call on the NWG
sureties if the Completion Notice referred to above has not been received or the OceanaGold
sureties if the Completion Notice has been received.
Once we receive the formal Completion Notice of the sale the OceanaGold bonds become the
sureties and the Council’s then return the NWG Letters of Credit.
From a Council perspective it continues to be assumed that it will be “business as usual”. When the
sale is undertaken land use consents, licences, management plans and other regulatory matters
transfer to the new owners without change.
Martha Pit Operations – Slip on the North Wall
The situation with the North Wall remains the same as reported to Council previously. The Martha
Pit has been ‘mothballed’ by NWG and no access to the pit is available at this time. NWG has not
placed a timeframe on how long the pit will be in this ‘mothballed state’ but it is expected to be for
an extended period while NWG and subsequently OceanaGold consider future access, remediation
and future mining opportunities.
NWG has further advised that it has identified an area where monitoring shows that further
movement is occurring on a defined area of the eastern end of the North Wall and it is possible that
there could be a further slip/fall in the future. The Pit Peer Reviewer is reviewing the on-going
monitoring data for the North Wall and he agrees that there is continuing movement in the area
identified by NWG that could lead to a further slip/failure. In the short/medium term the slip/future
slip issue appears to be that this remains an operational matter for NWG/OceanaGold.
OceanaGold has not yet advised Council of its possible future intentions with the Pit but I assume
this will occur into the future.
Martha Mine – Capitalisation Bond – Review of Quantum
As previously reported HDC and WRC are working together on reviewing the Capitalisation Sum
Review document prepared by NWG and discussions between the two Councils and the Company
are continuing. This is not a straightforward issue and the process to finalise an agreed
capitalisation sum may take several months. I will update Council on the process as it proceeds.
Annual Peer Review – Martha Mine
The Annual Peer Review Meeting required by the Martha consents/licences (both District and
Regional) was held on Tuesday 18 and Wednesday 19 August 2015 and a number of technical
reports were presented for review as detailed in last month’s report to Council. The Peer Review
Panel is made up of a group of technical experts that independently monitor the design, operational
and monitoring aspects of licences/consents and reports to the Councils and the Company on any
recommendations they have to make arising from their reviews. The Peer Review Panel members
will now prepare their reports in their areas of expertise and these reports will be available to the
Company and the Councils.
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As part of the Peer review meeting process the Company prepares an update of the works required
to fully rehabilitate the various mine sites as required in the various consents/licences in the event
that the Company unexpectedly exits the site during the following year. These works are costed by
the Company and this body of work forms the Rehabilitation and Closure Plan.
The Rehabilitation and Closure Plan for 2015/16 is now in the process of being reviewed by the two
Councils. Once agreement is reached on the schedule of works and costings, the total costs
become the amount that must be covered by way of a Bank Bond in favour of the two Councils. A
new Bond is issued and the previous bond held by the Councils is returned to the Company.
Correnso Mine – Community meetings
Condition 62 of the consent requires that NWG hold a community meeting every 6 months and
details the matters that must be covered off at that meeting. Two meetings were held on 9
September; one at 2.00pm and the other at 5.30pm.
All matters required to be raised were discussed at the meeting along with other matters for general
information.
Independent assessment of location of Correnso drives and stopes
Further to the report in July CKL Surveyors has finalised the report on checking the alignment of
the underground surveying with the cadastral grid (surface grid) and a final report has been
received. The Company has received and reviewed the report. This has been a complex matter to
deal with as it involved two sets of surveying grids (underground and surface) and the calculation
and checking of the transformation parameters that allow the underground surveys to be shown on
the surface maps.
This independent report has been undertaken to reassure residents/property owners that the maps
produced by the Company on a monthly basis accurately show the location of the drives and
stopes that trigger the various property purchase and ex-gratia payments as required by the
consent conditions is accurate. This also enables the Council (and residents) to be reassured that
all properties that should be offered the purchase/payment offers are correctly identified.
The report concludes that the surveying accuracy of both of the underground workings and the
surface cadasta surveying is of a very high standard and the transformation parameters to
transform the underground surveying to the surface cadasta are very accurate. The report
recommends that a buffer area be applied to the survey data when preparing the monthly maps
and the Company confirms that it applies a larger buffer area to the maps than is recommended in
the report.
The report is very technical in nature and difficult to understand for the public unless they have
surveying expertise. To assist with this we are preparing a plain English summary of the findings of
the report that we will place on our web page and make available to the public.
Monthly Report on Filled/Unfilled Stopes and Seismic and Rock Movement Monitoring
The Correnso consent conditions relating to surface stability require that a monthly report is
provided to the Council on the cumulative volume of filled and unfilled stopes at the end of
each month and also any anomalous results that have been received from the underground
seismic and rock movement monitoring.
While the identification of filled and unfilled stopes and their volumes is relatively
straightforward the seismic and rock movement monitoring are very technical matters. To
give effect to these conditions the Company’s technical experts have been working with
Council’s technical expert, Dr Peter Fuller, to agree on the type of monitoring required, its
location and to define what constitutes anomalous results that may require further
investigation. These matters have now been agreed between the technical experts and this
agreement is set out in a jointly agreed memorandum.
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To assist the public understanding of the monthly report we are preparing a “plainer english”
explanation of the monitoring requirements and how the results will be shown in the monthly
report. This explanation will be placed on our website along with monthly reports as they are
received.
These reports will be reviewed by Council’s technical expert each month to assess if the
monitoring indicates that any interventions/investigations are required by the Company to
address any anomalous results.

Peter Thom
Manager: Planning and Environmental Services
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MONITORING REPORT
Publication of the
Annual Report
That
the
Annual
Report is completed,
audited and adopted
by Council by 31st
October, each year.
Special Consultative
Procedure
That all issues subject
to
a
special
consultative procedure
meet the requirements
of
the
Local
Government
Act,
2002.

The last Annual Report for 2014/15 was adopted on 29 October
2014.

This has been undertaken as required with all Council Plans;
Policies and Bylaws.

Resource Consents & LIMs
Target

All notified resource
consents
applications
are
decided and issued
within
statutory
timeframes.
99% of all notified
resource
consent
applications
are
decided and issued
within
70
working
days.

All
non-notified
resource
consent
applications
are
decided and issued
within
statutory
timeframes.
All
non-notified
consent decisions, not
requiring a hearing,
are issued within 20
working days.

Progress towards success

1 Jul 2015 to 31 August 2015
Notified Consents to the end of August 2015

In time 0

Out of time 0

1 July 2015 – 31 August 2015
Total

30

In time

30

100%

Out
time

of

0

-%

Land Use
Subdivision

17
6

In Time
In Time

17
6

100%
100%

Out of time
Out of time

0
0

-%
-%

Other
Misc/Desig
Variations
Objections

2
4
1

In Time
In Time
In Time

2
4
1

100%
100%
100%

Out of time
Out of time
Out of time

0
0
0

-%
-%
-%
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Issue
building
consents
within
statutory
timeframes.
100% of all building
consents are issued
within
statutory
timeframes
20
working days
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No. of Consents
% in time
New Houses
Paeroa
Waihi
Plains
TOTAL

Aug-14
35
100%

YTD
2014/15
80

1
6
6
13

Aug-15
21
100%

YTD
2015/16
51

0
10
4
14
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All
LIMs
are issued
within
statutory
timeframes

Aug-14
No. of
LIMs
% in time

All LIMs are
issued
within
10
working
days.

42
100%

LIMs by Ward
Paeroa
Waihi
Plains
TOTAL

July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June
TOTAL

# LIMS
2014/15
35
42
42
41
44
41
30
54
64
35
58
35
521

%in time
2014/15
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

YTD
2014/15

Aug-15

YTD
2015/16

77

77

128

22
32
23
77

Avg
Processing
6.3
6.7
5.8
6.2
5.5
5
6.8
5.3
5.3
4.4
5.8
4.9
5.75

29
59
40
128

# LIMS
2015/16
51
77

%in time
2015/16
100%
100%

%
Overtime
0%
0%

Avg
Processing
6.5
6

128

100%

0%

6.25
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Strategic Policy Planner

Date:

16 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:
Appendix B:

Meeting date:

30 September 2015

Subject:

Draft 2014/15 Annual Report and Summary excluding
financials

1408785
1416245 – Draft Annual Report
1414497 – Draft Summary Annual Report

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received.

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to provide the Council with the opportunity to review the wording of
the Draft 2014/15 Annual Report and Summary documents, excluding financial information.

Background
As required by Section 98 of the Local Government Act 2002, the Council must prepare an Annual
Report every year, to report its non-financial and financial performance. The Annual Report
communicates to the public what the Council has achieved in the previous financial year, and
measures that against what the Council said it was going to do in its Long Term Plan or Annual
Plan for that year.
As detailed in the timetable for the Annual Report project, the Council is given the opportunity to
review the documents, as far as they are developed at the time of writing this report, excluding
financials.
The draft Annual Report for 2014/15 reports against the third year of the 2012-22 Hauraki Long
Term Plan and the 2014/15 Annual Plan.

Document review
The draft Annual Report and the Summary have been progressed as far as possible at the time of
writing this report. Any highlighted text throughout these documents indicates further work is
required. This report provides an opportunity for the Council to review the wording of the Council’s
non-financial achievements, in particular in the activity sections. Any feedback on the content
Page 1 of 2
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would be appreciated. The next time the Council will see the Annual Report is at its meeting of on
28 October 2015 where it will consider the adoption of the documents.
The draft Annual Report does not yet include financial information as this is currently being
reviewed by Audit New Zealand and is not yet available. When the Council is considering the
Annual Report for adoption, any changes made to these documents after this meeting will be
shown using tracked changes.

Sections still to be completed
There are various parts of the document that are highlighted yellow – these are yet to be updated.
The financial information was not available to be inserted into the document at the time of
circulating this report to the Council.
The Council Controlled Organisations section is in progress, and waiting on the Local Government
Funding Agency (LGFA) Annual Report, which is due to be released on 30 September.
The majority of the Mayor’s Message has been drafted; however, the final touches rely on financial
information and will be completed when this information is available. It will then be reviewed and
approved by the Mayor and Chief Executive and inserted into the document.

Key dates
•
•
•
•

Audit New Zealand on site for its auditing process: 21 September – 6 October
The Council review the draft documents developed to date (excluding financials) –
30 September
The Audit and Risk Committee review the draft Annual Report – 20 October
The Council adopts the draft Annual Report – 28 October.

Conclusion
The Council is invited to review the draft Annual Report and Summary documents prepared to
date. Staff would appreciate any feedback from the Council regarding the documents so far.

Sarah Holmes
Strategic Policy Planner
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Introduction and Overview
Message from the Mayor and Chief Executive
<<TO BE COMPLETED WHEN FINANCIALS ARE STATIC>>
Refer to #1389861
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John Tregidga
Mayor
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Langley Cavers
Chief Executive
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Council Overview

Our Mission Statement
It is the Council’s mission to:





actively provide leadership to and advocate for the community
provide good quality infrastructure, services and regulatory functions
foster open-minded and two-way communication with the community
ensure the sustainable use and management of resources

…for the benefit of all who live in, work in and visit the Hauraki District.

Your rights as a customer are:
 to be treated with respect
 to receive a timely and accurate response
 to have access to relevant information.

Our commitment to you:
 We will respond to you promptly.
 Our staff will identify themselves.
 We will provide knowledgeable staff at first contact.
 We will fairly interpret and apply the laws, by-laws and regulations.
 Our services standards will be freely available.
 We will review feedback from our customers.

Customer feedback:

Your needs, our focus

Our Customer Charter

 We welcome feedback about our service.
 The Council has formal feedback procedures. Ask for an information

brochure, or check out the “Suggestions” section on the website www.hauraki-dc.govt.nz - to submit your feedback.

The Council’s Mission Statement was adopted in January 2015 to give effect to the purpose
of Local Government as prescribed by the Local Government Act 2002.
3|Page
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Elected Members 2014/15
Mayor

District Mayor
Mr John P Tregidga, MNZM, JP
(07) 862 8956
mayor@hauraki-dc.govt.nz

Waihi Ward

Plains Ward

Paeroa Ward

Councillor –
Chairperson

Councillor –
Deputy Mayor

Councillor Chairperson

Mr Harry Shepherd
(07) 863 7589

Mr Bruce A Gordon
(07) 867 7436

Mrs Julie M Bubb,
J.P.
(07) 862 7188

Councillor –
Deputy
Chairperson

Councillor –
Chairperson

Councillor –
Deputy Chairperson

Mrs Gill Leonard, J.P.
(07) 867 7535

Mr Paul A Milner
(07) 862 7759

Councillor –
Deputy Chairperson

Councillor

Mr Max P McLean
(07) 863 5151

Councillor
Mrs Pam Keall
(07) 863 6996

Mr Greg Harris
(07) 867 7609

Mr Toby Adams
(07) 862 6993

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Mr Ashley Tubman,
J.P.
(07) 863 8681

Mr Donald H Swales
J.P.
(09) 232 2755

Mr James Thorp
(07) 862 7782

Note: For a full list of all Council committees chairpersons and members, see Appendix 1: Council
Committees, at the end of this document.
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Hauraki District Council Management Team

Chief Executive
Langley Cavers

Planning and Environmental Services Manager
Peter Thom

Corporate Services Manager
Duncan Peddie

Community Services Manager
Steve Fabish

District Engineer
Ken Thompson

Sadly, in August 2014 Council’s Corporate Services Manager, Rex Leonhart, passed away after a
short illness. Rex had been with the Council for more than 23 years firstly as Finance Manager and
from 1995 as Corporate Services Manager. Rex will be missed by all those who worked with him.

Business Units Board of Management
Members of the Board

Business Unit Managers








Chief Executive, Langley Cavers
(Chairperson)
District Engineer, Ken Thompson
Corporate Services Manager, Duncan Peddie




Construction & Maintenance Manager, Mike
Voykovich
Technical Services Manager, Adrian de
Laborde
Workshop Manager, Peter Smith
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Council’s Vision:

Community Outcomes
What are the Hauraki District’s Community Outcomes?
In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2002 at the time, the Council
worked closely with the community to develop our initial Community Outcomes for the 2006-16
Hauraki Community Plan. These Community Outcomes were community driven and identified how the
community planned to work together with the Council and other agencies to achieve common goals.
The Local Government Act 2002 was amended in 2010 and it became the Council’s responsibility to
develop Community Outcomes and work towards the achievement of these.
Community Outcomes are a positive way to stimulate thinking about local needs and priorities for
today and the future. In setting the new Community Outcomes, the Elected Members asked
themselves:
 What are our goals as a Council?
 How do we want to be in the future?
 What do we want to do for our community and its wellbeing?
This has resulted in a number of Outcome statements that reflect the Council’s goals and aspirations
for our community. These statements are used as a guide and are incorporated in decision-making
and daily business.
We believe it is important to have aspirations and goals for the community and to make sure there is a
focus on the future. The Community Outcomes help the Council to set our direction and enable us to
make decisions based on what is best for the community. In this way, we can keep working towards
where we want to be.
All of the activities delivered by the Council and set out in this report contribute to achieving these
goals.

6|Page

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 251

• We have a positive climate that
encourages balanced and sustained
economic growth throughout our
District.
• Our infrastructural services and facilities
are planned and developed to meet future
demand.
• We encourage new opportunities while
continuing to support existing ventures
and service providers.
• We encourage further development of
tourism opportunities and facilities
focusing on our heritage and eco-tourism.

Interactive Hauraki
Lifestyle Hauraki
Sustainable Hauraki

Prepared Hauraki

• We take a collaborative approach with
both Mana Whenua and Tangata Whenua
in our District.
• We advocate for forums which ensure
involvement and consultation in decisionmaking processes.
• We ensure appropriate regard is made to
taonga and culturally signficant matters.
• We encourage the development of
partnerships for the delivery of services
and programmes.

Progress Hauraki

• We provide a range of services and
facilities to meet our District's needs and
expectations for a safe environment.
• We provide ongoing safe, well-managed
and maintained core infrastructure.
• Our waste is collected, reduced, reused
and recycled responsibly.
• We are organised and prepared to deal
with natural hazards.

Kotahitanga Hauraki

The Community Outcomes are what we aim to achieve in all aspects of its leadership in order to
promote community wellbeing – now and in the future.

• We are a proactive Council that provides
leadership and communicates effectively
with all sectors of our District.
• We advocate for the benefit of our District.
• We keep our District well-informed and
ensure information is available.
• We consider our District's views when
making decisions.

• We provide an environment that
encourages vibrant communities and an
enhanced quality of life.
• Our unique communities are protected
while balancing the needs of alternative
lifestyles.
• We are advocates for the provision of
quality social, educational, health and
training services.
• We encourage partnerships within the
District for the delivery of services.

• We plan for the wise use and
management of all land and resources for
the continued benefit of our District.
• Our natural and physical environments are
sustainably managed.
• We have a shared respect for both
economic growth and environmental
protection.
• We support the protection of the District's
significant natural habitats and ecosystems.
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Key Contributions to Community Outcomes
The following table shows which of the Council’s Groups of Activities contribute to each of the
Community Outcomes, and outlines some of our progress towards the achievement of those
Community Outcomes over the 2014/15 year.
Community Outcomes

Key Contributions to Community Outcomes

Prepared Hauraki
We provide a range of services and
facilities to meet our District's needs
and expectations for a safe
environment.
 We provide ongoing safe, wellmanaged and maintained core
infrastructure.
 Our waste is collected, reduced,
reused and recycled responsibly.
 We are organised and prepared to
deal with natural hazards.



Waitakaruru treatment upgrade (Water Supply)
The provision of safe and well managed water supply
infrastructure was progressed in 2014/15 with the Waitakaruru
treatment plant upgrade. The upgrades are required to comply
with the relevant Central Government imposed health standards.
The Council is staging this work by priority, beginning with an
ultraviolet (UV) disinfection upgrade, and the minimum
automation work to enable the UV plant. With the first stage of
the project completed, the supporting work will continue into the
next year.



Community Response Plans (Regulatory Services)
The Council worked with the Kaiaua and Whiritoa communities to
develop Community Response Plans during 2014/15, as the
location of these communities increases their risk of civil defence
emergency. The plans aid these communities in being organised
and prepared to deal with the hazards of their natural
environments, and include information to be used in an
emergency situation.

Interactive Hauraki
We are a proactive Council that
provides leadership and
communicates effectively with all
sectors of our District.
 We advocate for the benefit of our
District.
 We keep our District well-informed
and ensure information is
available.
 We consider our District's views
when making decisions.



2015 Annual Satisfaction Survey (Governance and
Leadership)
In June 2015 the Council carried out its annual satisfaction
survey of Hauraki District residents. The survey gauges
responses from 400 residents and gives the Council feedback on
how its decision-making and service to the community is
perceived. From these results, the Council can work towards
rectifying any services that residents see as needing
improvement. The survey results are also communicated to the
community to ensure transparency.



Public Communications (Governance and Leadership)
In 2014/15 the Council produced an HDC News page in the
Hauraki Herald every week and 11 Waihi Ward Reflections pages
over the year. These newspaper pages aim to ensure Council
information can be easily accessed and viewed by all members of
the community. The Council Facebook page stretches the reach
into electronic media, and also promotes the Council website as a
source for further information on matters affecting the community.



Policy Development (Governance and Leadership)
The Council consulted on its Consultation Document for the
proposed 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan in March/April 2015.
The Council received a variety of submissions regarding its
proposed approach for the ten year period, and considered the
community’s views before making decisions on the work
programme going forward. The Council sought feedback in
particular regarding its future involvement in economic
development including the construction of the Kaiaua to Kopu
section of the Hauraki Rail Trail, and an industrial wastewater
treatment plant at Kerepehi.
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Community Outcomes

Key Contributions to Community Outcomes

Kotahitanga Hauraki
We take a collaborative approach
with both Mana Whenua and Tangata
Whenua in our District.
 We advocate for forums which
ensure involvement and
consultation in decision-making
processes.
 We ensure appropriate regard is
made to taonga and culturally
significant matters.
 We encourage the development of
partnerships for the delivery of
services and programmes



Water and Wastewater Consultative Committee
(Governance and Leadership)
Tangata Whenua are involved in Council decision making
through involvement in the Water and Wastewater Consultative
Committee. The Committee considers matters regarding water,
wastewater and solid waste service delivery and consenting. The
Committee met three times in 2014/15.



Treaty Settlement Process (Governance and
Leadership)
The Council reserve area known as the Kaiaua Boat Ramp
Reserve is a historical Ngāti Pāoa burial ground or urupā which is
a culturally significant site. In 2014/15 the Council, the Crown and
Ngāti Pāoa have progressed negotiations towards Ngati Paoa’s
wish to see the transfer of the Crown owned southern and
northern portions of this reserve to Ngati Paoa ownership.

Lifestyle Hauraki
We provide an environment that
encourages vibrant communities
and an enhanced quality of life.






Our unique communities are
protected while balancing the
needs of alternative lifestyles.
We are advocates for the provision
of quality social, educational,
health and training services.
We encourage partnerships within
the District for the delivery of
services.



Libraries (Community Services)
In 2015 an initiative was launched to deliver books and resources
to those who are unable to attend the libraries in Waihi, Paeroa
and Ngatea. Some residents that had previously been avid
library-goers have experienced lifestyle changes, removing their
ability to attend the library on a regular basis. To bridge the gap
of accessibility for these customers, volunteers deliver to their
homes, and pick up the books or resources when they are ready
to be returned. For residents who are not yet library members,
the District libraries offer the option of visiting their home to
complete a membership process.



Community Initiatives (Community Development)
Funding was provided in 2014/15 to Surf Life Saving New
Zealand for the operating costs associated with providing life
guards at Whiritoa Beach over the Christmas holiday season.
This enables the provision of a safe beach environment and the
achievement of social wellbeing in the Whiritoa community.



Social Initiatives Project (Community Development)
During the scoping phase of the Social Initiatives Project, each
Ward Committee identified their areas of focus. The Waihi Ward
identified its focus is to be on the ageing population. An initial
meeting, facilitated by the Council, was held in June 2015
bringing together social services organisations and stakeholders
in order to gather information about services available to the
elderly population in Waihi. The aim of this project is to identify
areas where collaboration and partnerships can be used to better
serve the older population of Waihi and improve their health and
social wellbeing. The Paeroa Ward has identified a need to work
with agencies to support youth that have left school but are not
yet in employment, training or tertiary education. This is expected
to begin in 2015/16 (the Plains Ward is yet to identify its area of
focus).
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Community Outcomes

Key Contributions to Community Outcomes

Progress Hauraki
We have a positive climate that
encourages balanced and sustained
economic growth throughout our
District.
 Our infrastructural services and
facilities are planned and
developed to meet future demand.
 We encourage new opportunities
while continuing to support existing
ventures and service providers.
 We encourage further development
of tourism opportunities and
facilities focusing on our heritage
and eco-tourism.



Community Growth (Community Development)
Construction on the Beijing Allied Faxi New Zealand Food
Company Limited ice-cream processing facility began in Kerepehi
in June 2015. The Council has been liaising with several potential
businesses regarding possible occupation at the future “Food
Hub”. The Council will investigate and pursue ‘food space’
investment opportunities for the Kerepehi subdivision. In terms of
the wastewater infrastructure to meet the demand of the “Food
Hub”, the assessment of environmental effects was completed in
the 2014/15 year and consultation with affected parties began
this year. It is expected that the resource consent application will
be lodged in the 2015/16 year.



Destination Coromandel (Community Development)
Destination Coromandel is the regional tourism organisation for
the Coromandel region, including the areas from Waihi to the
Hauraki Plains. The Council contributes to the funding of
Destination Coromandel with the Thames-Coromandel District
Council. In addition to promoting the Coromandel as a tourism
destination internationally, Destination Coromandel also markets
nationally by using media such as advertising in the New Zealand
Herald, trade shows, social media and digital advertising e.g.
Facebook. The main must-dos marketed in the Hauraki District
are the mine and Discovery Centre in Waihi, Hauraki Rail Trail,
the Hauraki Rail Trail through the Karangahake Gorge, and the
Paeroa L&P bottle.

Sustainable Hauraki
We plan for the wise use and
management of all land and
resources for the continued benefit
of our District.
 Our natural and physical
environments are sustainably
managed.
 We have a shared respect for both
economic growth and
environmental protection.
 We support the protection of the
District's significant natural habitats
and ecosystems.
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Enviroschools/Zero Waste Education
This programme aims to develop life-long waste awareness and
responsibility in children, which will result in reduced waste in
future years. Approximately half of the schools in the District
participate in either the Enviroschools or Zero Waste programme.
The Zero Waste education programme is carried out using
external teachers to educate the children about sustainability.
Their lessons cover different topics as they progress through the
primary school curriculum which means children complete the
whole programme before they enter secondary school. In
2014/15 Waikino School worked towards its goal of achieving
green-gold status, which is the highest level of Enviroschools
achievement and means that sustainable practices are being
maintained and are growing through student-led enquiry.
Goldfields School in Paeroa has also worked towards green-gold
in 2014/15. Miller Avenue School in Paeroa achieved bronze at
the end of 2014.
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Reporting on the Financial Strategy
Financial Overview
The Council has a Financial Strategy which is set out in the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan (Long
Term Plan). The Financial Strategy sets out how the Council will prudently manage its finances and
includes a set of self-imposed financial limits that guide its financial management. This section of the
Annual Report details the Council’s performance against the financial parameters that have been set.
In addition, the Government now requires the Council to report on what it calls Financial Prudence
Benchmarks. All councils throughout New Zealand are required to report on these in their 2014/15
Annual Reports.
<<STILL TO COME FROM FINANCE – TO BE COMPLETED>>

Annual Report disclosure statement for the
year ending 30 June 2015
What is the purpose of this statement?
The purpose of this statement is to show our financial performance in relation to various benchmarks.
This gives an assessment of whether we are prudently managing our revenues, expenses, assets,
liabilities and general financial dealings.
We are required to include this statement in our Annual Report in accordance with the Local
Government (Financial Reporting and Prudence) Regulations 2014 (the regulations). If you would like
more information regarding the regulations, including definitions of some of the terms used in this
statement, please refer to the regulations.

Rates affordability benchmark
Rates (increases) affordability
Debt affordability benchmark
Debt (net interest expense to total revenue) affordability
Debt (net interest expense to rates revenue) affordability

Debt (debt to total revenue) affordability

Balanced budget benchmark
Essential services benchmark
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Debt control benchmark
Operations control benchmark
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Council Controlled Organisations
Reporting
The Local Government Act 2002, requires the Council to include information in its Annual Report on
Council-Controlled Organisations (CCOs) in which the Council is a shareholder. In accordance with
Schedule 10, clause 28 of the Local Government Act, 2002, the following section includes:







identification of the CCOs relevant to the Hauraki District Council
a report on the extent to which the local authority's significant policies and objectives in regard to
ownership and control of the organisation (as set out in the relevant long-term plan or annual plan)
have been implemented or attained in the year to which the report relates
a comparison between the nature and scope of the activities intended to be provided by the
organisation in 2014/15 and the nature and scope of the activities actually provided by the
organisation in that year
a comparison between actual performance and the key performance targets by which
performance is to be judged.

The Council is a shareholder in two CCOs; –Local Authority Shared Services Limited (LASS) and New
Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA).
Hauraki District Council is also a shareholder in five council organisations that are currently exempt
from the status of a council-controlled organisation and therefore exempt from the full reporting
requirements of a CCO and subsequently not included in this annual report. These are Civic
Assurance, Destination Coromandel Trust, Hauraki Rail Trail Charitable Trust, Martha Trust and
Thames Valley Rural Fire.

Local Authority Shared Services (LASS)
In December 2005 the local authorities in the Waikato Region established Local Authority Shared
Services Limited (LASS) as a company and a Council-Controlled Organisation (CCO), for the purpose
of working closely together on mutually beneficial joint projects to achieve better outcomes and cost
savings for share holders.
Shareholders
LASS is jointly owned by the 12 local authorities of the Waikato Region. Each local authority has a
single share, with the shareholding for each being 8.33%. The local authorities are: Waikato Regional
Council, Hamilton City Council, Hauraki District Council, Matamata-Piako District Council, Otorohanga
District Council, Rotorua District Council, South Waikato District Council, Taupō District Council,
Thames-Coromandel District Council, Waikato District Council, Waipa District Council and Waitomo
District Council.
LASS has twelve directors, each representing a shareholder Council. Unless otherwise agreed by the
appointing Councils, each director shall be a chief executive of a local authority. In addition the board
may appoint up to three professional directors to supplement the director’s expertise.
Council Policies and Objectives relating to LASS
The Council does not have any significant policies or objectives about ownership and control of LASS.
Council has an Appointment and Remuneration of Directors Policy in place but no new appointments
were made to LASS in 2014/15.
Objectives of Company
The objective of the company is to provide local authorities of the Waikato Region with a vehicle to
procure and develop shared services that demonstrate a benefit to ratepayers. It also has the
objective to provide a company structure under which local authorities can develop and promote
services to other local authorities.
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At the request of the Waikato Mayoral Forum, LASS will also identify ways to contribute to a greater
extent in terms of shared services and also at the strategic collaboration level. In 2012 and 2013 the
Mayoral Forum agreed to establish six working parties to investigate collaborative opportunities for the
shareholders in the areas of governance, planning, two waters (water and wastewater), roading,
economic development and policies and bylaws. Each working party is lead by a Council Chief
Executive in conjunction with a group of Mayors/Chairs from the Waikato Mayoral Forum. LASS has
been made available as a support entity to assist these working parties.
New services that are intended to be initiated under the LASS umbrella will only be adopted where a
business case shows that they provide some form of benefit to the shareholders.
Nature and scope of activities
There are currently three major operations under the LASS umbrella, plus a support role for
collaborative initiatives with the Waikato Mayoral Forum. The major operations are: the Shared
Valuation Data Service (SVDS), the Waikato Regional Transport Model (WRTM) and joint
procurement of insurance services.
The SVDS is an operational system which provides both timely and accurate valuation data to
member councils and shareholders. The SVDS has become the accepted valuation service provider in
the region.
Secondly, the WRTM provides accurate information to councils for their transport modelling
requirements. The model became fully operational in February 2010. This model is the only
recognised strategic transport modelling resource in the Waikato Region.
Thirdly, LASS is a party to the joint contract between LASS, its shareholding councils and Aon Limited
for insurance brokerage services and various collective insurance policies.
An additional range of shared service opportunities are being considered, for example, in the area of
human resource initiatives and further procurement initiatives.
Achievement in 2014/15
In 2014/15 LASS has been particularly focused on demonstrating the value that LASS delivers to the
shareholding councils by undertaking a review of the benefits that have been achieved by LAS since
its inception, continuing to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the existing shared services,
initiating new projects and work streams, and facilitating the Waikato Mayoral Forum work streams.
The Company has become far more active as an initiator of shared services in the region and is also
now working more collaboratively with other LASS organisations.
The three major operations mentioned above continue to deliver value. They are now considered to be
mature services and leaders in their field nationally. The cost of operating SVDS has reduced
significantly, for two reasons: renegotiating the contracts with suppliers and increasing sales and
revenue. The full benefits of these renegotiations will only be realised in the 2015/16 financial year. A
new Contract Manager was appointed during the latter part of the financial year, due to the resignation
of the previous manager.
The WRTM is the only recognised strategic transport modelling resource in the Waikato Region, and is
currently being updated to reflect the new census data from 2013. The external management contract
for this service was recently renewed for a further two years, after which time the contract will be retendered. The operational contract expires in February 2016, prior to which it will be publicly retendered.
In 2014/15 through negotiation with the insurers, LASS achieved a 15% premium saving for the
primary layer material damage insurance cover shared by all Councils, representing a saving of
$265,000 to the participating councils. The approach of the group has been to reinvest some of these
savings into improving the insurance cover and underlying information on which the insurance
assumptions are based, which will help to minimise insurance costs in future.
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LASS continues to act as the legal entity to manage contracts arising from the work of the Waikato
Mayoral Forum, as well as providing administrative support to the forum.
During the year LASS has continued to pursue opportunities for additional shared services. These
have included initiating a number of new projects: developing a shared regional GIS data portal,
developing and implementing an online service for building consents (with other services, e.g. dog
registration, to be progressively added once the online platforms are in place), and initiating energy
audits to investigate energy efficiency opportunities, which have the potential to enable LASS to
secure funding in the order of $100,000 from the Energy Efficiency Conservation Authority. These
projects are all expected to come to fruition during the 2015/16 financial year.
A significant new procurement project to establish a professional consultancy services panel was
implemented for four of the shareholding councils. The discount range achieved is between 5% and
39% off the standard hourly rates charged for staff resources. Most of the discounts are in the 10-20%
range off standard hourly rates. The 2014 annual spend on consultancy services across the four
participating Councils was approximately $13 million per annum. Therefore, the overall annual savings
achieved from these contracts is expected to be in the range between $650,000 and $5,070,000, with
the likely savings to be in the order of $1.3 million and $2.6 million, depending on which consultants
are actually engaged.
A new procurement project for testing water samples is currently in progress, and a range of further
shared service opportunities are also being considered.
The Waikato Regional Aerial Photography Syndicate (WRAPS) became a LASS-managed project in
December 2014. A LASS working party has been set up to consider the most appropriate technology
to be used and the most efficient method for contracting the capture of both rural and urban imagery,
which is undertaken every five years. The next contract is due to be let in 2016/17, and work is
underway to develop the tender document.
During the year, LASS entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with LINZ to participate in the
scanning of the historic aerial photos archive over the next four years. The total cost for the Waikato
syndicate will be $287,000, which includes a LINZ subsidy of $56,000 due to the LASS councils
working collaboratively.
Each year, LASS undertakes a survey of the shareholding councils to assess the level of satisfaction
with LASS services. Overall, the results show that the shareholding councils are very satisfied with the
efforts being made by LASS to advance shared services projects across the region.
Performance Targets of LASS
Performance targets relate to the levels of services that are current or under development. It is
envisaged that these targets will change as new services are developed.
The performance targets as outlined in the 2014/15 Statement of Intent are:
Performance Measure

Actual Outcome

The Statement of Intent is informed by the annual
survey and independent benefits review.

Achieved. A draft Statement of Intent (SOI) for 2015/16 was
distributed to all shareholding councils for comment and
feedback on 26 February 2015. The annual survey of
shareholders was completed and presented to the Board at
their meeting on 22 May. The draft benefits review was
presented to the Board at their meeting on 22 May. The final
SOI was adopted by the Board on 26 June 2015 and
distributed to all shareholders on 29 June.

Costs Control: Administration expenditure shall not
exceed that budgeted by more than 5% unless prior
approval is obtained from the Directors.

Achieved, actual expenditure was $16,439 favourable to
budget.

Cash flow: The Company maintains an overall positive
cash flow position.

Not achieved this year as cash flow was intentionally
operated at a negative level in order to use up surpluses.
The Company still maintains a safe cash position with the
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Actual Outcome
cash, cash equivalents and bank accounts balances at the
end of June 2015 being $693,617.

Reporting: The Board will provide a written report on the
business operations and financial position of the LASS
on a six monthly basis.

Achieved. The 2013/14 Annual Report was sent to all
shareholders on 22 September 2014. A 6-month report was
sent to all shareholders on 26 February 2015.

Statutory Adherence: There will be an annual report to
Directors that all statutory requirements of the LASS are
being adhered to.

Achieved. All parties have confirmed that there were no
legislative breaches during the year, and this will be
reported to the LASS Board at their August meeting when
the Annual Report is presented.

SVDS availability: Shared Valuation Data Services is
available to users at least 99% of normal working hours.

Achieved. SVDS was available to users 99.8% of normal
working hours.

SVDS Sales Data Delivery: At least 98% of agreed
timelines are met for sale and property files that have
been delivered to the FTP server for access to
customers.

Achieved. 100% of agreed timeframes were met.

SVDS Major Enhancement Development Hours: All
capital enhancement development work is supported by
a business case approved by the advisory group.

Not applicable this year, as only minor work items of $5,000
or less have been undertaken as per the road map
approved by the SVDS Advisory Group.

WRTM: All required modelling reports are actioned
within the required timeframe.

Achieved. All modelling services were delivered within the
required timeframe, or time extensions were agreed with the
rd
model partner / 3 party concerned.

WRTM: That the base model adheres to “Screenline
Validation Standards” as set out in the New Zealand
Transport Agency Economic Valuation Manual as
indicated by an external independent peer review.

Achieved. The WRTM is going through an update process to
bring it up to the 2013 census base. The peer reviewer has
reviewed all technical notes and has advised that the
revised base model meets the EEM standards. This has
been documented in the peer reviewer’s report. The
modelling services undertaken were all done using WRTM
version 7 which was last peer reviewed in 2013. No changes
have been made to the model since that time.

WRTM: A full report on progress of the model will be
provided to the LASS Board twice each year.

Achieved. The WRTM Contract Manager reported to the
LASS Board in September 2014, October 2013, December
2014 and May 2015.

Insurance: The key performance indicators from
appendix 4 of the brokerage contract are met.

Achieved. The KPIs in the brokerage contract are as follows:
1.

2.

3.

4.
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Failure to undertake Gap Analysis and Risk
profiling for each of the Councils. Achieved. The
gap analysis was completed.
Not Achieving at least an overall saving of 15%
based on like for like coverage in non-property
areas of the insurance profiles of LASS. Achieved.
Failure to give appropriate strategic advice on
programme structure and improve coverage for the
Councils in Lass. Achieved. A number of
discussions and amendments have been made to
and around the programme since the appointment
for Aon. An example would be the Infrastructure
Insurance programme that has been put in place
and the current work being done on the
JLT/Riskpool offering.
Failure to provide adequate and reasonable day to
day service to the councils in the LASS group.
Achieved. Most of the time, all Councils receive this
level of service. Occasionally there are times when
the response to queries may be slightly delayed.
To address this, more resource has been applied
to the Aon team handling the LASS account.
Regular advice is provided on specific areas, e.g.
Contract Terms and Conditions, policy responses
to specific scenarios put forward, claims.
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Performance Measure

Actual Outcome

Joint Procurement: Any joint procurement projects
deliver as per project approved objectives.

Achieved. A joint procurement initiative was completed as
per the project’s objectives for a Professional Services
Panel for four of the shareholding councils.

Advice on the Waikato Mayoral Forum: In response to
requests from shareholders, the Company will provide
regular reports and updates to the Waikato Mayoral
Forum regarding progress with shared service
initiatives.

Achieved. Written and verbal update reports were provided
to the Mayoral Forum at their meetings on 30 July, 15
September and 4 November 2014, 23 February, 20 April
and 15 June 2015.

Independent Benefit Review update: The independent
benefit review plan will be reviewed, updated and
signed off by the LASS Board by 31 May of the year
immediately preceding the year the plan relates to.

Achieved. AS part of preparing the 2015/16 Statement of
Intent, a new performance measure to assess the benefits
being achieved by LASS was developed and included in the
SOI’s revised set of performance measures.

Independent Benefit Reviews: Those reviews timetabled
in the plan for the current year to be completed by the
end of the year.

Achieved. The draft benefits review was presented to the
Board at their meeting on 22 May. A copy of the final
benefits report will be sent to shareholders with the Annual
Report.

New Zealand Local Government Funding
Agency (LGFA)
New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (LGFA) was enabled under the Local
Government Borrowing Act 2011 and was incorporated on 1 December 2011. LGFA is a CouncilControlled Organisation (CCO) operating under the Local Government Act 2002.
LGFA’s primary purpose is to provide more efficient funding costs and diversified funding sources
(including foreign currency) for New Zealand local authorities.
Shareholders
LGFA is owned by 30 local authority councils from across New Zealand, and the Crown. The Hauraki
District Council is one of these shareholders. The LGFA Board of Directors comprises independent
and non-independent directors, the majority of which are required to be independent.
Council Policies and Objectives relating to LGFA
The Council does not have any significant policies or objectives about ownership and control of LGFA.
Council has an Appointment and Remuneration of Directors Policy in place but no new appointments
were made to LGFA in 2014/15.
Objectives of Company
The primary objective of LGFA is to optimise the debt funding terms and conditions for participating
local authorities including:




providing annual savings in annual interest costs
making longer term borrowings available
enhancing the certainty of access to debt markets.

Nature and scope of activities
LGFA raises debt funding either domestically or offshore in either New Zealand dollars or foreign
currency, and provides debt funding to New Zealand local authorities that enter into all the relevant
arrangements with it and comply with the LGFA lending policies.
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Achievement in 2014/15
<<Due out by 30 September this year >>
Performance Targets of LGFA
<<Due out by 30 September this year>>
The performance targets as outlined in the 2014/15 Statement of Intent are:
Performance Measure
Operate with a view to making a profit sufficient to pay a
dividend in accordance with the stated Dividend Policy.
Provide at least 50% of aggregate long-term debt
funding for participating local authorities.
Ensure products and services are delivered at a cost
that does not exceed the forecast for issuance and
operating expenses.
Maintain credit rating equal to the New Zealand
Government sovereign rating where both entities are
rated by the same rating agency.
Achieve financial forecasts.
Meet or exceed the Performance Targets in section 5 of
the 2014/15 statement of Intent (specific cost of funds).
Comply with LGFA Treasury Policy.
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Groups of Activities and Activities
Groups of Activities - what are they?
As detailed in the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan, the Council undertakes a wide range of services
that are arranged into ten Groups of Activities. Each of these Groups is reported on in this Annual
Report.
Each Group contains one or more activities that are presented together within that Group due to
likeness, legislation or logic.
In accordance with Schedule 10, part 1, section 2 of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) the
following Groups of Activities were considered mandatory at the time of the writing the 2012-22
Hauraki Long Term Plan*:
 water supply
 sewerage and the treatment and disposal of sewage
 stormwater drainage
 flood protection and control works
 the provision of roads and footpaths
*Note that the LGA has been amended since the adoption of the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan. The
implications of those changes are reflected in the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan and subsequent
annual reports from 2015/16 onwards.
The Council also has other Groups of Activities that we believe we should be involved in.
In addition to these mandatory Groups of Activities, we have five additional Groups of Activities. We
also altered the names of the legislatively required Groups for simplicity and to reflect the public’s
understanding of these Groups, while still meeting the legislative requirements in accordance with
Schedule 10 of the LGA.
The following lists the Council’s Groups of Activities in the order they are presented in this document:
 Governance and Leadership
o Democracy
o Iwi Liaison
o Policy Development
 Roading (the provision of roads and footpaths)
 Water Supply
 Wastewater (sewerage and the treatment and disposal of sewage)
 Stormwater (stormwater drainage)
 Land Drainage (flood protection and control works)
 Solid Waste
 Community Services
o Community Recreation
o Community Facilities
 Community Development
o Community Growth
o Community Initiatives
 Regulatory Services
o Resource Management Implementation
o Building Control
o Community Protection
o Animal Control
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What is contained for each Group of Activities within this Report?
For each ‘Group of Activities’ within this Annual Report document you will find:
What is the <Group of Activities name>?
This section provides an overview of the group of activities and may include the purpose of that group,
the rationale for our involvement and what is involved in the Council delivering that group of activities.
What activities are included in the <Group of Activities name>?
For some groups of activities there are a number of activities that are part of that group. This section
outlines the activities involved in each group.
Identified effects on the community
This section explains the identified effects of the provision of any of the Activities within the Group on
the community.
Cost of funding the <Group of Activities name>?
This provides a summary of the costs of operating the group of activities as a whole, and a funding
impact statement.
What is the <Activity name>?
This section provides an overview of the activity where there is more than one activity within a group. It
includes the purpose of the activity, the rationale for the Council’s involvement and what is involved in
the Council delivering that activity.
Meeting our service targets
The levels of service, measures and targets for groups of activities or activities, as detailed in the
2014/15 Annual Plan, are detailed in the ‘meeting our service targets’ table. The table for each group
of activities or activity also includes the community outcomes icons that each level of service primarily
contributes to, and progress indicator icons to show the achievement of each measure. The icons are
as follows:
 Achieved
 Not Achieved
 Not Applicable
Within this table, the previous years’ progress indicator will also be shown to provide a comparison
between the financial years.
What happened in 2014/15?
This section lists the projects that were completed in the 2014/15 year and the community outcomes
that the project primarily contributes to (icons used). This includes the projects that were scheduled in
the 2014/15 Annual Plan, plus other projects that occurred in 2014/15, and reasons e.g. projects may
have been carried over from previous years, or may have been one-off projects that were approved by
Council during the 2014/15 year, etc.
Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why
This section details the projects that were scheduled for 2014/15 in the Annual Plan that didn’t occur,
and the reasons why.
Cost of funding <Activity name>
This section shows the cost of service statement and the funding impact statement for the individual
activity. This includes the budgeted capital expenditure for the activity and the actual amount spent,
split into: what was spent on meeting additional demand, improved levels of service, or replacement of
existing assets.
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Governance and Leadership
Group of Activities
What is the Governance and Leadership Group of Activities?
The purpose of local government was replaced with the passing of the Local Government Act 2002
Amendment Act 2012. The new purpose is:
“to meet the current and future needs of communities for good quality local
infrastructure, public services and performance of regulatory functions in a way that is
most cost effective for households and businesses.”
Good quality is defined in the Act as being efficient, effective and appropriate to present and
anticipated future circumstances. This replaces the previous purpose (under which the 2012-22
Hauraki Community Plan was developed) which stated:
“provides for local authorities to play a broad role in promoting the social, economic,
environmental and cultural well-being of their communities, taking a sustainable
development approach”.
The change to the purpose of Local Government means that as all policies and activities are
developed or reviewed they must reflect the new purpose. The change in purpose was addressed
through the 2014/15 Annual Plan process and the final policy work was completed as part of the
development of the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan.
It is the Council’s mission to:
 actively provide leadership to and advocate for the community,
 provide good quality infrastructure, services and regulatory functions,
 foster open-minded and two way communication with the community,
 ensure the sustainable use and management of resources
…for the benefit of all who live in, work in and visit the Hauraki District.

What activities are included in the Governance and Leadership
Group?




Democracy
Iwi Liaison
Policy Development
o Strategic Planning
o Resource Management Policy Development
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Identified effects on the community
The Governance and Leadership Group works towards
achieving a cohesive policy approach for the community
through leadership, governance and advocacy.
The work that the Mayor and Councillors do to promote the
District, and to advocate for the communities within the
District, is often not evident as far as reporting goes, but it is
fair to say that it is instrumental to their roles as elected
members. This work ensures that the qualities the
communities collectively agree are important for a person’s
happiness, quality of life and welfare, are addressed. In
addition, the advocacy and decision-making undertaken by
elected members helps to promote the District, and to provide
the infrastructure and services that support its service delivery
and economic growth.

The Governance and
Leadership Group primarily
contributes to the following
Community Outcome:
Interactive Hauraki
Kotahitanga Hauraki
Sustainable Hauraki

Operating Statement for the Governance and Leadership Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for the Governance and Leadership
Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Democracy
What is the Democracy Activity?
Local Government in New Zealand is empowered by central government through the Local
Government Act (LGA) and other legislation, and is operated through a local democratic system.
Democracy for the Hauraki District is defined as the governance of the Hauraki District by the District’s
residents through their elected representatives. Democratic representation is currently considered to
be the most appropriate way for the community’s voice to be heard. The LGA and the Local Electoral
Act 2001 determine the processes that ensure each community is represented.
The Hauraki District Council is made up of a Mayor elected at large and 4 Councillors elected from
each of the Paeroa, Hauraki Plains and Waihi Wards whose role it is to:
 provide representative and accountable governance and leadership to their communities
 assess community related issues which affect the Hauraki District and make informed decisions
on behalf of residents, ratepayers and stakeholders.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

The Council will conduct all its business in an open and transparent manner.
Measure:
Council meetings and
associated business
are conducted in
accordance with
appropriate
legislation.
Measure:
Agendas for meetings
(other than
extraordinary
meetings) of Council
and its committees
are publicly available
at least two days prior
to the meeting date.

14/15:
Upheld
complaints
received

Maintain target of
no complaints that
are upheld by the
ombudsman.



13/14:


14/15:

Council
secretary’s
checklist

All agendas are
publicly available
two clear working
days before each
meeting.


13/14:



Achieved: No
complaints to the
Ombudsman have
been upheld for the
year.
(2013/14: No
complaints upheld)
Achieved: 100%
(87/87) of Council
agendas were made
publicly available two
clear working days
before each meeting.
(2013/14: 100%)

When making decisions the Council will consider community views.

14/15:
Measure:
All matters for the
Council’s
consideration are
evaluated for their
significance and, if
significant, the
Decision Making
Matrix and
Significance Policy is
applied and discussed
in a report to Council.



Council
minutes

All decisions
considered
significant are
noted as
discussed
accordingly in
Council minutes,
with associated
evidence
supplied.

13/14:



Not Applicable: The
Significance Policy was
not triggered during the
year.
(2013/14: The
Significance Policy was
not triggered)
Note: Council’s
Significance Policy was
replaced with its
Significance and
Engagement Policy
during the second
quarter. This measure
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Method of
measurement

Target 2014/15

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement
now reports against the
new policy.

Elected members will provide governance and leadership for the Hauraki District Council
community.

14/15:
Measure:
Percentage of
customers that have
confidence in Council
decision making by
elected members.


Customer
satisfaction
survey

75% satisfied

13/14:



Not Achieved: The
2014/15 satisfaction
survey showed that
72% of residents were
satisfied in the
confident of Council
decision-making and
28% were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 73% satisfied
and 27% dissatisfied)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2012/13 and 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

What else happened in 2014/15?
Local Government Act 2002 Amendment – In August 2014 the Government enacted
amendments to the Local Government Act 2002, as a result of the Local Government 2002
Amendment Act 2014; these are fully reflected in the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan.
Some changes were able to be reflected in the 2014/15 Annual Plan and therefore may be
reflected within this Annual Report. The Council updated its Mission Statement and its
decision-making processes in 2014 to include the new provisions of the Local Government
Act 2002 in relation to the revised purpose of local government. Other key changes included
the development of a Significance and Engagement Policy (adopted in November 2014)
and how the consultative procedure is used for long-term plans and annual plans. For
further information on the Local Government Act 2002 legislation changes, see the Policy
Development activity in this report.
Triennial Agreement – In August 2014 all councils in the Waikato Region signed an
agreement (the Triennial Agreement) containing the protocols for communication and coordination for the next three years.
The Treaty of Waitangi negotiations – Negotiations between the Crown and Hauraki Iwi,
were continued during 2014/15. For more detail, see the Iwi Liaison activity in this
document.
The Waikato Plan (formerly known as the Waikato Spatial Plan) combines trend
information, factual data and intelligence from a wide range of sectors - not just local
government - with the ambitions and aspirations of the Waikato community. The aim is to
achieve 'one voice' on matters of funding and advocacy, streamlining of council services
and activities and evidence based decision making for significant investments.
Development has progressed with the formation of a joint committee consisting of 10 local
government representatives (including the Hauraki Mayor) and 5 non local government
representatives. The committee has been meeting monthly during the 2014/15 year and to
date have discussed priority areas that the Plan may address.
2015 Annual Satisfaction Survey – Each year the Council conducts either an annual
survey, or a triennial and annual survey combined (in election years). The triennial survey
includes not only satisfaction questions but a number of other questions to inform the newly
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elected Council at the start of its three year term. The 2015 Annual Satisfaction Survey
included satisfaction questions to gauge how well we are doing in providing services to the
community. In 2015 the survey was carried out by an independent survey company, Key
Research Ltd, on behalf of the Council during June and July 2015. The survey consisted of
a random telephone sample of 400 residents. Users of the building and planning services
were also specifically surveyed.
The 2015 satisfaction survey results are presented in the relevant ‘meeting our service
targets’ tables within this Annual Report. For the full 2015 Satisfaction Survey Results go to
the Council website www.hauraki-dc.govt.nz.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned projects that were rescheduled in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Democracy
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Iwi Liaison
What is the Iwi Liaison Activity?
The Council, through the implementation of the LGA, recognises Māori as an important group within
the community and places a specific emphasis on:
 providing opportunities for Māori to be involved in decision making processes
 developing policies for consulting with Māori
 fostering capacity building for Māori to take part in local government processes
 acknowledging the relationship of Tangata Whenua with the natural environment
 recognising the special status of Tangata Whenua (as opposed to Maori in general) and taking
into account the Treaty of Waitangi in resource management decision making processes.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Develop a Mana Whenua Forum to provide for ongoing dialogue between Council and Iwi
groups who hold Mana Whenua status in the District.

14/15:


Measure:
Forum will meet
regularly.

Council minutes

2012–2022: four
meetings of
Forum held per
year

13/14:



Not Achieved: There was
no Forum meeting held
in the year. With the
agreement of Iwi, the
Forum meetings are on
hold until Treaty
negotiations are further
advanced.
(2013/14: No meetings
held)

The Council will continue to develop its relationship with Tangata Whenua.

14/15:


Measure:
Additional
Memoranda of
Understanding
agreements are
developed.

Number of
agreements

2012-14: One
additional
Memorandum of
Understanding.

13/14:
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Not Achieved: No further
Memoranda of
Understanding
agreements were
developed in 2014/15
due to the workload
associated with the
Treaty settlement
negotiations.
Discussions will
recommence once the
Hauraki Treaty
settlements are further
progressed.
(2013/14: No further
agreements developed)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Provide opportunities for Maori to be involved in Council decision making processes.

14/15:
Measure:
The Council will
consult with
Tangata Whenua
on all Council
applications for
wastewater and
water consents.


Reports to the
Consultative
Committee for
Water and
Waste

Tangata
Whenua will be
consulted on all
relevant
consents.

13/14:



Achieved: On-going
consultation occurred
during the year with
relevant Iwi in relation to
the proposed Kopu to
Kaiaua leg of the
Hauraki Rail Trail, the
proposal for a resource
consent for additional
wastewater infrastructure
at Kerepehi.
(2013/14: All consenting
issues considered by the
Committee)

What happened in 2014/15?
Consultative Committee for Water and Waste – During the 2014/15 year the Committee,
which has Hauraki Iwi representation, met three times to consider matters relating to water,
wastewater and solid waste service delivery. As noted above, the committee discussed
resource consent matters relating to the proposed Kopu to Kaiaua leg of the Hauraki Rail
Trail and the proposal for resource consent for additional wastewater infrastructure at
Kerepehi. The committee was also kept informed on the progress of the upgrade of water
treatment plants and water takes.
Treaty Settlements – The Crown and Hauraki Iwi settlements have progressed during the
2014/15 year. It is expected that the Hauraki Collective settlement will include additional
roles and responsibilities on local government to consult and work with Hauraki Iwi and will
include a co-governance structure for the Waihou, Piako and Coromandel catchments. The
settlements are expected to place a requirement on Council for additional resource for
policy development and policy implementation.
Hauraki District reserves treaty settlements – The Office of Treaty Settlements is
seeking settlement of some land matters within the Hauraki District on behalf of Hauraki Iwi
as part of the settlement process. These negotiations started in 2013 and have continued
into 2015. The negotiations include the future status and management of three particular
sites within the Hauraki District:
 Opita wāhi tapu commonly known as Kaiaua Boat Ramp Reserve – The Council, Crown
and Ngati Paoa progressed negotiations towards Ngati Paoa’s wish to see the transfer
of the Crown owned southern and northern portions of this reserve to Ngati Paoa
ownership. This is subject to the preservation of the land as a reserve and to the right of
continued public access to the land.
 Piopiotahi Burial Reserve at Wharekawa, East Coast Road, Kaiaua – Ngaati
Whanaunga wishes to protect existing burial sites by seeing the transfer of 500 m2 of
Council road reserve surrounding the Piopiotahi Burial Reserve to their ownership.
Ngaati Whanaunga, the Council and the Crown continued to progress negotiations for
this area in 2014/15.
 Ngatikoi Domain, commonly known as Black Hill, Waihi – The Crown, Council and Ngāti
Tara Tokanui have progressed negotiations in 2014/15 towards Ngāti Tara Tokanui’s
wish to see this Crown-owned land transferred to its ownership. This would be subject
to the preservation of the land as a reserve to the right of continued public access to the
land.

27 | P a g e

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why




Memoranda of Understanding – Initial discussions were held with Ngaati Whanaunga on
developing a Memorandum of Understanding. The workload and resourcing requirements
associated with the Treaty settlement negotiations has meant that there has been no progress on
this matter; discussions will recommence once the Hauraki Treaty settlements are further
progressed.
Mana Whenua Forum – As noted above, by agreement with Iwi there were no scheduled Forum
meetings during 2014/15, as the focus for Iwi has been on progressing the collective and
individual Treaty settlement negotiations between Iwi and the Crown. In consultation with Iwi it has
been agreed that the Forum will recommence its regular meeting cycle once the negotiations are
further progressed.

Operating Statement for Iwi Liaison
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Policy Development
What is the Policy Development Activity?
Policy Development essentially helps to formalise our strategic direction through the preparation of
strategies, plans and policy documents and the analysis and implementation of strategies and policies
from Central Government and other organisations.
Whilst many policies are developed by the Council to address local issues or to achieve desired
outcomes, Council also has a responsibility to develop and review some policies, strategies and plans
and to report on these under the LGA, the Resource Management Act 1991 and other relevant
legislation.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

To plan the Council’s work programmes and create strategic alignment across policies,
plans and strategies, in accordance with relevant legislation.

Measure:
Council’s policies,
plans and
strategies are
adopted within set
timeframes.

Council
checklist on
each issue

All legislatively
required
documents are
adopted within
statutory
timeframes.

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: All of the
Council's legislatively
required policies, plans
and strategies were
adopted within statutory
timeframes.
(2013/14: All documents
were adopted within
statutory timeframes)

Significant decisions are made in a democratically accountable way.

14/15:


Measure:
All decisions that
are subject to the
special
consultative
procedure meet
the requirements
of the Local
Government Act
2002.

Council
checklist on
each issue

100% successful
completion of
internal Special
Consultative
Procedure
checklist.

13/14:



Achieved: All decisions
that were subject to the
special consultative
procedure met the
requirements of the
Local Government Act
2002:
 Local Approved
Products Policy
 Class 4 Gaming
Venues Policy
 Freedom Camping
Bylaw
 2015-25 Hauraki
Long Term Plan
 2015/16 Fees and
Charges
 Revenue and
Financing Policy
 Development
Contributions Policy
 Rates Remissions
Policies
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable
(2013/14: All consenting
issues considered by
the Committee)

Policy development is visible and accountable.

14/15:



Measure:
Key draft or
proposed policy
documents
subject to
consultation are
available on the
Council’s website
by the notified
date of availability.

Website
electronic
records

All draft policy
documents are
available on the
Council’s website
on time.

13/14:



Measure:
Percentage of
customers
satisfied that they
understand
Council decision
making
processes.

14/15:


Customer
satisfaction
survey

70% satisfied

The Council will develop local legislation.
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13/14:



Achieved: All draft
documents were made
available on Council's
website by the notified
date of availability:
 Local Approved
Products Policy
 Class 4 Gaming
Venues Policy
 Freedom Camping
Bylaw Statement of
Proposal
 Trade Waste and
Wastewater Bylaw
Statement of
Proposal
 2015-15 Hauraki
Long Term Plan
 2015/16 Fees and
Charges
 Revenue and
Financing Policy
 Development
Contributions Policy
 Rates Remissions
Policy
(2013/14: All policy
documents were
available on the Council
website on time)
Not Achieved: The
2014/15 satisfaction
survey showed that
60%* of residents are
satisfied that they
understand Council
decision-making
processes and 40%
were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 62% satisfied
and 41% dissatisfied)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

 Not Applicable

14/15:
Measure:
Bylaws are
reviewed as
required, with all
bylaws to be
reviewed by
2017/18.


Council
minutes

2014/15
achievement

2012-15: Bylaws
reviewed as
required and
documented in
Council minutes.

13/14:



Achieved: Bylaws were
reviewed as required
and documented in the
Council minutes:
 Freedom Camping
Bylaw
 Part 4: Trade Waste
and Wastewater of
the Consolidated
Bylaw
(2013/14: Bylaws were
reviewed as required)

The Council meets its statutory requirements under the Resource Management Act 1991.

Measure:
All Changes and
Variations to the
District Plan are
processed within
statutory
requirements.

Council
records

There are no
successful
Appeals or Judicial
Reviews on any
Plan Change or
Variation to the
Plan as a result of
administrative or
process matters.

14/15:



13/14:



Achieved: There were
no successful Appeals
or Judicial Reviews on
any Plan Change or
Variation to the Plan as
a result of administrative
or process matters
raised in the year.
(2013/14: No appeals or
judicial reviews as a
result of administrative
or process matters)

* The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

What happened in 2014/15?
Legislation changes – The Local Government 2002 Amendment Act 2014 came into effect
in August 2014. The amendment altered the Local Government Act 2002 to:
 change what development contributions can be used for and allow for objections to
development contributions charges;
 encourage more collaboration and shared services between local authorities;
 make consultation requirements more flexible;
 provide for a new significance and engagement policy;
 enable more efficient and focused consultation on long-term plans and annual plans;
 remove unnecessary duplication between annual plans and long-term plans;
 introduce new requirements for infrastructure strategies and asset management
planning;
 enable elected members to use technology to participate in Council meetings, rather
than attending in person;
 require councils to disclose information about their rating bases in long-term plans,
annual plans and annual reports; and
 require disclosure of risk management arrangements for physical assets in annual
reports.
These changes were reflected in the planning and development of the 2015-25 Hauraki
Long Term Plan, which came into effect on 1 July 2015.
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The Council was also required to adopt a new Significance and Engagement Policy which
was adopted on 26 November 2014 and which replaced the previous Significance Policy.
District Plan – After the Decisions Version of the Proposed District Plan was publically
notified in 2012, the Council received 14 appeals to this Plan. All of the appeals were settled
in the 2013/14 year. The Proposed Hauraki District Plan became Operative on 26
September 2014.
The Proposed Regional Policy Statement (RPS) – The RPS has been reviewed by the
Waikato Regional Council. The Hauraki District Council made some appeals to this and the
appeals process is currently being undertaken. The Council will soon progress a RPS
implementation agreement between the Hauraki District Council and the Waikato Regional
Council arising out of the appeals process.
Activity Management Plans – The development of Activity Management Plans continued
in 2014/15. These plans are internal tools developed to ensure levels of service, budgets
and work programmes for non-asset activities are prepared. The Plans for non-asset
activities were completed in conjunction with the work required to develop the 2015-25
Hauraki Long Term Plan.
Asset Management Plans – The development of Asset Management Plans continued in
2014/15 for asset based activities. These plans include the information contained in activity
plans as well as asset knowledge and condition data, improvement programmes, modelling
tools for future asset assessment, and performance indicators. All Asset Management Plans
were updated and formed the basis for the asset activities in the 2015-25 Hauraki Long
Term Plan.
Local Approved Products Policy (LAPP) – Following consultation on the draft LAPP in
June 2014, it was adopted in September 2014. See the Regulatory section of this report for
further information.
Policy Reviews – The policies, plans and strategies reviewed in 2014/15 included:
 The fees and charges of Council adopted in June 2015.
 The draft Class 4 Gambling Venue Policy was reviewed and adopted in September
2014.
 The Local Approved Products Policy was reviewed and adopted in September 2014.

The Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations Policy –
this was reviewed and adopted in April 2015.
2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan (HLTP) – As part of the development of the 2015-25
HLTP in 2014/15 the following policy development and policy reviews also occurred:
 A review of the Assessment of Water and Sanitary Services was adopted January 2015
 The Significance and Engagement Policy was adopted in November 2014
 The 30 year Infrastructure Strategy was adopted in June 2015
 The Council resolved in June 2015 not to have an operative Development Contributions
Policy
 The Financial Strategy was adopted in June 2015
 The Revenue and Financing Policy was adopted in June 2015
 All financial policies were adopted in June 2015
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Review of the Procurement Policy began in June 2015.
All rates remissions and postponement policies were adopted June 2015.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why








Positive Ageing Strategy – The review of this strategy was not completed in 2014/15, due to the
Council considering the development of a collective inclusive social strategy. If a social strategy is
to be progressed it would be more timely and efficient to review the Positive Ageing Strategy in
conjunction with development of an overall social strategy.
Sustainability Policy – The review of this policy was scheduled for completion in (or before)
2014/15. This policy was not reviewed due to priorities involving the 2015-25 Long Term Plan
project. The review of this policy will be assessed in the 2015/16 year.
Franklin Plan – In the future the Council will incorporate those parts of the Franklin Plan relevant
to the Seabird Coast into the Hauraki District Plan as part of a future Plan Change. This is
dependent on the direction of future central government Resource Management Act reforms.
Consultation Policy – A review of the Council’s current Consultation Policy was not completed in
2014/15 due to competing priorities. The review will be completed in the 2015/16 year.

Operating Statement for Policy Development
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Roading Group of Activities
What is the Roading Group of Activities?
Roading and footpaths provide essential infrastructure that support safety and community cohesion.
The Council develops the local roading and footpath network to ensure that people have access to,
and can contribute to, a healthy and connected community. The community expects that the Council
will provide the local roading network.
The local roading network connects at various points to the national state highway network, managed
by the New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA), and we work with NZTA to ensure a co-ordinated
approach to roading infrastructure.

Identified effects on the community
The Roading Group focuses primarily on the provision of safe and
reliable local roading networks for District communities, ensuring
people are able to move freely around the District in an efficient
manner and have appropriate links with national state highways. This
in turn contributes to economic viability and social wellbeing for all
people.

The Roading Group
primarily contributes to the
following Community
Outcome:
Prepared Hauraki

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Provide access to the network of local roads.

Measure:
Time for road
access to be
restored to
communities
following a 1 in 10
year climatic event.

Measured by
network
consultant

100% of arterial
and collector
roads providing
access to
communities
open within 24
hours, all other
roads within 72
hours.

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: A minor event was
reported in the first quarter
where flooding affected ford
access on Bradshaw Road
and Wires Road in the
Paeroa ward. Access was
restored within 24 hours.
There were no other events in
the 2014/15 year.
(2013/14: Access restored
within 24 hours)

Preserve the pavement life of sealed roads.
Measure:
The Sealed
Pavement Condition
Index.
This index is a
national formula for
the New Zealand
Transport Agency.

14/15:
Measured by
network
consultant

Maintain a level
of 6-7 (good
condition).


13/14:



Achieved: The latest New
Zealand Transport Agency
SPCI measurement is at the
level of 4.4 which is better
than the target of 6-7.
(2013/14: Sealed Pavement
Condition Index of 4.2)

Delivery of a roading network that addresses safety and amenity issues.
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Measure:
Traffic safety
barriers are installed
and maintained in
effective condition in
accordance with NZ
Standards.

Measure:
Damaged, missing
or leaning signs are
remedied on District
roads.

Measure:
All reported potholes
are repaired on
District roads.

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

 Not Applicable

14/15:
Measured by
the network
consultant


100% of all
roads.

13/14:



Measured by
the network
consultant

Measured by
the network
consultant

100% of
regulatory/
permanent/
warning signs
remedied within
7 days. All other
signs within 6
weeks.

85% within 5
days for >100
vehicle per day
(vpd) roads and
within 14 days
for <100 vpd
roads.

14/15:



13/14:


14/15:


13/14:


14/15:

Measure:
All programmed new
footpaths are
installed.

Measure:
Issues reported to
the Council
regarding state
highways are
forwarded to the
New Zealand
Transport Agency.
Measure:
Percentage of
customers satisfied
with the quality of
roads in the District
(excluding state
highways).

Measured by
the network
consultant

Service
request
database

100% of
programmed
footpaths
installed.

95% of all
reported issues
are forwarded
within one
working day.


13/14:


14/15:


13/14:


14/15:

Customer
satisfaction
survey

2014/15
achievement


>70% satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: Barriers were
installed and maintained in
effective condition in
accordance in NZ Standards.
(2013/14: Barriers installed in
effective condition in
accordance with NZ
Standards)
Achieved: There was a total
of 101 sign issues reported
the year. 100% (18/18) of
regulatory/permanent/warning
sign issues were resolved
within 7 days. All other sign
issues were resolved within 6
weeks.
(2013/14: 100%)
Achieved: There was a total
of 27 potholes reported on
District roads in the year. 19
of these were on >100
vehicle per day roads and
100% (19/19) were repaired
within 5 days. The remaining
8 potholes were on <100 vpd
roads and 100% (8/8) were
repaired within 14 days.
(2013/14: 100%)
Achieved: 100% of the
programmed footpaths were
installed in the year.
 Waihi ward - 346m
 Paeroa ward - 20m
 Plains ward - 533m
(2013/14: 82%)
Achieved: 100% (69/69) of
State Highway issues were
forwarded to New Zealand
Transport Agency within one
working day.
(2013/14: 98%)
Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed
that 71%* of residents are
satisfied with the quality of
roads in the District and 29%
are dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 72% satisfied and
28% dissatisfied)

* The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
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What happened in 2014/15?
Subsidised roading


Resurfacing – 15 km of resurfacing was completed in 2014/15 at a cost of $410,000.
The resurfacing completed in 2014/15 included 7 sites in the Plains Ward (5.3 km in
total), 23 sites in the Paeroa Ward (7.2 km in total), and 12 sites in the Waihi Ward (2.5
km in total).



Area-wide pavement rehabilitation – To substitute pavement where it is more
economic than repairing minor defects, $940,000 was spent in 2014/15. The
programme included the completion of the 2013/14 project on 1.54 km of Pukekauri
Road in Waihi. 2.08 km was paved in Kaihere Road in Ngatea, 0.9 km on Rountree
Road in Mangatarata and 1.45 km on Hauraki Road in Turua.



Drainage renewals – To address deteriorating sections of drainage that may
reduce the pavement life including kerbing and channelling, $163,000 was spent in
2014/15. The drainage work included:
Programmed culvert renewals at various sites including Hauraki Road, Deam Road,
Hubbard Road and Hume Road.
Pipes were purchased for the culvert renewal on Waitete Road in Waihi, with
construction programmed for the 2015/16 year.
Kerb and channel renewals were also completed at Moresby Avenue and Dobson
Street in Waihi.
The renewal of catchpits and headwalls or similar drainage features on various
roads around the District.








Street lighting ($68,000) – Work throughout the District included various programmed
traffic services renewals including lighting, signage and reflector pavement markers
(RRPM) renewals.



Associated improvements – $162,500 was spent in 2014/15. This expenditure
included kerbing and channelling, seal widening, signage and culverts associated
with area wide treatments on Pukekauri Road (Waihi), Kaihere Road (Ngatea) and
Rountree Road (Mangatarata).



Minor improvements –$340,000 was spent in the 2014/15 year, a significant under
spend as no bridge renewals were completed.
The following projects were completed in 2014/15:
o Safety improvements on Pukekauri Road, Waihi were completed in conjunction
with the 2013/14 area wide treatment.
o Lighting Improvements on Tower/Seymour Street in Paeroa
o Ngatitangata Road, Waihi geometric improvements
o McGowan Avenue, Kerepehi new footpath
o Keepa Avenue, Paeroa parking improvements
o Minor traffic services improvements in Kerepehi and Buchanan Street, Paeroa
o Various delineation improvements such as new edgelines on East Coast and
Kaiaua Roads in Kaiaua, and other programmed signage upgrades.
o Mueller Street, Waihi drainage improvements
o Items from the Walking and Cycling Programme including pram crossing
upgrades at various locations as identified from the recent accessibility audit.
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Waikato Road Asset Technical Alliance (RATA) – In June 2014 the Council
committed to participation in the Waikato Road Asset Technical Alliance (RATA).
RATA’s purpose is to promote excellence and best practice in roading asset
management and to provide a resource to roading managers. The regional RATA
survey, which measures customer satisfaction and perceived quality of the roads in the
area was carried out during April/May 2015.

Non-subsidised Roading


Paeroa – 20 m of new footpath was constructed in Dearle Street at a cost of $2,300.
A new carpark was constructed on Council land at the corner of Arney Street and
Princes Street, next to the Paeroa Swimming Pool at a cost of $75,000. The carpark is
a 20-bay facility, including three mobility spaces and will provide easy access to
surrounding businesses.



Plains – On East Coast Road in Kaiaua, a 13m section of potholed sealed footpath
has been reinstated with a 1.4 m wide concrete footpath. In addition, a pram
crossing was installed at the side road to the south, at a total cost of $2,300.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why






Bridge repairs –There were no major bridge structural component replacements carried out in
2014/15 as they were not required.
Preventative maintenance – No preventative maintenance work was done in the 2014/15 year
as it was not required.
Paeroa footpaths – The footpath and existing kerb and channelling at Goldfield’s school was not
completed in 2014/15, This project has been deferred to 2015/16 due to a late program change on
the Norwood Road works
Waihi footpaths – Footpath replacement on Barry Road was not completed due to weather and
contractor availability. It is planned to be completed in the first quarter of 2015/16.

Operating Statement for Roading
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Roading
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Water Supply Group of Activities
What is the Water Supply Group of Activities?
The Water Supply Group of Activities involves the provision of domestic, commercial and agricultural
water to the Hauraki District communities. Water supply is a core service of the Council, and a sound
water supply is a prerequisite to public health and safety and economic wellbeing. The Council also
aims to maintain sufficient supply in urban areas to meet fire fighting needs.
To achieve this, we own and operate eight water supply networks that serve the main urban
communities of Paeroa, Waihi and Ngatea, the smaller communities of Karangahake, Mackaytown,
Waikino, Kerepehi, Waitakaruru and Turua, and the rural areas of the Hauraki Plains, Kaimanawa
(rural area including the Hikutaia/Maratoto area), and
Ohinemuri (Paeroa rural).
Fresh water is essential for people and animals. The Council
provides sufficient quantities of fresh water, treated to reduce
the risk of water borne diseases, for public health and amenity
and for livestock farming. We undertake this activity to meet
the community expectation that safe water will be provided, as
well as to meet statutory obligations.

The Water Supply Group
primarily contributes to the
following Community
Outcome:
Interactive Hauraki

Identified effects on the community

Lifestyle Hauraki

The Water Supply Group provides for the sustainable supply
of safe, clean water as needed by the community to support a
good quality of life and physical and mental wellbeing. The
provision of a reliable water supply also supports local
businesses to enable them to continue their operation knowing water is available to them as they require it.

Prepared Hauraki

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement
 Not Applicable

Water supply services are affordable.

14/15:



Measure:
Customers are
satisfied with the
value for money of
water supplied by
the Council**
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Customer
satisfaction
survey

60%
satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed that
67%* of residents on Council
water supply are satisfied with
value for money of water and
33% are dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 63% satisfied and
37% dissatisfied)
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Method of
measurement

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Information on water supply services is available.
Measure:
The following
information
relating to the
HDC water supply
is available on the
Council’s website:
 current
resource
consents
relating to
water
 NZ Drinking
Water
Standards
 links to water
supply
compliance
information
 the Water
Supply Asset
Management
Plan
executive
summary.

14/15:



HDC Water Supply
Asset Management
Plan and
www.drinking
water.org.nz

All
information
is current
and
available on
Council’s
website

13/14:



Achieved: The following
information relating to the
HDC water supply is
available on the Council’s
website:
 current resource
consents relating to
water
 NZ Drinking Water
Standards
 links to water supply
compliance information
 the Water Supply Asset
Management Plan
executive summary (this
was updated at the end
of July 2015)
(2013/14: All information
current and available)

Water supply is adequate for fire fighting purposes.
Measure:
Percentage of
residential
properties within a
gazetted urban
fire district that
have a fire
hydrant within the
recommended
distance.

14/15:


Mapping done via
GIS software

>95%

13/14:



Achieved: GIS analysis,
carried out early 2012,
shows 95.3% of residential
properties within a gazetted
urban fire district have a fire
hydrant within the
recommended distance.
(2013/14: 95.3% properties
with fire hydrant within
recommended distance)

Water from public water supplies is safe to drink.
Measure:
Number of
notifiable illnesses
attributable to any
Council supply
meeting NZ
Drinking Water
Standards
(NZDWS).

Investigations by
the Health
Department into
cases of notifiable
illnesses do not
identify any Council
supply, that meets
NZDWS’s, as the
source of infection.

14/15:


0

13/14:


14/15:

Measure:
Customers are
satisfied with the
water quality from
HDC networks.


Customer
satisfaction survey

85%
satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: No notifiable
diseases have been
attributed to the HDC water
supply during the year.
(2013/14: No notifiable
diseases attributed to the
Council water supply)
Not Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed
that 76%* of residents on
Council water supply are
satisfied with the water
quality and 24% are
dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 80% satisfied and
20 dissatisfied)
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Method of
measurement

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

 Not Applicable

14/15:


Measure:
Progress is made
to achieve the
appropriate
requirements of
the NZDWS in
each water supply
area.

Measure:
Compliance with
NZDWS is
demonstrated in
regular reporting
to Council.

2014/15
achievement

Capital works
completion report
to Council.

Paeroa:
2014/15

Utility Manager’s
report to Council.

Full
compliance
at upgraded
works.

13/14:



14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: Progress has
been made to achieve the
appropriate requirements of
the NZ Drinking Water
Standards in the year.
Paeroa and Waihi water
treatment upgrades are
nearing completion, however
not fully complete.
Waitakaruru UV upgrade is
nearing completion, and the
balance of plant planning is
underway.
(2013/14: Not achieved –
upgrade rescheduled (target
was for Waihi))
Achieved: Kerepehi is the
only upgraded plant. This
plant was fully compliant in
2014/15.
(2013/14: Fully compliant)

A reliable water supply is provided.
Measure:
The number of ‘no
water’ incidents
within Council’s
control affecting
more than one
property.

14/15:


Service Monitoring
Records

<260

13/14:



Achieved: A total of 17 'no
water' incidences affecting
more than one property have
occurred in the year.
(2013/14: 17 ‘no water’
incidents)

Water resources are used efficiently and sustainably.
Measure:
The Council
complies with the
following resource
consent
conditions for all
supplies:
 residual flow
requirements
 maximum
take.

14/15:



Residual flow
requirements
Achieved: 100% achieved
for the year.
Maximum take limits

Resource Consent
reporting

100%

13/14:



Not Achieved: Achieved in
the second and fourth
quarter, however were not
achieved in first quarter and
third quarter. Waikino did not
comply due to a high level of
leakage in July and August
2014. During the summer
months high demand at
Karangahake and Waikino
resulted in 11 days at
Karangahake and 2 days at
Waikino where compliance
was not achieved.
(2013/14: Residual flow not
achieved and maximum take
not achieved)

* The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
** This measure was amended for the 2014/15 Annual Plan.
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What happened in 2014/15?


Paeroa water treatment plant upgrade – As noted above, the upgrading of the water
treatment plant to comply with New Zealand Drinking Water Standards was largely
completed in the 2014/15 year. The remainder of the project is expected to be finalised
early in 2015/16. This project will also enable treatment of sufficient water to supply the
Ohinemuri, Karangahake and Mackaytown areas.



Waihi water treatment plant upgrade – As noted above, upgrades are required to
comply with Drinking Water Standards and to be able to treat sufficient water to supply
the Waikino area. This project has been mostly completed in the 2014/15 year, and is
expected to be commissioned early in 2015/16.



Treatment plant upgrade at Waitakaruru – The upgrades required to meet New
Zealand Drinking Water Standards were progressed in 2014/15. The Council resolved
to stage this work by priority, beginning with an ultraviolet (UV) disinfection upgrade,
and the minimum automation work to enable the UV plant. The supporting work will be
completed in the 2015/16 year.



Waihi alternative water source – Construction of a new supplementary water take
from the Ohinemuri River for the Waihi supply during low flow periods was completed in
2014/15. Commissioning of the project is expected to be completed early in the 2015/16
year.



Waikino connect to Waihi – A project to connect Waikino water supply to the Waihi
Township supply was tendered in the 2014/15 year and was awarded in the 2015/16
year. Construction work is expected to be completed by the end of 2015.



Connection of Karangahake and Mackaytown supplies to Paeroa supply – The
design for this project was substantially completed in the 2014/15 year. The project is
expected to be completed by the end of the 2015/16 year.



SCADA upgrade water - A number of SCADA upgrades were completed as
operational projects in 2014/15. Capital SCADA upgrades at the two Waitakaruru
intakes have been started in 2014/15 at a total estimated cost of $36,200.



Water mains renewals (including Ohinemuri) - $99,500 was spent in 2014/15
replacing approximately 2.3 km of water pipe in Reservoir Canal Road in Kerepehi. The
remaining budget will be carried over to 2015/16 unavailability of key personnel.
$68,000 has been spent renewing the main on Old Reservoir Road in Ohinemuri. The
balance of this project has been deferred pending condition assessments.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


Waitakaruru and Kerepehi Treated Water Storage – This project was originally planned for
Waitakaruru only, however an investigation has shown it is more practical and cost effective to
have a single storage location for both Waitakaruru and Kerepehi. This project has therefore been
reprioritised and will be carried out between 2016 and 2017.

Operating Statement for Water Supply
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Water Supply
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Wastewater Group of Activities
What is the Wastewater Group of Activities?
The wastewater service is a core service of the Council and involves the collection, treatment and
disposal of wastewater.
The Council provides and operates piped sewer networks and treatment plants for seven urban areas.
It ensures that collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater complies with public health
requirements and specific resource consent conditions, particularly those requiring the minimising of
adverse effects on the receiving environment.
The key reasons for providing a service for treatment and disposal of wastewater are: to protect public
health, to mitigate the risks of pollution and disease associated with wastewater, and to protect the
receiving environments from the effects of wastewater products and by-products.
In addition to the Council monitoring the on-going
effectiveness and efficiency of the public wastewater
systems, working with the Regional Council, our Regulatory
Services Group maintains an overview of the adequacy of
private collection and disposal systems (such as septic tanks
on rural properties), and takes appropriate steps when
problems or potential problems are identified.

The Wastewater Group
primarily contributes to the
following Community
Outcome:
Interactive Hauraki

Identified effects on the community
The Wastewater Group ensures the sanitary collection and
safe treatment and disposal of wastewater to cater for basic
human needs for a safe standard of living across the District.
The provision of services within the Wastewater Group
assists in enabling communities to function in a healthy
environment, with appropriate mechanisms in place to
dispose of wastewater in an environmentally appropriate way.

Sustainable Hauraki
Prepared Hauraki

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

 Achieved

Method of
measureme
nt

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Information on wastewater services is available.
Measure:
The following information
relating to the HDC
wastewater services is
available on the Council’s
website:
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HDC
Wastewater
Asset
Management
Plan and
Resource
Consent

Current and
available

14/15:



Achieved:
 All resource consents
relating to wastewater
are available on the
HDC website.
 The 2013/14
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Levels of Service
Key:




Method of
measureme
nt

 Achieved

current resource
consents relating to
wastewater disposal
the Wastewater
Asset Management
Plan executive
summary.

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

reporting
system

13/14:



Wastewater Asset
Management
executive summary is
published on
Council's website.
(2013/14: All documents
current and available on
the website)

Wastewater is managed without risk to public health and safety.

Measure:
Number of wastewater
overflows into legally
consented dwellings due
to faults in the wastewater
system.

Asset
manager
verified
overflows as
reported in
Service
Request
system and
reported to
the Council
on
quarterly/mo
nthly basis

14/15:



0

13/14:



Achieved: There were no
overflows into legally
consented dwellings
during the year.
(2013/14: No overflows
into legally consented
dwellings)

A reliable wastewater service is provided.
Measure:
Respond to blockages of
public sewer mains (not
private connections)
within four hours.

14/15:
Service
request
system


>90%

13/14:



Achieved: 100% (31/31)
of blockages of public
sewer mains were
responded to within four
hours in the year.
(2013/14: 97% within
four hours)

Wastewater is managed without adversely affecting the quality of the receiving
environment.
Plant

100% compliance for:

14/15:


Whiritoa

13/14:


14/15:
Measure:
The Council complies
with resource consent
conditions.

Wastewater
Resource
Consent
reporting
system


Waihi

13/14:


14/15:


Turua

13/14:


Paeroa

14/15:



Achieved: Fully
compliant with resource
consent conditions.
(2013/14: One condition
not compliant)
Not Achieved: Waihi
failed to meet two
discharge conditions
relating to ammoniacal*
nitrogen. (2013/14: 100%
compliant)
Not Achieved: Turua
failed to meet one
discharge condition
relating to Escherichia
coli bacteria (E. coli).
(2013/14: Two conditions
not compliant)
Achieved: Fully
compliant with resource
consent conditions.
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measureme
nt

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

 Not Applicable

13/14:


14/15:


Kerepehi

13/14:


14/15:
Ngatea


13/14:


14/15:



Waitakaruru

2014/15
achievement

13/14:



(2013/14: Two conditions
not compliant)

Achieved: Fully
compliant with resource
consent conditions.
(2013/14: One condition
not compliant)
Not Achieved: Ngatea
failed to meet one
condition relating to E.
coli. (2013/14: 100%
compliant)
Not Achieved:
Waitakaruru failed to
meet one discharge
condition relating to the
suspended solids limit.
(2013/14: 100%
compliant)

Good quality wastewater services are provided.

14/15:
Measure:
Percentage of users
satisfied with the quality
of wastewater services
provided.


Customer
satisfaction
survey

95% satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey
showed that 95%** of
users are satisfied with
the quality of wastewater
services and 5% were
dissatisfied. (2013/14:
94% satisfied and 6%
dissatisfied)

* Ammoniacal levels are used as an indicator of water and habitat quality. Ammonia is released in our treatment
ponds during the breakdown of organic matter found in wastewater.
** The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

What happened in 2014/15?


Kerepehi, Paeroa and Waihi mains renewals – Investigations into the Paeroa
renewals continued in 2014/15 with $10,500 spent on this project, with the remainder of
the project to be continued in the 2015/16 year.



Pump station cabinet renewals – This project involves the upgrade of all controllers to
an automated linked system and the replacement of roadside cabinets that have
reached end of their useful life. In the 2014/15 year, scoping was completed by a
consultant with an expectation of tendering works early in the 2015/16 year.



Renewal of Resource consent for Ngatea – Work was undertaken on the assessment
of environmental effects in the 2014/15 year for this resource consent. Consultation on
the consent was carried out in June/July 2015 and the consent was lodged early in the
new financial year.
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Sewer pump renewals – $29,000 was spent on replacing four pumps which failed
during the year. Pump replacement is only carried out after failure, to ensure the
maximum life is obtained from each pump.



Kerepehi Wastewater – Funding of $400,000 was allocated to obtain the necessary
resource consents for the development of the wastewater treatment system to serve the
Kerepehi industrial area. The assessment of environmental effects has been completed
in the 2014/15 year and consultation with affected parties began this year. It is expected
that the resource consent application will be lodged in the 2015/16 year.
A full consultation process will be undertaken regarding any new wastewater treatment
plant proposal at Kerepehi.



Karangahake to Paeroa wastewater line – This project is for pumping wastewater
from Karangahake to the Paeroa treatment plant. In the 2014/15 year the design for the
project was developed and the project is expected to be fully completed in the 2015/16
year.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why




Hard pruning/coppicing of vegetation in Whiritoa (to improve nutrient uptake in the effluent
field forestry) – This project was rescheduled to re-evaluate the appropriateness of the current
methodology. The results of an investigation recommended the planting of redwood trees instead
of eucalyptus. The trial of this has commenced and is expected to take 2 to 3 years.
Wastewater mains renewals - $196,000 of the renewals budget remains unused in 2014/15, as
the budget was a precautionary measure against premature failure of asbestos cement mains, of
which there was none.

Operating Statement for Wastewater
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Wastewater
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Land Drainage Group of Activities
What is the Land Drainage Group of Activities?
Land drainage and flood protection and control group of activities both work towards achieving the
same goals in terms of retaining the productive capability of the land; therefore these activities have
been incorporated into one Group of Activities called Land Drainage. The Council also believes that
Land Drainage is the most easily understood name for this activity, for those who are affected. The
legislative requirement for the Flood Protection and Control Works activities is set out in section 2 of
schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002. Land drainage is a particularly significant activity for
Hauraki District Council, more so than for most other local authorities in New Zealand. The Council
has land drainage standing committees that have representatives from both the Council and users that
advise the Council on land drainage and flood protection and control measures.
Land drainage and flood protection and control are key functions of the Council’s operation, as a
considerable portion of the northern Hauraki Plains lies at or
below the normal high tide level in the Firth of Thames. The
remainder of the land on the Hauraki Plains is only slightly
above this level, so protection against high water tables,
The Land Drainage Group
extreme weather events, high tides and river floods is
essential to the continuing occupation and use of the land for
primarily contributes to the
residential, agricultural and horticultural purposes.

following Community
Outcome:

Identified effects on the community

Prepared Hauraki

The impact of the provision of services within the Land
Drainage Group is positive for those communities where the
preservation and protection of the land’s farming capacity is
required. Both assets and stock require protection in times of
flood, and this Group helps to create a reliable environment
for those affected.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

 Achieved

Method of
measurement

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Quality drainage services provided to all customers.

14/15:
Measure:
Percentage of
affected customers
satisfied with the
land drainage
services.


Customer
satisfaction survey

75%
satisfied

13/14:
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Not Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed
that 71%* of residents
located in a rural area are
satisfied with the land
drainage services and 29%
are dissatisfied. (2013/14:
75% satisfied and 25%
dissatisfied)
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Levels of Service
Key:

 Achieved

Method of
measurement

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

A reliable land drainage network is provided.

14/15:
Measure:
Number of
properties affected
by ponding of more
than three days
duration during a
one in ten year event
or less (as defined
by the HIRDS
analysis).


Drainage
Committee reports

0

13/14:



Achieved: No properties
were affected by ponding of
more than three days during
the year. There were no one
in ten year events in
2014/15.
Note: There is an
international methodology
for rating storms based on
their return period. The
greater the return period, the
more severe the storm
event, e.g. one in ten year
storm is a more severe
event than a one in five year
storm.
(2013/14: Achieved – no
applicable rainfall events).

Efficient response to drainage problems and emergencies.
Measure:
Percentage of urgent
service requests
regarding land
drainage responded
to within four hours.
Measure:
Percentage of nonurgent service
requests regarding
land drainage
services responded
to within two working
days.

14/15:
Service Request
database



>95%

13/14:


14/15:


Service Request
database

>95%

13/14:



Achieved: 100% (2/2)
service requests regarding
land drainage were
responded to in less than
four hours. (2013/14: 100%
(target was >90%)).
Achieved: 96% (26/27) of
non-urgent service requests
regarding land drainage
services were responded to
in less than two working
days. (2013/14: 96% (target
was >90%)).

Reliable flood protection assets are provided.
Measure:
The number of
failures of stopbanks
and floodgates in a
one in 50 year event.

Monthly
inspections
recorded in
Authority Asset
Management (AM)
database.

14/15:



0

13/14:



Achieved: No failures of
stopbanks were reported in
the year. No significant
events were recorded.
(2013/14: No stopbank
failures)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
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What happened in 2014/15?
Land Drainage


Komata North Drainage District Alexander Canal – The survey of the stopbank in
2014/15 indicated there was no urgent need to reconstruct at this point.



Reconstruction of the foreshore stopbanks from Karito to Hot Springs, Karito to
Indian floodgate, Hot Springs to Boundary and Waitakaruru – This was originally
scheduled for 2014/15 in the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan, however was deferred
due to a recent survey which indicated a slower rate of settlement than was originally
predicted. A revised programme of reconstruction of the foreshore stopbanks is detailed
in the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan.



Waitakaruru stream left stopbank – The stopbank from the State Highway to the
Indian Floodgate has been reconstructed in the 2014/15 year due to the existing
stopbank being of a lesser standard than expected.



Muggeridge Pump Station – This project will provide a pump service to the
predominantly peat land south and west of Ngatea. This is the southern area of the
Pouarua Maukoro Drainage Scheme. Although the project is led by the Waikato
Regional Council (WRC), the pump will be an asset of the Piako River Scheme but will
be operated by Hauraki District Council.
In 2014/15 on-going liaison with the Western Plains Drainage Committee has been
occurring. A Project Control Group which includes the Council’s Drainage Manager is
progressing the project.

Flood Protection


Miranda-Waitakaruru foreshore area stopbanks – Surveying of the stopbanks from
Karito to Hot Springs, Karito to Indian floodgate, Hot Springs to Boundary (all on the
Miranda-Waitakaruru foreshore area) has been completed in 2014/15. This surveying
identified areas that needed medium or long term reconstruction and assisted in
prioritising the reconstruction programme. The work programme has been included in
the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan.



Taramaire Drainage District rates – The flood protection component to the drainage
rate for the Taramaire Drainage District was proposed in the consultation of the 2015-25
Hauraki Long Term Plan. No submissions were received regarding this proposal. This
rate contributes to drain and flood gate maintenance in this drainage district. Hauraki
District Council acquired this land drainage area from the former Franklin District
Council which had not been charging those relevant property owners land drainage
rates.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why




Eastern Plains Drainage District H drain culvert replacements – The budget of $2,000 for this
project was allocated as a contingency and was not required in 2014/15. The budget will be
carried over to 2015/16 year.
Investigation into the appropriate level of service for foreshore stopbanks – A joint Waikato
Regional Council and Hauraki District Council working party has been formed to determine the
appropriate role for the Waikato Regional Council in the Waitakaruru/Miranda/Kaiaua area. It is
understood that the Regional Council is proposing to defer further investigations and will revisit
this issue in its 2018-28 Long Term Plan.
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Hot Springs Canal tributary stopbank reconstruction – Excavation from the canal has been
completed in the 2014/15 year. The remaining budget is to allow compaction and shaping of this
material once it has consolidated. Completion of the project and the remaining budget has been
carried over to 2015/16.

Operating Statement for Land Drainage
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Land Drainage
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Stormwater Group of Activities
What is the Stormwater Group of Activities?
The Stormwater Group of Activities involves the disposal of excess rainfall runoff from urban areas
using drainage systems which include natural watercourses, man-made drains, open channels,
reticulated pipe networks and other structures for accepting stormwater runoff.
The purpose of the Stormwater Group is to ensure the safe removal of stormwater to maintain
transport and communication networks, minimise the risk of flooding to property and minimise the risk
to human life in the urban communities of the District.
The Council has a statutory obligation to provide stormwater services in some areas. However, there
is also a community expectation that adequate stormwater
services will be provided in urban areas and the Council is
seen to be the most appropriate organisation to provide this
The Stormwater Group
service. The stormwater service is complementary to the rural
land drainage function, but rural land drainage systems and
primarily contributes to the
flood protection works do not form part of the Stormwater
following Community
Group of Activities.

Outcome:
Identified effects on the community

Prepared Hauraki

The Stormwater Group helps ensure the safety of people’s
lives and property in times of rainfall, by ensuring runoff is
efficiently and effectively dealt with, to assist in achieving
social and commercial certainty and avoiding the risk of
flooding.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Quality stormwater services are provided to all urban areas.

14/15:
Measure:
Customers are
satisfied with the
stormwater services.

Customer
satisfaction
survey


80%
satisfied

13/14:



Not Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey results
showed that 72%* of
customers were satisfied with
stormwater services and
28% were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 73% satisfied and
27% dissatisfied).

Stormwater systems provide efficient and reliable runoff removal.
Measure:
Percentage of urgent
service requests
regarding stormwater
emergencies
responded to within
four hours.
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14/15:
Service Request
database


>90%

13/14:



Achieved: 100% (9/9) of
urgent service requests
regarding stormwater
emergencies were
responded to in less than
four hours in the year.
(2013/14: 100%)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Measure:
Percentage of nonurgent service
requests regarding
stormwater services
responded to within
two working days.

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

 Not Applicable

14/15:
Service Request
database

2014/15
achievement


>90%

13/14:



Achieved: 95% (132/139) of
non-urgent service requests
regarding stormwater were
responded to in less than two
working days**. (2013/14:
90%)

Obstructions in stormwater structures and pipes are minimised.
Measure;
Number of reported
blockages in
stormwater drains
and structures.

Service Request
database and
Asset Manager
analysis

14/15:


<32**

13/14:



Achieved: A total of 16
blockages in stormwater
drains were reported in the
year. (2013/14: 30 reported
blockages)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
**The Council has a system for recording that the work has been completed. However there are no controls in
place that enables the accuracy of this information to be verified.

**Refined analysis of service requests resulted in a reduction in targets from the baseline.

What happened in 2014/15?
Renewals:


Ngatea – Ngatea Domain renewal was carried out at a cost of $34,000. The
remaining budget of $30,000 will not be carried over.



District wide – A total of 537 m of open drains were piped in Waihi, Kerepehi, Turua
and Paeroa at a cost of $159,500. The remaining budget ($20,500) will be carried
over to the 2015/16 year.

Upgrades:

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


Kaiaua investigations – Investigation into an appropriate approach to stream flood protection
and catchment management in the Kaiaua area was not completed in 2014/15. The Waikato
Regional Council has deferred this investigation and has indicated that its involvement in
catchment management will be reviewed in its 2018-28 Long Term Plan. The budget of $10,000
has been carried over to the 2015/16 year.

Operating Statement for Stormwater
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Stormwater
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Solid Waste Group of Activities
What is the Solid Waste Group of Activities?
The Solid Waste Group of Activities consists of four parts: solid waste collection, minimisation,
education and landfill aftercare, described as follows:







Solid waste collection is the kerbside collection of refuse and recyclables and the management of
the District’s two transfer stations, located in Paeroa and Waihi.
Solid waste minimisation encompasses efforts made District-wide to reduce the waste stream.
This aims to enhance environmental and economic benefits and to comply with legislative
requirements.
The Council runs and supports education initiatives
promoting the benefits of waste minimisation and
The Solid Waste Group
recycling.
primarily contributes to the
Landfill aftercare comprises site monitoring, and
implementation of the post closure requirements of the
following Community
relevant resource consents for previous landfills.

Outcome:

Interactive Hauraki

Identified effects on the community
The aim of the Solid Waste Group is to ensure the sanitary
and safe collection and disposal of recycling and solid waste,
to help protect the social and environmental wellbeing of the
Hauraki community, and to implement recycling initiatives to
ensure environmental sustainability. The provision of services
within the Solid Waste Activity assists in enabling
communities to function in a healthy, comfortable and safe
environment, with appropriate mechanisms for solid waste
disposal in an environmentally appropriate manner.

Sustainable Hauraki
Prepared Hauraki

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

 Achieved

Method of
measurement

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Opportunities for community involvement in decision making are provided.
Measure:
The current Waste
Management and
Minimisation Plan, as
approved following
community
consultation, is
available on the
website.
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14/15:



HDC website

Current
and
available

13/14:



Achieved: The Waste
Management and
Minimisation Plan is on the
HDC website under the
'Documents' section.
(2013/14: Current and
available on the website)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Collection systems and waste processing facilities are clean and efficient.
Measure:
Percentage of users
satisfied with the
kerbside collection
service.

14/15:
Customer
satisfaction
survey


90%
satisfied

13/14:



Not Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed
that 84%* of users were
satisfied with kerbside
collection services and
16% were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 86% satisfied
and 14% dissatisfied)

Waste disposal at transfer stations is available.
Measure:
A transfer station will
be open in the District
every day except for
public holidays.

14/15:
Transfer Station
daily record
summary

Open and
available


13/14:



Achieved: A transfer station
has been open and
available every day (except
public holidays) during the
year. (2013/14: Open every
day except public holidays)

Waste is collected on advertised days.
Measure:
Number of days that
collection is not
completed on the
scheduled day for
each collection area.

14/15:
Service
Request
System


2 or less

13/14:



Achieved: One collection
was not completed on the
scheduled day in April at
Waihi. All other collections
have occurred on
scheduled days for the
year. (2013/14: All
collections on scheduled
days)

Adverse effects of waste on the environment are minimised.
Measure:
The amount of waste
collected from the
kerbside per year per
serviced property.

Landfill
Management
Reports

<200kg
per
property
per year by
2022**

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: Total amount of
waste collected from the
kerbside per property for
the year was 197.71 kg.
(2013/14: 219.14 kg)

* The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
** Assuming a linear reduction over the Long Term Plan term, the target for 2014/15 is <290 kg per property.

What happened in 2014/15?


Paper for Trees
In 2014/15 there were 23 schools and preschools in the Paper4trees programme in the
Hauraki District. By recycling 29.68 tonnes of paper and cardboard, the schools and
preschools in the District earned a total of 129 native trees to plant at school or in the
community. This has saved 237 cubic metres of landfill space and prevented 160
tonnes of carbon emissions. This programme aims to develop positive lifelong attitudes
to waste minimisation in children, which will have a positive spin-off of reducing waste
volumes in future years.
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Enviroschools/Zero Waste Education
As for the Paper for Trees programme, this aims to develop life-long waste awareness
and responsibility in children, which will result in reduced waste volumes in future years.
Each participating school in the District has the choice of either the Enviroschools or
Zero Waste Education programmes. Approximately half of the schools are participating
in the Enviroschools programme and half in the Zero Waste programme. In 2014/15
Waikino School worked towards its Enviroschools goal of achieving green gold status,
which means that sustainable practices are being maintained and are growing through
student-led enquiry. Goldfields School in Paeroa has also worked towards green gold in
2014/15. Miller Avenue School in Paeroa achieved bronze at the end of 2014.
The Zero Waste education programme is carried out using external teachers to educate
the children about sustainability. Their lessons cover different topics as they progress
through the next classes which give the children the whole curriculum before they enter
college.



The Council has continued to implement the consent conditions for the closure of the
Paeroa and Waihi landfills. In 2014/15 the eastern area of the Waihi closed landfill has
been planted with native trees. Work on the rehabilitation of the Paeroa closed landfill
has been carried out during the 2014/15 year. These are ongoing projects and will
involve the implementation of long term monitoring.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned actions that didn’t happen in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Solid Waste
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Solid Waste
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Services Group of
Activities
What is the Community Services Group of Activities?
Community Services involves the provision of services that address social, cultural and environmental
needs and wellbeings, provided in response to the public seeking to improve quality of life. The
community accepts that the provision of these services is a discretionary cost that they predominantly
pay for through rates.

What activities are included in the Community Services Group?




Community Recreation
o Libraries
o Swimming Pools
o Events Centre
o Sports Fields and Recreation Reserves
o District Sports Co-ordinator
Community Facilities
o Halls
o Pensioner Housing
o Public Toilets
o Cemeteries
o Non-Recreation Reserves

Identified effects on the community

The Community Services
Group primarily contributes
to the following Community
Outcome:
Lifestyle Hauraki
Progress Hauraki
Prepared Hauraki

The provision of services within the Community Services
Group of Activities primarily focuses on improving the social
and cultural wellbeing of the community. Recreational
facilities, such as parks and reserves, have a positive impact
in the community and relate to aspects of life that are important for a person’s happiness, quality of life
and welfare. Libraries also service the educational and cultural needs of the community, at a low cost
to the user, making historical, cultural, educational and electronic resources accessible for all. Other
facilities such as pensioner housing give people in the community the opportunity to have access to
basic housing needs in an affordable way, creating a positive impact in the lives of those who utilise
these facilities.

Operating Statement for the Community Services Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for the Community Services Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Recreation
What is the Community Recreation Activity?
The Community Recreation Activity provides opportunities for active recreation, aquatic recreation and
public access to learning opportunities. The activity encourages residents to have involvement in their
community through sports and leisure, and encourages the physical and mental wellbeing of both
residents and visitors. There is a community expectation that the Council will provide these facilities.
The Community Recreation Activity addresses the recreational, sporting and educational needs of the
community. It includes:
 libraries
 swimming pools
 events centre
 sports fields and recreational reserves
 District Sports Co-ordinator

Meeting our service targets
Libraries
Community
Outcome

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement
 Not Applicable

Library services are provided in a customer focused and effective way to support the
recreational needs of the community.
Measure:
Percentage of
library users
satisfied with
library
services.

14/15:
Customer
satisfaction
survey


>90%
satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed that
91%* of library users were
satisfied with library services
and 9% were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 96% satisfied and 4%
dissatisfied)

An appropriate range of print, audio-visual and electronic resources are provided to ensure
public access to learning materials.

14/15:
a) Review and
analysis of library
resources that
were issued

+/- 3%
increase on
previous
year


13/14:



Measure:
Use of the
resources by
the public.

14/15:
b) Online
resource usage
sessions

>5%
increase on
previous
year


13/14:
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Not Achieved: 133,390 items
were issued in the 2014/15
year, compared to 138,748 for
2013/14** - a decrease of
3.86%. It is believed that the
reduction is due to an increase
in online resource usage.
(2013/14: 138,548 items
issued, a 5.8% decrease)

Achieved: 16,871 online
resource usage sessions for the
year, compared to 7,045 for
2013/14** - an increase of
139%. (2013/14: Online
resource usage not measured
as data not available)
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Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement
 Not Applicable

Libraries attract a wide audience.
Measure:
The number of
library
members is
increasing.
Measure:
The number of
library website
visitors is
increasing.

Measure:
The number of
library Wi-Fi
users is above
the previous
year.

14/15:
Library
Management
System

40% of
District
population

Achieved: Library membership
totalled 9,184 as at 30 June
2015 (51.6% of the District
population). (2013/14: 49% of
District population)



13/14:


14/15:

Achieved: There were 15,766
website visitors in the year
(exceeding the annual target of
>6,000). (2013/14: 10,481 web
visitors (target was >5,500))


Website visitors

>6,000

13/14:



Achieved: Wi-Fi use has
increased 42% from 33,611 in
the 2013/14 year to 47,895 in
the 2014/15 year.
(2013/14: This measure was
new for the 2014/15 Annual
Plan)

14/15:
Library records of
Wi-Fi users

>5%
increase on
the previous
year



13/14:



*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
** The 2013/14 library data has been identified as being unreliable due to the external vendor's systems - the data
included other libraries' online resource data as well as the Hauraki District.

Swimming Pools
Community
Outcome

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Provide clean and safe aquatic facilities that meet community demand and promote active
recreation.
Measure:
Results of three
independent
audits
undertaken on
each swimming
pool facility to
assess them for
safety.

Results of the
three audits
during opening
season

97%
compliance
with the NZ
Swimming
Pool
Standards

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved:
 Ngatea 97% compliance
 Paeroa 99% compliance
 Waihi 98% compliance
(2013/14: All pools
compliant 98-99%)

Aquatic facilities are accessible and available daily during the season.

Measure:
Number of days
each public pool
is open and
available as
advertised.

14/15:
Monthly reports
prepared by
Pool Supervisor

<2 full days
closed per
pool per year


13/14:



Achieved: The public pools
have not closed during the
2014/15 swimming season.
(2013/14: Paeroa pool was
closed four half days due to
faecal contamination)

57 | P a g e

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Community
Outcome

Page 302

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Council operated swimming pool facilities are safe for users.
Measure:
Number of
reported
accidents at
Council operated
swimming pools
as a result of
poor design or
maintenance.
Measure:
Pool users are
satisfied with the
operation of
Council
swimming pools.

Measure
Increase in level
of patronage at
the pools.

Monthly reports
prepared by
Pool Supervisor
and Service
Request
Database

14/15:
No accidents
per season per
pool


13/14:


14/15:

Customer
satisfaction
survey


>90% satisfied

13/14:



Monthly reports
prepared by
Pool Supervisor

1% total
increase in
attendance
numbers per
public
swimming
season, prorated per week
against the
previous year.

14/15:



13/14:



Achieved: No accidents
were recorded due to
maintenance or design
during the 2014/15
swimming season.
(2013/14: No accidents due
to poor design or
maintenance)
Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed
that 94%* of pool users
were satisfied with pool
operation and 6% were
dissatisfied. (2013/14: 88%
satisfied and 12%
dissatisfied)
Achieved: The total number
of patrons for 2014/15 was
42,299 compared to 41,313
in 2013/14. This is a 2%
increase in patronage for
the season. (2013/14: The
figures in the 2013/14
Annual Report were
incorrectly reported.
Patronage in 2013/14 was
41,313 which was a 13%
decrease on 47,359 in
2012/13. The 2013/14 pool
season was shortened by
four weeks from the 2012/13
season).

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

Sports Fields and Recreational Reserves
Community
Outcome

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

The Council will provide sports fields that meet the needs of users.

Measure:
Number of
complaints
regarding sports
fields surface
available for
identified sports.
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14/15:


Service request
database

<9 recorded
complaints per
year.

13/14:



Achieved: No complaints
were received in the year
regarding the sports
fields' surface.
(2013/14: One complaint)
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Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Measure:
All urgent
maintenance
requests are
responded to in
less than 24
hours.
Measure:
All non-urgent
maintenance
requests are
responded to in
less than 4 days.

Target 2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

 Not Applicable

14/15:
Service Request
Database

100% compliant
– all requests
are responded
to in <24 hours.


13/14:


14/15:

Service Request
Database

100% compliant
– all requests
are responded
to in <4 days

2014/15
achievement


13/14:



Achieved: No urgent
maintenance requests
were received in the year
for sports fields.
(2013/14: No urgent
maintenance requests
received)
Achieved: No non-urgent
maintenance requests
were received during the
year. (2013/14: No nonurgent maintenance
requests received)

Safe park facilities are provided.

14/15:
Measure:
Park facilities are
safe and
compliant with
playground safety
standards.

Playground
inspections are
completed
monthly plus an
independent
annual audit

Playground audit
reports

Measure:
All urgent
maintenance
requests are
responded to in
less than 24
hours.

Service request
database and
playground
inspections

100% of urgent
maintenance
requests are
responded to in
<24 hours

Measure:
All non-urgent
maintenance
requests are
responded to in
less than 4 days.

Service request
database and
playground
inspections

100% of nonurgent
maintenance
requests are
responded to in
<4 days.


13/14:


14/15:


13/14:


14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: Monthly
inspections and audits
have been completed
throughout the year. An
independent audit was
also completed in the
second quarter. (2013/14:
Inspections and audit
carried out and noncompliant items fixed)
Achieved: 100% (1/1) of
urgent maintenance
requests were responded
to within 24 hours.
(2013/14: 100%
responded to in less than
24 hours)
Achieved: 100% (1/1) of
non-urgent maintenance
requests were responded
to in less than four days.
(2013/14: 80% responded
to in less than four days)

Park facilities are provided that meet community demand.
Measure:
Percentage of
users satisfied
with services and
facilities provided
at the Districts
Parks and
Reserves.

14/15:


Customer
satisfaction
survey

>90% satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey
showed that 95%* of
users were satisfied with
the services and facilities
provided at District parks
and reserves and 5%
were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 89% satisfied
and 11% dissatisfied)

* The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
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Sports Initiatives
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Foster the participation of residents in sports recreation and leisure.

Measure:
Programmes, training,
support and
communication are
provided to primary
and secondary
schools within Hauraki
at least twice per year.

Visit or be in
contact with:
 all primary
schools at
least twice
per annum
 all
secondary
schools at
least twice
per annum

Measure:
Delivery of five
programmes for
children under five
years through the
provision of resources,
communication,
training and support.

Maintain delivery
of at least five
programmes for
parent and
preschool groups
within the District
per annum.

Sports Coordinator’s
Annual Report

Measure:
Co-ordination of
sports/active living
related
training/advisory
sessions to cater for
sports clubs,
community groups
and seniors within the
District.

14/15:



13/14:



14/15:



13/14:



14/15:
At least 12
sports/active
living related
training sessions
to be completed
per year.



13/14:



Achieved: The Sports
Coordinator visited or
was in contact with all
primary schools and
secondary schools at
least twice during the
year. (2013/14: All
schools visited as
required)

Achieved: More than
five programmes for
parent and preschool
groups were
delivered at Hauraki
District schools in the
year. (2013/14:
Programmes
delivered as required)

Achieved: The Sports
Coordinator was
involved in 22
sports/active living
related training
sessions in the year.
(2013/14: 18 training
sessions completed)

What happened in 2014/15?
Libraries


New Paeroa Library – The Paeroa Library working party continued progress on the
planning and design in 2014/15. The initial design was completed, and the detailed
design was expected to be ready for tender at the end of October 2015.



Purchase of new books and library resources
$128,000 was spent on new books and resources during 2014/15, bringing the total
lending stock available to 45,060 as at July 2015.
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Homebound service – In 2015 an initiative was launched to deliver books and
resources to those who are unable to attend the libraries in Waihi, Paeroa and Ngatea.
The Librarians make the arrangements and get the books ready to go, volunteers
deliver to homes of library members, and pick up the books or resources when they are
ready to be returned.



School holiday programme – The school holiday programme was run in the July
school holiday period in 2014 after the Waihi Library opened. The programme had an
average of 27 children per day over the school holidays. Children were involved in a
diverse range of activities, all being able to be held in the library thanks to the new build.

Swimming Pools


Renewal of pool heating and components (Paeroa) – $15,000 was spent in October
2014 on heating, filtration and pump component renewals.



Renewal of filtration and pump components (Waihi) – In October 2014, filtration and
pump renewals were completed at the Waihi pool ($7,500).

Sports Fields and Recreational Reserves – Paeroa Ward


Primrose Hill Scout Hall project – Progress was made towards providing car parking
and disabled access to the scout building in conjunction with the Scouts. This project is
expected to be completed in 2015/16.



Railway Reserve playground – The under surface of the playground was replaced
with cushion fall in December 2014 ($10,000).



Railway Reserve BBQ – A new double electric BBQ was purchased in 2013/14 for the
Railway Reserve and was installed in 2014/15. The Council completed this project in
conjunction with the Paeroa Lions Club.



Puke Road boat ramp – The resealing of the carpark and roading areas was
completed at the end of 2014 ($20,000).



Town entrance beautification – Work has continued on the planting and associated
site works at the entrances to Paeroa, the remainder of the works are expected to be
completed in 2015/16.



Bridge Club Demolition – The bridge club was demolished in 2014/15. A builder’s
report noted that the structure of the building was unsound, and as the building was not
widely used by the community, demolition was the most cost effective option.

Sports Fields and Recreational Reserves – Plains Ward


Ngatea main street garden renewals –Replacement of the raised brick beds and the
planted displays was completed in February 2015.



Kerepehi playground renewals – In May 2015 playground equipment that no longer
complied with safety standards was removed and replaced with new items ($5,000).
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Turua jetty – Protection and repair of pontoons were completed in June 2015.

Sports Fields and Recreational Reserves – Waihi Ward


Waihi Main Street streetscape renewals – Street furniture, including bicycle racks and
lighting renewals were completed in 2014/15, with the remaining allocation of budget
($8,000) carried over to the 2015/16 year.



Morgan Park replacements – Park furniture, signage lighting and fencing was
replaced in 2014/15 ($3,000).



Morgan Park playground renewals – Mini trampolines were installed in the park to
replace a playground piece that had reached the end of its useful life ($9,000).



Parry Palm Avenue – Phoenix palm pruning was completed in December 2015
($22,000).



Minor recreation reserves – Park furniture, signage and fencing were replaced in
2014/15 including the fencing on Silverton Road ($9,000).



Gilmour Park walkway– renewals and repairs to the walkway were completed in April
2015 ($22,000)

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why












Waihi pool repaint – $18,000 was allocated to the repainting of the Waihi swimming pool in
2014/15. Due to the temperature becoming cold early in the year, which affects the ability of the
paint to dry, this work has been carried over to the 2015/16 year and is expected to be carried out
in October/November 2015.
Karangahake Reserve development – In 2013/14 the Council formed a working party that
considered concept plans designed to address the increased demands placed on this area as a
result of the Hauraki Rail Trail and walkways. In 2014/15 the New Zealand Transport Agency and
Department of Conservation progressed consultation with local residents. The $517,000
allowance for the public toilets upgrade and developments to this area will be carried over to the
2015/16 year following consultation.
Dudding Reserve – $4,000 was allocated to replace park furniture, signage and shelter in
2014/15. Students at Hauraki Plains College have worked with the Council to develop designs for
this project with the project expected to be completed in the 2015/16 year.
Waikino swing bridge car park – The Waikino Liaison Committee completed the reconstruction
of the swing bridge in December 2013. The Council allocated $88,000 for the construction of a car
park adjacent to the bridge. This project has been delayed while the New Zealand Transport
Agency and other stakeholders review the entire Karangahake Gorge transit corridor and any
potential impact to traffic movements as a result of this and other projects. It is expected that the
stakeholder review will be completed in 2015/16.
Cooks Landing area maintenance – The Cooks Landing project amount of $12,000 was
inadvertently included in the capital projects in the 2014/15 Annual Plan. This amount should have
been included in the operational budget for general maintenance. The project has not yet been
completed; therefore maintenance by the Council has not yet been required. This budget is carried
over to the 2015/16 year.
Pohutukawa Drive subdivision – This budgeted amount ($7,000) was shown in the 2014/15
Annual Plan as a capital project, however this is an operational budget and was used for garden
maintenance over the year.
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Operating Statement for Community Recreation
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Facilities
What is the Community Facilities Activity?
The Community Facilities Activity provides facilities to meet public health needs (public toilets,
cemeteries), social and cultural needs (public halls, pensioner housing) and amenity needs (passive
reserves). Generally these facilities are provided in response to community requirements, and the
Council works with its communities to determine the levels of service for these. However in some
cases, such as cemeteries, there are legislative requirements that are required to be met.
The community facilities provided by the Council for the use of residents and visitors to the District,
include:
 three community halls
 11 rural community halls (each belonging to the local communities and funded by targeted rates)
 57 pensioner units, in 9 clusters
 17 public toilets
 three cemetery sites and one ashes memorial wall site
 numerous non-recreational reserves.
These facilities are strategically located throughout the District to meet the social and utility needs of
the public.

Meeting our service targets
Halls
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Council managed halls are clean and well maintained and meet the needs of the
community.

14/15:
Measure:
Satisfaction of hall
users with the
cleanliness and
maintenance
standard of the
halls.


Service Request
Database, direct
contact and written
correspondence

<3
complaints
per month

13/14:



Not Achieved:
In three of the 12 months
3 or more complaints
were received.
A total of 26 complaints
have been received in
the year. 27% (7/26)
complaints related to
cleanliness due to
previous hall-users.
73% (19/26) complaints
related to building or
fixtures maintenance (5
building– 14 fixtures)
which were inspected
and rectified. (2013/14:
Six of 12 months had 3 or
more complaints)

Council halls are safe and secure.
Measure:
Halls are fit for
purpose and meet
building Warrant
of Fitness
requirements.
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Annual building
WOF

100%
compliance
on all
Council halls

14/15:



13/14:



Achieved: All Council
halls are 100% compliant
with the building Warrant
of Fitness requirements.
(2013/14: 100%
compliance)
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Pensioner Housing
Community
Outcome

Method of
measurement

Levels of Service
Key:

 Achieved

Target 2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Pensioner housing units are available for the elderly who meet Council’s eligibility criteria.
Measure:
Occupation rates of
Council owned
pensioner units
(other than during
pre-occupancy
maintenance and
hand-over periods).

14/15: 
Waiting list
schedule

98% occupied

13/14: 

Achieved: Pensioner
housing units were 98%
occupied for the year.
(2013/14: 98%
occupancy rate)

Pensioner housing units are affordable.
Measure:
Elderly tenants can
afford to continue
occupying the
pensioner units.

Payment
records, DHB
comparative
website

Rental fees are
less than 85% of
local current
market rates.

14/15: 
13/14: 

Achieved: The rental
fees were less than 85%
of local current market
rate for the year.
(2013/14: 69.3% of local
current market rate)

Council’s pensioner units are maintained to a comfortable and safe standard.
Measure:
Satisfaction of
tenants with the
comfort and safety of
the units.

Annual tenant
satisfaction
survey

>93% of tenants
are satisfied with
the comfort and
safety of the
units.

14/15: 
13/14: 

Achieved: 93% (28/30)
of tenants are satisfied
with the comfort and
safety of the units.
(2013/14: 80% of
tenants satisfied)

Public Toilets
Community
Outcome

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Public toilets are safe and clean, meeting the needs of the community and the travelling
public.
Measure:
Number of
complaints
regarding
whether public
toilets are safe,
clean and
sufficiently
stocked.

14/15:
Service Request
Database, direct
contact and written
correspondence



Less than 50
complaints per
annum

13/14:



Not Achieved: 52
complaints were
received in the
year.
The majority of
complaints were
regarding
blockages during
high use periods.
(2013/14: 47
complaints)

To provide public toilets that are accessible to the community and the travelling public.
Measure:
Public toilets are
conveniently
located and
people feel safe
when using
them.

A “Crime Prevention
Through
Environmental
Design (CPTED)”
study is undertaken
on one Public toilet
per ward each year

3 completed studies
per year and
recommendations
from these studies
are considered.

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: Three
CPTED studies
were completed
in the year.
(2013/14: Three
studies
completed)
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Cemeteries
Community
Outcome

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

The Council provides efficiently serviced and well maintained cemeteries.
Measure:
Number of
requests for
general
maintenance at
cemeteries per
year.

Service Request
Database, direct
contact and written
correspondence

<20 requests for
maintenance at
Council
cemeteries per
year

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: Six requests
for maintenance
(complaints) were
received in the year.
(2013/14: Eight
requests for
maintenance received)

What happened in 2014/15?
Halls


Waihi Memorial Hall – General maintenance and exterior painting was done on the
Waihi Hall in 2014/15 ($11,000).



New folding chairs – New chairs were purchased and installed in all three memorial
halls in the 2014/15 year.

Pensioner Housing


Pensioner housing renewals – Ongoing maintenance including the replacement of
stoves and hot water cylinders was completed in 2014/15. This included the reroofing of
some properties.

Public Toilets – Plains Ward


Orchard Road upgrade – Internal fittings were upgraded in this toilet block in June
2015 ($10,000).

Public Toilets – Paeroa Ward


Ohinemuri Park toilets – The internal refurbishment of these toilets was completed in
September 2014 ($10,000).

Public Toilets – Waihi Ward


Victoria Street toilet (Rocket Park) – Internal painting and surface repairs were
completed due to vandalism and an increase in the use of the toilets due to the
popularity of the Hauraki Rail Trail ($37,000).



Whiritoa Surf Club public toilets – The conversion of the existing Whiritoa Surf Club
public toilets into changing rooms was completed before the summer of 2014/15.
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Cemeteries


Pukerimu Cemetery –$6,000 was allocated for a new ashes garden, however this was
not required in 2014/15. The budget was instead used for new berms due to an
increased number of casket burials.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why






Plains War Memorial Hall – No painting was completed in 2014/15 as this work was not yet
required. The $10,000 will be carried over to the 2015/16 year and used for resurfacing the floor,
which is of more urgent priority.
Paeroa Hall chair storage – In October 2014, the Council resolved to use funds from the
operating budget ($5,000) to remove the small stage of the Paeroa Hall in favour of a chair
storage facility. This project was not completed in the 2014/15 year and will be carried over to the
2015/16 year.
Paeroa Domain toilets – The public toilets at Paeroa Domain were scheduled to be replaced in
the 2014/15 year, however due to the development of a new Paeroa Library, this work has been
put on hold. The location of a new library may allow for toilets to be included in close proximity to
the Paeroa Domain, therefore this budget has been carried over to the 2015/16 year until the
Paeroa Library plan is finalised.

Operating Statement for Community Facilities
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Development Group of
Activities
What is the Community Development Group of Activities?
Community Development is a Group of Activities in which the Council, along with a number of other
organisations and agencies, is actively involved in to ‘help the community to help itself’.
The Community Development activities represent a group of collaborative and partnership approaches
and initiatives between the Council and appropriate organisations and agencies that all have a
common theme of promoting a better quality of life and living environment for the Hauraki District.
The community expects the Council to support and encourage the social and economic growth of the
Hauraki District. The Council is expected to assist in creating a vibrant and economically positive
community. In an effort to meet the community’s expectations, the Council employs Economic
Development staff who are responsible for progressing the goals established by the Economic
Development Strategy.
The community expects that the Council will support and encourage groups and initiatives that benefit
the greater community and its wellbeing. As part of the Community Initiatives Activity the Council
employs a full-time Community Development Officer.

What activities are included in the
Community Development Group?




Community Growth
o Economic development
o Visitor Information Centres
o Town promotion
o Hauraki Rail Trail
o Destination Coromandel
Community Initiatives
o Social initiatives
o Public transport
o Grants, donations and awards
o Other initiatives

The Community Development
Group primarily contributes
to the following Community
Outcome:
Lifestyle Hauraki
Progress Hauraki
Interactive Hauraki

Identified effects on the community
The Community Development Group is primarily focused on encouraging economic and social growth
for the District communities. This Group of Activities celebrates and promotes the Hauraki District as a
great environment to live, work and experience life, with opportunities for all. Besides strongly
supporting economic development initiatives, the Community Development Group provides an avenue
for Council to support community initiatives focused on social well-being.
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Operating statement for the Community Development Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for the Community Development
Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Growth
What is the Community Growth Activity?
The Council has accepted the responsibility to take part in community growth initiatives due to public
demand for its involvement, and the development of the Community Outcomes, and that the Council is
obligated to work towards achieving these outcomes. Of particular relevance is the Community
Outcome ‘Progress Hauraki’ which encourages balanced and sustained economic growth throughout
the District.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of
Service
Key:

Method of
measurement
 Achieved

Target 2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

The Council will work alongside others to recognise and develop opportunities for growth
within the local business communities.
Measure:
The Council,
businesses and
developers are
assisted with
relevant
economic
development
information.

Measure:
The Council is
aware of
business issues
and growth
opportunities
and events.

Quarterly
monitoring
report to
Council (within
the financial
year)

Business After 5
forum
attendance

Opportunities to
assist and the
information
provided is
reported to
Council
quarterly, and is
categorised by
business size.

Facilitate and
attend Business
After 5 forums 11
months of the
year in Waihi
and Paeroa, and
quarterly in
Ngatea.

14/15:



13/14:



14/15:



13/14:



Not Achieved: Quarterly
reports were given to Council
in September, December and
March. The fourth quarter
report was electronically
submitted to the Council
meeting folder for the June
meeting, however due to a
technical error the report was
not included on the Council
agenda. (2013/14: No reports
given to the Council)
Not Achieved: There were 19
Business After 5 meetings in
the year and all were
attended by HDC
representatives, however
there has not been a meeting
in Ngatea each quarter. Lack
of attendees in Ngatea has
meant the meetings were
unable to proceed. (2013/14:
17 BA5 meetings held and
attended by a Council
representative)

The Council will work alongside others to promote the District.
Measure:
Community is
updated on
economic
development
matters.
Measure:
Web page is
developed on
the HDC
website for
economic
development
information.
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14/15:
HDC news page

Quarterly articles
in the HDC news
page.


13/14:


14/15:

HDC website
records

Web page is
updated
annually.


13/14:



Achieved: Articles have been
published more often than
quarterly in HDC News page
in 2014/15. (2013/14: Three
articles published)
Achieved: The Business
Hauraki section of Council’s
website is monitored regularly
to maintain relevance to
users. There were a total of
16 updates over the year.
(2013/14: Website regularly
updated)
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What happened in 2014/15?


Waihi Gold Discovery Centre and Waihi i-Site – Associate Minister of Tourism Todd
McClay, Coromandel MP Scott Simpson and Hauraki District Mayor John Tregidga
officially opened the Waihi Gold Discovery Centre and Waihi i-Site in September 2014.



Town Promotion – The Council provided a funding contribution in 2014/15 to:
o Go Waihi ($103,000)
o Positive Paeroa ($114,000)
o Positively Promoting the Plains ($15,000)



Annual financial contribution to Destination Coromandel – The Council continued
its financial contribution to Destination Coromandel, along with Thames-Coromandel
District Council (25% and 75% funding split respectively). Hauraki’s share was
$120,000 in 2014/15.



Possible retirement accommodation – The Council is currently working with three
developers regarding three separate retirement villages in the Hauraki District.



Kerepehi industrial subdivision
As mentioned in the Wastewater activity in this document, the Council committed
funding of $400,000 to obtain the necessary resource consents before developing a
proposal for the development of the wastewater treatment system to serve the Kerepehi
industrial area. In the 2014/15 year, design was completed and the resource consent is
expected to be lodged early in the 2015/16 financial year.
Construction on the Allied Faxi New Zealand Food Company Limited ice-cream
production facility began in Kerepehi in June 2015. The Council has been liaising with
several potential businesses regarding possible developments at the future “Food Hub”.
Council will investigate and pursue ‘food space’ investment opportunities for the
Kerepehi subdivision and research necessary infrastructure requirements.



Doing Business in Hauraki – Council staff provided case management services for
several new hospitality businesses that are proposed to be developed alongside the
Hauraki Rail Trail. Three resource consents have been lodged in the 2014/15 year for
such proposals.



Mandarin Learning –The option to learn the language of Mandarin (pro bono) was
made available to every student in the Ohinemuri cluster in 2013/14. This opportunity
continued into 2014/15, with the local schools taking over the facilitation of this initiative
in the 2015 school year.



Hauraki Rail Trail – In 2014/15 the Council continued to work with the Hauraki Rail
Trail Charitable Trust and Thames-Coromandel District Council on the planning and
design phase for the construction of the Kaiaua to Kopu leg of the Hauraki Rail Trail. In
May 2015 following the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan consultation process, the
Council decided to continue with the proposed extension of the Trail from Kaiaua to
Kopu. The additional funding sources for the development of this section of the Trail still
remain uncertain, particularly given that the application for external funding from the
Lotteries Special Projects Fund was declined.
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Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned projects that did not happen in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Community Growth
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Initiatives
What is the Community Initiatives Activity?
The Council aims to promote the District as an area that encourages vibrant communities and an
enhanced quality of life. This means balancing the provision of support for social, cultural and
economic initiatives of benefit to the people of the Hauraki District.
Through the Community Initiatives Activity a number of projects take place to assist in the progressing
of the Community Outcomes, and to ensure that we have a positive climate that encourages balanced
and sustained economic growth throughout the District.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

To provide motivation in our District, the Council will recognise and acknowledge
achievements towards social wellbeing.
Measure:
The Council, with
the community,
will celebrate
achievements
towards social
wellbeing at an
awards ceremony
held annually.

14/15:
Report to
Council

Award
ceremonies
are held prior
to November
annually.


13/14:



Achieved: The award
ceremony was held in the
Ngatea War Memorial Hall
24 September 2014.
(2013/14: Award ceremony
held 4 September 2013)

The Council will work with social service agencies in the District to progress agreed social
initiatives.
Measure:
The Council will
participate in the
Better Futures
Hauraki Forum,
working
collectively
towards the
group’s
objectives.

Better Futures
Hauraki
meeting
minutes

Four meetings
of the Better
Futures
Hauraki group
are attended
by the Council,
with relevant
matters arising
reported to the
Council.

14/15:


13/14:



14/15:
Measure:
The Council will
work with others
towards achieving
the goals of the
Hauraki Positive
Ageing Strategy.

Results
reported to
Council
annually

The Council
supports three
initiatives
relevant to the
Positive
Ageing
Strategy each
year.



13/14:



Not Achieved: Better
Futures Hauraki is on hold
until the Social Initiatives
Project is completed.*
(2013/14: No meetings held)

Achieved: Four initiatives
were held in two wards
during the year (two in
Paeroa Ward and two in the
Plains Ward). A scoping of
‘services for the elderly’
workshop was held in Waihi
23 June 2015.The outcomes
from the scoping workshop
will be used in preparation
for 2015/16 Older Persons
Day and work towards the
Positive Ageing Strategy
review. (2013/14: Three
initiatives held)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

The Council will work with other agencies to encourage youth to contribute to our
communities in a positive and meaningful way.

Measure:
The Council will
liaise with youth
representatives
from each ward.

Results
reported to
Council
annually

Council
supports one
initiative per
ward per
annum (Plains,
Paeroa and
Waihi).

14/15:


13/14:



Not Achieved: Youth
initiatives are on hold until
the review of the Youth
Policy has been completed,
in conjunction with the
development of the Social
Initiatives Project.* (2013/14:
No initiatives supported)

* The Social Initiatives Project is the collective name for the Wards' individual scoping which will assist in their
social policy direction.

What happened in 2014/15?


Creative NZ Creative Communities Scheme – The Council continued to administer
the Creative Communities Scheme on behalf of Creative NZ.



Life Education Trust – The Council provided a grant of $15,000 in 2014/15 to Life
Education Trust, a health based education initiative providing health services to
schools.



Lifesaving at Whiritoa Beach– Funding was provided in 2014/15 to Surf Life Saving
New Zealand for the operating costs associated with providing life guards at Whiritoa
Beach over the Christmas holiday season ($23,600).



Ceremonies and awards – The award ceremony for the Young Achievers and Citizens
Awards was held in September 2014. ANZAC ceremonies were held over the Hauraki
District on 25 April 2015. In Ngatea, the ANZAC ceremonies included the unveiling of
World War II memorial plaques. The Industry Trade Organisation Awards, celebrating
our apprentices and their employers, was held in May 2015 in conjunction with ThamesCoromandel District Council.



Gilmour Reserve Memorial Stone – The Council provided funds and administration
support for the Arras memorial stone community project, which was placed in the
Gilmour Reserve in Waihi in April 2015. This memorial stone recognises the New
Zealand Tunnelling Company and members who gave their service during World War I
in Arras.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


Social Initiatives Project
o The review of the Positive Ageing Strategy was deferred to the 2015/16 year. During scoping
of the Social Initiatives Project, each Ward Committee identified their areas of focus. The
Waihi Ward identified they want the focus of the new Social Initiatives Strategy to be on the
Ageing population – this work in the Waihi Ward will contribute to a district wide Positive
Ageing Strategy review.
o The review of the Youth Policy was deferred to the 2015/16 year as the Paeroa Ward identified
youth, not employed, in education or training, as their area of focus. The scoping work of the
Paeroa Ward will contribute to a district wide Youth Policy.
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Operating Statement for Community Initiatives
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Regulatory Services Group of
Activities
What is the Regulatory Services Group of Activities?
Regulatory Services involves a group of responsibilities:
 placed on the Council by central government to ensure community compliance with national
standards and guidelines.
 undertaken by Council through policies, plans and bylaws to regulate local issues.
National standards, guidelines and legislation require the Council to develop local compliance
standards such as the District Plan, bylaws, policies and response plans.

What activities are included in the Regulatory Services Group?






Resource Management Implementation
Building Control
Community Protection
o Emergency Management
o Rural Fire
o Environmental Health
o Liquor Licensing
o Hazard Zone Monitoring
Animal Control

The Regulatory Group
primarily contributes to the
following Community
Outcome:
Interactive Hauraki

Identified effects on the community
The Regulatory Services Group of Activities assists the
Council in the improvement of local communities through
the regulation of building work, the control of social issues
via bylaws, and the protection of lifestyles and the
environment enjoyed by residents, making a safer District
for all. Many mechanisms of the Regulatory Services
Group are mandatory or legislatively required, but the
underlying theme is the protection and safety of our
communities and an increase in social wellbeing.

Sustainable Hauraki
Prepared Hauraki
Lifestyle Hauraki

Cost of funding the Regulatory Services Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Funding Impact Statement for Regulatory Services Group
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Resource Management
Implementation
What is the Resource Management Implementation Activity?
The Council is required to implement its responsibilities under the Resource Management Act 1991
(RMA), in a number of ways, in particular:
 administering its Operative and/or Proposed District Plans
 processing and monitoring of resource consents
 processing of ‘notices of requirement’ for designations for public works (e.g. roads and sewage
plants)
 monitoring and enforcement provisions, including noise.
The Regulatory Services Group is also required to issue Land Information Memoranda (LIMs) under
the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Resource consent applications should be decided and issued within statutory timeframes.
Measure:
Notified resource
consent
applications
decided and issued
within 70 working
days.
Measure:
Non-notified
resource consent
decisions not
requiring a hearing
are issued within
20 working days.

14/15:
Resource
consents
database


100%

13/14:


14/15:
Resource
consents
database


100%

13/14:



Achieved: 100% (1/1) of
Limited Notified Landuse
consents were processed
within 70 working days.
(2013/14: 100% processed
within timeframes)
Achieved: 100% of nonnotified consents were
processed in time (59/59
landuse and 24/24
subdivisions) (2013/14: 98%
processed within timeframes)

Provide a monitoring service which ensures compliance with consent conditions.

Measure:
New land use
consents are
monitored for
compliance within
three months after
the implementation
of the land use
consent.

14/15:
Resource
consents
database

90% of
new
consents
are
monitored.



13/14:



Achieved: 100% (50/50) new
land use consents have been
monitored within three months
after the implementation of the
consent in 2014/15. Consent
owners have five years to
implement their consent from
the date it is issued. 59
consents in total were issued
in 2014/15, however not all of
these were implemented in the
2014/15 year. (2013/14: 100%
new consents monitored)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

All LIMs are issued within statutory timeframes.

14/15:
Measure:
LIMs issued within
10 working days.

Applications
database

100%


13/14:



Achieved: 100% (525/525) of
LIMs were issued on time for
the year. (2013/14: 99%
issued within timeframes)

The public is satisfied with the Council’s provision of Resource Consent administrative
services.
Measure:
Customers are
satisfied with the
service they
receive during the
resource consent
process.

14/15:
Customer
satisfaction
survey


70%
satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed
that 76%* of applicants were
satisfied with the service
received during the consenting
process and 24% were
dissatisfied. (2013/14: 76%
satisfied and 24% dissatisfied)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

What happened in 2014/15?
The Resource Management Reform Bill – This review of the Resource Management Act
was completed and the legislation was enacted in March 2015. The Council is now working
within the new timeframes that the legislation has introduced.
In addition to these changes, the Government released a discussion document in February
2013 setting out further proposals to improve New Zealand's resource management system.
These changes are yet to be included in the Resource Management Act and the Council
awaits further information from Central Government on this matter.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned actions that didn’t happen in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Resource Management Implementation
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Building Control
What is the Building Control Activity?
The Council is required to implement the provisions of the Building Act, 2004 as a Building Consent
Authority (BCA) and a territorial authority to:
 ensure that new and existing buildings are safe and sanitary
 protect other property from physical damage from the construction and use of buildings
 ensure that the necessary controls relating to the construction of a building and its use are
implemented in accordance with the NZ Building Code and the Building Act, 2004
 monitor Warrants of Fitness issued for buildings used by the public.
The Council is also required to implement the provisions of the Resource Management Act, 1991 in
relation to building consent applications.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Commercial and public buildings are audited for compliance with the building warrant of
fitness requirements.
Measure:
Buildings have
compliant building
warrant of fitness
(WOF) systems.

14/15:
Annual audit of
records

10% of WOFs
audited per
year


13/14:



Achieved: 10% (23) of
WOFs have been
audited in the year.
(2013/14: 10% audited)

Building consent applications will be processed within statutory timeframes.
Measure:
Building consent
applications not
requiring additional
information are
processed within
20 working days.

14/15:


Building Consent
Tracking
Database

100%

13/14:



Achieved: 100%
(187/187) of building
consent applications not
requiring further
information were
processed within the
statutory timeframes for
the year. (2013/14:
100% processed within
20 working days)

Council consistently delivers an effective and efficient building control service.
Measure:
Council maintains
BCA accreditation
standards.

14/15:
Biannual audit
from
International
Accreditation
New Zealand


Maintain BCA
accreditation

13/14:



Achieved: The Council
had its biannual audit of
the BCA by IANZ in July
2015 and maintained its
accreditation. (2013/14:
The Council maintained
its accreditation)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target 2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Privately owned swimming pools comply with the Fencing of Swimming Pools Act 1987.
Measure:
High risk properties
with swimming
pools on the
Council’s register
inspected for
compliance with
the Fencing of
Swimming Pools
Act 1987.
Measure:
Low risk properties
with swimming
pools on the
Council’s register
inspected for
compliance with
the Fencing of
Swimming Pools
Act 1987.

14/15:


Quarterly audit
of swimming
pool register

100% of high
risk pools are
inspected

13/14:



Quarterly audit
of swimming
pool register

10% of low risk
pools are
inspected determined by
random
selection

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: 100% (25/25)
of high risk properties
with swimming pools on
the Council’s register
were inspected during
the year. (2013/14:
100% of high risk pools
were inspected)

Achieved: 10% (38) of
low risk properties with
swimming pools on the
Council’s register were
inspected in the year.
(2013/14: 10% of low
risk pools inspected)

Council’s building consent administrative processes are efficient.
Measure:
Customers are
satisfied with the
service they
receive during the
building consenting
process.

14/15:


Customer
satisfaction
survey

70% satisfied

13/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey
showed that 72% of
applicants were satisfied
with the service received
during the consenting
process and 26% were
dissatisfied. (2013/14:
79% satisfied and 21%
dissatisfied)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

What happened in 2014/15?


Building Consent Authority accreditation – The Council retained its Building
Consent Authority Accreditation as noted above, and underwent an accreditation audit
by International Accreditation New Zealand (IANZ) in July 2015.



The Building Amendment Act 2013 – The changes in the Building Amendment Act
2013 intended to make it easier for homeowners and builders to understand their rights
and responsibilities. It aims to ensure that homeowners are able to make informed
decisions about their homes. The list of work that is exempt from requiring a building
consent has been changed with this legislation, and this has been the main issue
relevant to day to day monitoring for the Building Control department of the Council in
2014/15.
The Building (Earthquake-prone Buildings) Amendment Bill – The Minister has
announced a revised earthquake strengthening policy that better targets buildings
where location, use and type pose the greatest risk to life. Low, medium and high
seismic risk zones will be established throughout New Zealand, with different
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timeframes associated with each risk for assessment and strengthening. The Hauraki
District is in the Medium risk area so our buildings have 10 years for the assessment
and 25 years for the strengthening of the buildings to 33% of the current building code.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned actions that didn’t happen in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Building Control
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Community Protection
What is the Community Protection activity?
Community Protection is a series of activities that involve the Council acting in a preventative role to
protect the community. This is through a number of means including preparing for civil defence
emergencies, resourcing and supporting local fire forces, limiting access to gambling, ensuring
adequate liquor licensing controls are in place, and ensuring safe public places, including eating
places and swimming pools.
The Council supports this with its monitoring and enforcement functions in a number of areas. These
include the food hygiene controls and notifiable disease investigations under the Health Act, 1956; the
number of gaming machines allowed for in the District as determined by the Council’s Class 4 Gaming
Venue and New Zealand Racing Board Venue Policy; and regulation, monitoring and host
responsibility education via the Council’s current Local Alcohol Policy.
The Council has policy and operational plans for Civil Defence and Rural Fire, and has the operational
capability to put these plans into effect, therefore meeting its emergency management and rural fire
responsibilities.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement
 Not Applicable

The Council will enforce the Health Act 1956.
Measure:
All food premises
are monitored for
compliance with
relevant
legislation.
Measure:
Public and school
pools are
monitored annually
for compliance
with the New
Zealand Standard
for Public Pools.

Food
premises
database

100% of all
food
premises
are
assessed
annually

14/15:


13/14:


14/15:

Quarterly
assessment of
inspection
records for
compliance


100% are
monitored
annually

13/14:



Achieved: 100% (119/119) of
food premises were monitored
for compliance in the year.
(2013/14: 100% of food
premises assessed)
Not Achieved: Quarterly
assessment of inspection
records was not completed due
to pools being closed from
March to October. (2013/14:
100% swimming pools
inspected)
This measure has been
changed for 2015/16 onwards to
reflect the swimming season.

Implementation of the liquor licence legislation.
Measure:
New and renewed
Liquor Licence
Manager’s
Certificates are
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Audit of
application
records

100% are
issued

14/15:



Achieved: 100% (87/87) of
Manager's Certificates were
processed in time during the
year. (2013/14: 100% of
certificates were issued within
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement
 Not Applicable
timeframes)

issued within one
month of receiving
the application,
providing there are
no objections and
the application is
complete.
Measure:
New and renewed
On/Off and Club
Liquor Licences
are issued within
three months of
receiving the
application,
providing there are
no objections and
the application is
complete.

Progress
indicator

13/14:



14/15:


Audit of
application
records

100% are
issued.

13/14:



Achieved: (100%) 13/13 of new
and renewed On Licences were
issued within three months of
receiving the application. 100%
(3/3) Club Licence renewals
were issued within three months
of receiving the application.
There were no Off Licence
applications over the year that
did not either have objections or
require further information for
processing. (2013/14: 100%
issued within timeframes)

Council is ready for a Civil Defence or Rural Fire Emergency.

Measure:
Information on
community
preparedness is
available.

Measure:
Civil Defence
training exercises
are conducted
annually.
Measure:
Public education
articles regarding
Civil Defence
emergency
management are
published in the
HDC News page.
Measure:
Members of the
community are
prepared for a Civil
Defence
emergency (i.e.
have an
emergency plan,
emergency kit and
can survive for
three days).

Information is
available on
the website, at
service
centres and
published in
the HDC
News page.

14/15:


Information
is reviewed
and
published
annually.

13/14:


14/15:

HDC staff
training
records.

1 training
exercise
per annum


13/14:


14/15:


HDC News
database

3 articles
per annum

13/14:



Achieved: A link is available on
HDC website to the Thames
Valley Civil Defence operating
area website www.thamesvalleycivil
defence.co.nz. Information is
reviewed regularly in line with
national Civil Defence updates.
Booklets are available at each
service centre. A general article
was published in the 26
September 2014 issue of HDC
News. (2013/14: Information
was reviewed and published)
Achieved: Civil Defence training
"Exercise Tatanga" was
conducted 24 July 2014. This
involved ten key staff members
plus personnel from six external
agencies. (2013/14: Training
exercises held)
Achieved: Seven Civil Defence
related articles were published
in the HDC News page during
the year. (2013/14: Three
articles published)

14/15:
Customer
satisfaction
survey

45% of
residents
are
prepared


13/14:

Not Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed that
44% of residents had an
emergency kit in their
household. (2013/14: 41%)
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Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Measure:
Rural Fire
equipment is
inspected and
maintained.
Measure:
Timeframe for
taking over
responsibility for a
fire is within one
hour of receiving
official notification.

Target
2014/15

Progress
indicator

 Not Achieved

2014/15
achievement
 Not Applicable

14/15:
Register of
equipment

At least
four times
annually


13/14:



Achieved: All equipment was
inspected quarterly on 28/8/14,
29/11/14, 4/3/15 and 30/5/15.
(2013/14: Fire equipment
inspected and tested four times)

14/15:
Operations
records

100% taken
over within
one hour


13/14:



Not Applicable: No fire events
occurred in the year. (2013/14:
Five fire events were taken over
within one hour)

Open air fires within Hauraki District are monitored during a restricted fire season.
Measure:
Process all
applications for fire
permits within two
working days.

Application
records

100% of
applications
processed
within 2
working
days

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: 100% (230/230) of
permits were issued within two
working days in 2014/15.
(2013/14: 99% of permits
processed within timeframes)

Fire restrictions are in place for summer seasons.

14/15:
Measure:
Public notices are
placed in the HDC
News page
identifying the fire
bans.

HDC News
database.

100% of
notices
placed in
media at
least one
week
before bans



13/14:



Measure:
Signs are in place
in two locations to
inform the public of
fire restrictions.

Timesheet
records

All signs in
place on
the day the
fire
restriction
starts and
removed
when it
ends

14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: Two articles and one
public notice were placed in the
Hauraki Herald in the second
quarter. Two public notices were
placed in the Hauraki Herald in
the third quarter advising of
restriction changes. A public
notice was placed in the Hauraki
Herald in the fourth quarter
advising of the change of the
Fire Season from Restricted to
Open. All notices were placed at
least one week before
restrictions began or ended.
(2013/14: Public notices were
placed at least one week before
bans)
Achieved: Fire restriction signs
were in place on 16 December
2014 and removed 20 March
2015. These dates are in line
with the fire restriction period.
(2013/14: All signs in place and
removed in line with restriction
dates)

Excessive noise complaints will be responded to by Council.
Measure:
All complaints
regarding noise
are responded to
promptly, 24 hours
a day, 7 days a
week.

14/15:
Contractor’s
monthly report


100%

13/14:



Achieved: 100% (276/276) of
noise complaints were
responded to promptly (within
the hour) in 2014/15. (2013/14:
100% of complaints responded
to promptly)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also
undertaken for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
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What happened in 2014/15?


Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 – This Act resulted in significant changes to the
way the sale of alcohol is regulated in New Zealand. The Council’s District Licensing
Committee is now responsible for making decisions on most liquor licence applications
and managers’ certificates. In 2014 considerable work was done on the Council’s
provisional Local Alcohol Policy. Hearings were held in February 2015 for the three
appellants to the Policy and it has now been resubmitted back to the Alcohol Regulatory
and Licensing Authority for its deliberation.



Gambling Policy – The review of the Gambling Policy commenced in March 2014, with
the consultation period held in June/July 2014. The revised policy was adopted in
September 2014.



Civil Defence – During 2014/15 the Council continued to work on developing
Community Response Plans for the Kaiaua and Whiritoa communities. A Community
Response Plan is a community-based plan that is used by members of the community
in a Civil Defence emergency. The plans for the Kaiaua and Whiritoa communities will
be developed first due to their coastal risks.



Local Approved Products Policy – Council staff and the Local Approved Products
Policy (LAPP) Working Party, which consisted of three councillors, began work on the
development of a draft LAPP in 2014. The draft LAPP was publicly consulted on during
June/July 2014; 30 submissions were received to the draft Policy. The Hearing of
Submissions was held in August and as a result of the public submission process the
Council resolved to amend the draft LAPP to include ‘places of worship’ as sensitive
sites (e.g. churches). The final Local Approved Products Policy (LAPP) was adopted in
September 2014.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned actions that didn’t happen in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Community Protection
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Animal Control
What is the Animal Control Activity?
The Council has a statutory requirement to be involved in Animal Control with a particular emphasis
on:
 dog registration systems and implementation
 education of dog owners and the public
 enforcement of dog and animal control issues to minimise danger, distress or nuisance from dogs
and other animals
 impounding of wandering dogs and stock.
The Dog Control Act, 1996 is the legislation governing the control of dogs in the District. In order to
enforce the Act the Council has a Dog Control Policy, as well as the Public Safety section of the
Consolidated Bylaw, which in part pertains to restrictions imposed on dog owners, along with
restrictions on other animals including roosters and other livestock.

Meeting our service targets
Community
Outcome

Levels of Service
Key:

Method of
measurement

 Achieved

Target
2014/15
 Not Achieved

Progress
indicator

2014/15
achievement

 Not Applicable

Council will ensure compliance with the Dog Control legislation and bylaw, and the Stock
Impounding Act to provide public safety.
Measure:
All known dogs in
the District are
registered
annually.
Measure:
Complaints about
wandering stock on
public roads are
responded to within
three hours.
Measure:
Dog attack
complaints are
responded to within
two hours.

14/15:
Registration
records

Contractor’s
monthly report

Contractor’s
monthly report

95% of known
dogs are
registered.

100% of
complaints
responded to
within three
hours.

100% of
complaints
responded to
within two
hours.


13/14:


14/15:


13/14:


14/15:


13/14:



Achieved: 99.95%
(4383/4385) of known dogs
were registered for the
year. (2013/14: 99%
registered)
Achieved: 100% (53/53) of
complaints received in the
year were responded to
within three hours.
(2013/14: 100% of
complaints responded to
within three hours)
Achieved: 100% (60/60) of
dog attack complaints
received in the year were
responded to within two
hours. (2013/14: 100%
responded to within two
hours)

Dog and stock owners are aware of their rights and responsibilities.
Measure:
Education articles
regarding dog and
stock ownership
are published in
public news media
quarterly.
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14/15:
HDC News
database

4 articles
published per
year.


13/14:



Achieved: Eight articles
have been published in the
HDC News in the year.
(2013/14: Four articles
published)
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What happened in 2014/15?


Animal and Noise Control – In 2014/15 the animal and noise control function of
Council was business as usual with the monitoring of dog registrations, responding to
noise and animal complaints and community education being key areas of focus for this
team.



Online payments for dog registrations – Efforts began March/April 2015 on
developing the ability to receive online registration payments on the Council’s website.
The Council began accepting online credit card payments for existing dogs where no
owner or dog details have changed in mid 2015.

Planned 2014/15 projects that didn’t happen and why


There were no planned actions that didn’t happen in 2014/15.

Operating Statement for Animal Control
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2015
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June
2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended
30 June 2015
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Statement of Cashflows for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Whole of Council Funding Impact Statement for the year ended
30 June 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2015

1. Accounting policies for the year ended 30 June 2015
Reporting Entity
Hauraki District Council (HDC) is a territorial local authority governed by the Local Government Act,
2002.
The primary objective of HDC is to provide goods or services for the community or social benefit rather
than making a financial return. Accordingly, HDC has designated itself as a public benefit entity for the
purposes of New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). The
financial statements of HDC are for the year ended 30 June 2014 and were authorised for issue by
Council 29 October 2014.
Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of HDC have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act, 2002: Part 6, Section 98 and Part 3 of Schedule 10, which includes the
requirement to comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice (NZ GAAP). These
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP. They comply with NZ IFRS,
and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities. The
accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.
Measurement Base
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except where modified by the
revaluation of land and buildings, certain infrastructural assets, investment property, biological assets
and financial instruments.
Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars ($’000). The functional currency of HDC is New Zealand dollars.
Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies.
Standards, amendments, and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted
Standards, amendments, and interpretations issued but not yet effective that have not been early
adopted, and which are relevant to Council, are:
 NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. NZ IAS 39 is being replaced through the following three main
phases:
Phase 1 Classification and Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and Phase 3 Hedge
Accounting. Phase 1 has been completed and has been published in the new financial instrument
standard NZ IFRS 9. NZ IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is
measured at amortised cost or fair value, replacing the many different rules in NZ IAS 39. The
approach in NZ IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments (its business
model) and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The financial liability
requirements are the same as those of NZ IAS 39, except for when an entity elects to designate a
financial liability at fair value through the surplus/deficit. The new standard is required to be

93 | P a g e

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 338

adopted for the year ended 30 June 2016. However, as a new Accounting Standards Framework
will apply before this date, there is no certainty when an equivalent standard to NZ IFRS 9 will be
applied by public benefit entities.
The Minister of Commerce has approved a new Accounting Standards Framework (incorporating
a Tier Strategy) developed by the External Reporting Board (XRB). Under this Accounting
Standards Framework, the Council is classified as a Tier 1 reporting entity and it will be required to
apply full Public Benefit Entity Accounting Standards (PAS). The effective date for the new
standards for public sector entities is for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. This
means the Council will transition to the new standards in preparing its 30 June 2015 financial
statements. The Council has not assessed the implications of the new Accounting Standards
Framework at this time.
Due to the change in the Accounting Standards Framework for public benefit entities, it is
expected that all new NZ IFRS and amendments to existing NZ IFRS will not be applicable to
public benefit entities. Therefore, the XRB has effectively frozen the financial reporting
requirements for public benefit entities up until the new Accounting Standard Framework is
effective. Accordingly, no disclosure has been made about new or amended NZ IFRS that exclude
public benefit entities from their scope.
Subsidiaries
HDC has no subsidiaries.
Associates
The Council’s associate investment is accounted for in the financial statements using the equity
method. An associate is an entity over which the Council has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. The investment in an associate is initially recognised at
cost and the carrying amount in the financial statements is increased or decreased to recognise
Council’s share of the surplus or deficit of the associate after the date of acquisition. Distributions
received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
If the share of deficits of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, Council
discontinues recognising its share of further deficits. After Council’s interest is reduced to zero,
additional deficits are provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that Council has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports surpluses, Council will resume recognising its share of those
surpluses only after its share of the surpluses equals the share of deficits not recognised.
Where Council transacts with an associate, surpluses or deficits are eliminated to the extent of
Council’s interest in the associate.
Dilution gains or losses arising from investments in associates are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Joint ventures
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control. HDC accounts for its interest in a jointly controlled operation
using the equity method. HDC’s share of Joint Venture net income is included in the surplus or deficit.
Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received.
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Rates revenue
Rates are set annually by a resolution from Council and relate to a financial year. All ratepayers are
invoiced within the financial year to which the rates have been set. Rates revenue is recognised when
payable.
Metered Water Rates Revenue
Water billing revenue is recognised on an accrual basis. Unbilled usage, as a result of unread meters
at year end, is accrued on an average usage basis.
Government Grants
HDC receives government grants from New Zealand Transport Agency, which subsidises part of
HDC’s costs in maintaining the local roading infrastructure. The subsidies are recognised as revenue
upon entitlement as conditions pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled.

Provision of Services
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at balance date, based on the actual service provided as a percentage of the total services
to be provided.
Sales of Goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a product is sold to the customer. The recorded revenue is the
gross amount of the sale.
Vested Assets
Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration the fair value of the asset received
is recognised as revenue. Assets vested in HDC are recognised as revenue when control over the
asset is obtained.
Commissions and Fees
Where revenue is derived by acting as an agent for another party, the revenue that is recognised is
the commission or fee on the transaction.
Interest and Dividends
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. Interest income on an impaired
financial asset is recognised using the original effective interest rate. Dividends are recognised when
the right to receive payment has been established.
Development contributions
Development contributions are recognised as revenue when Council provides, or is able to provide,
the service for which the contribution was paid.
In cases where contributions are collected in advance to fund a service that is not currently provided in
an area, the contribution is initially recognised as revenue in advance, until such time as the service is
provided.
Construction contracts
HDC did not enter into Construction Contracts as a Contractor, apart from minor public works.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
HDC has elected to defer the adoption of NZ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, in accordance with the
transitional provisions applicable to public benefit entities.
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Grant expenditure
Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the specified
criteria and are recognised as expenditure when an application that meets the specified criteria for the
grant has been received.
Discretionary grants are those grants where HDC has no obligation to award on receipt of the grant
application and are recognised as expenditure when a successful applicant has been notified of
HDC’s decision.
Taxation
Goods and Services Tax
The financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis with the exception of
Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable, which are stated with GST included. The balance of GST
at 30 June 2014 is included in Accounts Receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.
Where GST is not recoverable as input tax then it is recognised as part of the related asset or
expense. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department
(IRD) is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing
activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows. Commitments and
contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.
Leases
Finance leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset, whether or not title is eventually transferred.
At the commencement of the lease term, HDC recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in
the statement of financial position at the lower of the fair value of the leased item or the present value
of the minimum lease payments.
The amount recognised as an asset is depreciated over its useful life. If there is no certainty as to
whether HDC will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and its useful life.
The finance charge is charged to surplus or deficit, over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases
An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.
Trade and other receivables
Short-term debtors and other receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for
impairment.
Impairment of a receivable is established when there is objective evidence that Council will not be able
to collect amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties
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of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy, receivership, or liquidation, and
default in payments are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted using the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the surplus or deficit. When the receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Overdue receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified as current
(that is, not past due).
Inventories
Inventory held for use in the production of goods and services on a commercial basis is valued at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of purchased inventory is determined using the first-in
first-out (FIFO) method.
Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied on a
commercial basis are measured at cost (using the FIFO method), adjusted, when applicable, for any
loss of service potential. Where inventory is acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost
is the current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
The amount of any write-down for the loss of service potential or from cost to net realisable value is
recognised in the surplus or deficit in the period of the write-down.
When land held for development and future resale is transferred from investment property/property,
plant, and equipment to inventory, the fair value of the land at the date of the transfer is its deemed
cost. Costs directly attributable to the developed land are capitalised to inventory, with the exception of
infrastructural asset costs which are capitalised to property, plant, and equipment.
Financial assets
HDC classifies its financial assets into four categories. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are
carried at fair value through surplus or deficit in which case the transaction costs are recognised in the
surplus or deficit.
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date, the date on which HDC commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and HDC has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used is the current bid price. The fair value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. HDC
uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for longterm debt instruments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
The four categories of financial assets are:
 Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit includes financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term or it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated into a hedge accounting relationship for which hedge
accounting is applied.
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Financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or part of a
portfolio classified as held for trading are classified as a current asset. Derivatives are classified as
current if they mature within 12 months of balance date, and are classified as non-current if they
mature greater than 12 months after balance date.
After initial recognition, financial assets in this category are measured at their fair values with
gains or losses on re-measurement recognised in the surplus or deficit.


Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance date, which are included in non-current assets.
After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method,
less impairment. Gains and losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in
the surplus or deficit.
Loans to community organisations made at nil or below-market interest rates are initially
recognised at the present value of their expected future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial instrument. The loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The difference between the face value and
present value of the expected future cash flows of the loan is recognised in the surplus or deficit
as a grant.



Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that Council has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition they
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Gains and
losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Council does not hold any assets in this category at present. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after balance date, which are included in
non current assets.



Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are those that are designated
into the category at initial recognition or are not classified in any of the other categories above.
They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of, or realise, the
investment within 12 months of balance date. Council includes in this category:
o investments that it intends to hold long-term but which may be realised before maturity; and
o shareholdings that it holds for strategic purposes.
These investments are measured at their fair value, with gains and losses recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses, which are recognised in the surplus or
deficit. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets
Loans and receivables
Impairment of a loan or a receivable is established when there is objective evidence that Council will
not be able to collect amounts due according to the original terms. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor/issuer, probability that the debtor/issuer will enter into bankruptcy, and default in payments
are considered indicators that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
using the original effective interest rate. For debtors and other receivables, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in

98 | P a g e

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 343

the surplus or deficit. When the receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Overdue receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified as current (i.e. not past
due). For term deposits, local authority stock, government stock and community loans, impairment
losses are recognised directly against the instruments carrying amount.
At each balance sheet date Council assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Any impairment losses are recognised in the surplus or
deficit.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered objective evidence of impairment.
For debt investments, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
into bankruptcy, and default in payments are considered objective indicators that the asset is impaired.
If impairment evidence exists for investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the surplus or deficit)
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the surplus or deficit.
Equity instrument impairment losses recognised in the surplus or deficit are not reversed through the
surplus or deficit.
If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed in the surplus or deficit.
Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Council uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate
risks arising from financing activities. In accordance with its Investment and Liability Management
policy, Council does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Council’s
interest rate swap portfolio was valued by ETOS Ltd as at 30 June 2014. The movement in fair value
has been included in surplus/(deficit) in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Council did not hold
any forward Foreign Exchange Contracts at balance date.
Non-current assets held for sale
The only asset currently included in this category is property held for sale.
The majority of property intended for sale relates to subdivisions that Council has developed in
Kerepehi and Ngatea. Council was marketing these sections at balance date and expects all
remaining sections to be sold by in the next financial year.
Council has capitalised the cost of the land, design/survey fees, power and telephone reticulation, and
other expenses directly associated with the project. Council considers the amounts capitalised to be
less than net realisable value.
Expenditure incurred on the development of roading, including footpaths and kerb and channelling,
wastewater and water reticulation and stormwater have not been included. The cost of these assets
has been added to the appropriate infrastructural classification.
Non-current assets held for sale are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction, not through continuing use. Non-current assets held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment losses for write-downs of non-current assets held for sale are recognised in the
surplus or deficit.
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Any increases in fair value (less costs to sell) are recognised up to the level of any impairment losses
that have been previously recognised.
Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
Property, plant and equipment
This category of assets includes:
 Operational assets, being tangible assets such as land, buildings, library books, plant and
equipment, and motor vehicles.
 Restricted assets, being property, owned by Council which provide a benefit or service to the
community and cannot be disposed of because of legal or other restrictions, such as parks and
reserves, landfill post closure.
 Infrastructure Assets, being the fixed utility systems owned by Council. Each infrastructural asset
class includes all items that are required for the network to function, for example, wastewater
reticulation includes reticulation piping and wastewater pump stations. These are generally not
regarded as tradable.
Property, plant and equipment is shown at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
Additions
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Council
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. In most instances, an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is
recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Work in progress is recognised at cost less
impairment and is not depreciated.
Subsequent recognition
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The costs of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the surplus or deficit as they are incurred.
Valuation
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are accounted for on a class of asset basis.
All additions since the latest valuation are brought into the accounts at cost and depreciated in the
year following construction.
The net revaluation results are credited or debited to other comprehensive income and are
accumulated to an asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset. Where this would result
in a debit balance in the asset revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other
comprehensive income but is recognised in the surplus or deficit. Any subsequent increase on
revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be
recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously expensed, and then recognised in
other comprehensive income.
Land
All land is valued as at 30 June 2013 plus additions/development at cost, less disposals. Land
valuations were completed by Quotable Value NZ, qualified independent valuers, and confirmed as
being suitable for financial reporting.
Land is valued at fair value using market-based evidence based on its highest and best use with
reference to comparable land values. Adjustments have been made to the ‘unencumbered’ land value
where there is a designation against the land or the use of the land is restricted because of reserve or
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endowment status. These adjustments are intended to reflect the negative effect on the value of the
land where an owner is unable to use the land more intensely.
Buildings
All buildings were valued at 1 July 2011 plus additions/development at cost, less disposals. Building
valuations were completed by Townshend Cullen Ltd, qualified independent valuers, and confirmed as
being suitable for financial reporting.
Specialised buildings are valued at fair value using depreciated replacement cost because no reliable
market data is available for such buildings.
Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a number of significant assumptions. Significant
assumptions include:
 The replacement asset is based on the replacement with modern equivalent assets with
adjustments where appropriate for obsolescence due to over-design or surplus capacity.
 The replacement cost is derived from recent construction contracts of similar assets and Property
Institute of New Zealand cost information.
 The remaining useful life of assets is estimated.
 Straight-line deprecation has been applied in determining the depreciated replacement cost value
of the asset.
Non-specialised buildings (for example, residential buildings) are valued at fair value using marketbased evidence. Market rents and capitalisation rates were applied to reflect market value.
The valuation of earthquake prone buildings does not include any adjustment for estimated building
strengthening and costs or any association lost rental during the time to undertake the strengthening
work.
Infrastructural assets
Roading assets were valued by the independent valuers, Opus International Consultants Limited as at
30 June 2014. Water, Wastewater, Stormwater and Drainage Assets were valued by the independent
valuers, Opus International Ltd as at 1 July 2011. Land under roads was valued by the independent
valuers, Opus International Consultants Ltd as at 30 June 2002 using the average market value of
land by ward and land use category. Since the introduction of International Financial Reporting
Standards, on 30 June 2007, land under roads has been recognised at deemed cost.
Infrastructural assets are also carried at fair value, which is deemed to be depreciated replacement
cost because the assets are of a specialised nature. The depreciated replacement costs are
determined on the basis of valuations prepared every three years. The revaluation process involves
assessing the current optimised replacement cost on a brownfields basis, using highest and best use
basis and remaining useful lives.
Library books
These are valued annually and are valued at depreciated replacement cost as at 30 June 2014 by
Council staff. Estimates of the remaining useful life over which the asset will be depreciated have been
determined based on Council’s policy on book replacement, as well as historical book replacement
data.
Vehicles, equipment and technology
These assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset. Gains and losses on disposals are included in the surplus or deficit. When re-valued assets
are sold, the amounts included in asset revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are transferred
to retained earnings.
Depreciation
Land, Assets under Construction: Land, and Assets under Construction are not depreciated.
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All other assets are depreciated on a straight line basis that will spread the cost of the asset, less any
residual value, over the expected useful life of the asset. The useful lives of assets have been
identified on a component–by–component basis. A summary of the range of expected useful lives of
assets follows:
Roading:
 Seal (3-60 years)
 Base course (5-100 years)
 Surface Water Channels (75 years)
 Culverts (50 years)
 Footpaths (75 years)
 Bridges (30-100 years)
 Streetlighting (25 years)
 Signs (12.5-20 years)
Buildings:
 Structure (80 years)
 Roof cladding (30 years)
 Electrical/Mechanical (25 years)
 Plumbing (35 years)
 Internal wall linings (25 years)
 Lifts (25 years)
 Air Conditioners (15 years)
 Site Improvements (25 years)
Other Assets:
 Water Reticulation (25-120 years)
 Water Treatment (10-150 years)
 Wastewater (10-100 years)
 Computer Hardware (3-5 years)
 Stormwater/Drainage (20-200 years)
 Fixtures and Fitting (5-10 years)
 Communications Equipment (5 years)
 Heavy Plant and Machinery (8-15 years)
 Light Plant (2-5 years)
 Motor Vehicles–Cars and Utilities (3-7 years)
 Library Books (10 years)

Assets purchased during the financial year are depreciated on a remaining month’s basis.
Council owns a number of properties, which are maintained primarily to provide housing to
pensioners. The receipt of market-based rental from these properties is incidental to holding these
properties. These properties are held for service delivery objectives as part of the Council’s social
housing policy. These properties are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Intangible Assets
Software acquisition and development
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software.
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Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal use by Council, are
recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the software development employee costs and
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Staff training costs are recognised in the surplus or
deficit when incurred.
Easements
Council has no easements as prescribed for this category.
Amortisation
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the
asset is derecognised. The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
The useful lives of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as follows:
 Computer software 3-10 years (10%-33%)

Forestry assets
Forestry assets are independently re-valued by PF Olsen & Company, a registered forest valuer
annually at fair value less estimated point of sale costs. Fair value is determined based on the present
value of expected net cash flows discounted at a current market determined pre-tax rate.
Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of biological assets at fair value less estimated point of
sale costs and from a change in fair value less estimated point of sale costs are recognised in the
surplus or deficit.
The costs to maintain the forestry assets are included in the surplus or deficit.

Investment property
Properties leased to third parties under operating leases are classified as investment property unless
the property is held to meet service delivery objectives, rather than to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.
After initial recognition, Council measures all investment property at fair value as determined annually
by an independent valuer.
Gains or losses arising from a change in the fair value of investment property are recognised in the
surplus or deficit.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use.
Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future economic benefits or
service potential of the asset are not primarily dependent on the assets ability to generate net cash
inflows and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic
benefits or service potential.
The value in use for cash-generating assets is the present value of expected future cash flows.
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If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is impaired and the carrying
amount is written down to the recoverable amount. For re-valued assets the impairment loss is
recognised against the revaluation reserve for that class of asset. Where that results in a debit
balance in the revaluation reserve, the balance is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
For assets not carried at a re-valued amount, the total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or
deficit.
The reversal of an impairment loss on a re-valued asset is credited to the revaluation reserve.
However, to the extent that an impairment loss for that class of asset was previously recognised in
surplus or deficit, a reversal of the impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit.
For assets not carried at a re-valued amount the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
surplus or deficit.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised at fair value.

Employee benefits
Short-term benefits
Employee benefits that Council expects to be settled within 12 months of balance date are measured
at nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. These include salaries and
wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, retiring
and long service leave entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick leave.
Council recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year are
expected to be greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year. The amount is
calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to
the extent that Council anticipates it will be used by staff to cover those future absences.
The liability and an expense are recognised for bonuses where Council has a contractual obligation or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
Long-term benefits
Long service leave and retirement leave entitlements that are payable beyond 12 months have been
calculated on an actuarial basis. The calculations are based on:



Likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entitlement, the
likelihood that staff will reach the point of entitlement and contractual entitlements information; and
The present value of the estimated future cash flows. A discount rate of 6% and an inflation factor
of 4% were used. The discount rate is based on expected interest rates for terms to maturity
similar to those of the relevant liabilities. The inflation factor is based on the expected long-term
increase in remuneration for employees.

Superannuation schemes
Council has not entered into a defined benefit scheme. Payments to defined contributions schemes
are expensed in the surplus or deficit when incurred.
Provisions
Council recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a
present obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as an interest expense and is included in finance costs.
Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires Council to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due.
Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value. If a financial guarantee contract was
issued in a stand-alone arm's length transaction to an unrelated party, its fair value at inception is
equal to the consideration received. When no consideration is received a provision is recognised
based on the probability that Council will be required to reimburse a holder for a loss incurred
discounted to present value. The portion of the guarantee that remains unrecognised, prior to
discounting to fair value, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Financial guarantees are subsequently measured at the initial recognition amount less any
amortisation, however if Council assesses that it is probable that expenditure will be required to settle
a guarantee, then the provision for the guarantee is measured at the present value of the future
expenditure.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value. After initial recognition, all borrowings are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance date or if the borrowings are expected to
be settled within 12 months of balance date.
Equity
Equity is the community’s interest in Council and is measured as the difference between total assets
and total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of reserves.
The components of equity are:
 Retained earnings
 Other reserves
 Asset revaluation reserves
Other Reserves
Other reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various
parts of equity have been assigned. Other reserves are those subject to specific conditions accepted
as binding by Council and which may not be revised by Council without approval by Council. Transfers
from these reserves may be made only for certain specified purposes or when certain specified
conditions are met. Council’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are described in
note 8.
Asset revaluation reserves
This relates to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment to fair value.
Budget figures
The budget figures are those approved by the Council at the beginning of the year in the 2013/14
Annual Plan. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting
policies that are consistent with those adopted by Council for the preparation of the financial
statements.
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Cost allocation
The cost of service for each significant activity of the Council has been derived using the cost
allocation system outlined below.
Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs
that cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner with a specific significant activity.
Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities. Indirect costs are charged to significant
activities using appropriate cost drivers such as actual usage, staff numbers, and floor area.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
In preparing these financial statements Council has made estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations or future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
Landfill aftercare provision
Note 22 discloses an analysis of the exposure of Council in relation to the estimates and
uncertainties surrounding the landfill aftercare provision.
Infrastructural assets
There are a number of assumptions and estimates used when performing depreciated
replacement cost valuations over infrastructural assets. These include:
 The physical deterioration and condition of an asset, for example the Council could be carrying an
asset at an amount that does not reflect its actual condition. This is particularly so for those
assets, which are not visible, for example storm water, wastewater and water supply pipes that are
underground. This risk is minimised by Council performing a combination of physical inspections
and condition modelling assessments of underground assets;
 Estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and
 Estimates are made when determining the remaining useful lives over which the asset will be
depreciated. These estimates can be impacted by the local conditions, for example weather
patterns, ground condition and traffic growth. If useful lives do not reflect the actual consumption
of the benefits of the asset, then Council could be over or under estimating the annual
depreciation charge recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. To
minimise this risk Council’s infrastructural asset useful lives have been determined with reference
to the NZ Infrastructural Asset Valuation and Depreciation Guidelines published by the National
Asset Management Steering Group and have been adjusted for local conditions based on past
experience. Asset inspections, deterioration and condition modelling are also carried out regularly
as part of the Council’s asset management planning activities, which gives Council further
assurance over its useful life estimates.
 Experienced independent valuers perform/review the Council’s infrastructural asset revaluations.
Critical judgements in applying Council’s accounting policies
Management has exercised the following critical judgements in applying Council’s accounting policies
for the period ended 30 June 2014:

106 | P a g e

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 351

Classification of property
Council owns a number of properties, which are maintained primarily to provide housing to
pensioners. The receipt of market-based rental from these properties is incidental to holding
these properties. These properties are held for service delivery objectives as part of Council’s
social housing policy. These properties are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

2. Explanation of major variances to budget
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Operating
The operating deficit was $6.5 million higher than forecast.
The main factor in this variance to budget was $5.0 million of forecast subsidy income for water capital
that was not received during the year. This income is forecast to be received in 2014/15 and 2015/16.
Depreciation was $1.0 million higher than forecast due to no provision for depreciation being made in
the forecast for the Hauraki Rail Trail and corporate assets.
Revaluations
The total comprehensive income surplus was $17.5 million. This was $11.3 million lower than
budgeted. As well as the variances outlined above, the actual increase in the value of roading assets
was $20.1 million (compared to a $25.0 million forecast increase). The previous year’s revaluation
decrease of $0.5 million related to land assets.
Statement of Financial Position
Overall borrowings are $6.1 million lower than budget due to the deferral of capital projects. Property,
plant and equipment is $32.4 million lower, primarily due to lower than forecast valuation increases in
land and roading assets, and the impact of deferring water supply capital projects.
Statement of Cashflows
Compared to budget Council paid less for purchases and construction of Property, Plant and
Equipment ($7.5 million). Offsetting this, were lower than budgeted Council receipts from Other
Revenue ($4.0 million).
The effect of these, and other smaller changes, was to decrease the forecast net cash requirement
from borrowing and cash reserves by $3.1 million.
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3. Summary of Income and Expenditure for Groups of Activities

4. Income

5. Expenditure

6. Finance Cost

7. Financial Instruments
Council has a series of policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments. Council is
risk averse and seeks to minimise exposure from its treasury activities. Council has established
Council approved Liability Management and Investment policies. These policies do not allow any
transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.
Financial Instrument Categories

Fair Value Hierarchy Disclosures
For those instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of financial position, fair values are
determined according to the following hierarchy:
 Quoted market price (level 1) – Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments
in active markets.
 Valuation technique using observable inputs (level 2) – Financial instruments with quoted prices
for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are
observable.
 Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (level 3) – Financial instruments
valued using models where one or more significant inputs are not observable.
The following table analyses the basis of the valuation of classes of financial instruments measured at
fair value in the statement of financial position:

[TABLE]
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Financial Instrument Risk
Market Risk
Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices. Equity securities price risk arises on listed share investments,
which are classified as financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income. This
price risk arises due to market movements in listed shares. Equity securities price risk is not managed
as Council does not have any listed shares.
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Council is not exposed to currency risk, as it does not enter into foreign currency
transactions.
Sensitivity Analysis (Interest Rate Risk)

[TABLE]

Interest rate sensitivity is based on a reasonable possible movement in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, measured as a basis points (bps) movement. For example, a decrease in 50
bps is equivalent to a decrease in interest rates of 0.5%.
The sensitivity for derivatives (interest rate swaps) has been calculated using a derivative valuation
model based on a parallel shift in interest rates of -50bps/+50bps (2013 -50bps/+50bps).
If interest rates on borrowings at 30 June 2014 had fluctuated by plus or minus 50 basis points (bps)
(i.e. 0.5%), the effect would have been to decrease/increase the surplus after tax by $148,000 (2013
$120,000) as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
If interest rates on swaps at 30 June 2014 had fluctuated by plus or minus 50 basis points (bps) (i.e.
0.5%), the effect would have been to increase/decrease the surplus after tax by $572,000 (2013
$366,000) as a result of changes in the fair value of swaps.
Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates and interest rate borrower swaps,
expose the Council to fair value interest rate risk.
Council’s Liability Management policy outlines the level of borrowing that is to be secured using fixed
rate instruments. Fixed to floating interest rate swaps can be entered into to hedge the fair value
interest rate risk arising where Council has borrowed at fixed rates. In addition, investments at fixed
interest rates expose the Council to fair value interest rate risk.
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Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Borrowings and investments issued at variable interest
rates expose Council to cash flow interest rate risk.
Council manages its cash flow interest rate risk on borrowings by using floating-to-fixed interest rate
swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings at floating rates
and swaps them into fixed rates that are generally lower than those available if Council borrowed at
fixed rates directly. Under the interest rate swaps, Council agrees with other parties to exchange, at
specified intervals, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to Council, causing Council to incur
a loss.
Council invests funds only in deposits with registered banks and local authority stock and its
Investment Policy limits the amount of credit exposure to any one institution or organisation.
Investments in other Local Authorities are secured by charges over rates. Other than other local
authorities, Council only invests funds with those entities, which have a Standard and Poor's credit
rating of at least A1 for short term and AA- for long-term investments. Accordingly, Council does not
require any collateral or security to support these financial instruments.
The Council is exposed to credit risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA’s borrowings. Information about this
exposure is explained in note 29.

Credit Quality of Financial Assets
Counterparties for Cash and cash equivalents, and Derivative Financial Instruments are all AA- rated
by Standard & Poors.
None of the financial guarantee counterparties have had any defaults in the past.
Debtors and other receivables arise mainly from the Council’s statutory functions. Therefore, there are
no procedures in place to monitor or report the credit quality of debtors and other receivables with
reference to internal or external credit ratings. The Council has no significant concentrations of credit
risk in relation to debtors and other receivables, as it has a large number of credit customers, mainly
ratepayers, and the Council has powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover
outstanding debts from ratepayers.
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Maturity Analysis

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments
as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions.
Council aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
Council manages its borrowings in accordance with its funding and financial policies, which includes a
Liability Management policy. These policies have been adopted as part of the Hauraki Long Term Plan
(HLTP). Council has a maximum amount that can be drawn down against its borrowing facilities of
$30,000,000 (2013 $34,000,000). There are no restrictions on the use of these facilities. The maturity
profiles of the Council’s interest bearing investments and borrowings are disclosed above.
The Council is exposed to liquidity risk as a guarantor of all of LGFA’s borrowings. This guarantee
becomes callable in the event of the LGFA failing to pay its borrowings when they fall due. Information
about this exposure is explained in note 29.

8. Capital management
The Council's capital is its equity (or ratepayers' funds), which comprise retained earnings and
reserves. Equity is represented by net assets.
The Local Government Act, 2002 (the Act) requires the Council to manage its revenues, expenses,
assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes
the current and future interests of the community.
Ratepayer's funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues, expenses, assets,
liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings. The objective of managing these items is to
achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the Act and applied by the Council.
Intergenerational equity requires today's ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the Council's assets
and not expecting them to meet the full cost of long term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future
generations.
Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets detailing
renewal and maintenance programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to
meet the costs of deferred renewals and maintenance.
The Act requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Hauraki Long Term Plan
(HLTP) and in its Annual Plan (where applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those
plans. The Act also sets out the factors that the Council is required to consider when determining the
most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities. The sources and levels of funding are set
out in the funding and financial policies in the HLTP.
Council has two types of other reserves:
 Reserves for different areas of benefit and, trust and bequest reserves.
 Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers
as distinct from the general rate. Any surplus or deficit relating to these separate areas of benefit
is applied to the specific reserves.

111 | P a g e

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Trust and bequest reserves are set up where Council has been donated funds that are restricted for
particular purposes. Interest is added to trust and bequest reserves where applicable and deductions
are made where funds have been used for the purpose they were donated.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

10. Trade and other receivables

11. Inventories

12. Other financial assets

13. Non-current assets held for sale
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14. Property, plant and equipment
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Significant Acquisitions and Disposals






Waitakaruru Raw Water Storage
The $2.7 million project commenced in late 2012/13. $0.7 million was spent during 2013/14 to
complete this project.
Paeroa and Waihi Water Treatment Upgrades
$2.0 million was spent during 2013/14 on this $5.6 million project. The remainder budgeted for this
project is planned to be spent in 2014/15.
Waihi Library and Service Centre
Work on this $1.7 million project commenced late in 2012/13. $1.6 million was spent during the
reporting period. The project was completed in 2013/14.

Impairment
There were no impairment losses (2013 $0).
Work in progress
The total amount of property, plant and equipment in the course of construction was $3,991,000 (2013
$3,574,000).

15. Intangible assets

16. Forestry assets

17. Investment property

18. Derivative financial instruments

Fair value
Interest rate swaps
The fair values of interest rate swaps have been determined by calculating the expected cash flows
under the terms of the swaps and discounting these values to present value. The inputs into the
valuation model are from independently sourced market parameters such as interest rate yield curves.
Most market parameters are implied from instrument prices. The interest rates range from 3.43% to
4.96%.

19. Joint ventures
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20. Investments in Associates

21. Trade and other payables

22. Provisions

23. Employee benefit entitlements

The present value of retirement and long service leave obligations depend on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis. Two key assumptions used in calculating this liability include the
discount rate and the salary inflation factor. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying
amount of the liability.

24. Borrowing

25. Internal lending

26. Reserves

District Community Projects Assistance Fund
This Reserve Fund is to assist with the completion of community projects.
District, Paeroa, Plains, and Waihi Community Recreational Funds
These Reserve Funds are historic and were used to accumulate Financial Contributions prior to
Council changing to a Development Contributions regime. The balances will be used to fund
community recreational facilities capital works.
Paeroa Sewer/Water Emergency Fund
To fund works repairing damage to Paeroa water and wastewater networks in the event of an
emergency.
Whiritoa Development Fund
This Reserve Fund is to assist with the completion of community projects in Whiritoa.
Enticott bequest
This is an historic financial bequest to fund community projects.
Piano Replacement Fund
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This is an historic Reserve Fund set up to provide for the replacement of the piano in the Paeroa War
Memorial Hall.
Quarry Renewal Fund
This Reserve Fund is to provide funding for the cost of rehabilitating Tetley’s Quarry post-closure.
Asset revaluation reserves
These reserve funds are to hold the net balances from gains/losses from asset revaluations.

27. Reconciliation of net surplus (deficit) after tax to net cash flow
from operating activities

28. Capital commitments and operating leases

29. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

[TABLE]

Council had no contingent assets as at balance date (2013 $0).
Hauraki Rail Trail
The Council, along with Thames-Coromandel District Council (TCDC) and Matamata-Piako District
Council (MPDC) are party to a trust deed which has formed the Hauraki Rail Trail Charitable Trust (the
Trust). The deed, signed on 2 March 2012, allows the Trust to own, operate, maintain, repair, develop
and facilitate the use and enjoyment of a rail trail within the region.
Upon formation of The Trust, it also entered into a “Management Agreement” to manage the rail trail.
As part of that agreement, the Trust is required to obtain income from the rail trail to provide funding
for its ‘management obligations’. If the Trust is unable to obtain sufficient income from the rail trail to
meet is management obligations, the Council, TCDC and MPDC have agreed to contribute additional
funding to the Trust (as set out in the management agreement).
If Council is notified that a shortfall exists, then Council is required to pay to the trust the lesser of:
 One third of the shortfall specified in the relevant Trust’s notice; or the following amount.
 $94,586 for the year ended 30 June 2015; or
 $94,586 for the year ended 30 June 2016.
 $94,586 for the year ended 30 June 2017.
Local Authority Protection Programme (LAPP)
Council is party to an agreement of the Local Authority Protection Programme Disaster Fund. This
fund is being built up by local authorities to provide mutual self-assurance, and has limits on additional
contributions required. There will be no contributions required from Council in 2015 as there are
sufficient funds to cover future events.
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New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency
Council is a guarantor of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (NZLGFA). The
NZLGFA was incorporated in December 2011 with the purpose of providing debt funding to local
authorities in New Zealand and it has a current credit rating from Standard and Poor’s of AA+ and a
foreign currency rating of AA.
Council is one of 30 local authority shareholders and 8 local authority guarantors of the NZLGFA, and
has uncalled capital of $100,000. When aggregated with the uncalled capital of other shareholders,
$20 million is available in the event that an imminent default is identified. Also, together with the other
shareholders and guarantors, Council is a guarantor of all of NZLGFA’s borrowings. At 30 June 2014,
NZLGFA had borrowings totalling $3,728 million (2013: $2,497 million).
Financial reporting standards require Council to recognise the guarantee liability at fair value.
However, Council has been unable to determine a sufficiently reliable fair value for the guarantee, and
therefore has not recognised a liability. Council considers the risk of NZLGFA defaulting on repayment
of interest or capital to be very low on the basis that:
 We are not aware of any local authority debt default events in New Zealand; and
 Local government legislation would enable local authorities to levy a rate to recover sufficient
funds to meet any debt obligations if further funds were required.

30. Related party transactions

31. Remuneration

32. Severance payments

33. Rating Base Information
The number of rating units within the District at the end of the preceding financial year (30 June 2013)
was 11,427. As at 30 June 2012 the number of rating units was 11,281.
The total capital value of rating units within the District at the end of the preceding financial year (30
June 2013) was $5,189,177,700. As at 30 June 2012 the total capital value of the rating units within
the District was $5,174,774,200.
The total land value of rating units within the District at the end of the preceding financial year (30
June 2013) was $3,379,128,400. As at 30 June 2012 the total land value of the rating units within the
District was $3,356,001,900.

34. Events after balance date
There were no significant events after balance date.
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Statement of Compliance and Responsibility –
as at 30 June 2015
Statement of Compliance
The Council and Management of Hauraki District Council confirm that all statutory requirements in
relation to the Annual Report as outlined in the Local Government Act 2002, have been complied with.

Statement of Responsibility
The Council and Management of Hauraki District Council accept responsibility for the preparation of
the Annual Report and the judgements used in it.
The Council and Management of Hauraki District Council accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity
and reliability of financial reporting.
In the opinion of the Council and Management of Hauraki District Council, the Annual Report for the
year ended 30 June 2014 fairly reflects the financial position and operations of Hauraki District
Council.

J P Tregidga
Mayor
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Related Documents
Liability Management Policy and Investment Policy
Background
The Liability Management Policy addresses a number of key objectives, including those required to
address legislative requirements. The Liability Management Policy outlines the Council’s objectives for
prudence, flexibility and risk in three principle areas; liquidity and funding risk, interest rate risk, and
credit risk. The Policy details Council’s approach to minimising the total cost of borrowing over the
medium to longer term.
The Investment Policy sets the parameters which investment activity can occur with approved
organisations for investments, and the type of approved investment vehicles. The mix of investments
between current and non-current is determined according to Council’s working capital needs. The
purpose of the policy is to ensure that Council’s investments are managed prudently, within prescribed
risk levels and they are set to mature at the appropriate time to match cash flow requirements.
Overall Results
There have been no significant variations or material departures from the Council’s Investment Policy
or Liability Management Policy.
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Appendix 2: Council Committees
Committees as at June 2015:
The Operations Committee
Committee Members:
 Toby Adams (Chairperson)
 Gill Leonard (Deputy Chairperson)
 All Councillors

The Consultative Committee Water and
Waste

Committee Members:
 Greg Harris

(Chairperson)

The Audit and Risk Committee
Committee Members:
 Paul Bennett (Chairperson, Independent
Member)
 John Tregidga
 Bruce Gordon
 Gill Leonard
 Ashley Tubman
The District Plan Committee
Committee Members:
 Bruce Gordon (Chairperson)
 Paul Milner (Deputy Chairperson)
 Julie Bubb
 Greg Harris
The Judicial Committee
Committee Members:
 Gill Leonard (Chairperson)
 Julie Bubb (Deputy Chairperson)
 Greg Harris
 Harry Shepherd
 Paul Milner
The District Licensing Committee
Committee Members:
 Paul Milner (Chairperson)
 Gill Leonard (Deputy Chairperson)
 Mary Carmine
 Denis Taylor
 John Goodman
Economic Development Committee
Committee members:
 Toby Adams (Chairperson)
 Gill Leonard (Deputy Chairperson
 Paul Miner
 Ashley Tubman
Road Safety Committee
Committee members:
 Greg Harris (Chairperson)
 James Thorp (Deputy Chairperson)

Keith Trembath
(Hauraki
Coromandel
Federated Farmers)



James Thorp
(Deputy
Chairperson)



David Welch (Royal
Forest and Bird
Protection Society)



Harry Shepherd



Pauline Clarkin
(Ngati Hako)



Bruce Gordon



Win Brownlee
(Ngati Tamatera)
Craig Reidy (Ngati
Maru)



The Paeroa Ward Committee
Committee members:
 Julie Bubb (Chairperson)
 Paul Miner (Deputy Chairperson
 Toby Adams
 James Thorp
The Plains Ward Committee
Committee members:
 Gill Leonard (Chairperson)
 Greg Harris (Deputy Chairperson
 Bruce Gordon
 Don Swales
The Waihi Ward Committee
Committee members:
 Harry Shepherd (Chairperson)
 Max McLean (Deputy Chairperson
 Ashley Tubman
 Pam Keall
Standing Committees
The Mayor is appointed as an ex-officio
member to all Council Committees and Subcommittees, except the Judicial Committee,
the District Plan Committee and the District
Licensing Committee.
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Message from the

Mayor and Chief
Executive

<<STILL TO BE INCLUDED – WAITING ON FINANCIALS>>

Langley Cavers
Chief Executive

John Tregidga
Mayor

“Could put a quote in here
from the Mayor???”

Thank you for taking the time to read our Annual Report Summary. We look forward to working with you in
2015/16.

John Tregidga
Mayor

Langley Cavers
Chief Executive
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Introduction and Document Overview
Your Elected Members 2014/15

Mayor

District Mayor
Mr John P Tregidga, MNZM, JP
(07) 862 8956
mayor@hauraki-dc.govt.nz

Waihi Ward

Plains Ward

Paeroa Ward

Councillor –
Chairperson

Councillor –
Deputy Mayor

Councillor Chairperson

Mr Harry Shepherd
(07) 863 7589

Mr Bruce A Gordon
(07) 867 7436

Mrs Julie M Bubb,
J.P.
(07) 862 7188

Councillor –
Deputy
Chairperson

Councillor –
Chairperson

Councillor –
Deputy Chairperson

Mrs Gill Leonard, J.P.
(07) 867 7535

Mr Paul A Milner
(07) 862 7759

Councillor –
Deputy Chairperson

Councillor

Mr Max P McLean
(07) 863 5151

Councillor
Mrs Pam Keall
(07) 863 6996

Mr Greg Harris
(07) 867 7609

Mr Toby Adams
(07) 862 6993

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Mr Ashley Tubman,
J.P.
(07) 863 8681

Mr Donald Swales
J.P.
(09) 232 2755

Mr James Thorp
(07) 862 7782

Note: For a full list of all Council committees, chairpersons and members, see Appendix 2: Council Committees,
in the full 2014/15 Annual Report (available on the Council website www.hauraki-dc.govt.nz).
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Introduction
This is a summary of the 2014/15 Annual Report adopted by the Hauraki District Council on 28 October
2015. The purpose of this document is to provide an overview of the Council’s achievements from the
2014/15 financial year. This document is not a complete representation of the full Annual Report, but is a
summary of the Council’s key financial and non-financial performance as measured against the targets,
objectives and projects set out in the Council’s 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan for the 2014/15 year and
the 2014/15 Annual Plan.
The full 2014/15 Annual Report is available from the Hauraki District Council offices and libraries in Ngatea,
Paeroa and Waihi, by phoning 07 862 8609 or 0800 734 834 (from within the District), or from the Council’s
website - www.hauraki-dc.govt.nz.

The Council’s Activities
As detailed in the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan and 2014/15 Annual Plan, the Council undertakes a
wide range of services that are arranged into ten groups of activities. The Council’s groups of activities are
as follows:
Mandatory Groups of Activities:






Roading (the provision of roads and footpaths)
Water Supply
Wastewater (sewerage and the treatment and
disposal of sewage)
Stormwater (stormwater drainage)
Land Drainage (flood protection and control
works)

Additional Groups of Activities:
 Solid Waste


Governance and Leadership
 Democracy
 Iwi Liaison
 Policy Development



Community Services
 Community Recreation
 Community Facilities



Community Development
 Community Growth
 Community Initiatives



Regulatory Services
 Resource Management Implementation
 Building Control
 Community Protection
 Animal Control

This summary document provides the following summarised information under each activity
named above:
 a brief description of the activity or group of activities
 the Community Outcomes the activity or group of activities contributes to (shown by the
Community Outcomes icons).
 how the Council has performed in meeting its service targets, with some non-financial
performance measures highlighted.
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Meeting our

Service targets
The Council, as part of its development of the Hauraki Long Term Plan, sets levels of service for its ten
groups of activities. These levels of service are the Council’s commitment to the community regarding what
can be expected for the delivery of services, facilities, infrastructure and projects. A level of service can be
anything from the frequency that the Council’s public toilets or halls are cleaned, to the quality of the roading
network.
In order to measure the achievement of these levels of service, the Council maintains a number of ‘nonfinancial performance measures’. The Council had 114 non-financial performance measures listed in the
2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan for the 2014/15 year. Collectively, of those 114 targets:





86 of 114 were achieved (75%).
18 of 114 were not achieved (16%).
10 of 114 were not applicable in the 2014/15 year (9%).

Overview of Service Targets – ‘Not Achieved’
As shown above, 16% of the Council’s non-financial performance measures were not achieved for various
reasons. Some of the significant areas of non achievement, as well as ways in which we are planning on
improving the results, have been highlighted below. For further non-financial performance results see the
Meeting our Service Targets tables within this document.
Iwi Liaison
The Council has a commitment to progressing an ongoing dialogue with Iwi. In 2014/15 initial discussions
were held with Ngaati Whanaunga on developing a Memorandum of Understanding. The workload and
resourcing requirements associated with the Treaty settlement negotiations has meant that there has been
no progress on this matter; discussions will recommence once the Hauraki Treaty settlements are further
progressed.
Water Supply
The Council measures its compliance with its resource consent conditions (for residual flow and maximum
take) for all its supplies. This was not achieved in 2014/15. Maximum take limits were not achieved in first
quarter and third quarter of the year. The Waikino water system did not comply due to a high level of leakage
in July and August 2014. During the summer months high demand at Karangahake and Waikino resulted in
11 days at Karangahake and two days at Waikino where compliance was not achieved.
Wastewater
The Council largely met all of its resource consent conditions for its seven sewage treatment plants and
discharges. However, there were two exceedances of consent conditions in relation to discharge conditions
relating to ammoniacal nitrogen at Waihi and one exceedance relating to Escherichia coli bacteria (E. coli) at
Turua and Ngatea. Ammonia is released in our treatment ponds during the breakdown of organic matter
found in wastewater. The ammonia is then broken down by natural processes in the pond system, however
these processes are affected by a range of factors which could include: toxins tipped into the sewer (paints,
oils, thinners etc); cold temperatures; high flows; or even competition with other bacteria species in the
ponds. There are two other potential causes in the case of Waihi which are being investigated and there is
funding provided in the 2015/16 year to investigate the solution to this issue.
Additionally, the Waitakaruru wastewater system failed to meet one discharge condition relating to the
1
suspended solids limit. The suspended solids compliance was affected by two treatment failures which
1

Suspended solids refers to small solid particles which remain in suspension in water as a colloid or due to
the motion of the water. It is used as one indicator of water quality.
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occurred during the year. It is believed the cause of this is the illegal discharge of toxins to the wastewater
network. The Regional Council has been kept fully informed of this and the actions taken in response.
Libraries
There was a 3.86% decrease in the library resources issued in 2014/15, which meant that the target of 3%
increase on the previous year was not achieved. It is believed that this was due to the increase of online
usage, however the 2013/14 data has also been identified as being unreliable due to the external vendor's
systems - the data included other libraries' online resource data as well as the Hauraki District Council’s.
Community Growth
Quarterly reports were given to the Council in September, December and March. In the fourth quarter, the
report was electronically submitted to the Council for inclusion in the June meeting, however due to a
technical error the report was not included on the Council agenda which results in a non achievement of this
measure.
Satisfaction Survey Results
The Council annually measures user satisfaction for 15 categories of services it provides and then forecasts
what it hopes to achieve in satisfaction levels for the subsequent years. The results are also used by the
Council in reviewing its service levels for the Hauraki Long Term Plan. The 2015 survey resulted in a
combination of achieved and not achieved performance results in the Annual Report. In total eight
satisfaction measures were achieved, and seven satisfaction measures did not achieve their performance
targets, as shown below.
[Paragraph to be inserted following the Council review of results on 30 September 2015 and actions arising
out of these results]

Measure

Target for
2014/15

Result

Measure:
Percentage of customers that have
confidence in Council decision
making by elected members.

75%
satisfied

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey showed that
72% of residents were satisfied in the confident of Council
decision-making and 28% were dissatisfied. (2013/14: 73%
satisfied and 27% dissatisfied)

Measure:
Percentage of customers satisfied
that they understand Council decision
making processes.

70%
satisfied

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey showed that
60%* of residents are satisfied that they understand Council
decision-making processes and 40% were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 62% satisfied and 41% dissatisfied)

Measure:
Customers are satisfied with the
water quality from HDC networks.

85%
satisfied

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey showed that
76%* of residents on Council water supply are satisfied with the
water quality and 24% are dissatisfied. (2013/14: 80% satisfied
and 20 dissatisfied)

Measure:
Percentage of affected customers
satisfied with the land drainage
services.

75%
satisfied

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey showed that
71%* of residents located in a rural area are satisfied with the
land drainage services and 29% are dissatisfied. (2013/14: 75%
satisfied and 25% dissatisfied)

Measure:
Customers are satisfied with the
stormwater services.

80%
satisfied

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey results showed
that 72%* of customers were satisfied with stormwater services
and 28% were dissatisfied. (2013/14: 73% satisfied and 27%
dissatisfied).

Measure:
Percentage of users satisfied with the
kerbside collection service.

90%
satisfied

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey showed that
84%* of users were satisfied with kerbside collection services
and 16% were dissatisfied. (2013/14: 86% satisfied and 14%
dissatisfied)

Measure:
Members of the community are
prepared for a Civil Defence
emergency (i.e. have an emergency
plan, emergency kit and can survive
for three days).

45% of
residents are
prepared

Not Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction survey showed that
44% of residents had an emergency kit in their household.
(2013/14: 41%)
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The full Annual Satisfaction Survey results are available on the Council’s website. These results are also
reported in the full Annual Report (available on the Council website www.hauraki-dc.govt.nz).
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Overview of Achievements in 2014/15


Governance and Leadership:
 In August 2014 all councils in the Waikato Region signed an agreement (the Triennial Agreement)
containing the protocols for communication and co-ordination for the next three years.
 Treaty settlements negotiations started in 2013 and have continued into 2015 seeking settlement of
some land matters within the Hauraki District on behalf of Hauraki Iwi. The negotiations include the
future status and management of three particular sites within the Hauraki District such as Opita wāhi
tapu (Kaiaua boat ramp reserve), Piopiotahi Burial Reserve at Wharekawa and Ngatikoi Domain
(Black Hill in Waihi).
 The Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council Organisations Policy was reviewed and
adopted in April 2015



Roading:
 To substitute pavement where it is more economic than repairing minor defects, $940,000 was spent
in 2014/15. The programme included the completion of the 2013/14 project on 1.54 km of Pukekauri
Road in Waihi. 2.08 km was paved in Kaihere Road in Ngatea, 0.9 km on Rountree Road in
Mangatarata and 1.45 km on Hauraki Road in Turua.
 To address deteriorating sections of drainage that may reduce the pavement life including kerbing
and channelling, $163,000 was spent in 2014/15. The drainage work included renewals on Hauraki
Road, Deam Road, Hubbard Road and Hume Road.



Water supply:
 The upgrading of the Paeroa and Waihi water treatment plants to comply with New Zealand Drinking
Water Standards were largely completed in the 2014/15 year. The remainder of the project is
expected to be finalised early in 2015/16. This project will also enable treatment of sufficient water to
supply the Ohinemuri, Karangahake, Waikino and Mackaytown areas.
 The upgrades required to meet New Zealand Drinking Water Standards at Waitakaruru were
progressed in 2014/15. The Council resolved to stage this work by priority, beginning with an
ultraviolet (UV) disinfection upgrade, and the minimum automation work to enable the UV plant. The
supporting work will be completed in the 2015/16 year.



Wastewater:
 The design for the Karangahake to Paeroa wastewater line to enable pumping wastewater from
Karangahake to the Paeroa treatment plant was developed and the project is expected to be fully
completed in the 2015/16 year.
 $29,000 was spent on replacing four pumps which failed during the year. Pump replacement is only
carried out after failure, to ensure the maximum life is obtained from each pump.



Land Drainage:
 The flood protection component to the Taramaire drainage rate for the Taramaire Drainage District
was proposed in the consultation of the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan. No submissions were
received regarding this proposal and the rate was implemented as proposed. This rate contributes to
drain and flood gate maintenance in this drainage district. The Hauraki District Council acquired this
land drainage area from the former Franklin District Council which had not been charging those
relevant property owners land drainage rates.
 Waitakaruru stream left stopbank from the State Highway to the Indian Floodgate has been
reconstructed in the 2014/15 year due to the existing stopbank being of a lesser standard than
expected.



Stormwater:
 Ngatea Domain stormwater renewal was carried out at a cost of $34,000
 A total of 537 m of open drains were piped in Waihi, Kerepehi, Turua and Paeroa at a cost of
$159,500.
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Solid Waste:
 The amount of waste collected from the Council’s kerbside rubbish collection reduced by 9% from
the previous year, dropping from 219.14 kg per property in 2013/14 to 197.71 kg in 2014/15.
 23 schools and preschools participated in the Paper4trees programme in the Hauraki District in
2014/15. By recycling 29.68 tonnes of paper and cardboard, the schools and preschools in the
District earned a total of 129 native trees to plant at school or in the community. This has saved 237
cubic metres of landfill space and prevented 160 tonnes of carbon emissions.



Community Services:
 The resealing of the carpark and roading areas at the Puke Road boat ramp was completed at the
end of 2014 at a cost of $20,000).
 In 2015 an initiative was launched to deliver books and resources to those who are unable to attend
the libraries in Waihi, Paeroa and Ngatea. The Librarians make the arrangements and get the books
ready to go, volunteers deliver to homes of library members, and pick up the books or resources
when they are ready to be returned.
 Mini trampolines were installed in the playground at Morgan Park in Waihi to replace a playground
piece that had reached the end of its useful life ($9,000).
 Protection and repair of pontoons at the Turua jetty was completed in June 2015.
 The conversion of the existing Whiritoa Surf Club public toilets into changing rooms was completed
before the summer of 2014/15.
 $6,000 was used at Pukerimu Cemetery for new berms due to an increased number of casket
burials.
 In May 2015 playground equipment at Kerepehi that no longer complied with safety standards was
removed and replaced with new items ($5,000).
 The under surface of the Railway Reserve playground in Paeroa was replaced with cushion fall in
December 2014 ($10,000).
 Ongoing maintenance of the Council’s pensioner housing including the replacement of stoves and
hot water cylinders was completed in 2014/15. This included the reroofing of some properties.



Community Development:
 In 2014/15 the Council continued to work with the Hauraki Rail Trail Charitable Trust and the
Thames-Coromandel District Council on the planning and design phase for the construction of the
Kaiaua to Kopu leg of the Hauraki Rail Trail. In May 2015 following the 2015-25 Hauraki Long Term
Plan consultation process, the Council decided to continue with the proposed extension of the Trail
from Kaiaua to Kopu. The additional funding sources for the development of this section of the Trail
still remain uncertain, particularly given that the application for external funding from the Lotteries
Special Projects Fund was declined.
 Funding was provided in 2014/15 to Surf Life Saving New Zealand for the operating costs associated
with providing life guards at Whiritoa Beach over the Christmas holiday season ($23,600).
 Construction on the Allied Faxi New Zealand Food Company Limited ice-cream production facility
began in Kerepehi in June 2015. The Council has been liaising with several potential businesses
regarding possible developments at the future “Food Hub”. The Council will investigate and pursue
‘food space’ investment opportunities for the Kerepehi subdivision and research necessary
infrastructure requirements.



Regulatory Services:
 Efforts began March/April 2015 on developing the ability to receive online registration payments on
the Council’s website. The Council began accepting online credit card payments for existing dogs
where no owner or dog details have changed in mid 2015.
 The Council continued to work on developing Community Response Plans for the Kaiaua and
Whiritoa communities. A Community Response Plan is a community-based plan that is used by
members of that community in a civil defence emergency. The plans for the Kaiaua and Whiritoa
communities will be developed first due to their coastal risks
 In 2014 considerable work was done on the Council’s provisional Local Alcohol Policy. Hearings
were held in February 2015 for the three appellants to the Policy and it has now been resubmitted
back to the Alcohol Regulatory and Licensing Authority for its deliberation.
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The Council’s Vision:

Community Outcomes
Community Outcomes are a positive way to stimulate thinking about local needs and priorities for today and
the future. In accordance with the changes to the Local Government Act 2002 and as part of the
development of the 2012-22 Hauraki Long Term Plan, the Council reviewed its Community Outcomes in
2011. The elected members asked themselves:

what are our goals as a Council?

how do we want to be in the future?

what do we want to do for our community and its well-being?
This has resulted in a number of statements that reflect the Council’s goals and aspirations for its
community. These statements are used to guide decision making and are encompassed in daily business.
The Council believes it is important to have aspirations and goals for the district community and to make sure
there is a focus on the future. The Community Outcomes help the Council to set its direction and enable it to
make decisions based on what is best for the district. In this way, we can keep working towards where we
want to be.

Community Outcome icons are used throughout the levels of service tables within this
summary to indicate the Outcome that the Council primarily contributes to. The icons are as
follows:
Sustainable
Hauraki

Interactive
Hauraki

Lifestyle
Hauraki

Kotahitanga
Hauraki

Progress
Hauraki

Prepared
Hauraki

The Council is required to report its contributions towards Community Outcomes
in its Annual Report. The key contributions are highlighted in the table on the next
page.
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Key Contributions to Community Outcomes
The following table shows which of the Council’s deliverables from the Groups of Activities contribute to each
of the Council’s Community Outcomes, and outlines some of the Council’s progress towards the
achievement of those Community Outcomes.
Community Outcomes

Key Contributions to Community Outcomes

Prepared Hauraki
We provide a range of services and
facilities to meet our District's needs
and expectations for a safe
environment.
 We provide ongoing safe, wellmanaged and maintained core
infrastructure.
 Our waste is collected, reduced,
reused and recycled responsibly.
 We are organised and prepared to
deal with natural hazards.



Waitakaruru treatment upgrade (Water Supply)
The provision of safe and well managed water supply infrastructure
was progressed in 2014/15 with the Waitakaruru treatment plant
upgrade. The upgrades are required to comply with the relevant
Central Government imposed health standards. The Council is staging
this work by priority, beginning with an ultraviolet (UV) disinfection
upgrade, and the minimum automation work to enable the UV plant.
With the first stage of the project completed, the supporting work will
continue into the next year.



Community Response Plans (Regulatory Services)
The Council worked with the Kaiaua and Whiritoa communities to
develop Community Response Plans during 2014/15, as the location
of these communities increases their risk of civil defence emergency.
The plans aid these communities in being organised and prepared to
deal with the hazards of their natural environments, and include
information to be used in an emergency situation.

Interactive Hauraki
We are a proactive Council that
provides leadership and
communicates effectively with all
sectors of our District.
 We advocate for the benefit of our
District.
 We keep our District well-informed
and ensure information is
available.
 We consider our District's views
when making decisions.



2015 Annual Satisfaction Survey (Governance and
Leadership)
In June 2015 the Council carried out its annual satisfaction survey of
Hauraki District residents. The survey gauges responses from 400
residents and gives the Council feedback on how its decision-making
and service to the community is perceived. From these results, the
Council can work towards rectifying any services that residents see as
needing improvement. The survey results are also communicated to
the community to ensure transparency.



Public Communications (Governance and Leadership)
In 2014/15 the Council produced an HDC News page in the Hauraki
Herald every week and 11 Waihi Ward Reflections pages over the
year. These newspaper pages aim to ensure the Council information
can be easily accessed and viewed by all members of the community.
The Council Facebook page stretches the reach into electronic media,
and also promotes the Council website as a source for further
information on matters affecting the community.



Policy Development (Governance and Leadership)
The Council consulted on its Consultation Document for the proposed
2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan in March/April 2015. The Council
received a variety of submissions regarding its proposed approach for
the ten year period, and considered the community’s views before
making decisions on the work programme going forward. The Council
sought feedback in particular regarding its future involvement in
economic development including the construction of the Kaiaua to
Kopu section of the Hauraki Rail Trail, and an industrial wastewater
treatment plant at Kerepehi.

10
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Community Outcomes

Key Contributions to Community Outcomes

Kotahitanga Hauraki
We take a collaborative approach
with both Mana Whenua and Tangata
Whenua in our District.
 We advocate for forums which
ensure involvement and
consultation in decision-making
processes.
 We ensure appropriate regard is
made to taonga and culturally
significant matters.
 We encourage the development of
partnerships for the delivery of
services and programmes



Water and Wastewater Consultative Committee
(Governance and Leadership)
Tangata Whenua are involved in Council decision making through
involvement in the Water and Wastewater Consultative Committee.
The Committee considers matters regarding water, wastewater and
solid waste service delivery and consenting. The Committee met three
times in 2014/15.



Treaty Settlement Process (Governance and Leadership)
The Council reserve area known as the Kaiaua Boat Ramp Reserve is
a historical Ngāti Pāoa burial ground or urupā which is a culturally
significant site. In 2014/15 the Council, the Crown and Ngāti Pāoa
have progressed negotiations towards Ngāti Pāoa’s wish to see the
transfer of the Crown owned southern and northern portions of this
reserve to Ngāti Pāoa ownership.

Lifestyle Hauraki
We provide an environment that
encourages vibrant communities
and an enhanced quality of life.
 Our unique communities are
protected while balancing the
needs of alternative lifestyles.
 We are advocates for the provision
of quality social, educational,
health and training services.
 We encourage partnerships within
the District for the delivery of
services.



Libraries (Community Services)
In 2015 an initiative was launched to deliver books and resources to
those who are unable to attend the libraries in Waihi, Paeroa and
Ngatea. Some residents that had previously been avid library-goers
have experienced lifestyle changes, removing their ability to attend the
library on a regular basis. To bridge the gap of accessibility for these
customers, volunteers deliver to their homes, and pick up the books or
resources when they are ready to be returned. For residents who are
not yet library members, the District Libraries offer the option of visiting
their home to complete a membership process.



Community Initiatives (Community Development)
Funding was provided in 2014/15 to Surf Life Saving New Zealand for
the operating costs associated with providing life guards at Whiritoa
Beach over the Christmas holiday season. This enables the provision
of a safe beach environment and the achievement of social wellbeing
in the Whiritoa community.



Social Initiatives Project (Community Development)
During the scoping phase of the Social Initiatives Project, each Ward
Committee identified its areas of focus. The Waihi Ward identified its
focus is to be on the ageing population. An initial meeting, facilitated by
the Council, was held in June 2015 bringing together social services
organisations and stakeholders in order to gather information about
services available to the elderly population in Waihi. The aim of this
project is to identify areas where collaboration and partnerships can be
used to better serve the older population of Waihi and improve their
health and social wellbeing. The Paeroa Ward has identified a need to
work with agencies to support youth that have left school but are not
yet in employment, training or tertiary education. This is expected to
begin in 2015/16 (the Plains Ward is yet to identify its area of focus).

11
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Community Outcomes

Key Contributions to Community Outcomes

Progress Hauraki
We have a positive climate that
encourages balanced and sustained
economic growth throughout our
District.
 Our infrastructural services and
facilities are planned and
developed to meet future demand.
 We encourage new opportunities
while continuing to support existing
ventures and service providers.
 We encourage further development
of tourism opportunities and
facilities focusing on our heritage
and eco-tourism.



Community Growth (Community Development)
Construction on the Beijing Allied Faxi New Zealand Food Company
Limited ice-cream processing facility began in Kerepehi in June 2015.
The Council has been liaising with several potential businesses
regarding possible occupation at the future “Food Hub”. The Council
will investigate and pursue ‘food space’ investment opportunities for
the Kerepehi subdivision. In terms of the wastewater infrastructure to
meet the demand of the “Food Hub”, the assessment of environmental
effects was completed in the 2014/15 year and consultation with
affected parties began this year. It is expected that the resource
consent application will be lodged in the 2015/16 year.



Destination Coromandel (Community Development)
Destination Coromandel is the regional tourism organisation for the
Coromandel region, including the areas from Waihi to the Hauraki
Plains. The Council contributes to the funding of Destination
Coromandel with the Thames-Coromandel District Council. In addition
to promoting the Coromandel as a tourism destination internationally,
Destination Coromandel also markets nationally by using media such
as advertising in the New Zealand Herald, trade shows, social media
and digital advertising e.g. Facebook. The main must-dos marketed in
the Hauraki District are the mine and Discovery Centre in Waihi,
Hauraki Rail Trail, the Hauraki Rail Trail through the Karangahake
Gorge, and the Paeroa L&P bottle.

Sustainable Hauraki
We plan for the wise use and
management of all land and
resources for the continued benefit
of our District.
 Our natural and physical
environments are sustainably
managed.
 We have a shared respect for both
economic growth and
environmental protection.
 We support the protection of the
District's significant natural habitats
and ecosystems.



Enviroschools/Zero Waste Education
This programme aims to develop life-long waste awareness and
responsibility in children, which will result in reduced waste in future
years. Approximately half of the schools in the District participate in
either the Enviroschools or Zero Waste programme. The Zero Waste
education programme is carried out using external teachers to educate
the children about sustainability. Their lessons cover different topics as
they progress through the primary school curriculum which means
children complete the whole programme before they enter secondary
school. In 2014/15 Waikino School worked towards its goal of
achieving green-gold status, which is the highest level of
Enviroschools achievement and means that sustainable practices are
being maintained and are growing through student-led enquiry.
Goldfields School in Paeroa has also worked towards green-gold in
2014/15. Miller Avenue School in Paeroa achieved bronze at the end
of 2014.

12
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Governance and Leadership
Group
Democracy
Local government in New Zealand is empowered
by Central Government through the LGA and
other legislation, and is operated through a local
democratic system. Democracy for the Hauraki
District is defined as the governance of the
Hauraki District by the District’s residents through
their elected representatives. Democratic
representation is currently considered to be the
most appropriate way for the community’s voice to
be heard. The LGA and the Local Electoral Act
2001 determine the processes that ensure each
community is fairly represented. The Hauraki
District has 12 Councillors and a Mayor from
across the Paeroa, Hauraki Plains and Waihi
Wards.

The purpose of Local Government was replaced
with the inception of the Local Government Act
2002 Amendment Act 2012. The new purpose is:
“to meet the current and future
needs of communities for good
quality local infrastructure, public
services and performance of
regulatory functions in a way that is
most cost effective for households
and businesses.”
Good quality is defined in the Local Government
Act 2002 (LGA) as being efficient, effective and
appropriate to present and anticipated future
circumstances. This replaces the previous
purpose (under which the 2012-22 Hauraki
Community Plan was developed) which stated:

Iwi Liaison
The Council, through the implementation of the
LGA, recognises Māori as an important group
within the community and places a specific
emphasis on:
 providing opportunities for Māori to be
involved in decision making processes
 developing policies for consulting with Māori
 fostering capacity building for Māori to take
part in local government processes
 acknowledging the relationship of Tangata
Whenua with the natural environment
 recognising the special status of Tangata
Whenua (as opposed to Māori in general) and
taking into account the Treaty of Waitangi in
resource management decision making
processes.

“provides for local authorities to
play a broad role in promoting the
social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of their
communities, taking a sustainable
development approach”.
The change to the purpose of Local Government
means that as all policies and processes are
developed or reviewed they must reflect the new
purpose. The change in purpose was addressed
through the 2014/15 Annual Plan process and the
final policy work was completed as part of the
2015-25 Hauraki Long Term Plan.
It is the Council’s mission to:
 provide quality services and facilities
 foster open-minded and two-way
communication with the community
 actively advocate on behalf of the community
 ensure the sustainable use and management
of resources

Policy Development
Policy development essentially helps to formalise
our strategic direction and plans through the
preparation of strategies, plans and policy
documents and the analysis and implementation
of strategies and policies from Central
Government and other organisations. Whilst many
policies are developed by the Council to address
local issues or to achieve desired outcomes, we
also have a responsibility to develop and review
some policies, strategies and plans and to report
on these under the LGA, the Resource
Management Act 1991 and other relevant
legislation.

…for the benefit of all who live in, work in and visit
the Hauraki District.
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Meeting our service targets summary
This summary of service target results has been selected to show a range of levels of service achievements
and non-achievements.
Community
Outcome and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:

Current Levels of Service

 Achieved

Democracy

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

The Council will conduct all
its business in an open and
transparent manner
Measure:
Council meetings and
associated business are
conducted in accordance with
appropriate legislation.

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable
2014/15: 

Maintain no
complaints that
are upheld by
the
ombudsman.

Achieved: No complaints to the
Ombudsman have been upheld
for the year.
(2013/14: No complaints upheld)
2014/15: 

Iwi Liaison

The Council will continue to
develop its relationship
with Tangata Whenua
Measure:
Additional Memoranda of
Understanding agreements
are developed.

Policy
Development

To plan the Council’s work
programmes and create
strategic alignment across
policies, plans and
strategies, in accordance
with relevant legislation
Measure:
Council’s policies, plans and
strategies are adopted within
set timeframes.

14

2012-14: One
additional
Memorandum of
Understanding.

2013/14:



Not Achieved: No further
Memoranda of Understanding
agreements were developed in
2014/15 due to the workload
associated with the Treaty
settlement negotiations.
Discussions will recommence
once the Hauraki Treaty
settlements are further
progressed.
(2013/14: No further
agreements developed)
2014/15: 

All legislatively
required
documents are
adopted within
statutory
timeframes.

2013/14: 

2013/14:



Achieved: All of the Council's
legislatively required policies,
plans and strategies were
adopted within statutory
timeframes.
(2013/14: All documents were
adopted within statutory
timeframes)
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Network Groups of Activities
Network groups of activities are often referred to as the Council’s infrastructural assets and are seen to be
Council’s ‘core’ groups of activities.

Stormwater
The Stormwater activity involves the disposal of
excess rainfall runoff from urban areas using
drainage systems which include natural
watercourses, man-made drains, open channels,
reticulated pipe networks and other structures for
accepting stormwater runoff. The purpose of this
activity is to ensure the safe removal of
stormwater to maintain transport and
communication networks, minimise the risk of
flooding to property and minimise the risk to
human life in the urban communities of the
District.

Roading
Roading and footpaths provide essential
infrastructure that support safety and community
cohesion. The Council develops the local roading
and footpath network to ensure that people have
access to, and can contribute to, a healthy and
connected community. The local roading network
connects at various points to the national state
highway network, managed by the New Zealand
Transport Agency (NZTA), and the Council works
with the NZTA to ensure a co-ordinated approach
to roading infrastructure.
Water Supply
The Water Supply activity involves the provision of
domestic, commercial and agricultural water to the
Hauraki District communities. Water supply is a
core service of the Council and a sound water
supply is a prerequisite to public health and safety
and economic well-being. The Council also aims
to maintain sufficient supply in urban areas to
meet fire fighting requirements.

Solid Waste
Solid waste collection, minimisation and disposal
are core services of the Council. The Solid Waste
activity consists of four parts: solid waste
collection (collection of refuse and recycling),
minimisation (efforts made to reduce waste in the
District), education (supporting education
initiatives promoting waste minimisation and
recycling) and landfill aftercare (post closure care
of landfills, carrying out of the post closure
requirements of the relevant resource consents).

Wastewater
The Wastewater activity involves the collection,
treatment and disposal of wastewater. The
Council provides and operates piped sewer
networks and treatment plants for seven urban
areas and ensures that sewage collection,
treatment and disposal is undertaken in a manner
that complies with Public Health requirements and
specific resource consent conditions.
Land Drainage
Land drainage and flood protection and control
activities both work towards achieving the same
goals therefore these activities have been
incorporated into one group of activities called
Land Drainage. Land drainage and flood
protection and control works essentially help to
provide the continued use of the land for
residential, agricultural and horticultural purposes
by protecting against high water tables, extreme
weather events, high tides and river floods.
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Meeting our service targets summary
This summary of service target results has been selected to show a range of levels of service achievements
and non-achievements.
Community
Outcome
and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:

Roading

Current Levels of Service

 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Preserve the pavement life
of sealed roads
Measure:
The Sealed Pavement
Condition Index.
This index is a national
formula for the New Zealand
Transport Agency.

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable
2014/15: 

Maintain a level
of 6-7 (good
condition).

Achieved: The latest New Zealand
Transport Agency SPCI
measurement is at the level of 4.4
which is better than the target of 6-7.
(2013/14: Sealed Pavement
Condition Index of 4.2)
2014/15: 

Roading

Delivery of a roading
network that addresses
safety and amenity issues
Measure:
All reported potholes are
repaired on District roads.

Water
Supply

Water supply services are
affordable
Measure:
Customers are satisfied with
the value for money of water
supplied by the Council**

Water
Supply

Water from public water
supplies is safe to drink
Measure:
Number of notifiable illnesses
attributable to any Council
supply meeting NZ Drinking
Water Standards (NZDWS).

Wastewater

A reliable wastewater
service is provided
Measure:
Respond to blockages of
public sewer mains (not
private connections) within
four hours.

85% within 5
days for >100
vehicle per day
(vpd) roads and
within 14 days
for <100 vpd
roads.

16

2013/14:



2013/14:



Achieved: No notifiable diseases
have been attributed to the HDC
water supply during the year.
(2013/14: No notifiable diseases
attributed to the Council water supply)
2014/15: 

>90%



Achieved: The 2014/15 satisfaction
survey showed that 67%* of residents
on Council water supply are satisfied
with value for money of water and
33% are dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 63% satisfied and 37%
dissatisfied)
2014/15: 

0

2013/14:

Achieved: There was a total of 27
potholes reported on District roads in
the year. 19 of these were on >100
vehicle per day roads and 100%
(19/19) were repaired within 5 days.
The remaining 8 potholes were on
<100 vpd roads and 100% (8/8) were
repaired within 14 days.
(2013/14: 100%)
2014/15: 

60% satisfied

2013/14: 

2013/14:



Achieved: 100% (31/31) of blockages
of public sewer mains were
responded to within four hours in the
year. (2013/14: 97% within four
hours)
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Community
Outcome
and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:



Current Levels of Service

 Achieved

Target 2013/14

 Not Achieved

Land
Drainage

Efficient response to
drainage problems and
emergencies
Measure:
Percentage of urgent service
requests regarding land
drainage responded to within
four hours.

Stormwater

Obstructions in stormwater
structures and pipes are
minimised
Measure:
Number of reported blockages
in stormwater drains and
structures.

Solid Waste

Adverse effects of waste on
the environment are
minimised
Measure:
The amount of waste
collected from the kerbside
per year per serviced
property.

Achievement in 2013/14

 Not Applicable
2014/15: 

>95%

2013/14:



Achieved: A total of 16 blockages in
stormwater drains were reported in
the year. (2013/14: 30 reported
blockages)
2014/15: 

<200kg per
property per
year by 2022



Achieved: 100% (2/2) service
requests regarding land drainage
were responded to in less than four
hours. (2013/14: 100% (target was
>90%)).
2014/15: 

<32**

2013/14:

2013/14:



Achieved: Total amount of waste
collected from the kerbside per
property for the year was 197.71 kg.
(2013/14: 219.14 kg)

* The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also undertaken
for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.

** Refined analysis of service requests resulted in a reduction in targets from the baseline.
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Community Services Group
Community Services involves the provision of services that address social, cultural and environmental needs
and well-beings, provided in response to the public seeking to improve quality of life. The community accepts
that the provision of these services is a discretionary cost that they predominantly pay for through rates.

Community Recreation
The Community Recreation activity provides
opportunities for active recreation, aquatic
recreation and public access to learning
opportunities. The activity encourages residents to
have involvement in their community through
sports and leisure and encourages the physical
and mental wellbeing of both residents and
visitors. There is a community expectation that the
Council will provide these facilities.

Community Facilities
The Community Facilities activity provides
facilities to meet public health needs (public
toilets, cemeteries), social and cultural needs
(public halls, pensioner housing) and amenity
needs (passive reserves). Generally these
facilities are provided in response to community
requirements and the Council works with its
communities to determine the levels of service for
these. However in some cases, such as
cemeteries, there are legislative requirements that
are required to be met.

Meeting our service targets summary
This summary of service target results has been selected to show a range of levels of service achievements
and non-achievements.
Community
Outcome and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:

Current Levels of Service
 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable

Community Recreation

Libraries

Library services are
provided in a customer
focused and effective way to
support the recreational
needs of the community
Measure:
Percentage of library users
satisfied with library services.

Libraries

Libraries attract a wide
audience
Measure:
The number of library website
visitors is increasing.

Swimming
Pools

Provide clean and safe
aquatic facilities that meet
community demand and
promote active recreation
Measure:
Results of three independent
audits undertaken on each
swimming pool facility to
assess them for safety.

18

2014/15: 

>90% satisfied

Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed that
91%* of library users were
satisfied with library services
and 9% were dissatisfied.
(2013/14: 96% satisfied and
4% dissatisfied)
2014/15: 

>6,000

2013/14: new
measure

Achieved: There were 15,766
website visitors in the year
(exceeding the annual target of
>6,000). (2013/14: 10,481 web
visitors (target was >5,500))
2014/15: 

97%
compliance
with the NZ
Swimming Pool
Standards

2013/14: 

2013/14:



Achieved:
 Ngatea 97% compliance
 Paeroa 99% compliance
 Waihi 98% compliance
(2013/14: All pools compliant
98-99%)
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Community
Outcome and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:

Current Levels of Service
 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable
2014/15: 

Swimming
Pools

Council operated swimming
pool facilities are safe for
users
Measure
Increase in level of patronage
at the pools.

1% total
increase in
attendance
numbers per
public
swimming
season, prorated per week
against the
previous year.

Sports fields
and
Recreational
Reserves

Safe park facilities are
provided
Measure:
Park facilities are safe and
compliant with playground
safety standards.

Playground
inspections are
completed
monthly plus an
independent
annual audit

Sports fields
and
Recreational
Reserves

Park facilities are provided
that meet community
demand
Measure:
Percentage of users satisfied
with services and facilities
provided at the Districts Parks
and Reserves.

>90% satisfied

Sports
initiatives

Foster the participation of
residents in sports
recreation and leisure
Measure:
Delivery of five programmes
for children under five years
through the provision of
resources, communication,
training and support.

Maintain
delivery of at
least five
programmes
for parent and
preschool
groups within
the District per
annum.

2013/14: 

Achieved: The total number of
patrons for 2014/15 was 42,299
compared to 41,313 in
2013/14. This is a 2% increase
in patronage for the season.
(2013/14: The figures in the
2013/14 Annual Report were
incorrectly reported. Patronage
in 2013/14 was 41,313 which
was a 13% decrease on 47,359
in 2012/13. The 2013/14 pool
season was shortened by four
weeks from the 2012/13
season).
2014/15: 

2013/14:



Achieved: Monthly inspections
and audits have been
completed throughout the year.
An independent audit was also
completed in the second
quarter. (2013/14: Inspections
and audit carried out and noncompliant items fixed)
2014/15: 

2013/14:



Achieved: The 2014/15
satisfaction survey showed that
95%* of users were satisfied
with the services and facilities
provided at District parks and
reserves and 5% were
dissatisfied. (2013/14: 89%
satisfied and 11% dissatisfied)
2014/15: 

2013/14: 

Achieved: More than five
programmes for parent and
preschool groups were
delivered at Hauraki District
schools in the year. (2013/14:
Programmes delivered as
required)

*The 2015 Satisfaction Survey results have been adjusted to exclude ‘don’t know’ responses. This was also undertaken
for the previous 2013/14 Annual Report satisfaction measures.
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Community
Outcome
and
Progress
Indicator

Activity

Key:

Current Levels of Service

 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable

Community Facilities
2014/15: 

Halls

Council managed halls are
clean and well maintained and
meet the needs of the
community
Measure:
Satisfaction of hall users with
the cleanliness and
maintenance standard of the
halls.

Pensioner
Housing

Pensioner housing units are
available for the elderly who
meet Council’s eligibility
criteria
Measure:
Occupation rates of Council
owned pensioner units (other
than during pre-occupancy
maintenance and hand-over
periods).

Public
Toilets

Public toilets are safe and
clean, meeting the needs of
the community and the
travelling public
Measure:
Number of complaints regarding
whether public toilets are safe,
clean and sufficiently stocked.

Less than 50
complaints per
annum

Cemeteries

The Council provides
efficiently serviced and well
maintained cemeteries
Measure:
Number of requests for general
maintenance at cemeteries per
year.

<20 requests for
maintenance at
Council
cemeteries per
year

20

<3 complaints
per month



Not Achieved:
In three of the 12 months 3 or
more complaints were received.
A total of 26 complaints have
been received in the year. 27%
(7/26) complaints related to
cleanliness due to previous hallusers.
73% (19/26) complaints related
to building or fixtures
maintenance (5 building– 14
fixtures) which were inspected
and rectified. (2013/14: Six of 12
months had 3 or more
complaints)
2014/15: 

98% occupied

2013/14:

2013/14:



Achieved: Pensioner housing
units were 98% occupied for the
year. (2013/14: 98% occupancy
rate)

2014/15: 

2013/14: 

Not Achieved: 52 complaints
were received in the year.
The majority of complaints were
regarding blockages during high
use periods. (2013/14: 47
complaints)
2014/15: 

2013/14: 

Achieved: Six requests for
maintenance (complaints) were
received in the year. (2013/14:
Eight requests for maintenance
received)
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Community Development Group
Community Development is a group of activities in which the Council and a number of other organisations
and agencies are actively involved to ‘help the community to help itself’.
The Community Development activities represent a group of collaborative and partnership approaches and
initiatives between the Council and appropriate organisations and agencies that all have a common theme of
promoting a better quality of life and living environment for the Hauraki District.

Community Growth
The Council has accepted the responsibility to
take part in community growth initiatives due to
public demand for its involvement, the
development of the Community Outcomes, and
that the Council considers it is obligated to work
towards achieving these outcomes. Of particular
relevance is the Community Outcome ‘Progress
Hauraki’ which encourages balanced and
sustained economic growth throughout the
District.

Community Initiatives
The Council aims to promote the District as an
area that encourages vibrant communities and an
enhanced quality of life. This means balancing the
provision of support for social, cultural and
economic initiatives of benefit to the people of the
Hauraki District.
Through the Community Initiatives Activity a
number of projects take place to assist in the
progressing of the Community Outcomes, and to
ensure that we have a positive climate that
encourages balanced and sustained economic
growth throughout the District.
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Meeting our service targets summary
This summary of service target results has been selected to show a range of levels of service achievements
and non-achievements.
Community
Outcome
and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:

Current Levels of Service

 Achieved

Target 2014/15

 Not Achieved

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable
2014/15: 

Community
Growth

The Council will work alongside
others to recognise and develop
opportunities for growth within
the local business communities
Measure:
The Council is aware of business
issues and growth opportunities and
events.

Facilitate and
attend Business
After 5 forums
11 months of the
year in Waihi
and Paeroa, and
quarterly in
Ngatea.

Community
Growth

The Council will work alongside
others to promote the District
Measure:
Community is updated on economic
development matters.

Quarterly
articles in the
HDC news
page.

Community
Initiatives

The Council will work with social
service agencies in the District to
progress agreed social initiatives
Measure:
The Council will participate in the
Better Futures Hauraki Forum,
working collectively towards the
group’s objectives.

Four meetings
of the Better
Futures Hauraki
group are
attended by the
Council, with
relevant matters
arising reported
to the Council.

2013/14:



Not Achieved: There were 19
Business After 5 meetings in
the year and all were attended
by HDC representatives,
however there has not been a
meeting in Ngatea each
quarter. Lack of attendees in
Ngatea has meant the
meetings were unable to
proceed. (2013/14: 17 BA5
meetings held and attended by
a Council representative)
2014/15: 

2013/14:



Achieved: Articles have been
published more often than
quarterly in HDC News page in
2014/15. (2013/14: Three
articles published)
2014/15: 

2013/14: 

Not Achieved: Better Futures
Hauraki is on hold until the
Social Initiatives Project is
completed.* (2013/14: No
meetings held)

* The Social Initiatives Project is the collective name for the Wards' individual scoping which will assist in their social policy
direction.

22

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 390
2014/15 Annual Report Summary - Hauraki District Council

Regulatory Services Group
Regulatory Services involves a group of responsibilities, including those placed on the Council by Central
Government to ensure community compliance with national standards and guidelines, and those undertaken
by the Council through policies, plans and bylaws to regulate local issues.
National standards, guidelines and legislation require the Council to develop local compliance standards
such as the District Plan, bylaws, policies and response plans.

Community Protection
Community Protection is a series of activities that
involve the Council acting in a preventative role to
protect the community. This is through a number
of means including preparing for civil defence
emergencies, resourcing and supporting local
rural fire forces, limiting access to gambling,
ensuring adequate liquor licensing controls are in
place, and ensuring safe public places including
eating places and swimming pools.

Resource Management Implementation
The Council is required to implement its
responsibilities under the Resource Management
Act 1991, in particular administering its Operative
and/or Proposed District Plan, the processing and
monitoring of resource consents, processing of
‘notices of requirements’ for designations for
public works, monitoring and enforcement
(including noise) and providing public information
on resource management issues. The Regulatory
Services Group is also required to issue Land
Information Memoranda (LIMs) under the Local
Government Official Information and Meetings
Act, 1987.

The Council supports this with its monitoring and
enforcement functions in a number of areas.
These include the food hygiene controls and
notifiable disease investigations under the Health
Act, 1956; the number of gaming machines
allowed for in the District as determined by the
Council’s Class 4 Gaming Venue and New
Zealand Racing Board Venue Policy; and
regulation, monitoring and host responsibility
education via the Council’s Local Alcohol Policy.

Building Control
The Council is required to implement the
provisions of the Building Act, 2004 as a Building
Consent Authority and a territorial authority. This
is to ensure that existing and new buildings are
safe and sanitary, and to protect other property
from physical damage from the construction, use
and demolition of buildings. The Council is also
required to ensure that the necessary controls
relating to the construction of a building and its
use are implemented in accordance with the NZ
Building Code and the Building Act, 2004 and to
monitor Warrants of Fitness issued for buildings
used by the public. The Council is also required to
implement the provisions of the Resource
Management Act, 1991 in relation to building
consent applications.

Animal Control
The Council has a statutory requirement to be
involved in Animal Control with particular
emphasis on dog registration, education of dog
owners and the public enforcement of dog and
animal control issues to minimise danger, distress
or nuisance from dogs and other animals. In order
to enforce the Dog Control Act, the Council
maintains a Dog Control Policy and the
Consolidated Bylaw which in part pertains to
restrictions imposed on dog owners, along with
restrictions on other animals including roosters
and other livestock.
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Meeting our service targets summary
This summary of service target results has been selected to show a range of levels of service achievements
and non-achievements.
Community
Outcome and
Progress
Indicators

Activity

Key:

Current Levels of Service

 Achieved

Target
2014/15

 Not Achieved

Resource
Management
Implementation

Resource consent
applications should be
decided and issued within
statutory timeframes
Measure:
Non-notified resource consent
decisions not requiring a hearing
are issued within 20 working
days.

Building
Control
Services

Building consent applications
will be processed within
statutory timeframes
Measure:
Building consent applications not
requiring additional information
are processed within 20 working
days.

Achievement in 2014/15

 Not Applicable
2014/15: 

100%

Community
Protection

Community
Protection

Council is ready for a Civil
Defence or Rural Fire
Emergency
Measure:
Timeframe for taking over
responsibility for a fire is within
one hour of receiving official
notification.

100%
taken over
within one
hour

Animal Control

Council will ensure
compliance with the Dog
Control legislation and bylaw,
and the Stock Impounding Act
to provide public safety
Measure:
Dog attack complaints are
responded to within two hours.

100% of
complaints
responded
to within
two hours.

24

100% are
monitored
annually

2013/14:



Achieved: 100% (187/187) of
building consent applications
not requiring further information
were processed within the
statutory timeframes for the
year. (2013/14: 100%
processed within 20 working
days)
2014/15: 

The Council will enforce the
Health Act, 1956
Measure:
Public and school pools are
monitored annually for
compliance with the New
Zealand Standard for Public
Pools.



Achieved: 100% of non-notified
consents were processed in
time (59/59 landuse and 24/24
subdivisions) (2013/14: 98%
processed within timeframes)
2014/15: 

100%

2013/14:

2013/14: 

Not Achieved: Quarterly
assessment of inspection
records was not completed due
to pools being closed from
March to October. (2013/14:
100% swimming pools
inspected)
This measure has been
changed for 2015/16 onwards
to reflect the swimming season.
2014/15: 

2013/14:



Not Applicable: No fire events
occurred in the year. (2013/14:
Five fire events were taken over
within one hour)
2014/15: 

2013/14:



Achieved: 100% (60/60) of dog
attack complaints received in
the year were responded to
within two hours. (2013/14:
100% responded to within two
hours)
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Financial Summary
for the year ended 30 June 2015
Summary of Accounting Policies
<<FINANCIALS TO BE INCLUDED>>

Reporting Entity
Hauraki District Council is a territorial local
authority governed by the Local Government Act
2002.

Major Variances to Budget
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Operating
The operating deficit was $6.5 million higher than
forecast.

The primary objective of HDC is to provide goods
or services for the community or social benefit
rather than making a financial return. Accordingly,
HDC has designated itself as public benefit entity
for the purposes of New Zealand equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ
IFRS).

The main factor in this variance to budget was
$5.0 million of forecast subsidy income for water
capital that was not received during the year. This
income is forecast to be received in 2014/15 and
2015/16. Depreciation was $1.0 million higher
than forecast due to no provision for depreciation
being made in the forecast for the Hauraki Rail
Trail and corporate assets.

The full financial statements which were adopted
on 29 October 2014 by Council were audited by
Audit NZ and received an unmodified audit
opinion.

Revaluations
The total comprehensive income surplus was
$17.5 million. This was $11.3 million lower than
budgeted. As well as the variances outlined
above, the actual increase in the value of roading
assets was $20.1 million (compared to a $25.0
million forecast increase). The previous year’s
revaluation decrease of $0.5 million related to
land assets.
Statement of Financial Position
Overall borrowings are $6.1 million lower than
budget due to the deferral of capital projects.
Property, plant and equipment is $32.4 million
lower, primarily due to lower than forecast
valuation increases in land and roading assets
and the impact of deferring water supply capital
projects.

The summary financial statements are for the year
ended 30 June 2014. They were authorised for
issue and adopted by Council on 26 November
2014.
The full financial statements of HDC have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 2002: Part 6, Section
98 and Part 3 of Schedule 10, which includes the
requirement to comply with New Zealand
generally accepted accounting practice (NZ
GAAP). The full financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP. They
comply with NZ IFRS, and other applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for
public benefit entities.

Statement of Cashflows
Compared to budget Council paid less for
purchases and construction of Property, Plant and
Equipment ($7.5 million). Offsetting this, were
lower than budgeted Council receipts from Other
Revenue ($4.0 million).

The full financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, modified by the
revaluation of land and buildings, certain
infrastructural assets, investment property,
biological assets and financial instruments.
The summary financial statements included in this
report have been extracted from the full financial
statements and are prepared in accordance with
the FRS 43: Summary Financial Statements.

The effect of these, and other smaller changes,
was to decrease the forecast net cash
requirement from borrowing and cash reserves by
$3.1 million.

The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars ($’000). The functional
currency of HDC is New Zealand dollars.
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Contingent Liabilities

Capital Commitments



Weathertight Homes Claims
There was one known claim against HDC
lodged with the Weathertight Homes
Resolution Service as at 30 June 2014.
Council believes it has no liability under this
claim (maximum liability $10,000).

Capital expenditure contracted for at balance date
but not yet incurred was $1,855,000 (2013
$1,876,000).



Building Foundations
There have been several properties in the
district affected by foundation subsidence.
The maximum liability Council is exposed to is
the excess not covered by Riskpool
($20,000).

The total cost to Council of the remuneration for
the 14 council members and the five senior
managers was $1,274,000 (2013 $1,219,000).
Severance payments of $18,500 (2013 $39,185)
were paid to employees.



Hauraki Rail Trail
Council has agreed to underwrite the
operations of the Hauraki Rail Trail Trust. The
maximum liability that Council is exposed to is
$284,000.



Local Authority Protection Programme
Council is part of a mutual self-assurance
scheme. There will be no contributions
required from Council in 2015 as there are
sufficient funds to cover future events.



Local Government Funding Agency
Council, along with all other borrowing
councils, is a guarantor of LGFA’s borrowings.
In the event of a borrowing council defaulting
on a loan, Council could be exposed to having
to cover their borrowings until a rate could be
levied on the defaulting council’s ratepayers.
LGFA has $20,000,000 of available funds to
cover such an eventuality. The maximum
liability that Council is exposed to is
$3,728,000,000.



Guarantees
Paeroa Centennial Park Board
Waihi Netball Association

Remuneration and Severance
Disclosure

$30,000
$50,000
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Financial Information
for the year ended 30 June 2015
[Commentary about performance against the financial strategy e.g. financial limits]

Expenditure ($000s)
Regulatory 2,994
Community
Development 1,874

Roading 7,667

Community
Services 5,299

Leadership 2,549

Water 5,716

Solid Waste 565

Wastewater 3,010

Stormwater 898

Land Drainage &
Flooding 922

Expenditure
Employee Benefit
Expenses 10,045
Other Expenses
12,869

Depreciation and
Amortisation
8,512

Finance Costs
1,556

27
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14,000
12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0
Employee Benefit
(2,000)

Depreciation and
Amortisation

Finance Costs

Budget

28

Actual

Gains/ Losses

Other Expenses

Council Agenda - 30/09/15

Page 396
2014/15 Annual Report Summary - Hauraki District Council

Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015
Actual
2014
$000

Annual Plan
2014
$000

Actual
2013
$000

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
General Rates
Targeted Rates (excl. Water Rates)
Targeted Rates for Water Supplies
Other income

10,909
8,482
4,955
5,951

10,909
8,736
5,132
11,223

10,104
8,361
5,621
7,132

Total Income

30,297

36,000

31,218

Employee Benefit Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Costs
Other expenditure

10,045
8,512
1,556
12,869

10,236
7,558
1,619
12,703

10,030
8,789
1,474
14,278

Total Expenditure

32,982

32,116

34,571

0

0

0

2
(9)

0
0

8
2

Net Surplus/(Deficit) From Operations

(2,692)

3,884

(3,343)

Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Increment
Change in fair value of Financial Instruments

20,190
0

25,001
0

(447)
0

Total Comprehensive Income

17,498

28,885

(3,790)

512,508

527,787

516,298

17,498

28,885

(3,790)

Equity at end of year

530,006

556,672

512,508

FINANCIAL POSITION
Current Assets
Non-Current Assets

9,930
557,148

8,889
589,760

13,988
535,511

Total Assets

567,078

598,649

549,499

Current Borrowings
Other Current Liabilities
Non-Current Borrowings
Other Non-Current Liabilities

15,501
6,959
14,000
612

3,000
4,842
32,620
1,515

10,010
7,445
19,001
535

Total Liabilities

37,072

41,977

36,991

Net Assets

530,006

556,672

512,508

Retained Earnings
Other reserves
Asset revaluation reserve

407,986
5,475
116,545

416,949
5,574
134,149

410,049
6,104
96,355

Total Equity

530,006

556,672

512,508

CASHFLOWS
Net cash from operating activities
Net cash from/(to) investing activities
Net cash from/(to) financing activities

6,921
(9,961)
490

11,762
(17,905)
6,220

5,532
(9,759)
7,013

Net increase/(decrease) in cash equivalents

(2,550)

77

2,786

3,532

196

746

Income Tax Expense
Share of Joint Venture Surplus/(Deficit)
Share of Associates Surplus/(Deficit)

MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY
Equity at beginning of year
Total Comprehensive Income

Cash Balance at beginning of year
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Cash Balance at end of year

982

273

3,532

Whole of Council Funding
Impact Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2015
2013
Annual
Plan
$000
SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDING
General rates, uniform annual general charges, rate penalties
Targeted rates (other than a targeted rate for water supply)
Subsidies and grants for operating purposes
Fees, charges, and targeted rates for water supply
Interest and dividends from investments
Local Authorities fuel tax, fines, infringement fees, and other receipts
Total Operating Funding (A)
APPLICATIONS OF OPERATING FUNDING
Payments to staff and suppliers
Finance Costs
Other operating funding applications
Total Applications of Operating Funding (B)

2013
Annual
Report
$000

10,396
8,704
1,822
5,133

SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Subsidies and grants for capital expenditure
Development and financial contributions
Increase (decrease) in debt
Gross proceeds from sale of assets
Lump sum contributions
Total Sources of Capital Funding (C)

2014
Actual
$000

10,104
8,361
2,702
5,621
2,616
29,404

10,909
8,735
2,312
5,133
2,588
29,677

10,909
8,482
1,800
4,955
20
2,538
28,704

23,288

23,647
1,380
0
25,027

22,944
1,619
0
24,563

22,626
1,460
24,086

5,335

4,377

5,114

4,618

1,366
100
9,276

1,345
84
7,081
8,510

6,138
205
6,220
12,563

1,376
18
493
1,887

13,066
4,861
(250)
17,677

150
6,623
3,496
(3,908)
144
6,505

2,568
28,623

21,629
1,659

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF OPERATING FUNDING (A - B)

2014
Annual
Plan
$000

10,742

APPLICATIONS OF CAPITAL FUNDING
Capital Expenditure
- to meet additional demand
- to improve the level of service
- to replace existing assets
Increase (decrease) in reserves
Increase (decrease) of investments
Total Applications of Capital Funding (D)

16,077

3,853
2,349
2,984
3,701
12,887

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) OF CAPITAL FUNDING (C - D)

(5,335)

(4,377)

(5,114)

(4,618)

-

-

-

-

2,300
9,522
5,003
(748)

FUNDING BALANCE ((A - B) + (C - D))
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Audit Report
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Report
To:

Mayor and Councillors

From:

Strategic Planner

Date:

Thursday, 3 September 2015

File reference:

Document:
Appendix A:
Appendix B:

Meeting date:

30/09/2015

Subject:

Waikato Local Authority Shared Services (LASS) –
Annual Report and Benefits Review

1408799
1413040
1408518

Recommendation:
THAT the report be received.

Purpose
To present two reports by the Local Authority Shared Service’s (LASS):
1. The LASS Annual Report for the year to 30 June 2015.
2. A ‘Collaboration in Action’ benefits report.
The matter or suggested decision does not involve a new activity, service, programme, project,
expenditure or other deliverable.

Background
The LASS is a council controlled organisation (CCO) owned by the local authorities within the
Waikato Region. It provides a legal entity which can enter into contracts and agreements with
external suppliers to provide shared services and provide value by achieving better outcomes and
cost savings for the shareholding local authorities.
Reporting Requirements
The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA)1 requires CCOs to prepare their annual reports within three
months after the end of the financial year. The report must:
• contain information that is necessary to enable an informed assessment of the operations of
that organisation and its subsidiaries, including a comparison of its performance and
subsidiaries with its statement of intent, and an explanation of any material variances
• state the dividend, if any, authorised to be paid or the maximum dividend proposed to be paid
by that organisation for its equity securities (other than fixed securities) for the financial year
• include audited consolidated financial statements for the organisation and its subsidiaries
1

Section 67.
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include an auditor’s report on those financial statements and performance targets by which
performance was judged in relation to the organisation’s objectives, and
contain information required to be included by the organisation’s statement of intent.

Annual Report
The 2014/15 LASS Annual Report is attached as Appendix A.
The focus of the LASS over the 2014/15 year has included:
• undertaking a review of the benefits that have been achieved by LASS since its inception
• continuing to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the existing shared services
• facilitating the Waikato Mayoral Forum work streams
• becoming more active as in initiator of shared services in the region
• working more collaboratively with the Bay of Plenty, Manawatu-Wanganui and Hawkes Bay
LASS organisations.
A number of new projects have been established or are in development and are expected to come
into fruition in the 2015/16 financial year:
• procurement project establishing a professional consultancy services panel
• scanning of historic aerial photo archives
• developing a shared regional GIS data portal
• developing and implementing an on-line service for building consents with other services (e.g.
dog registration) to be progressively added
• initiating energy audits, and
• testing water samples.
In terms of achieving its performance goals, 14 of the 15 applicable performance measures set out
in the LASS Statement of Intent were achieved. The non-achievement result related to the cash
flow position, where the LASS had intentionally operated at a negative level in order to use up
surpluses and therefore did not maintain an overall positive position.
The LASS operating expenditure for the period ended 30 June 2015 was $2.6 million against a
budget of $1.8 million. The variance was due to:
1) personnel costs being lower than budgeted due to no personnel employed from February 2014
2) depreciation is lower due to lower enhancements than budgeted and to a change in the useful
life of SVDS assets
3) other expenses are higher due to expenditure being incurred primarily on the spatial plan and
roading Waikato Mayoral Forum projects that was unquantifiable at the time of the budgeting
process.
Revenue was also above budget at $2.1 million compared to a budget of $1.3 million. This
variance was due to:
• SVDS data sales being higher than budgeted due to an MoU with an additional organisation for
the supply of valuation and sales data
• interest received being higher due to a higher than budgeted cash surplus throughout the year
• other revenue being higher than budgeted primarily due to higher expenditure on the Waikato
Mayoral Forum projects being recognised as revenue, and transferred from deferred income.
Overall, revenue was lower than expenditure by $509,300 against a budget of revenue being lower
than expenditure by $525,777.
The auditors, Audit New Zealand issued an unmodified audit opinion.
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Benefits Report
A LASS report ‘Collaboration in Action’ is attached as Appendix B. This report intends to outline the
achievements and benefits of the LASS since its inception. The report identifies 16 service areas
and assesses them against the following five indicators:
1. reduce costs
2. increase revenue
3. build relationships
4. improve decision-making
5. improve performance.
The table below provides a summary of the benefits attributed to the shared services that the
Hauraki District Council participates in. More information can be found in the report.
Reduce
costs

Increase
revenue

Build
relationships

Improve
decisionmaking

Improve
performance

Shared Valuation Data Service
(SVDS)
Insurance

















Computer-generated print, mail
house & eservices
Postal & courier services
Financial reporting
N3 & all of government
Waikato regional aerial
photography service
Waikato historic aerial photos
archive
Legal services (open to all)
Energy supply (open to all)







Service





































The report also provides the results of a recent shareholder satisfaction survey. 12 of the 13
indicators showed improvement (many showed significant improvement) in satisfaction levels or
the maintenance of 100% satisfaction results from the previous year. The indicator which showed a
slight decrease in satisfaction concerned ‘the insurance broker AON providing a responsive and
efficient service’.

Significance and Engagement Assessment
This decision is considered not significant in nature.

Budget Implications
There are no budgetary implications as a result of this report.

Conclusion
The Council has received two reports from the Waikato LASS, the 2014/15 Annual Report and a
‘Collaboration in Action’ report. Both are summarised above.
KATHERINE QUINN
STRATEGIC PLANNING
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